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PART |

Item 1. Busines:

THE COMPANY

Overview

Loral Space & Communications Inc. (“New Loral”) tolget with its subsidiaries is a leading satellite
communications company with substantial activities ielkgt manufacturing and investments in satelliteedas
communications services. New Loral, a Delaware cotjporawas formed on June 24, 2005, to succeed to the business
conducted by its predecessor registrant, Loral Space &r@oneations Ltd. (“Old Loral”), which emerged fromagiter 11
of the federal bankruptcy laws on November 21, 2005 (thet¢E#e Date”) (see “Reorganization” below).

The terms “Loral,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “tsvhen used in this report with respect to the period pador t
the Effective Date, are references to Old Loradi when used with respect to the period commencing onfeerdlze
Effective Date, are references to New Loral. Thegerences include the subsidiaries of Old Loral or Newal, as the case
may be, unless otherwise indicated or the contédraiise requires.

Loral is organized into two segments:
Satellite Manufacturing:

Our subsidiary, Space Systems/Loral, Inc. (“SS/L”), glesend manufactures satellites, space systems and
space system components for commercial and governmngiohters whose applications include fixed satellite
services (“FSS”), direct-to-home (“DTH") broadcastingpbile satellite services (“MSS”), broadband data
distribution, wireless telephony, digital radio, digitadlile broadcasting, military communications, weather
monitoring and air traffic management.

Satellite Services:

Until October 31, 2007, the operations of our satelliteices segment were conducted through Loral Skynet
Corporation (“Loral Skynet”), which leased transpond@acéy to commercial and government customers for video
distribution and broadcasting, high-speed data distribubidernet access and communications, and also prbvide
managed network services to customers using a hybrititeaiad ground-based system. It also provided
professional services to other satellite operatoris aadleet operating services. At October 31, 2007, Lata &
had four in-orbit satellites and had one satellite undestcuction at SS/L.

On October 31, 2007, Loral and its Canadian partner, Publiordeension Investment Board (“PSP”),
through Telesat Holdings Inc. (“Telesat Holdco”), a nefelyned joint venture, completed the acquisition of Telesat
Canada from BCE Inc. (“BCE”"). In connection with thegjaisition, Loral transferred on that same date subatbnti
all of the assets and related liabilities of Loral i&to Telesat Canada. Loral holds a 64% economicsttand a
331/3 % voting interest in Telesat Holdco, the ultimate pacentpany of the resulting new entity (see Note 8 to
the consolidated financial statements). We use theyageithod of accounting for our investment in Telesatada.

We refer to the acquisition of Telesat Canada andetlhésd transfer of Loral Skynet to Telesat Canadhas
Telesat Canada transaction. References to Telesat Gaithdaspect to periods prior to the closing of this
transaction are references to the subsidiary of BCEmthd espect to the period after the closing of trassaction
are references to Telesat Holdco and/or its subsigias appropriate. Similarly, unless otherwise indicated,
references to Loral Skynet with respect to periods poithe closing of this transaction are referenodhe
operations of Loral’s satellite services segmeniaslacted through Loral Skynet and with respect to the period
commencing on and after the closing of this tranesadre, if related to the fixed satellite services legsn
references to the Loral Skynet operations within Tél€saada.



We adopted fresh start accounting as of October 1, 2005, irdacce with Statement of Position No. 90-7,
Financial Reporting of Entities in Reorganization Under the Bankruptuje(“SOP 90-77). Accordingly, our




financial information disclosed under the heading “SuareRegistrant” for the periods ended and as of Decembe08%, 2
2006 and 2007, respectively, is presented on a basis diffesentand is therefore not comparable to, our financial
information disclosed under the heading “Predecessor tRegisfor the period ended and as of October 1, 2005d@kes

we adopted fresh-start accounting) or for prior periods.

Segment Overview
Satellite Manufacturing

SS/L has been designing, manufacturing and integratinifjteatand space systems for a wide variety of
commercial and government customers for more than 50 yesapsoducts include mid-and high-powered satellites
designed for applications such as fixed satellite ser(ie&S”), direct-to-home (“DTH”) broadcasting, mobsatellite
services (“MSS”), broadband data distribution, wirelegsphony, digital radio, digital mobile broadcasting, tauily
communications, weather monitoring and air traffic managegnsS/L customers have included such satellite service
providers and government organizations as APT Satellgi@Sat, DIRECTV, EchoStar, Hisdesat, ICO, Intelsgtad’s
Ministry of Transport and Civil Aviation Bureau, the tidgmal Oceanic & Atmospheric Administration (NOAA), Optus
(SingTel), SES New Skies, Shin Satellite, Sirius SeedRadio, Telesat Canada, TerreStar Networks, WildBlue
Communications, XTAR and XM Satellite Radio. Sincariteption, SS/L has delivered more than 220 satelliteshw
together have achieved more than 1,400 years of cumulatigebd service; many of these satellites signifttaaxceeded
design life expectations. SS/L’s broad product line mbetsast majority of customer requirements for sagslhtith up to
25 kilowatts of power. The capacity offered on theselgatetanges from one to as many as 150 transpondessrdieg to
industry research firm, Futron Corporation, global séetfianufacturing revenue was $12 billion in 2006 of which
approximately $3 billion was for commercial satellites.

SSI/L has a history of technology innovation and currgrthyides some of the world’s most powerful commercial
satellites. With 190 U.S. patents, the company haskethtlustry with research in advanced composites, antennas,
multiplexers, power conversion, propulsion systems,cemnadrbit controls. Its highly flexible satellite plarm
accommodates a broad range of applications such as regiahspot-beam technology, hybrid systems that maxithee
value of orbital slot location, and imagers for priecisveather forecasting. The SS/L platform accommexiadme of the
world’s highest power payloads for television, radid amultimedia broadcast. With increasing demand for haat@vices
for video, audio and data, SS/L is also a leaderamiging satellite systems that include Ground Based Beamikg
(GBBF) capability so that upgradeable ground equipment iam\gith new innovations and market demands.

SS/L has won a humber of satellite construction awardstlgdast few years and, as a result, its backlog has
expanded significantly. In order to complete constructicallahe satellites in backlog and to accommodate fuguerth,
SS/L is modifying and expanding its existing manufacturicdifees and coordinating with third parties for addibn
high-bay satellite integration and test facilitieS/ISis seeking, under this expansion plan, to accommedateany as 13
satellite awards per year depending on the complexity amitiof the specific satellites awarded and to providatgre
in-house manufacturing of RF components and subasseniiiissexpansion which includes the use of third partyteffs
capacity and the upgrading of existing SS/L satellitedpsrations and RF assembly and test operationgjrisaésd to
require total incremental capital expenditures of appratéhy $30 million.

Market and Competition

SS/L participates in the highly competitive commercélite manufacturing industry principally on the basis
superior customer relationships, technical excellentiapiigy and pricing. Other competitors for satelimanufacturing
contracts include Boeing, Lockheed Martin, and Orbit&8es in the U.S., Thales Alenia Space and EADSuAstit
Europe and Mitsubishi Electric Corporation in JapanLSS®bntinued success depends on its ability to provide highly
reliable satellites on a cost-effective and timmgis. SS/L may also face competition in the future femnerging low-cost
competitors in India, Russia and China. The number eflisatmanufacturing contracts awarded varies annaaltyis
difficult to predict. For example, based on readily avddandustry information, we believe that, while ohko contracts
for mid-and high-power (8 kW or higher) commercial didsl were awarded worldwide in 2002, there were 12 and 16
contracts awarded in 2007 and 2006, respectively.




Satellite Manufacturing Performance

Successor Registrant

Predecessor Registran

For the Period

For the Period

For the Year For the Year October 2, January 1,
Ended Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
(In millions)
Total segment revenues $ 814 $ 697 $ 162 $ 33C
Eliminations (53) (60) (1) (12)
Revenues from satellite manufacturi
as reported $ 761 $ 637 $ 161 $ 319
Segment Adjusted EBITDA before
eliminations(1) $ 35 $ 66 $ 12 $ 15

(1) See Consolidated Operating Results in Managemé&igcussion and Analysis of Financial Conditiod &esults of Operations for significant ite
that affect comparability between the periods prees (see No 18 to the consolidated financial statements ferdéfinition of Adjusted EBITDA).

Total SS/L assets were $963 million and $945 millionfa3ezcember 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Backlog at
December 31, 2007 was $1.0 billion. This included $138 mitifdacklog for the construction of Nimiq 5 and TelstAN1
for Telesat Canada. Backlog at December 31, 2006 was $1oh bithis included $118 million of backlog for the
construction of Nimiq 5 for Telesat Canada and intercampbacklog of $116 million, primarily for the constructioh o
Telstar 11N for Loral Skynet. It is expected that approx@yatd% of the backlog as of December 31, 2007, will be
recognized as revenues during 2008. During 2007, two of S&iktemers accounted for approximately 20% and 16% of

our consolidated revenues.

Satellite Services

Until the closing of the Telesat Canada transaatim®ctober 31, 2007, Loral Skynet was a global satelliteatpe
providing customers with a wide range of video and datsitngssion services. Its four globally-positioned sagslitvhich
are now part of the Telesat Canada fleet, operate irygga®nous earth orbit approximately 22,000 miles above the
equator. In this orbit, satellites remain in a fixed positielative to points on the earth’s surface and geoxeliable,
high-bandwidth services anywhere in their coverage aseagng as the backbone for many forms of telecomaoations.

Subsequent to the closing of the Telesat Canada traorsdatral participates in satellite services operagion
principally through its investment in Telesat Canada. &eléanada is the world’s fourth largest provider of R85
industry leading backlog, and one of only three FSS gensioperating on a global basis. The combination &s&aél
Canada and Loral Skynet creates a powerful internatasgahization with 12 in-orbit satellites and three sagsllitnder
construction, of which two are 100% leased for at I¢eestlesign life of the satellite. Telesat Canada prewieo
distribution and DTH video, as well as end-to-end comiaiiuns services using both satellite and hybridll#&tground
networks. According to industry research firm Eurocongiadt,global FSS industry grew by 8% in 2006 generating

approximately $8.2 billion in revenues.

Telesat Canada categorizes its satellite servicestapes@nto broadcast, enterprise services, and congutid

other, as follows:

Broadcast:

DTH. Both Canadian DTH service providers (Bell ExpressVu&tad Choice) use Telesat Canada’s
satellites as a distribution platform for their seed, delivering a package of television programming, aattio
information channels directly to customers’ homes. Intexid EchoStar uses Anik F3, and DIRECTV uses one of
Telesat Canada’s orbital locations, for DTH servioethe United States. In Asia, Telstar 10 supports DTH
television distribution through Hung Kai, a leading calvie BTH distributor based in Taiwan.






Video Distribution. Major broadcasters, cable networks and DTH sepriogiders use Telesat Canada
satellites for the full-time transmission of teléwis programming. Additionally, certain broadcasters antHDT
service providers bundle value-added services that includieat@pacity, digital encoding of video channels and
uplinking and downlinking services to and from Telesat Cana@dditest and teleport facilities. In Asia, Telesat
Canada is a leader in the distribution of video conteoabte head ends from which approximately 80 million
households can receive television programming distribover Telstar 10, including HBO, Sony, Disney and
Hallmark. In Europe, Telstar 12 provides satellite ses/to the largest cable distributor in Europe, UPC, sinded
to transmit the television services of NBC and Foxbdth Brazil and Chile, Telesat Canada provides video
distribution services on Telstar 14.

Occasional Use Services.Occasional use services consist of satellitestrégsion services for the timely
broadcast of video news, sports and live event covemageshort-term basis enabling broadcasters to conduct
on-the-scene transmissions using small, portable aadenn

Enterprise Services:

North America Data Networks. Telesat Canada provides data networks in North Ameasavell as the
related ground segment and maintenance services suppbese networks. Telesat Canada is one of the largest
operators of very small aperture terminal, or VSATteys in North America, managing approximately 26,000
VSAT terminals at customer sites in Canada and the USitees. Some of these customers are provided end-to-end
services including installation and maintenance of titkuser terminal, maintenance of the VSAT hub, and
provision of satellite capacity. Other customers imayrovided a subset of these services, including mamterai
the VSAT terminal, while using other providers for hubintenance and/or space segment capacity. Telesat Canada
also provides networks that combine both satellitel28d. Examples of North American data network services
include the provision and maintenance of a network fontanactive distance learning (IDL) program for a major
United States corporation, point of sale services faioousrs in Canada, and communications services to remote
locations for the oil and gas industry.

International Enterprise Networks. Telesat Canada provides IP-based terrestrial extessiwices that
allow enterprises to reach multiple locations worldwig many of which cannot be connected via terrestriahsie
Leveraging satellite’s one-to-many attributes, threaeaged services also enable multi-cast and broadcast
functionality. These services are delivered to entseprivhose headquarters are typically in the Unite@<Stat
Europe through both terrestrial partners and directtptporations.

Ka-band Internet Services.Telesat Canada provides Ka-band, two-way broadlvderhet services in
Canada through Barrett Xplore Inc. and other reset@d Ka-band satellite capacity to WildBlue who uses it t
provide services in the United States.

Telecommunication Carrier ServicesTelesat Canada provides satellite capacity and eade®ervices for
data and voice transmission to telecommunicationsecaracated throughout the world. These services include
(i) connectivity and voice circuits to remote locasan Canada for customers such as Bell Canada, and NortwesT
and (ii) space segment capacity and terrestrial f@silfor Internet backhaul and access, GSM backhaul, avideser
such as rural telephony to carriers around the world.

Government Services.The United States Government is the largest stagisumer of fixed satellite
services in the world, and a significant user of Tel€saada’s international satellites. Over the coafseveral
years Telesat Canada has implemented a successfeggttatsell through government service integrators, rather
than directly to United States Government agenciesllaservices are also provided to the Canadian Govarim
including a variety of services from a maritime netwankd Canadian Government entity to protected satellite
capacity to the Department of National Defense forl\tbgh Warning System.




Consulting & Other:

Consulting operations allow for increased operatingieffities by leveraging Telesat Canada’s existing
employees and facility base. With over 35 years of eegimg and technical experience, Telesat Canada is a leading
consultant in establishing, operating and upgrading getsyistems worldwide, having provided services to
businesses and governments in more than 30 countries agrogatgients. Telesat Canada operates 13 satellites fo
third parties. Currently, the international consultinginess provides satellite-related services to oveugbrers
in approximately 20 countries.

Telesat Canada is the world’s fourth largest providéiS$ with an international platform supporting (i) strong
video distribution and DTH neighborhoods in North Amerticat result in long-term contracts with blue chiptomers,
industry leading backlog, and fully contracted expansiohl Batellites, (ii) an efficient and expanding enterpsisevices
business that provides a wide range of North Americamress with end-to-end communications services usingjiteate
and hybrid satellite-DSL networks, and (iii) a strongginational video distribution and enterprise servizesness that
provides exposure to high-growth regions and satellite aseund the world.

Through its commitment to customer service and focusimovation and technical expertise, Telesat Canada has
developed strong relationships with a diverse range of duigllity customers, including many of the world’s largestwide
and data service providers. Its customers include Mortarican DTH providers Bell ExpressVu, Star Choice BodoStar,
and leading telecommunications and media firms such agWisiBO, NBC, UPC, Canadian Broadcasting Corporation,
Bell Canada, AT&T, Verizon, BT Group, Global Crossimgld ockheed Martin. Its North American Broadcast and
Enterprise Services customer service contractypieatly multi-year in duration and, in the past, Telesat&tla has been
successful in contracting all or a significant portiom afatellite’s capacity prior to commencing constructima result,
Telesat Canada had approximately $5.3 billion in contractdddopas of December 31, 2007, of which approximately 10%
will be recognized as revenues during 2008.

Market and Competition

The satellite services business sector is highly catiyeetnd its players must also compete with non-segell
technologies for the provision of voice, data, video amernet connectivity services. Telesat Canada operatae FSS
sector, providing communications links between fixed paintthe earth’s surface, referred to as point-to-peaintices,
and the provision of satellite connectivity from gant to multiple points, referred to as point-to-multigaervices.

As the world’s fourth largest satellite services compdmyesat Canada competes with the two other global
operators, Intelsat, Ltd. and SES S.A., as well asHutelsat, S.A. in Europe. Intelsat, SES and Eutelsa¢ach
substantially larger than Telesat Canada in termstbfthe number of satellites they have in orbit al$ agin terms of
their revenues. In addition, Telesat Canada faces cdiopdtom regional players, some of whom enjoy comjwetit
advantages in their local markets. They are Sirius, Fatalblellasat and Turksat in Europe, the Middle Eastidinch;
AsiaSat, Measat Satellite Systems, Shin SatelleeARPT Satellite Holdings Ltd. (“APT”), PT Telkom and Optin Asia,;
Satelites Mexicanos S.A. de C.V., Star One, Nahu&3Jat and Hispasat S.A. in Latin America; and Ciel BgtoStar in
North America.

Telesat Canada also competes with terrestrial sgouvmeders, principally on point-to-point long distancetes, as
well as for certain types of data networks. While sédsllare more efficient than terrestrial systemséotain applications,
such as broadcast or point-to-multipoint transmissiondefo and broadband data, terrestrial networks are digrless
expensive than satellite networks for point-to-pointisess In developing countries, satellite plays a largerirol
telecommunications networks due to the relatively undgesl terrestrial communications networks. As a result of
deregulation and economic growth, these terrestriahzenication networks are expanding in certain countmesgasing
competition for satellite services.

The market for satellite consulting services is gdtyetamprised of a few service providers qualified toyule
services in specific areas of expertise. Telesat Camadaipetitors are primarily United States and Eurojbeaed
companies.




Satellite Fleet & Ground Resources

Telesat Canada has a global fleet of 12 satellites ih-arich includes one satellite leased from APT urader
prepaid lease through the end of its life, for whichdbmpany has risk of loss and the right to replace atrideof its life,
and another two satellites leased from DIRECTYV. Tlddhitional satellites are scheduled for launch in 2008 and 2009,
of which Telesat Canada has contracted to Bell Expre&sV15 years or such later date as the customer magse In
addition, the company leases fiber capacity around tinlel fay use in developing hybrid terrestrial/satelliteadaétworks
for network services customers.

Telesat Canada also has ground facilities located drinenworld, providing both control services to itsede
fleet, as well as to the satellites of other opesads part of its consulting services offerings. It hasdontrol centers
located in Ottawa, Ontario and Allan Park, Ontario.ddition, Telesat Canada leases other technical fasilitiat provide
customers with a host of teleport and hub services.

Telesat Canada’s North American focused fleet is compriséunle®e owned FSS satellites, Anik F1-R, Anik F2 and
Anik F3, and two owned direct broadcast services, or BB&|lites, Nimig 1 and Nimiqg 2. Telesat Canadadeasd
operates two North American focused satellites, Nimag@ Nimiq 4iR, that are owned by DIRECTV but are located i
Telesat Canada’s orbital locations and are used by T&as@ada. Telesat Canada’s international fleet is dsetpof four
owned FSS satellites, Anik F1, Telstar 12, Telstar 1délestio Sul, and Telstar 18 and one satellite, Telstaviiigh is
leased through end-of-life.

The table below summarizes selected data relatinglésdiecCanada’s owned and leased in-orbit satellites:

Expected
Orbital Location Manufacturer's End-of-
Regions Launch End-of-Service- Commercial- Transponders (1)
Service Life
Covered Date Life 1) C-band (2) Ku-band (2) Ka-band L-band (3) Model
Nimiq 1 91.00 WL May 199¢ 2011 2024 — 32@24MH — — A2100 AX
Canada, z (Lockheed
Continental Unitec Martin)
States
Nimiq 2 (4) 82.00 WL Decembe 2015 2023 — 20@24MH 2@500/100MHz — A2100 AX
Canada, 2002 z (Lockheed
Continental Unitec Martin)
States
Nimiq 3 (5) 820 WL Canada June 199! 2007 2010 — 16@24MH — — BSS 601
Continental Unitec z (Boeing)
States
Nimiq 4iR (5) 910 WL Canada Decembe 2006 2009 — 16@24MH — — BSS 601
Continental Unitec 1993 z (Boeing)
States
Anik F1 (6) 107.30 WL Novembe 2016 2013 12@36MH 16@27MH — — BSS702 (Boeing)
Canada, 2000 z z
Continental Unitec (S. (S.
States, South America) America)
America
Anik F2 111.1o0 WL July 2004 2019 2028 24@36MH 32@27MH 31@56/112 MHz — BSS702
Canada, z z 6@500MHz (Boeing)
Continental 1@56/112MHz
United States
Anik F1-R (3) 107.30 WL North Septembe 2020 2023 24@36MH 32@27MH — 2@20M  E3000
America 2005 z z Hz (EADS
Astrium)
Anik F3 (7) 118.70 WL April 2007 2022 2026 24@36MH 32@27MH 2@75MHz — [E3000
Canada, z z (500MHz) (EADS Astrium)
Continental Unitec
States
Telstar 10(8) 76.50 EL Asia Octobel 2009 2012 1@30MHz 9@54MHz — — SS/L 1300
and Portions of 1997 26@36MH
Europe, Africa ani z
Australia
Telstar 12(9) 150 WL Eastern Octobel 2012 2016 — 37@54MH — — SS/L 1300
United States, SE 1999 z
Canada, Europe,
Russia, Middle
East, North Africa
portions of South
and Central
America
Telstar 14/ Estrela do Suk10) 630 WL Brazil Januan 2019 2011 — 9@72MHz — — SS/L 1300
And portions of 2004 10@36MH
Latin America, z
North America, 2@28MHz
Atlantic Ocean 1@56MHz

Telstar 18(11)(12) 1380 EL India, June 200 2017 2018 14@36MH 3@54MHz — — SS/L 1300



South East Asia, z 1@40MHz
China, Australia 1@54MHz
And Hawaii

(1) The number of available transponders and expectéaglife shown in this table reflect Telesat Cdaa current estimate of each satellite’s
capacity and useful life, taking account of anoemind malfunctions the satellites have experieanddther factors such as remaining




fuel levels and consumption rates and other availabgineering data. Telesat Canada periodicallieves and updates these estimates based on a
satellite’s performance. Accordingly, these estemadtre subject to change and it is possible tlesattuacommercial life of any of these satellit

will be shorter than that indicated in the tablee #em 1A — “Risk Factors — After launch, satelitemain vulnerable to in-orbit failures which
may result in reduced revenues and profits and ditheencial consequences.”

(2) Includes extended C-band and extended Ku-bandiaiceases.

(3) Telesat Canada has contracted the L-band capactiyniik F1-R to Lockheed Martin. This L-band speatris not Telesat Canada’s; it is a United
States spectrum licensed to Lockheed Martin.

(4) Due to malfunctions affecting available power omi\j 2, not all transponders are operational.

(5) These satellites are leased from DIRECTV, but mafBelesat Canada orbital positions. DIRECTV camieate its lease agreement with Telesat
Canada with respect to Nimiqg 4iR if DIRECTV expedes one or more catastrophic failures with iteptatellites. With respect to Nimiq 3,
DIRECTYV can terminate its lease agreement if itezignces two or more catastrophic failures wittotteer satellites. In the event of such
termination, Telesat Canada may lose the reveregeximted with these satellitedt cannot redeploy that capacity to other satellite

(6) Due to a gradual decrease in power on Anik FI, shisllite will experience a premature end-of-life.

(7) Telesat Canada has contracted for the sale of #iedKu-band capacity of Anik F3 to EchoStar.

(8) Telstar 10 does not include 1 transponder @ 36Mitdizéatransponders @ 54MHz which have been turnedosatellite power management,
and does not include 1 transponder @ 36MHz ownediR.

(9) Telstar 12 has 38-54MHz transponders. Four of ttrassponders were given to Eutelsat to settledination issues, and Telesat Canada leases
back three of these transponders.

(10) Telstar 14 has substantially reduced transpondeaaity and a limited expected life due to the fiaglof a solar array to fully deploy upon launch.
(11) Includes 16.6MHz of C-band capacity provided to@m/ernment of Tonga in lieu of a cash paymentHeruse of the orbital location.
(12) Additional transponders will be purchased from AR in 2008 and two in 2009.
In addition, Telesat Canada has the rights to the follgpwaiellite capacity to end of life of those satellites
e Satmex 5: 3-36MHz Ku transponders;
e Satmex 6: 2-36MHz C-band transponders; 2-36MHz Ku transponders; and
* Agila (Mabuhay) 3-36MHz C-band transponders
The table below summarizes selected data relatinglésdiecCanada’s satellites under construction:
Nimig 4 Nimig 5 Telstar 11N
Orbital Location 82.00 WL 72.70 WL 37.550 WL
Regions Covered North and Central
America, Europe, Africa
Canada, Continental and the maritime Atlantic
Canada United States Ocean region
Planned In-Service
Date 2008(1) 2009(1) 2009
Manufacturer’s
End-of-
Service-Life 15 Years 15 Years 15 Years
Customer Committe:
Capacity 15 Years/Fixed 15 Years/Fixed —
Transponders:
C-band — — —

Ku-band 32@24MHz 32@24MHz 39@54MHz



Ka-band 8@54MHz — —
Model E-3000 (EADS Astrium) SS/L 1300 SS/L 1300

(1) The March 14, 2008 failure of a Proton rocket foils satellite payload to the appropriate orbill sause a delay in the planned launch of the
Nimiq 4 satellite, originally scheduled to be lahad on a Proton rocket in mid-2008. The launch iofiy 5, which had been planned for the
second half of 2009, may likewise also be delayed eesult of this launch failure. These launclaglewill adversely affect Telesat Canada’s
financial performance for 2008 and potentially 2@0@ 2010 and will defer the backlog run-off presly anticipated. It is not possible to
quantify the impact of these delays until more infation about the Proton failure and the resumptitthe launch schedule becomes available.




Satellite Services Performance

The following summarizes the satellite services segmpeerrformance including Loral Skynet through October 30,
2007 and Telesat Canada for the period from October 31, 2@acember 31, 2007 (in millions):

Successor Registrant Predecessor Registran
For the Period For the Period
For The Year For The Year October 2, January 1,
Ended Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
(in millions)
Revenue:
Total segment revenues $ 241 $ 164 $ 37 $ 115
Eliminations (2) 3) (2) (4)
Affiliate eliminations(2) (118) — — —
Revenues from satellite services ¢
reported $ 121 % 161 $ 36 $ 111
Adjusted EBITDA:
Total segment Adjusted EBITDA  $ 118 % 68 $ 12 $ 40
Eliminations (2) (3) (1) (10)
Affiliate eliminations(2) (65) — — —
Adjusted EBITDA from satellite
services after eliminations) $ 51 $ 65 $ 11 $ 30

(1) See Consolidated Operating Results in ManagemBig@ission and Analysis of Financial Condition &wbults of Operations for significant
items that affect comparability between the peripassented (see Note 18 to the consolidated finhatatements for the definition of Adjusted
EBITDA).

(2) Affiliate eliminations represent the eliminationarhounts attributable to Telesat Canada.
Total Telesat Canada assets and backlog as of Dec8mh#007 were $5.6 billion and $5.3 billion, respectively.

We use the equity method of accounting for our investinefielesat Canada, and its results are not consedidat
our financial statements. Our investment in this compgimcluded in equity in net losses of affiliates im oansolidated
statements of operations and investments in aéfgiat our consolidated balance sheet.

The following chart summarizes operating revenues and AdjusBITDA for Telesat Canada before the closing of
the Telesat Canada transaction. Telesat Canada’s AtlfaBI& DA as shown below is calculated in the same maaser
Adjusted EBITDA in the segment chart above. The amounsepted below are in Canadian dollars (“CAD") and are
presented in accordance with Canadian generally acceptachtingoprinciples.

Telesat Canada

For the period from

January 1, For The Year For The Year
2007 to Ended Ended
October 30, December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2005
(in millions)
CAD CAD
Total operating revenues CAD 457.¢ 479.C 474.7
CAD CAD

Adjusted EBITDA CAD 263.Z 261.C 268.1



Total Telesat Canada assets and backlog as of Dec8m#006 were CAD 1.8 billion and CAD 5.2 hillion,
respectively.




Other

We also own 56% of XTAR, LLC (“XTAR”), a joint ventuigetween us and Hisdesat Servicios Estrategicos, S.A.
(“Hisdesat”). XTAR owns and operates an X-band satelXiTAR-EUR located at 29E.L., which entered service in
March 2005. The satellite is designed to provide X-bamancunications services exclusively to United Ste@snish and
allied government users throughout the satellite’s coveagege including Europe, the Middle East and Asia. The
government of Spain granted XTAR rights to an X-band $ieenormally reserved for government and military use, to
develop a commercial business model for supplying X-banctitgpa support of military, diplomatic and security
communications requirements. XTAR also leases up ta é@JMHz X-band transponders on Spainsat, a Hisdesat owned
satellite located at 3@W.L. which entered commercial service in April 2006e3#& transponders, designated as
XTAR-LANT, allow XTAR to provide its customers in théS. and abroad with additional X-band services and greate
flexibility. XTAR currently has contracts to provide hd services to the U.S. Department of State, thaiSip Ministry
of Defense, the Belgium Ministry of Defense and thaiflaarmed forces, but the take-up rate in its servicenues to be
slower than anticipated. For more information on XT/AR Blote 8 to the Loral consolidated financial statement

Reorganization

On July 15, 2003, Old Loral and certain of its subsidiathes ‘{Debtor Subsidiaries” and collectively with Oldrag
the “Debtors”), including Loral Space & Communicatiorddings Corporation (formerly known as Loral Space &
Communications Corporation), Loral SpaceCom CorpamgfiLoral SpaceCom”), SS/L and Loral Orion, Inc.\{nknown
as Loral Skynet Corporation), filed voluntary petitionsreorganization under chapter 11 of title 11 (“Chapi€) of the
United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the U&hKBuptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the
“Bankruptcy Court”) (Lead Case No. 03-41710 (RDD), Case N8s11709 (RDD) through 03-41728 (RDD)) (the
“Chapter 11 Cases”). Also on July 15, 2003, Old Loral andobiite Bermuda subsidiaries (the “Bermuda Group”) filed
parallel insolvency proceedings in the Supreme Court ohBda (the “Bermuda Court”), and, on that date, the Bean
Court entered an order appointing certain partners of KR&I@int Provisional Liquidators (“JPLS") in respdadthe
Bermuda Group.

The Debtors emerged from Chapter 11 on November 21, 2086gmirto the terms of their fourth amended joint
plan of reorganization, as modified (the “Plan of Reorgaioizg. The Plan of Reorganization had previously been
confirmed by order (the “Confirmation Order”) of tharkruptcy Court entered on August 1, 2005. Pursuant to thePla
Reorganization, among other things, the business andtimpey of Old Loral were transferred to New Loral, &ocdal
Skynet and SS/L emerged as separate subsidiaries ofmzedjhoral (see Notes 2 and 3 to the consolidateddiabn
statements).




REGULATION

Satellite Manufacturing
Export Regulation and Economic Sanctions Compliance

Commercial communication satellites and certain rélaéms, technical data and services, are subject tedJnit
States export controls. These laws and regulationst dfffe export of products and services to foreign laymobiders,
subcontractors, insurers, customers, potential custoaraidusiness partners, as well as to foreign Lorpl@arees,
foreign regulatory bodies, foreign national telecommationis authorities and to foreign persons gener@iiynmercial
communications satellites and certain related items, teghtata and services are on the United States Munitishand
are subject to the Arms Export Control Act and the fragonal Traffic in Arms Regulations. Export jurisdictioreo these
products and services resides in the U.S. Departmenaiaf. 8ither Loral exports are subject to the jurisalictf the
U.S. Department of Commerce, pursuant to the Exportiddimation Act and the Export Administration Regulason

U.S. Government licenses or other approvals generalt be obtained before satellites and related itexisnical
data and services are exported and may be required befgrare re-exported or transferred from one foreigsopeto
another foreign person. For example, U.S. Governmemiskseor approvals generally will have to be obtainethfor
transfer of technical data and defense services betwwahand Telesat Canada, and between Telesat Canddis
U.S. subsidiaries. There can be no assurance thatiseickds or approvals will be granted. Also, licersespprovals may
be granted with limitations, provisos or other requirete@nposed by the U.S. Government as a condition of agiprov
which may affect the scope of permissible activity urtiderlicense or approval.

In addition, if a satellite project involves countrigglividuals or entities that are the subject of U.S. enun
sanctions (“Sanctions Targets”) or, in certain situnjas intended to provide services to Sanctions Tartieenses or
other approvals from the U.S. Treasury Departmenffis€®of Foreign Assets Control (‘OFAC”) may also bguied. See
Item 1A — “Risk Factors — We are subject to export cdrainal economic sanctions laws, which may result in delagt
business and additional costs.”

Satellite Services
Telecommunications Regulation

As an operator of a global satellite system, Tel€saiada is regulated by government authorities in Canada, the
United States and other countries in which it operaesis subject to the frequency and orbital slot cootidingrocess of
the International Telecommunication Union (“ITU”).[&sat Canada’s ability to provide satellite servicea particular
country or region is subject also to the technical waimds of its satellites, international coordinatilwtal regulation and
licensing requirements.

Canadian Regulatory Environment

Telesat Canada’s operations are subject to regulationcandihg by Industry Canada pursuant to the
Radiocommunication Act (Canada) and by the Canadian Radiwision and Telecommunications Commission (“CRTC"),
under the Telecommunications Act (Canada). Industry Camaslthe authority to issue licenses, establish standensign
Canadian orbital locations, and plan the allocation anafute radio frequency spectrum, including the radiqdiencies
upon which Telesat Canada’s satellites and earth statipeadieThe Minister responsible for Industry Canada haslbro
discretion in exercising this authority to issue lican$ie and amend conditions of licenses, and to suspeadorrevoke
them. Telesat Canada’s licenses to operate the Anik Riamd satellites require it to comply with research and
development and other industrial and public benefit commisnempay annual radio authorization fees, to provide
all-Canada satellite coverage and to comply with foreignership restrictions.

The Canadian foreign ownership and control restristiset out in Industry Canada licenses, regulations uneler t
Radiocommunication Act and in Industry Canada policgsiire Telesat Canada to be Canadian owned
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and controlled within the meaning of those regulations andws other provisions of Canadian telecommunicatiaw
and policy.

Industry Canada traditionally licensed satellite resgiectrum and associated orbital locations on a fnsteg
first-served basis. Currently, however, a competiicensing process is employed for certain spectrum reseuwvbere it is
anticipated that demand will likely exceed supply, includinditemsing of fixed-satellite service (“FSS”) and &doasting
satellite service (“BSS”) orbital locations and@sated spectrum resources. Authorizations are grdottede life of a
satellite, although radio licenses (e.g., FSS lieshare renewed annually. As a result of policy corscabout the
continuity of service and other factors, there is gahea strong presumption of renewal provided licerselitions are
met.

The Canadian Government opened Canadian satellite marKeteign-licensed satellite operators as part of its
1998 World Trade Organization (“WTQO”) commitments to lddere trade in basic telecommunications services, Wwith t
exception of direct-to-home (“DTH?”) television sensciat are provided through FSS or DBS facilities. In &aper 2005,
the Canadian Government revised its satellite-use pdipgtmit the use of foreign-licensed satellites fortdlgiudio radio
services in Canada. Further liberalization of thegyathay occur and could result in increased competition in Camadi
satellite markets. On June 13, 2007, Industry Canada annotaté&cetesat would be awarded five new licenses for
Canadian satellite spectrum and rights to the relatethbpositions. At that time, Industry Canada also annedrihat
another Canadian-licensed satellite operator, CielJdvoe awarded seven new spectrum licenses.

The Telecommunications Act authorizes the CRTC goilste various aspects of the provision of
telecommunications services by Telesat Canada andtetaeommunications service providers. Since thegugesof the
Act in 1993, the CRTC has gradually forborne from reguladin increasing number of services provided by regulated
companies. As of March 1, 2000, coincident with the encetdsht Canada’s FSS monopoly in Canada, the CRTC
abandoned rate-of-return regulation of Telesat Canad&sEfvices and no longer requires it to file tariffsaspect of
these services. Under the current regulatory regimesaieCanada has pricing flexibility subject to a priiérg of CAD
170,000 per transponder per month on certain full period FSSeenffered in Canada under minimum five-year
arrangements. Telesat Canada’s DBS services offerechv@timada are also subject to CRTC regulation, but hawve bee
treated as distinct from its fixed satellite serviaed facilities. To date, Telesat Canada has sought agigdedcCRTC
approval of customer agreements relating to theafalapacity on all Nimig DBS satellites, includingtrates, terms and
conditions of service set out therein. Section 28(2hefTelecommunications Act provides that the CRT@ allocate
satellite capacity to particular broadcasting undertakiinigs satisfied that the allocation will furthdre implementation of
the broadcasting policy for Canada.

Telesat Canada was originally established by the Goverroh@anada in 1969, under the Telesat Act. As part of
the Canadian government’s divestiture of its shares irs@ie@anada, pursuant to the Telesat Canada Reorgamiaatio
Divestiture Act (1991), or the Telesat Divestiture Aatlesat Canada was continued on March 27, 1992 as a business
corporation under the Canada Business Corporationsh&cT,elesat Act was repealed and the Governmenttsattiares in
Telesat Canada. Under the Telesat Divestiture AcesieiCanada remains subject to certain special comslaiod
restrictions. The Telesat Divestiture Act providesttno legislation relating to the solvency or wirgdip of a corporation
applies to Telesat Canada and that its affairs cannebbed up unless authorized by an Act of Parliament. In addition,
Telesat Canada and its shareholders and directors aplptfor Telesat Canada’s continuation in anothsgiction or
dissolution unless authorized by an Act of Parliament.

United States Regulatory Environment

The Federal Communications Commission, or FCC, reggithe provision of satellite services to, fromwihin
the United States. Certain of Telesat Canada’s isasedire owned and operated through a US subsidiary anebaitated
by the FCC.

Telesat has chosen to operate its US-authorized sgelh a non-common carrier basis, and consequerifynat
subject to rate regulation or other common carrier réiguenacted under the US Communications Act of 1934. &teles
Canada pays FCC filing fees in connection with its sgtaion and earth station applications and
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annual fees to defray the FCC'’s regulatory expenses. Aandajuarterly status reports must be filed with th€ &
interstate/international telecommunications, and B¢l€snada must contribute funds supporting the FCC’s Universal
Service Fund, or USF, with respect to eligible Unitéaite$ telecom revenues on a quarterly and annual basi®JSF
contribution rate is adjusted quarterly and is currenthas0.2% for the first quarter of 2008. At the preseng titne FCC
does not assess USF contributions with respect taisergponder capacity (space segment only agreements).

The FCC currently grants satellite authorizations Grscome, first-served basis to applicants who dernates
that they are legally, technically and financially quedif and where the public interest will be served by taetgThere are
no assurances that applications will be granted. Urdgrsing rules, a bond must be posted for up to $Bmivhen an
FSS satellite authorization is granted. Some or thieeaarhount of the bond may be forfeited if there ikifaito meet any
of the milestones imposed under the authorizationyhiey milestones for satellite construction, launch and
commencement of operations). Under current licensiteg, the FCC will issue new satellite licensesafoinitial 15-year
term and will provide a licensee with an “expectancyt th subsequent license will be granted for the repladeshan
authorized satellite using the same frequencies. A¢rtldeof the 15 year term, a satellite that has nen beplaced, or that
has been relocated to another orbital location follguiis replacement, may be allowed to continue operatares limited
period of time subject to certain restrictions.

Telesat Canada has FCC authorization for one existinlicei®sed satellite which operates in the Ku-band: Telstar
12 at 15° WL. In addition, Telesat Canada has FCC autharizati Telstar 11N which will operate as a US-licensed
satellite in the Ku-band at 37.55° WL.

To facilitate the provision of FSS satellite seegén C- and Ku-band frequencies in the United States marke
foreign licensed operators can apply to have theirlsasgblaced on the FCC’s Permitted Space Station Tedesat
Canada’s Anik FI, Anik FI-R, Anik F2, and Anik F3 sateliitare currently on this list. The FCC Order plackmik F2 on
the list also approved Telesat Canada’s applicationegdkagband capacity on this satellite to provide tvapslroadband
communications services in the United States.

The United States made no WTO commitment to open itd,[DBS or digital audio radio services to foreign
competition, and instead indicated that provision ofealsesvices by foreign operators would be considered on a
case-by-case basis, based on an evaluation of thewaffecmpetitive opportunities open to United States operaidhe
country in which the foreign satellite was licenseel. (an ECO-sat test) as well as other public interéeria. While
Canada currently does not satisfy the ECO-sat teseinabe of DTH and DBS service, the FCC has found, imrdoer of
cases, that provision of these services into theedritates using Canadian-licensed satellites would pragigcant
public interest benefits and would therefore be allowkdted States service providers, Digital Broadband Appbos
Corp., DIRECTV and EchoStar, have all received FCCajahito access Canadian-authorized satellites undesdfele
Canada’s direction and control in Canadian-licensed ottbitations to provide DTH-FSS or DBS service into thated
States.

The approval of the FCC for the Telesat Canadadrion was conditioned upon compliance by Telesat Canada
with commitments made to the Department of Justicef-¢deral Bureau of Investigation, and the Departmenbafi¢tand
Security relating to the availability of certain red®and communications in the United States in resporiae/fid United
States law enforcement requests for such access.

Regulation Outside Canada and the United States

Telesat Canada also operates satellites through licgreseed by countries other than Canada and the Unitezs Stat
The Brazilian national telecommunications agency, ARA, has authorized Telesat Canada, through its subgidielesat
Brasil Capacidade de Satelites Ltda. (TBCS), to oper#te-band FSS satellite. The satellite, known dstdel4 or as
Estrela do Sul 1, is operating at 63° WL pursuant to a€xsion Agreement with ANATEL. The Concession waseidgor
a fifteen (15) year term that began on May 5, 1999, arehmwvable for a second fifteen (15) year term. Thec€ssion
Agreement obligates TBCS to operate the satellite iordance with Brazilian telecommunications law and dosta
provisions to enable ANATEL to levy fines for failuie perform according to the Concession terms. Bedzd has a
Universal Service Fund (FUST) to subsidize the costle€denmunications service in Brazil. The sale ofrébtiansponder
capacity” in Brazil, however, which is TBCS'’s primaysiness, is not considered a telecommunicationg&seand
revenues from such sales are not

12






assessable for contributions to the fund. TBCS is@lsdegal representative for sale of capacity on Trel2an Brazil.
Any Brazilian entity that wishes to lease Telstar 4@acity must lease it from TBCS and remit paymentrazB

Pursuant to agreements with APT Satellite Holdingsiteich(APT), Telesat Canada, through its subsidiary Telesa
Asia Pacific Satellite (HK) Limited, has the fully-paidht to use and sublease the capacity of Telstar 10 (eiaremte
C-band transponder). Telstar 10 is operated by APT whichdersgranted the right to use the 76.5° EL orbitation by
the Government of Hong Kong, People’s Republic of Chietesat Canada, through its subsidiary Telesat SateHite L
owns Telstar 18, which operates at the 138° EL orbitatitotander an agreement with APT, which has been guahe
right to use the 138° EL orbital location by The KingdoiTonga. APT is the direct interface with these taguy bodies.
Because Telesat Canada gained access to these adatais through a third party (APT), there is greateettainty with
respect to its ability to maintain access to theb#adrlocations for replacement satellites.

In addition to regulatory requirements governing the use dfabtbtations, most countries regulate transmission of
signals to and from, their territory. Telesat Canlaas landing rights in more than 140 countries worldwide.

International Regulatory Environment — International Telecommuiicatinion

The ITU is responsible for allocating the use by défercountries of a finite number of orbital locati@msl radio
frequency spectrum available for use by commercial contations satellites. The ITU Radio Regulations sehftire
processes that governments must follow to apply for andeseghits to use orbital locations and the obligatiamms
restrictions that govern such use. The ITU Radiocommtinic8ureau (ITU-BR) is responsible for receivingamining,
tracking and otherwise managing the applications in theexbaof the rules set forth in the Radio Regulations. droeess
includes, for example, a “first in time, first in riglgystem for assigning rights to orbital locatiaml time limits for
bringing orbital locations into use.

In accordance with the ITU Radio Regulations, as notedealtog Canadian and other governments have rights to
use certain orbital locations and frequencies. Thegergments have in turn authorized Telesat Canada to usmmkev
orbital locations and radio frequencies in addition t@¢hased by its current satellites. Under the ITU Radio Reégas,
Telesat Canada must begin using these orbital locadimh$requencies within a fixed period of time, or the govergia
guestion would lose their priority rights and the ordibahtion and frequencies likely would become availabiei$e by
another satellite operator.

The ITU Radio Regulations also govern the process useddiliteaperators to coordinate their operations with
other nearby satellites, so as to avoid harmful intenige. Under current international practice, satedlfstems are entitled
to protection from harmful radio frequency interferencenfrall other satellite systems and other transrsiitethe same
frequency band only if the operator’s authorizing govesntmegisters the orbital location, frequency and usee$atellite
system in the ITU’s Master International Frequency Regisr MIFR. Each member state is required to giveeaf,
coordinate and register its proposed use of radio frequengyaEnts and associated orbital locations with the BRJ-
This ensures that there is an orderly process to anod@te each country's orbital location needs.

Once a member state has advised the ITU-BR that iteddsiluse a given frequency at a given orbital locatibwey ot
member states notify that state and the ITU-BRgfuse or intended use that would conflict with the origamaposal.
These nations are then obligated to negotiate with gheh ia an effort to coordinate the proposed uses anbieeso
interference concerns. If all outstanding issueseselved, the member state governments so notifyltieBIR, and the
frequency use is registered in the MIFR. Following tlusfication, the registered satellite networks arttlea under
international law to interference protection from &eugent or nonconforming uses. A state is not entitiédvoke the
protections in the ITU Radio Regulations against harmtekference if that state decided to operate a satzdlitee
relevant orbital location without completing the coordmragnd notification process.

In the event disputes arise during the coordination psogethereafter, the ITU Radio Regulations do notacora

mandatory dispute resolution mechanism or an enforcenmezitanism. Rather, the rules invite a consensual dispute
resolution process for parties to reach a mutually agbkpagreement. Neither the rules nor

13




international law provide a clear remedy for a paitere this voluntary process fails. Some of Telesan@Ga's satellites
have been coordinated and registered in the MIFR anddheenjoy priority over all later-filed requests for odioation
and any non-conforming uses. In other cases, entyhietMIFR is still pending. While the ITU Radio Regulagp
however, set forth procedures for resolving disputespaaciical matter, there is no mandatory dispute resolatnd no
mechanism by which to enforce an agreement or entitieameler the rules.

Although non-governmental entities, including Telesat Caratéicipate at the ITU, only national administrations
have full standing as ITU members. Consequently, Teleszdda must rely on the government administrations ohda
the United States, Brazil, Tonga, China and the Uniteddom (respectively, Industry Canada, the FCC, ANATEL, the
Tonga administration, OFCOM and MII through APT) to repr its interests in those jurisdictions, including filargl
coordinating orbital locations within the ITU procegih the national administrations of other countridgaming new
orbital locations and resolving disputes through the ecmusd process provided for in the ITU's rules.

PATENTS AND PROPRIETARY RIGHTS

Satellite Manufacturing

SSI/L relies, in part, on patents, trade secrets and-kwownto develop and maintain its competitive positionolth
190 patents in the United States and has applications fpatents pending in the United States. SS/L patentsdachose
relating to communications, station keeping, power cosyrsiems, antennae, filters and oscillators, phased amdys
thermal control as well as assembly and inspection tdopy The SS/L patents that are currently in force exXysteeen
2008 and 2024.

Satellite Services

Telesat Canada has 13 patents, all in the United Stdtese patents expire between 2016 and 2021. Telesat Canada
also has 10 patents pending, of which five are in the UBi®iz:s and three are in Canada.

There can be no assurance that any of the foregoingngepalient applications will be issued. Moreover, thene ca
be no assurance that infringement of existing third geatgnts has not occurred or will not occur. Additiondigcause the
U.S. and Canadian patent application process is cotifileghere can be no assurance that third partiesjdma
competitors, do not have patents pending that could resskued patents which we or Telesat Canada would infringe. In
such event, to obtain a license from a patent holdesltiey would have to be paid, which would increase theatakting
business. Moreover, in the case of SS/L, it would beired to refund money to customers for components teatair
useable as a result of such infringement or redesigndtiicts in a manner to avoid infringement. SS/L may lads
required under the terms of its customer contractsdemnify its customers for related damages.

RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT
Satellite Manufacturing

SS/L's research and development expenditures involve figndexperimentation and the development of space
and satellite products. Research and development costg@resed as incurred. SS/L’s research and developostat ¢
were $37 million for 2007, $20 million for 2006 and $7 milliawdzs5 million for the periods January 1, 2005 to October 1,
2005 and from October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005, respectinelare included in selling, general and administrative
expenses.

Satellite Services

Telesat Canada’s research and development expendituraswared for the design, experimentation and
development of space and satellite products. This alkadexthe development of new satellite application®&din
broadcast and enterprise services segments. Ovestiseleral years, Telesat Canada has undertaken tiesiotpaovide
telecommunication services and applications to remmoteunder-served areas, to evaluate and develop broagimapd
technologies and to study advanced satellite system deligostinues to research HDTV technology and evaluate
technology on behalf of the World Broadcast UnionaAssult, Telesat Canada has established an internagmuodtion
as a leader in both broadband and broadcast technolodieppliications. Telesat Canada’s research and developmen
expenditures for the two month period ended December 31, 200 apmmaximately $500,000.
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FOREIGN OPERATIONS

Loral’s sales to foreign customers, primarily in #dturope, Canada and Mexico represented 20%, 13%, 14% and
18% of our consolidated revenues for the years ended Dec&hh2007 and 2006, for the period from October 2, 2005 to
December 31, 2005 and for the period from January 1, 2005 ebédct, 2005, respectively.

Satellite Manufacturing

SS/L’s sales to foreign customers, primarily in A&iarope, Canada and Mexico, represented 16%, 6%, 8% and 9%
of SS/L revenues for the years ended December 31, 2007 andd2(8é, period from October 2, 2005 to December 31,
2005 and for the period from January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2@8pedtively. As of December 31, 2007 and 2006,
substantially all of our long-lived assets were locatetie United States. See Iltem 1A — Risk Factors below fo
discussion of the risks related to operating internatlp. See Note 18 to the consolidated financial statgsifor detail on
our domestic and foreign sales.

Satellite Services

Telesat Canada’s sales to non-U.S. customers, pynrai@anada, Asia, Europe and Latin America represented
69% of its consolidated revenues for the two month pemated December 31, 2007. At December 31, 2007, substantially
all of its long-lived assets were located outside ofuhited States, primarily in Canada, with the exceptibim-orbit
satellites.

EMPLOYEES

As of December 31, 2007, Loral had approximately 2,140 faé-&mployees and approximately 200 contract
employees, none of whom are subject to collective bairgaagreements. Almost all of the foregoing employres
employed in the satellite manufacturing segment. We cansisteemployee relations to be good.

As of December 31, 2007, Telesat Canada had 624 full-time eegslogpproximately 3% of whom are subject to

collective bargaining agreements. Telesat Canada cosgisl@employee relations to be good.
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AVAILABLE INFORMATION

Our annual report on Form 10-K, quarterly reports on Form 1€ifPent reports on Form 8-K, and amendments to
those reports are available without charge on our webvevw.loral.com, as soon as reasonably practicaitée they are
electronically filed with or furnished to the Secie#iand Exchange Commission. Copies of these documentsealso a
available in print, without charge, from Loral's Int@sRelations Department, 600 Third Avenue, New York, NY 8001
Loral’'s web site is an inactive textual reference omlganing that the information contained on the web st part of
this report and is not incorporated in this report gresce.

Item 1A. Risk Factor:

l. Financial and Telesat Canada Investment Risk Factors
We emerged from Chapter 11 in 2005 and have had a history afdses.

Since emerging from bankruptcy, we have had a histdigseés and expect such losses to continue in the near ter
We incurred net losses of approximately $87 million {nduding the gain on the contribution of Loral Skynet &eEat
Canada and related derivative gains of $194 million, anththeffect of $78 million), $23 million, $15 million and
$59 million (not including the gain on discharge of pretetiobligations and fresh-start adjustments of $1.10Dbikind
the related interest expense of $13 million and a taxfib@i&15 million) for the years ended December 31, 20072808,
for the period from October 2, 2005 to December 31, 200%caride period from January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005,
respectively. See “Management’s Discussion and Anatystenancial Condition and Results of Operations.” Thozne be
no assurance that Loral will achieve profitabilitytie near future.

While we ended December 31, 2007 with over $300 million aish, we have significant projected cash requirements
that will substantially reduce our cash position.

While we had $315 million of available cash and cashvadpmts and $24 million of restricted cash as of
December 31, 2007, our operations, working capital requiren@atsied capital expenditures, tax payments primarily
relating to the Telesat Canada transaction and strategistments are projected to consume substantially @lhbcash by
year end 2008. We will be required to obtain new finapagither in the form of debt or equity, to increaseaash
availability. In light of current market conditionsgtle can be no assurance that we will be able to ohteinf®iancing on
favorable terms, if at all. If we are not successiubbtaining such financing, our ability to manage unforesash
requirements, to meet contingencies and to fund growth wpyies will be materially and adversely affectedtha past,
our ability to obtain satellite contract awards has ddpd in part on our ability to provide vendor financingitéo make
investments in our customers. If we can no longer contmde so because of our cash constraints, SS/L’s lsssimi# be
materially and adversely affected.

We are a holding company with no operations; we are deperdt on cash flow from our operating subsidiaries and
affiliates to meet our financial obligations.

Loral Space & Communications Inc. is a holding conypaith three primary assets, its equity interests in its
wholly-owned subsidiary, SS/L, and its affiliates, BaeleCanada and XTAR. We have no independent operations or
operating assets. The ability of SS/L, Telesat CanadX8A& to make payments or distributions to us, whetwer
dividends or as payments under applicable management agtee@metherwise, will depend on their operating results,
including their ability to satisfy their own cash fleequirements and obligations including, without limitatidreirt debt
service obligations. Moreover, covenants contained itodreagreements and other debt instruments of Telzsamda
impose substantial limitations on its ability to refaitds to us. Even if the applicable loan covenants would p&etesat
Canada to pay dividends to us, we will not have the phbilitause Telesat Canada to do so. See below “Whilewm 64%
of Telesat Canada on an economic basis, we own only 8% of its voting stock and therefore do not have the tight
elect or appoint a majority of its Board of Directdiskewise, any dividend payments by XTAR would require pinier
consent of our Spanish partner in the joint venture.

While we are earning a management fee of $5 million afye@r Telesat Canada, this amount represents a
substantial reduction from the approximately $10 milliomanagement fees and reimbursement of allocated cagporat
overhead costs that Loral Skynet paid to us in 2006, th&ilasalendar year prior to the closing of the
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Telesat Canada transaction. Telesat Canada’s loan docymeemisthis management fee from Telesat Canada paibleto
us only in the form of notes, with such fee becomingapke in cash only at such time that Telesat Canadzasroeghin
financial performance criteria set forth in the laltuments, which criteria we do not expect Telesat Candaadble to
meet in the near term.

While we own 64% of Telesat Canada on an economic basiss wwn only 331 /3 % of its voting stock and therefore
do not have the right to elect or appoint a majority ofits Board of Directors.

Because of Canadian foreign ownership restrictionsewbd own 64% of the economic interests of Telesatdgna
we hold only 331 /3 % of its voting interests and cannot hold additionalngppower in Telesat Canada absent a change in
law. The governance and management of Telesat Caneelsted in its ten-member Board of Directors, comgrigehree
Loral appointed directors, three PSP appointed direchat$omr independent directors, two of whom also own Btles
Canada shares with nominal economic value and 30% anhel% of the voting interests for Telesat Canada directo
respectively. While we own a greater voting interesiélesat Canada than any other single stockholder egftect to
election of directors and we and PSP, which owns 308teofoting interests for directors and 66 % of the voting
interests for all other matters, together own a nitgjof Telesat Canada’s voting power, circumstanceg acaur where
our interests and those of PSP diverge or are in corflithat case, PSP, with the agreement of at Iresst bf the four
independent directors may, subject to veto rights tleatawve under Telesat Canada’s shareholders agreeme®, Tedesat
Canada to take actions contrary to our wishes. Thaserights are however, limited to certain extraordirzantyons — for
example, the incurrence of more than $100 million of inetiiess or the purchase of assets at a cost in excess of
$100 million. Moreover, our right to block these actiangler the shareholders agreement falls away ifrefthewnership
or control, directly or indirectly by Dr. Mark H. Raesky (President of MHR Fund Management LLC, or MHR, thic
through its affiliated funds is our largest stockholdeufvoting stock falls below certain levels or (ii) thes@ change in
the composition of a majority of the members of L@rabard of directors over a consecutive two-year perio

Our equity investment in Telesat Canada may be at risk bexise Telesat Canada is highly leveraged.

At December 31, 2007, Telesat Canada had outstanding indedgtedfr@AD 2.9 billion and additional borrowing
capacity of CAD 271 million under its revolving facilitydits term loan facilities, based on a U.S. dollar/Caaradbllar
exchange rate of $1.00/CAD .9881. Approximately CAD 2.2 biltbthis total borrowing capacity is secured debt ithat
secured by substantially all of the assets of Teleaaa@a. This indebtedness represents a significant amfount
indebtedness for a company the size of Telesat Cafhlhdagreements governing this indebtedness impose, anel futu
financing agreements entered into by Telesat Canad&eletth impose, operating and financial restrictions smadtivities.
These restrictions on Telesat Canada’s ability eraie its business could seriously harm Telesat Canbisitsess by,
among other things, limiting its ability to take advantagknaincing, merger and acquisition and other corporate
opportunities, which could in time adversely affect theialf our investment in Telesat Canada.

All of Telesat Canada’s indebtedness at December 31, 2803 ibgerest at variable rates. If market interessrat
were to rise, this would result in higher debt servigairements. To alleviate a portion of this risk, Telesaidtia has
entered into interest rate swaps converting $600 midifats floating U.S. dollar debt and CAD 630 millionitsf Canadian
dollar debt into fixed rate debt for periods extending into 20102011. Telesat Canada also plans to convert its bridge loa
facilities into fixed rate securities in 2008. There bamo assurance, however, that it will be able to do so

A breach of the covenants contained in any of Telegat@a’s loan agreements, including without limitateon,
failure to maintain the financial ratios required underhsagreements, could result in an event of default. If am efe
default were to occur, the lenders would be able to aatel repayment of the related indebtedness, and ialsayrigger a
cross default under other Telesat Canada indebtedh&stedat Canada is unable to repay its secured irdiedste when
due (whether at the maturity date or upon acceleratiarresult of a default), the lenders will have the righgroceed
against the collateral granted to them to secure sulgbiedness, which consists of substantially all@bitsets of Telesat
Canada and its subsidiaries. Telesat Canada’s abilitiake payments on, or repay or refinance its debtdegdénd largely
upon its future operating performance. In the eventTbbgsat Canada is not able to service its indebtedtiese would be
a material adverse effect on the value of our equitgstmaent in Telesat Canada.
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Telesat Canada also has CAD 141 million of 7% senefepred stock that may be redeemed by the holders thereo
commencing October 31, 2019, which preferred stock enjglissrof priority over the Telesat Canada equity secutigés
by us.

There can be no assurance that Telesat Canada will be abtefully implement planned cost savings, which will
adversely affect our investment.

In arriving at the purchase price that we agreed tdgrajelesat Canada, we assumed that we would be able to
implement a significant reduction in costs by combiningojperations of Telesat Canada and Loral Skynet. Achieking t
anticipated benefits of the Telesat Canada transactibdepend in part upon whether Telesat Canada and LoraleSkgn
integrate their businesses in an efficient and effecti@aner. There can be no assurance that this inmysaili be
successful. A failed integration would likely result in aterial adverse effect on Telesat Canada’s resulisavhtions,
business prospects and financial condition, which mwould have a material adverse effect on us.

Certain asset sales by Telesat Canada may trigger material aghge tax consequences for us.

Upon completion of the Telesat Canada transactiordeferred a tax gain of approximately $300 million arising
from the contribution by Loral Skynet to Telesat Canafdsubstantially all of its assets and related ligdd. However, if
Telesat Canada were to sell or otherwise dispose of stiafitaall of such contributed assets in a taxable aetisn prior
to November 1, 2012, we would be required to recognizel#iesred gain with retroactive effect to 2007, resulting in
additional tax liability to us of approximately $115 million ploterest. Telesat Canada has agreed that prior to Nmmret
2012, without our prior consent, it will not dispose oetésfaving a value, whether individually or in the aggesdat
excess of $50 million if such disposition would, in our reasendétermination, result in an adverse tax consequence to us
If we were to exercise this veto right and preventJal€anada from consummating such an asset sale, ihovagyer,
adversely affect the value of our investment in Tel€satada.

The Telesat Canada information in this report is based s$ely on information provided to us by Telesat Canada.

Because we do not control Telesat Canada, we do netthawsame control and certification processes wifieots
to the information contained in this report on our saeflervices segment that we have for the reporting osatellite
manufacturing segment. We are also not involved in magdiglesat Canada’s day to day operations. Accordingly, the
Telesat Canada information contained in this report isdbaslely on information provided to us by Telesat Canaddas
not been separately verified by us.

Our U.S. dollar reporting of Telesat Canada’s financialresults will be affected by volatility in the Canadianl.S.
dollar exchange rate.

Loral reports its investment in Telesat Canada in dioBars while Telesat Canada reports its financigllts in
Canadian dollars. Loral reports its investment in T¢l€smada using the equity method of accounting. As a yd@slésat
Canada’s results of operations will be subject to a@ime from Canadian dollars to U.S. dollars. Changes iUtBedollar
relationship to the Canadian dollar will affect how financial results as they relate to Telesat Canadeeported in our
financial statements.

We may in the future incur significant additional indebtedness, thereby making us more vulnerable to adverse
developments.

There are currently no restrictions on the abilitys8FL to incur additional indebtedness, and while thagef the
February 2007 Loral preferred stock financing currently aay im the future effectively prohibit borrowing at theral
parent company level, such limitations can be waived by M&Ra result, we may be able to incur significanttaatal
debt in the future. As discussed above, we will be seelddgional financing to increase our cash availahilithich may
take the form of new debt. If new debt is added, such tedebss would impose restrictive covenants, which maydacl
requirements to maintain certain financial ratios. éfimcur significant additional indebtedness, we wouldhbee
vulnerable to, among other things, adverse changes inaj@eenomic, industry and competitive conditions.
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XTAR has not generated sufficient revenues to meet aif its contractual obligations, which are substantial.

XTAR's take-up rate in its service has been slower #mitipated. As a result, it has deferred certain paggnen
owed to us, Hisdesat and Telesat Canada, including paych@ntsder an agreement with Hisdesat to lease certain
transponders on the Spainsat satellite. These leigat@ns were $13.2 million in 2007, growing to $23 milliorr pear in
2008 with increases thereafter to a maximum of $28 milliorypar through the end of the useful life of the satelits of
December 31, 2007, XTAR'’s lease payables to Hisdesat$t&r® million. While Hisdesat has agreed to defer ansount
owed to it under this lease agreement, XTAR'’s leasgaiitins to Hisdesat, which will aggregate over $356 miltiver
the life of the satellite, are substantial, especiallyght of XTAR's limited revenues to date. XTAR hagreed that most of
its excess cash balance would be applied towards makiigdipayments on these lease obligations, as wellynsgrds
of other amounts owed to Hisdesat and Telesat Canadgéactres services provided by them to XTAR. Unless XTAR is
able to generate a substantial increase in its revetihgse lease obligations will continue to accrue and,gvhich may
result in a material and adverse effect on our equigyésts in XTAR.

Significant changes in discount rates, actual investmengturn on pension assets and other factors could affeour
statement of operations, equity and pension contributias in future periods.

Our statement of operations may be positively or neglgtaffected by the amount of expense we record for our
pension and other postretirement benefit plans. Genawtlgpted accounting principles (GAAP) in the United State
America require that we calculate expense for the plang astuarial valuations. These valuations reflestagptions that
we make relating to financial market and other ecan@onditions. Changes in key economic indicators cantriesul
changes in the assumptions we use. The most signifieantend assumptions used to estimate pension or other
postretirement expense for the following year are theodint rate, the expected long-term rate of return ongssets and
expected future medical inflation. In addition, we are requmedake an annual measurement of plan assets andikabilit
and at the time of the measurement, we may be reqoiteld a significant charge to equity through a reductiather
comprehensive income. For a discussion regarding hotfinaurcial statements can be affected by pension and other
postretirement plan accounting policies, see “ManagemsBigcussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Resil
Operations — Critical Accounting Matters — Pensiong ather employee benefits.” During 2007, there weremployer
contributions required to be made to the pension plaBeptember 2006, Loral made the minimum required contribution o
$2.3 million and made an additional voluntary contribution éogénsion plan of $25.2 million. The additional voluntary
contribution was made to improve the funded status gbéimsion plan and to reduce future expected contributiongidu
2008, based upon current estimates, we expect to contributipgtely $34 million to the qualified pension plan and
expect to fund approximately $4 million for other employegt{petirement benefit plans. The amounts of our dmutions
in the future will depend, among other things, on thedamnomic factors underlying these assumptions.

Il Segment Risk Factors
* Risk Factors Associated With Satellite Manufacturing
The satellite manufacturing market is highly competitiveand fixed costs are high.

SS/L competes with several large, well-capitalized conggasuich as Lockheed Martin, Boeing and Orbital Sciences
in the United States, Thales Alenia Space and EADS AsirnilEurope and Mitsubishi Electric Corp. in Japan, Iyesdk of
which are larger and better capitalized than we are. @8§Lalso face competition in the future from emerdingcost
competitors in India, Russia and China. The number ofalrsatellite manufacturing awards varies and is diffitult
predict. In addition, U.S. satellite manufacturers ncostend with export control regulations that put them at aldsdage
when competing for foreign customers. Moreover, asalt of our acquisition of Telesat Canada, SS/L may expegi
difficulty in obtaining orders from certain customers egeghin the satellite services business who competetivgth
combined Telesat Canada/Loral Skynet business. Ounclimigperformance is dependent on SS/L’s ability to gerex
sustainable order rate and to continue to increabaddog. The satellite manufacturing industry has suffeied fr
substantial overcapacity worldwide for a number of gegsulting in extreme competitive pressure on prie@nms and
other material contractual terms,
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such as those allocating risk between the manufacnckits customers. Buyers, as a result, have hadivaatage over
suppliers in negotiating prices, terms and conditiondtieg in reduced margins and increased assumptions of riSISHy,

SS/L is a large-scale systems integrator, requirilagge staff of highly-skilled and specialized workforcewatl as
specialized manufacturing and test facilities in ordgretdorm under its satellite construction contracts. feoto maintain
its ability to compete as one of the leading prireti@actors for technologically advanced space satel 884 must
continuously retain the services of a core group of siEsian a wide variety of disciplines for each phaséefdesign,
development, manufacture and testing of its products, tdusirg SS/L'’s flexibility to take action in the event of a
slowdown or downturn in its business.

SS/L’s contracts are subject to adjustments, cost evruns, risk of non-payment and termination.

SS/L’s major contracts are firm fixed-price contramsler which work performed and products shipped are paid for
at a fixed price without adjustment for actual costsnrezl While cost savings under these fixed-price cotgrasult in
gains to SS/L, cost increases result in reduction ofjimaor losses, borne solely by SS/L. Under such cdstra8/L may
receive progress payments, or it may receive partighpats upon the attainment of certain program milestdhes
performance on these milestones is delayed, SS/L'ptexfahe corresponding payments will also be delapadhe prime
contractor, SS/L is generally liable to its custofioercost overruns, schedule delays and other non-peafure by SS/L’s
suppliers, which may be largely outside of its control.

Non-performance can increase costs and subject 88lhnbtage claims from customers and termination of the
contract for SS/L’s default. A failure by SS/L to deli a satellite to its customer by the specified defidate, which may
result from factors beyond SS/L’s control, such asyéelaerformance or non-performance by its subcontractdeslure
to obtain necessary governmental licenses for deliveyy|d also be harmful to SS/L. As a general mattesuirh event,
SS/L’s failure to deliver beyond any contractuallyypded grace period would result in the incurrence of liquitlate
damages by SS/L, which may be substantial, and if SStillisnable deliver the satellite upon the end oflitneidated
damages period, the customer will generally have thé toglerminate the contract for default. If a contiaderminated for
default, SS/L would be liable for a refund of customemnpzyts made to date, and could also have additional tyefaii
excess re-procurement costs and other damages incuritsccbgtomer, although SS/L would own the satellite under
construction and attempt to recoup any losses througlenesahother customer. A contract termination for defzould
have a material adverse effect on SS/L and us.

In addition, many of SS/L’s contracts may be terminatedlbby the customer or the prime contractor. In évent
of such a termination, SS/L is normally entitled to vecahe purchase price for delivered items, reimburaéifioe
allowable costs for work in process and an allowancerffit or an adjustment for loss, depending on whetbherptetion
of the project would have resulted in a profit or loss.

Moreover, some of SS/L’s contracts require SS/L teigemvendor financing to its customers or, more custdyari
for customers to pay a portion of the purchase pricthisatellite over time subject to performance efshtellite, i.e.,
orbital payments, or a combination of these termsofmescases, these arrangements are provided to custbatease
start-up companies or companies in the early stages dfritheir businesses. As of December 31, 2007, SS/L had
recorded orbital receivables of $135 million, of which ##Bion was from start-up or early stage companies. &ltan be
no assurance that these companies or their busineifises successful and, accordingly, that they will besablfulfill
their payment obligations under their contracts \&8iL.

SS/L’s accounting for long-term contracts requires aufjents to profit and loss based on estimates revisaugdur
the execution of the contract. These adjustments magydanaterial effect on our consolidated financial tpmsiand our
results of operations in the period in which they are mHge.estimates giving rise to these risks, whichrarerent in
long-term, fixed-price contracts, include the forecastihcosts and schedules, contract revenues relatedtracio
performance and the potential for component obsolesadune to procurement long before assembly.
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SS/L may forfeit payments from customers as a result of satite failures or losses after launch or may be liabléor
penalty payments under certain circumstances, and thesesses may be uninsured.

Most of SS/L’s satellite manufacturing contracts jmevhat some of the total price is contingently payable
“incentive” payments earned over the life of the lisdesubject to satellite performance. SS/L gengrdties not insure for
these incentive payments (also known as orbital pays) and in some cases agrees with its customets imsure them.

SS/L records the present value of orbital paymentsw@hue during the construction of the satelliteL$@herally
receives the present value of these incentive paynikthiere is a launch failure or a failure causedustomer error. SS/L
forfeits some or all of these payments, howevdhefloss is caused by satellite failure or as a re$itk own error. As of
December 31, 2007, SS/L had orbital receivables of $135 miblibe received over 15 years from launch. Since these
orbital receivables could be affected by future satgdiidormance, there can be no assurance that SS/henable to
collect all or a portion of these receivables. Sem@liSS/L’s contracts are subject to adjustments, e@stuns, risk of
non-payment and termination.”

Some of SS/L’s contracts call for in-orbit delivemngnsferring the launch risk to SS/L. SS/L genernaléyres
against that exposure. In addition, some of SS/L’s coistprovide that SS/L may be liable to a customer foaipe
payments under certain circumstances, including late dglvehat a portion of the price paid by the customsulgect to
“warranty payback” in the event satellite anomaliesento develop (see Note 17 to the consolidated finastei@ments).
These contingent liabilities are not insured by S8Ye. have recorded reserves in our financial statemastdon our
current estimates of SS/L’s warranty liabilities. fiéis no assurance that SS/L’s actual liabilitieiéstaustomers in respect
of these warranty liabilities will not be greaterriithe amount reserved for.

Some satellites built by SS/L, including three satetis operated by Telesat Canada, have experienced mirlosses of
power from their solar arrays.

Twenty-three satellites built by SS/L have experiencedniosses of power from their solar arrays. There eamdb
assurance that one or more will not experience an aadalifpmwer loss that could lead to a loss of transpongercis and
performance degradation. A partial or complete losssattellite could result in an incurrence of warranty paysby, or a
loss of orbital incentive payments to, SS/L. SS/L hatituted remedial measures that it believes will @négimilar
anomalies from occurring on satellites under constnuaidn development. For further details see Note 1fdo t
consolidated financial statements.

Some satellites built by SS/L have the same design as dmetSS/L-built satellite that has experienced a partia
failure.

In November 2004, Intelsat Americas 7, an SS/L-built kisebxperienced an anomaly which caused it to
completely cease operations for several days befarasitpartially recovered. Four other satellites manufadtby SS/L
for other customers have designs similar to Intelsagricas 7 and, therefore, could be susceptible to siamlamalies in
the future. A partial or complete loss of these §&slcould result in an incurrence of warranty paymbgtSS/L
aggregating up to $6 million.

We are subject to export control and economic sanctiorlaws, which may result in delays, lost business and
additional costs.

SS/L is required by the U.S. State Department to oltandes and enter into technical assistance agreements t
export satellites and related equipment, and to disclose tatldaita to foreign persons. In addition, if a satellitgeot
involves countries, individuals or entities that areghigiect of U.S. economic sanctions, which we refeete las
Sanctions Targets, or is intended to provide serv@&anctions Targets, licenses or other approvats fhe U.S. Treasury
Department’s Office of Foreign Assets Control or OFA@yrhe required. The delayed receipt of or the failubtain the
necessary U.S. Government licenses, approvals anenagnées may prohibit entry into or interrupt the compietiba
satellite contract by SS/L and could lead to a custememination of a contract for SS/L default, monetaepalties
and/or the loss of incentive payments. We have in thefpded to obtain the export licenses necessary teedeatellites
to our Chinese customers.
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Some of our customers and potential customers, alongnsitinance underwriters and brokers, have raised awcer
that U.S. export control laws and regulations excegsresitrict their access to information about thell&teluring
construction and on-orbit. OFAC licensing requiremeaitdriinsfers of controlled technical data to custoroemperators
whose minority investors include Sanctions Targets atsy delay or restrict our ability to contract withsgoups.

OFAC prohibitions against the exportation of servieeSanctions Targets or the “facilitation” of third-caymationals’
transactions with Sanctions Targets may also lieritain business opportunities. To the extent that our

non-U.S. competitors are not subject to these expott@mr economic sanctions laws and regulationg; thay enjoy a
competitive advantage with foreign customers, and, textent that our foreign competitors continue to gain niatkare,
it could become increasingly difficult for the U.S.edlite manufacturing industry, including SS/L, to recagtihnis lost
market share. For example, one of our European compgefiioales Alenia Space, is offering “ITAR-free”
telecommunications satellites, that contain no compisnabtained from United States sources who are $ubjéte export
limitations imposed by the U.S. ITAR regime. Customerscerned over the possibility that the U.S. goverrimmey deny
the export license necessary for SS/L to deliveremttheir purchased satellite, or the restrictions @yddémposed by the
U.S. government licensing requirements even where antdiqaorse is granted, may elect to choose an “IT Ade:f
satellite over an SS/L satellite. We are furtheadisntaged by the fact that an “ITAR-free” satellite cartelnnched on the
substantially cheaper Chinese Long March rocket, a rdlcketbecause of ITAR restrictions, is not availabl&&/L or
other suppliers subject to ITAR restrictions.

The recent trend toward industry consolidation in thesatellite services industry may adversely affect us; weochot
control satellite procurement decisions at Telesat Canad

The recent industry consolidation trend has resulteaaridrmation of satellite operators with greater &teel
resources and increased coverage. This consolidatiomedage demand for new satellite construction as opsratay
need fewer satellites in orbit to provide back-up coverage rationalize the amount of capacity availabledrtain
geographic regions. It may also result in concentrataditional bargaining power in the hands of large customéiish
could increase pressure on pricing and other contratetunas.

In the past, Loral Skynet has purchased all of its gateffom SS/L. We do not, however, control satellite
procurement decisions at Telesat Canada, and there caralssurance that Telesat Canada will purchase additional
satellites from SS/L. Moreover, any decision refatio the enforcement of existing or future satellgetracts between
Telesat Canada and SS/L will be made on arms length tec@acertain cases, subject to approval by the disistied
directors of Telesat Canada.

The availability of qualified personnel and facility spae may be limited; SS/L will incur significant costs taupgrade
or expand its facility.

SS/L has won a humber of satellite construction awardstlogdast few years and, as a result, its backlog has
expanded significantly. In order to complete constructicallahe satellites in backlog and to accommodate fuguoerth,
SS/L is modifying and expanding its existing manufacturicdifees and coordinating with third parties for addibn
high-bay satellite integration and test facilitieS/ISis seeking, under this expansion plan, to accommedateany as 13
satellite awards per year depending on the complexity amiitiof the specific satellites awarded and to providatgre
in-house manufacturing of RF components and subasseniiiissexpansion which includes the use of third partyteffs
capacity and the upgrading of existing SS/L satellitedpsrations and RF assembly and test operationgjrisaésd to
require total incremental capital expenditures of appnasély $30 million. There can be no assurance that ®ii/be able
to hire enough employees with the requisite skills and trgiar acquire suitable facility space and, accordingly.. 8%y
not be able to perform its contracts as efficiealyplanned or grow its business to the planned level.

SSI/L is subject to credit risks with respect to ceain of its customers.
Historically, SS/L’s customers have been primaritgéamultinational corporations and U.S. and foreign
governments for which the creditworthiness was genesalbgtantial. In recent years, however, SS/L has addechexcial

customers that are highly leveraged, as well as thoke idevelopment stage that are only partially funded. $ethe
customers are unable to meet their payment obligatm®S/L under their construction contracts,
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SS/L may be materially and adversely affected. Tee#tent that SS/L has provided vendor financing to such custpitse
financial exposure is further increased.

SSI/L relies on certain key suppliers whose failure adelay in performance would adversely affect us.

To build its satellites, SS/L relies on suppliers, safn@hom are competitors of SS/L, to provide it withta
component parts. The number of suppliers capable of prowidésg components are limited, and in some cases, the
supplier is in a sole source position based upon the unique méitits product or customer requirement to procure
components with proven flight heritage whenever possitihese suppliers are not all large, well-capitalizedpamies, and
to the extent they were to experience financial diffieg| their ability to timely deliver to SS/L comparng that satisfy
SS/L’s customer contractual specifications could be iragaln the past, SS/L’s performance under its construct
contracts with its customers has been adversely affdtcause of a supplier’s failure or delay in performahse.
discussed above under “— SS/L’s contracts are subject toradjust cost overruns, risk of non-payment and temtimimé
a failure by SS/L to meet its contractual deliveryuieements could well give rise to liquidated damage paynign&S/L
and/or a customer’s termination of its construction reantwvith SS/L for default.

We face risks in conducting business internationally.

For the year ended December 31, 2007, approximately 16%I06 $&/enue was generated from customers outside
of the United States. SS/L could be harmed financialty@perationally by changes in foreign regulations and
telecommunications standards, tariffs or taxes and otheée barriers that may be imposed on its servicby political and
economic instability in the countries in which it conduousiness. Almost all of SS/L’s contracts withefgn customers
require payment in U.S. dollars, and customers in devejammuantries could have difficulty obtaining U.S. dollarpay
SS/L due to currency exchange controls and other fadischange rate fluctuations may adversely affecttitieyaof
SS/L customers to pay in U.S. dollars. If SS/L neegritesue legal remedies against its foreign business padner
customers, it may have to sue them abroad where il teudlifficult for SS/L to enforce its rights.

* Risk Factors Associated With Satellite Services

Telesat Canada derives a substantial amount of its reveas from only a few of its customers. A loss of one orare of
these major customers, or a material adverse change inyaof such customer’s business, could materially redudts
revenues and backlog.

Telesat Canada’s top five customers, which include Bellésgwu and Star Choice, account for 40% of its revenues
for the period October 31, 2007 to December 31, 2007, and 8B&wbaicklog at December 31, 2007. Any of these major
customers could refuse to renew their contracts or cmdl to negotiate concessions. If its customers expergn
downturn in their business, these customers may find #leessin financial difficulties or consolidate, whichutgbresult in
their ceasing or reducing their use of Telesat Canagaigces or becoming unable to pay for servicesiwtiiey had
contracted to buy. Additionally, Bell ExpressVu is a @dfBCE. Since Telesat Canada is no longer affiliated RCE,
there can be no assurance that Bell ExpressVu willreemtising Telesat Canada’s services after the expiratios
current contracts or continue to increase its use lesdtCanada’s services consistent with its past peadti addition,
BCE has entered into a definitive agreement to be actbyran investor group. Following its sale, BCE widiaabe highly
leveraged, which may adversely affect its and its subségiaability to perform their contractual obligatioms;luding Bell
ExpressVu’'s payment obligations to Telesat Canada ursdeustomer contracts. A loss of a major customer wouwld ha
material adverse effect on Telesat Canada’s resutisavations, business prospects and financial conditioicth would in
turn adversely affect us.

Launch delays or failures may result in delays in operatios.

Delays in launching satellites are not uncommon asdtréom construction delays, the unavailability of
appropriate launch vehicles, launch failures and dduotors. Delays in satellite launches would result laydein Telesat
Canada’s revenues, could affect plans to replace aniinsatbllite prior to the end of its useful life, cdulesult in the
expiration or cancellation of launch insurance, couldlt@s the loss of orbital slot rights and may resultermination of
its customer contracts. Upon such termination, Telesaa@a would be required to refund
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any prepayments made to it by its terminating customdrish in the case of its major customers, may be suotista

Satellite launches are risky, and some launch attemapts ended in complete or partial failure. A significdeity
or launch failure of a Telesat Canada satellite hsase a material adverse effect on Telesat Canada’sse$aperations,
business prospects and financial condition, which imWwould have a material adverse effect on our results@mditon.

For example, the March 15, 2008 failure of a Proton rackkdt its satellite payload to the appropriateibdall
cause a delay in the planned launch of the Nimiq 4 dataitiginally scheduled to be launched on a Proton racket
mid-2008. The launch of Nimiqg 5, which had been plannethf®second half of 2009, may likewise also be delayed as
result of this launch failure. These launch delays adiersely affect Telesat Canada’s financial performémnc2008 and
potentially 2009 and 2010 and will defer the backlog run-a¥iously anticipated. It is not possible to quantifyithpact
of these delays until more information about the Préddare and the resumption of the launch schedule bes@wailable.

After launch, satellites remain vulnerable to in-orbitfailures which may result in reduced revenues and prafs and
other financial consequences.

Satellites utilize highly complex technology and operatbénharsh environment of space and therefore are subject
to significant operational risks while in orbit. Inbirdamage to or loss of a satellite before the entd @xpected life
results from various causes, some random, including coempdailure, degradation of solar panels, loss of powéreb,
inability to maintain the satellite’s position, soladaother astronomical events and space debris.

Some of Telesat Canada’s satellites have had malfursctind other anomalies, and in certain cases aentyr
operating using back-up components because of the failuneipoptimary components. If the back-up components fail
however, and Telesat Canada is unable to restore redyntizese satellites could lose capacity or be totsds. Any
single anomaly or series of anomalies or other faitguld cause Telesat Canada’s revenues, cash flovizekidg to
decline materially, could require it to recognize an impaint loss and could require Telesat Canada to expedittatits
replacement program, affecting its profitability andreasing its financing needs. It could also requiresk¢l€anada to
repay prepayments made by customers of the affectetiteatetould also result in a customer terminatirsgcibntract for
service on the affected satellite. If the affectaelBte involves one of Telesat Canada’s major cust@nthere could be a
material adverse effect on Telesat Canada’s operaponspects, results and financial condition, which in tuould
adversely affect us.

It may be difficult to obtain full insurance coverage forsatellites that have, or are part of a family of satelles that
has, experienced problems in the past; moreover, natl satellite-related losses will be covered by insance.

Telesat Canada’s satellite insurance does not pribtagdinst all satellite-related losses. For exangatsllite
insurance will not protect it against business iiation, lost revenues or delay of revenues. Telesaddzaalso does not
have in-orbit insurance coverage for all of the séslin its fleet. Telesat Canada’s existing launchiarmbit insurance
policies include, and future policies are expected to in¢ckpukified exclusions, deductibles and material change
limitations. Typically, these insurance policies excladeerage for damage arising from acts of war and etkausions
then customary in the industry. In addition, they typicakclude coverage for health-related problems affectiegliges
that are known at the time the policy is written.tfie extent Telesat Canada experiences a launch dbitrfeolure that is
not fully insured, or for which insurance proceedsd®iayed or disputed, it may not have sufficient resourcesplace the
affected satellite.

Launch and in-orbit policies on satellites may not cargito be available on commercially reasonable termsall.
The loss of a satellite may have a material adwffeet on Telesat Canada’s results of operations, éssiprospects and
financial condition, which may not be adequately mitiddig insurance coverage.

Telesat Canada competes for market share, customers andoial slots.

A trend toward consolidation of major FSS providersresaslted in the creation of global competitors which are
substantially larger than Telesat Canada in termstbfthe number of satellites they have in orbit al$ we
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as in terms of their revenues. Due to their largeissibese operators are able to take advantage of geeat®mies of
scale, may be more attractive to customers, and maygneater flexibility to restore service to their cus@rs in the event
of a partial or total failure. Telesat Canada alsesazompetition from regional operators, which may enjoyp=itive
advantages in their local markets. Telesat Canadalisitidin with us may also adversely affect its abitiycompete for
certain contracts, especially in its consulting sesv/tmgsiness. In addition, Telesat Canada competes for&mpahtory
approval in places where more than one provider may twaperate and for scarce frequency assignmentsxatidrbital
positions.

Telesat Canada’s business is also subject to compdtibimnground based forms of communications technology
For many point-to-point and other services, the oftggiprovided by terrestrial companies can be more conveettitan the
services offered via satellite. New technology could eémder satellite-based services less competitivetisfysag
consumer demand in other ways. Telesat Canada’s failemripete effectively would result in, among other thiagess
of revenue and a decline in profitability, and a decreatiee value of its business.

Changes in the Canadian competitive environment could advsely affect Telesat Canada.

A substantial portion of Telesat Canada’s business isceeghéo continue in the Canadian domestic market. This
market is characterized by increasing competition and tephnological development among satellite providens. T
Canadian regulatory framework has always required the Sarzfdian-licensed satellites for the delivery of DTH
programming in Canada. It is possible that this frammkwould change and allow non-Canadian satellite operators to
compete for future business from DTH customers, whiclstdote some of Telesat Canada’s major customers.

Industry Canada, the Canadian telecommunications atythoas authorized Telesat Canada to operate at a number
of orbital locations. Recently, however, Industry Canaasannounced that it plans to award a significant euofb
licenses to a new Canadian satellite provider, Ciwl8a Group, including licenses to spectrum suitabtepfoviding a
variety of satellite services to Canadian customerse&sed competition in Canada may adversely affect Télesmda’s
access rights to certain Canadian orbital locatiohgwin turn could adversely affect Telesat Canada’s results
operations, business prospects and financial condition.

Telesat Canada operates in a highly regulated industry and gernment regulations may adversely affect its business.

Telesat Canada is subject to the laws of Canada and ttezl \$tates and the telecommunications regulatory
authorities of the Canadian government, primarily thad@lian Radio-television and Telecommunications Commissio
CRTC, and Industry Canada, as well as those of thet)Sitates government, primarily the Federal Commuaicat
Commission, or FCC, the International Telecommunicatldnion, or the ITU, the European Union, Brazil, Chana Isle
of Man. It is also subject to the laws and regulatidrateer countries to, from or within which it provide=@ces.
Regulatory authorities can modify, withdraw or imposegbs or conditions upon, or deny or delay action on apiglita
for, the licenses Telesat Canada needs for its busineksling its access rights to orbital positionsutdes or regulatory
authorities may adopt new laws, policies or regulationange their interpretation of existing laws, policiesegulations
or otherwise take actions in a manner that could adyaffect Telesat Canada’s operations or revenues.

To prevent frequency interference, the regulatory psoceguires potentially lengthy and costly negotiatieith
third parties who operate or intend to operate @kt or near the locations of Telesat Canaddlisas. These
negotiations have resulted in financial concessionsarpast and there can be no assurance that such consesay not
be required in the future. The failure to reach an apptepmiaangement with a third party having priority righteranear
one of its orbital slots may result in substantialrietsons on the use and operation of its satellithatt bcation. In addition,
while the ITU rules require later-in-time systemsaoordinate with it, there can be no assurance that offezators will
conduct their operations so as to avoid transmittirygsagnals that would cause harmful interference to fieeadion of
Telesat Canada’s satellites.

Failure to successfully coordinate Telesat Canada’litstefrequencies or to resolve other required reguato

approvals could have an adverse effect on its finaoeiadition, as well as on the value of its businessciwivould in turn
adversely affect us.
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Telesat Canada’s ability to replace two of its satelli®is subject to additional risk and cannot be assured.

In addition to the risks with respect to Telesat Canadali¢yeto renew its licenses to orbital locationsalissed
above, there are also specific risks with respectieiiitg able to replace Telstar 10 and Telstar 18. Telzszdda operates
Telstar 10 and Telstar 18 pursuant to agreements with gptiritglthat has licenses to use orbital locationsrothed by
China and Tonga, respectively. Although its agreemeribsthiss third party provide it with renewal rights witkspect to
replacement satellites, there can be no assuraatceettewal rights will be granted. Should Telesat Canadabuccessful
in obtaining renewal rights for either or both of tibital locations, because of the control over thé&alrlocations
exercised by foreign governments, or Telesat Canada atlediails to enter into agreements with the third pait
respect to such replacement satellites, all revenuaebtfrom the affected satellite or satellites wouldsee This could
result in a material adverse effect on Telesat Canaeststs and financial condition, which would in turn adedy affect
us.

I1l. Other Risks

We were late with the filing of our 2007 Form 10-K; our abiity to file our future financial reports on a timely basis
will depend on correcting our material weakness relat to income tax accounting, as well as the timely deliveiby
Telesat Canada of its financial statements.

We were unable to file our Annual Report on Form 10-Klieryear ended December 31, 2007 under the Securities
Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, or the Exchange Act, bggbiead date, even after giving effect to the 15-day
extension period granted under Rule 12b-25. This failuredwado a material weakness in our internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2007 related tonectax accounting. Specifically, we did not maintainjaeée
processes and a sufficient number of technically qualgiErsonnel to facilitate the timely resolution of issagsociated
with our income tax closing process primarily relatinghte Telesat Canada transaction. We are evaluatirapghvepriate
steps we will need to take to remedy this material wesdnwhich if uncorrected, could result in late filingéutdire
financial reports. Timely filings of our future Exchanget Aeports are also dependent on Telesat Canada’s ébility
complete its financial statements sufficiently in adaof our SEC reporting deadlines in order for us torppmate Telesat
Canada’s results in our financial statements. There cao bssurance that it will be able to do so.

The late filing of our 2007 Annual Report on Form 10-K hagered a NASDAQ staff determination that our
common stock is subject to delisting. The delistingoactias been stayed pending a hearing we requested, which is
scheduled for May 8, 2008. While there can be no assudaaicASDAQ will grant our request for continued listingg
expect that the filing of this Form 10-K will be sufficteio avoid the delisting of our common stock. The latedilhas also
adversely affected our eligibility to use the Form $t3égistration of our securities with the Securitied BRchange
Commission. Use of that Form requires, among othegshitat the issuer be current in its reports under thiesiige Act
for at least twelve months. If we are unable to umenFS-3, we will have to meet more demanding requirememegyister
our securities, so it will be more difficult for us tifeet public offering transactions, and our range oflatsée financing
alternatives could be narrowed.

If we are unable to remedy the deficiencies identifieava and timely file our Quarterly Report on Form 10-Q for
the first quarter of 2008 and subsequent Exchange Act reportspronnon stock could be delisted from NASDAQ, which
would have a material adverse effect on its liquidity emlde.

We share control of our affiliates with third parties.

We share control of our affiliates with third partsesd as a result we do not have control over managemeresaf
entities. For example, Hisdesat enjoys substantial apbrights in regard to XTAR, our X-band joint venture. Véhite
own 64% of the participating shares of Telesat Canadawneonly 331/ 3 % of the voting power. The rights of these third
parties and fiduciary duties under applicable law could resothers acting or failing to act in ways that arein@ur best
interest. While these entities are or have been cestoaf SS/L, due to this shared control and the fidudiaties of the
boards of these entities, there can be no assutaaiciése entities will continue to be customers éf S8d SS/L does
not expect to do business with these entities on dtlherfair and competitive terms.
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We rely on key personnel.

We need highly qualified personnel. Michael Targoff, ourfamecutive officer, has an employment contract
expiring in December 2010. We do not maintain “key man’iigirance. The departure of any of our key executives could
have an adverse effect on our business.

MHR may be viewed as our controlling stockholder and majave conflicts of interest with us in the future.

As of December 31, 2007, various funds affiliated with MHRI ladl issued and outstanding shares of Loral Series-1
Preferred Stock (issued in February 2007) which, if condeéateommon stock, would represent, when taken together with
holdings by MHR and/or its affiliated funds of common stotkoral at such time, approximately 57.3% of the common
stock of Loral. However, the terms of the preferredistre designed so that, prior to certain change of costenits of
Loral, any shares of common stock issuable to MHR autd/affiliated funds upon conversion of such preferredksto
when taken together with holdings by MHR and/or itdiaféd funds of common stock of Loral at such time, walt
represent more than 39.999% of the aggregate voting powee eécurities of Loral. Various funds affiliated witiHR
held, as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, approximately 35.48b28%b, respectively of the outstanding common stock of
Loral. As of March 2008, representatives of MHR occuipge of the nine seats on our board of directors (seéughich
are currently occupied) and have the right under the teftihe Loral preferred stock financing, which it mas$ exercised
to date, to appoint an additional director to our Boaréddition, one of our other directors was selectetth&ygreditors’
committee in our Chapter 11 Cases, in which MHR servéldeashairman. Conflicts of interests may arise inftiere
between us and MHR. For example, MHR and its affitidtads are in the business of making investments in companies
and may acquire and hold interests in businesses that odipetly or indirectly with us. Under our agreemenhviASP,
in the event that either (i) ownership or controledily or indirectly, by Mark H. Rachesky, President ¢l of our
voting stock falls below certain levels or (ii) thera@ishange in the composition of a majority of the mesibéthe Loral
board of directors over a consecutive two-year periedwill lose our veto rights relating to certain ansdy Telesat
Canada. In addition, after either of these events,vidlERave certain rights to enable it to exit fromiitgestment in
Telesat Canada, including a right to cause Telesat Can@daduct an initial public offering in which PSP’s shaveslId
be the first shares offered or, if no such offering lesiwed within one year due to a lack of cooperation fronal or
Telesat Canada, to cause the sale of Telesat Canadadunad &long the other shareholders in such sale, stdject right
to call PSP’s shares at fair market value.

Compliance with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act increases our opating expenses.

The Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002, as well as rules subsegiraptemented by the Securities and Exchange
Commission (“SEC”), have required changes to some of@pocate governance practices. These changes include
developing financial and disclosure processes that s&sfiron 404 of the Sarbanes-Oxley Act. We expect lileaktrules
and regulations will continue to make some activitiesentlifficult, time-consuming and costly. We also exphat these
rules and regulations could make it more difficult fotasattract and retain qualified members of our Bodildiectors,
particularly to serve on our audit committee and t@ettand retain qualified executive officers. If we areblm#o comply
with the Sarbanes-Oxley Act and related rules and réga our business could be materially adversely affecte

The future use of tax attributes is limited upon emergnce from bankruptcy.

As of December 31, 2007, we had federal net operating lasdacaards, or NOLs, of approximately $554 million
and state NOLs of various amounts that are availald&det future taxable income (see Notes 3 and 12todhsolidated
financial statements for a description of the accogrtieatment of such NOLS). As our reorganization owelNder 21,
2005 constituted an “ownership change” under Section 38 dhternal Revenue Code, our ability to use these N&i_s
well as certain other tax attributes existing at sufdcgfe date, is subject to an annual limitation ofragjmately
$32.6 million, subject to increase or decrease basedrtainckactors. If Loral experiences an additional “owngrshi
change” during any three-year period after November 21, 20@fe fuse of these tax attributes may become furtherehimit
An ownership change may be triggered by sales or acqnisitifo_oral equity interests beyond certain thresholds by
shareholders owning five percent or more of
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our total equity value, i.e., the total market valuewfequity interests (whether common or preferred), asméaied on
any applicable testing date. We would, however, be adyafetted by an additional “ownership change” onlyt ifhee
time of such change, our total equity value multipliedngyfederal applicable long-term tax exempt rate wasthem
$32.6 million.

There is a thin trading market for our common stock.

Our common stock was first issued and listed on the NASNA@nal Market in December 2005. Trading activity
in our stock has generally been light, averaging apprdgiyna3,000 shares per day for the year ended December(&1, 20
Moreover, over 50% of our common stock is effectivelylimt MHR and several other shareholders. If any of our
significant shareholders should sell some or all eir tholdings, it will likely have an adverse effectaur share price.
Although the funds affiliated with MHR have restrictiarstheir ability to sell our shares under U.S. securltess, they
have registration rights in respect of the securities tioéy in Loral, including our common stock that would xéecised,
eliminate such restrictions.

The market for our stock could be adversely affectedypfuture issuance of significant amounts of our commortack.

As of December 31, 2007, 20,292,746 shares of our common stoeloutstanding. On that date, there were
outstanding options to purchase 2,051,702 shares of our costaoén of which 1,376,214 were vested and exercisable and
of which 675,488 will become vested and exercisable over ttdwe years. In addition, as of December 31, 2007,
628,004 shares of our common stock were available for fgtargs under our 2005 Stock Incentive Plan. Moreover, we
may further amend our stock option plan in the futuredwige for additional increases in the number of sharatadole
for grant thereunder.

In connection with a stipulation entered into with certinectors and officers of Old Loral and a stipulatiotessd
into with the plaintiffs in a purported class actiowsait brought by participants in the 401(k) Savings Plan dfl@tal,
certain claims aggregating $77 million may result indiséribution of our common stock in addition to the 20 rrlli
shares distributed under the Plan of Reorganization. B detail about these stipulations, see Note 17 toothsotidated
financial statements.

Based on the initial conversion price of $30.1504 per stmat@ssuming stockholder approval of the creation of the
Class B non-voting common stock, the Series A-1 Looalertible preferred stock and the Series B-1 Loral exitle
preferred stock currently outstanding are convertible Hyalders into 1,419,530 shares of common stock and
9,008,210 shares of Class B-1 non-voting common stock,atesgg. We also intend to seek approval at a future
stockholders meeting to increase our number of autltbsizares of common stock from 40,000,000 shares to
60,000,000 shares.

Sales of significant amounts of our common stock tqotii#ic, or the perception that those sales could happen,
could adversely affect the market for, and the tradinggf, our common stock.

Litigation and Disputes
We are involved in a number of ongoing lawsuits.

We are involved in a number of lawsuits, details ofchttan be found in Note 17 to the consolidated financial
statements. In addition, we are involved in a numbelisgiutes which might result in litigation. If any of theaasuits or
disputes are decided against us it could have a materiabadféct on our financial condition and our results of

operations.

Item 1B. Unresolved Staff Comments

None.
Item 2. Propertie:

Corporate



We lease approximately 27,000 square feet of space for iqaorate offices in New York.
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Satellite Manufacturing

SS/L’s research, production and testing are conducte8/In@vned facilities covering approximately
564,000 square feet on 29 acres in Palo Alto, Californiaddition, SS/L leases approximately 587,000 square feeta# spa
on 39 acres from various third parties primarily ind2alto, Menlo Park and Mountain View, California. M@iement
believes that the facilities for satellite manufaictg are sufficient for current operations, but SS/miodifying and
expanding the existing manufacturing facilities and coordigatith third parties for additional high-bay satellite
integration and test facilities to accommodate potegt@awth.

Satellite Services

Telesat Canada’s primary satellite control centesdatked at its headquarters building in Ottawa, Ontariotwhic
consists of 259,000 square feet on 10 acres. This buildimgde/iced by Telesat Canada and a pension fund, each having a
fifty percent (50%) interest as tenants-in-common. géresion fund’s interest in the building is leased by Teléaaada
until January 2009.

The Allan Park earth station, located northeast obfitar, Ontario on 70 acres of land, houses a custamppost
center and a technical control center. This facilityss ¢he back-up satellite control center and the main statlon
complex. Allan Park’s role in Telesat Canada’s operatiassstkpanded as a result of the closure of Loral Skyraet€fite
control center in Hawley, Pennsylvania and the planieice of its VSAT and Internet services managemertecén
Rockville, Maryland.

In addition to these facilities, Telesat Canada legg@ogimately 350,000 square feet for teleport, and satellit
control operations and 160,000 square feet for adminigrand sales offices.

Iltem 3. Legal Proceeding

We discuss certain legal proceedings pending against thpatxy in the notes to the consolidated financial
statements and refer you to that discussion for imparrtésrtnation concerning those legal proceedings, inclutliegoasis
for such actions and relief sought. See Note 17 to theotidated financial statements for this discussion.

ltem 4. Submission of Matters to a Vote of Security Holders
None.

PART Il

ltem 5. Market for Registran’s Common Equity, Related Stockholder Matters and Issuer Puages of Equity
Securities

(&) Market Price and Dividend Information

Loral has authorized 40 million shares of common stock)1$gar value per share, 20,292,746 of which are
outstanding as of December 31, 2007. Subject to the preferandeother rights of the Loral Series-1 PreferrediSt
holders of shares of Loral common stock, and if ahdmauthorized and issued, shares of the Class B nomgcaimmon
stock, are entitled to share equally, share for shadlvidends when and as declared by the board of diremtiorsf funds
legally available for such dividends. If and when issuedyant to the terms of the Loral Series-1 PreferreckSthares of
the Series A-2 and Series B-2 preferred stock will hlageight to participate in all dividends paid on Loral coom stock
on an as converted basis. Subject to the rights, p@amerpreferences of the Loral Series-1 Preferred Stoak,if and
when issued pursuant to the terms of the Series BférRre Stock, the Series B-2 preferred stock, upon a liqoidat
dissolution or winding up of Loral, the assets of La@nahilable to stockholders will be distributed equally gfeare to the
holders of Loral common stock, and if and when issuedséhies A-2 preferred stock and Class B non-votingncom
stock. Except as otherwise provided in the RestatedfiCat#i of Incorporation or bylaws of Loral, each holdeLoral
common stock is entitled to one vote in respect dh share of Loral common stock held of record on all ensittubmitted
to a vote of stockholders. The holders of Loral comistonk do not have any cumulative voting rights. Loral rmm stock
has no preemptive or conversion rights or other sysigamirights. There are no redemption or sinking fundiiprons
applicable to Loral common stock. All outstanding sharérdl common stock are fully paid and non-assessable.
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Our common stock trades on the NASDAQ National Market utigeticker symbol “LORL.” The table below sets
forth the high and low sales prices of Loral common stocksrted on the NASDAQ National Market from January 1,
2006 through December 31, 2007.

High Low

Year ended December 31, 2007

Quarter ended December 31, 2007 $ 45.27 $ 31.67

Quarter ended September 30, 2007 50.4z 34.8:

Quarter ended June 30, 2007 51.8z 44.5C

Quarter ended March 31, 2007 53.1C 39.0C
Year ended December 31, 2006

Quarter ended December 31, 2006 $ 41.6F $ 25.9¢

Quarter ended September 30, 2006 29.6C 24.1¢

Quarter ended June 30, 2006 29.5t 25.7¢4

Quarter ended March 31, 2006 29.01 23.7¢

(b)  Approximate Number of Holders of Common Stock

At March 1, 2008, there were 405 holders of record of oomneon stock.

(c) Dividends

Loral’s ability to pay dividends or distributions on itsnemon stock will depend upon its earnings, financial
condition and capital needs and other factors deemedqyertiyi the Board of Directors. The terms of the L&exies-1
Preferred Stock also restrict the Company's abititpay dividends on its common stock. Loral cannot pay angetids on
equity securities ranking eithpari passuor junior to the Loral Series-1 Preferred Stock i§ ithen in default in respect of
dividend payments on the Loral Series-1 Preferred Stoapéxicat certain pro rata dividend payments on parityr s
would be permitted. The Loral Series-1 Preferred Staak @lovides that, for so long as at least one thitHethares of
Series A Preferred Stock and Series B Preferred Soeakd at closing is still outstanding, unless there islihsket
availability (determined based on Loral’s adjusted codateid net income (as defined) and taking into accountiafl p
restricted payments to date), the approval of a mgjofithe outstanding shares of Series A PreferreckSind Series B
Preferred Stock, voting together as a single classgisired before Loral can pay dividends on its commocksin
addition, the terms of the Loral Series-1 PreferredkSpoovide that, subject to certain exceptions (includingtfersale of
Loral Skynet assets in connection with the Telesat Camadsaction), following asset sales having an aggeegsdtie in
excess of $25 million (the “Asset Sale Trigger”), the Canypaay not pay dividends on its common stock if at time tbf
such payment the aggregate amount of such payment antlkdeslrestricted payments made since the Asset Sagiger
would exceed 50% of the Company’s adjusted consolidatedemehé(as defined) accrued during the period commencing
on the date of initial issuance of the Loral Seri¢&-dferred Stock and ending at the end of the most raseat Guarter
ended at least 45 days prior to the date of the dividemdate, Loral has not paid any dividends on its comnmek s

(d)  Securities Authorized for Issuance under Equity Compasation Plans
See Note 13 to the consolidated financial statemenisf@mation regarding the Company’s stock compensation

plan. Compensation information required by Item 11 wilpbesented in the Company’'s 2008 definitive proxy statement
which is incorporated herein by reference.
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(e)  Comparison of Cumulative Total Returns

Set forth below is a graph comparing the cumulativeoperdnce of our common stock with the NASDAQ
Composite Index, and the NASDAQ Telecommunications Incem November 21, 2005, the initial issue date of our
common stock upon emergence from bankruptcy, to Decemb20@1, The graph assumes that $100 was invested on
November 21, 2005 in each of our common stock, the NASDAQpGsite Index and the NASDAQ Telecommunications
Index and that all dividends were reinvested. The NASO&@communications Index is a capitalization weighted index
designed to measure the performance of all NASDAQ-tratieds in the telecommunications sector, includingligza
technology companies.

Cumulative Total Return
Based on an investrment of $100 on Novembser 21, 2008
with all dividends reinvested
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Item 6. Selected Financial Data

The following table sets forth our selected historigadficial and operating data for the years ended December 31
2007 and 2006, the period October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005ritteJa@uary 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005 and each of
the years ended December 31, 2004 and 2003.

For all periods presented in the statement of operatioc@me from continuing operations excludes the restilts
the North American satellites and related assetsaolarch 17, 2004 to Intelsat, which have been accountedfa
discontinued operation and accordingly are presented sepanateé consolidated selected financial data.

On August 1, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court entered its Contiom®rder confirming the Plan of Reorganization. On
September 30, 2005, the FCC approved the transfer of E@&és from Old Loral to New Loral, which represdrike
satisfaction of the last material condition precederdmergence from bankruptcy. We emerged from baidywon
November 21, 2005 and pursuant to SOP 90-7 we adopted faeshestounting as of October 1, 2005. Upon emergence,
our reorganization enterprise value as determined bBahkruptcy Court was approximately $970 million, whichrafte
reduction for the fair value of Loral Skynet’'s 14% sersiecured notes and the Loral Skynet preferred steekNstes 3, 10
and 13 to the consolidated financial statements), egbirta reorganization equity value of approximately $642 million.
This reorganization equity value was allocated to owetassid liabilities. Our assets and liabilities evstated at fair value
in accordance with Statement of Financial Accountingd&eds (“SFAS”) No. 141Business Combinatior{§SFAS 141”).

In addition, our accumulated deficit was eliminated, and ewr aeebt and equity were recorded in accordance with
distributions pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization (s¢e Alto the consolidated financial statements). Ousaalated
financial statements
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as of October 1, 2005 and for dates subsequent are not cohepareertain material respects to the historicakobdated
financial statements for periods prior to that date.

References to the Predecessor Registrant refer tethal prior to October 2, 2005. References to the Sumtess
Registrant refer to the period on and after October 2,,206% giving effect to the adoption of fresh-staxt@unting.

In connection with the Telesat Canada transaction, LonaDctober 31, 2007, transferred substantially all of the
assets and related liabilities of Loral Skynet toe$at Canada. Therefore, Loral Skynet has been excluatadte selected
financial data subsequent to October 31, 2007.

The information set forth in the following table shoudread in conjunction with “Management’s Discussion and
Analysis of Financial Condition and Results of Operatiamsl our consolidated financial statements and relattes
thereto included elsewhere in this Annual Report on Forid.10

LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.
(In thousands, except per share data)

Successor Registrant Predecessor Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
2005 to 2005 to
Year Ended December 31, December 31, October 1, Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003

Statement of operations data:
Revenues $ 88245: $ 797,33 % 197,16t $ 429,18¢ $ 522,121 $ 392,04:
Operating income (loss) from continuing

operationg1) 45,25¢ 29,81¢ (4,94%) (67,095) (214,34Y) (388,879
Gain on discharge of pre-petition

obligations and fresh-start adjustments — — — 1,101,45{2) — —
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before income taxes, equity in net loss

of affiliates and minority interegs) 157,78¢ 30,117 (5,39%) 1,022,65: (207,857) (368,355
Income tax (provision) benefit (83,457) (20,880 (1,752) 10,901 (13,28124) 6,33C
Income (loss) from continuing operations

before equity in net losses of affiliates

and minority interest 74,32¢ 9,237 (7,1479) 1,033,55: (221,13¢) (362,02%)
Equity in net (losses) income of affiliates (21,430) (7,16%) (5,447) (2,79€6) 46,654 (51,157
Minority interest (23,240 (24,799 (2,667) 126 135 20
Income (loss) from continuing operations 29,65¢ (22,720) (15,26]) 1,030,88:. (174,34)) (413,15¢)
(Loss) income from discontinued

operations, net of taxes — — — — (2,34¢) 18,80:
Gain on sale of discontinued operations,

of taxes — — — 13,967 — —
Income (loss) before cumulative effect of

change in accounting principle and

extraordinary gain on acquisition of

minority interest 29,65¢ (22,720 (15,267) 1,044,84¢ (176,695 (394,35%)
Cumulative effect of change in accountin

principle, net of taxes — — — — — (2,970
Extraordinary gain on acquisition of

minority interest — — — — — 13,61¢
Net income (loss) 29,65¢ (22,720 (15,267) 1,044,84¢ (176,695 (382,710
Preferred dividends (19,379 — — — — (6,719)
Beneficial conversion feature related to tl

issuance of Loral Series A-1 Preferred

Stock (25,68E) — — — — —
Net (loss) income applicable to common

shareholders (15,40%) (22,720) (15,267) 1,044,84¢ (176,695 (389,429
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Successor Registrant Predecessor Registrant
For the
For the Period Period
October 2, January 1,
2005 to 2005 to
Year Ended December 31, December 31, October 1, Year Ended December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share:
Continuing operations $ ©077) % 1149 % (0.76) $ 2337 % (396 $ (9.59)
Discontinued operations — — — 0.32 (0.05) 0.43
Before cumulative ééct of change in accountil
principle and extraordinary gain on acquisit
of minority interest $ (0.77) (1.19 (0.76) 23.6¢ (4.01) (9.15)
Cumulative effect of change in accounting
principle — — — — — (0.05)
Extraordinary gain on acquisition of minority
interest — — — — — 0.31
(Loss) earnings per share $ (077) $ (1.14) $ (0.76) $ 236 $ (4.01) $ (8.89)
Deficiency of earnings to cover fixed charges $ 28,87 $ 13,377 $ 8,062 $ 65,57C $ 208,80¢ $ 389,21t
Cash flow data:
Provided by (used in) operating activities 27,12z 88,00z (38,53)) (143,82)) 66,12¢ 232,65:
Provided by (used in) by investing activitigs 61,51¢ (175,97¢) (5,089 194,707 906,881 (157,489
Provided by (used in) by financing activities 39,51( (1,27¢) 120,76: — (966,887) 539
Predecessor Registrant Successor Registrant
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2004(8) 2003(8)
Balance sheet data:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 31469 % 186,54: % 275,79¢ $ 147,77 $ 141,64«
Short-term investments — 106,58¢ — — —
Total assets 1,702,93¢ 1,729,91: 1,678,97 1,218,73 2,463,81:
Debt, including current portion — 128,08¢ 128,191 — —
Non-current liabilities and minority interest 289,60: 535,27! 603,374 84,671 72,932
Liabilities subject to compromise — — — 1,916,00( 2,921,68(
Shareholders’ equity (deficit) 973,55¢ 647,002 627,164 (1,044,10)) (855,670

(1) In connection with the Telesat Canada transactitrich closed on October 31, 2007, we recognizedia gf $104.9 million on the contribution
of substantially all of the assets and relatedliizs of Loral Skynet to Telesat Canada. See Note the consolidated financial statements.

@

consolidated financial statements).

©)

consolidated financial statements).

4)

write-off of our investment in Globalstar, L.P.’SG million credit facility, upon Globalstar, L.B.gissolution in June 2004.

®)

In connection with our emergence from Chapter Id @ur adoption of fresh-start accounting on Octdhe2005, we recognized a gain on
discharge of pre-petition obligations and freshtstdjustments of $1.101 billion, related interegpense of $13.2 million related to the holders of
claims to be paid in cash and a tax benefit of $illion, each of which is reflected separatelyin statement of operations (see Note 4 to the

In connection with the Telesat Canada transacti@x,ecognized a gain on foreign exchange contid®89.4 million (see Note 16 to the

2004 includes an $11 million increase to the defittax valuation allowance relating to the revecdaleferred tax liabilities arising from the

Beginning October 31, 2007, our principal affiliégdeT elesat Canada. Loral also has investmentsTiARKand joint ventures providing Globalstar

service, which are accounted for under the equéthiod. On December 21, 2007 Loral agreed to selhierest in Globalstar do Brazil S.A.
which resulted in Loral recording a charge of $1Irhilion (see Note 8 to the consolidated finansiaitements). During 2004, we recorded
$47 million of equity income on the reversal of denfinancing liabilities that were non-recourseSte/L in the event of non-payment by

Globalstar, L.P. During 2003, we wrote off our rémiag investment of $29 million in Satelites Mexizs, S.A. de C.V. See Note 8 to the

consolidated financial statements.

(6)
@)

®)

Cash flow provided by (used in) operating actigtiecludes cash flow from operating activities pded by discontinued operations in 2004.
Cash flow provided by (used in) investing acti\dtiacludes cash flow provided by (used in) investiativities of discontinued operations for the
period January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005 and 2004.

As a result of our Chapter 11 filing, Old Loral'slit obligations, preferred stock obligations andaie other liabilities existing at July 15, 2003,
were classified as liabilities subject to compramis our balance sheets at December 31, 2004 && Zhese obligations were extinguished as
of the Effective Date.

33




Iltem 7. Managemen's Discussion and Analysis of Financial Condition and Rewibf Operations.

The following discussion and analysis should be read in conjunction wittbosolidated financial statements (the
“financial statements”) included in Item 15 of this Annual Reporf~orm 10-K

Loral Space & Communications Inc., a Delaware conpmratogether with its subsidiaries is a leading stell
communications company with substantial activities ielkgt manufacturing and investments in satelliteedas
communications services. Loral was formed on June 24 @08ucceed to the business conducted by its predecessor
registrant, Loral Space & Communications Ltd. (“Old &lty, which emerged from chapter 11 of the federal bankyuptc
laws on November 21, 2005 (the “Effective Date”).

The terms, “Loral,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “usWwhen used in this report with respect to the period poior t
the Effective Date, are references to Old Loradi when used with respect to the period commencing onfeerdlze
Effective Date, are references to Loral Space & Camioations Inc. These references include the subsdiafiOld Loral
or Loral Space & Communications Inc., as the casgbeaunless otherwise indicated or the context othenspares.

On October 31, 2007, Loral and its Canadian Partner, PubliorS&nsion Investment Board (“PSP”), through
Telesat Holdings, Inc. (“Telesat Holdco”), a newlysfeed joint venture, completed the acquisition of Tel€satada from
BCE Inc. (“BCE”"). In connection with this acquisitionpilal transferred on that same date substantially #itleofssets and
related liabilities of Loral Skynet Corporation (“Lor@kynet”) to Telesat Canada. Loral holds a 64% econurtecest and
331/3 % voting interest in Telesat Holdco, the ultimate pacentpany of the resulting new entity. Loral accountsHis
investment using the equity method of accounting.

We refer to the acquisition of Telesat Canada andetlhéed transfer of Loral Skynet to Telesat Canadhas
Telesat Canada transaction. References to Telesat Gaithdaspect to periods prior to the closing of thasisaction are
references to the subsidiary of BCE and with respettetpériod after the closing of this transaction afereaces to
Telesat Holdco and/or its subsidiaries as appropriatelafly, unless otherwise indicated, references talL8kynet with
respect to periods prior to the closing of this tratisa@re references to the operations of Loral’slkg# services segment
conducted through Loral Skynet and with respect to thegeommencing on and after the closing of this transaetie, if
related to the fixed satellite services business,@rtas to the Loral Skynet operations within Telesaa@an

We adopted fresh start accounting as of October 1, 2005, irdacce with Statement of Position No. 90-7,
Financial Reporting of Entities in Reorganization Under the Bankruptmje(“SOP 90-77). Accordingly, our financial
information disclosed under the heading “Successor Ragisfor the periods ended and as of December 31, 2007, 2006
and 2005, respectively, is presented on a basis diffexant &nd is therefore not comparable to, our findrtiarmation
disclosed under the heading “Predecessor Registrarttidqgeriod ended and as of October 1, 2005 (the date wesddopt
fresh-start accounting) or for prior periods.

References to full-year 2005 financial information thraugtthis discussion combine the periods of January 1, 2005
to October 1, 2005 with October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005. Maragbelieves that providing this financial
information is the most relevant and useful method faking comparisons.

Disclosure Regarding Forward-Looking Statements

Except for the historical information contained in the followingedssion and analysis, the matters discussed below
are not historical facts, but are “forward-looking statements” as team is defined in the Private Securities Litigation
Reform Act of 1995. In addition, we or our representatives have amtisay continue to make forward-looking statements,
orally or in writing, in other contexts. These forward-lookitatesments can be identified by the use of words such as
“believes,” “expects,” “plans,” “may,” “will,” “would,” “coul d,” “should,” “anticipates,” “estimates,” “project,”

“intend,” or “outlook” or other variations of these words. Thesatsiments, including without limitation those relating to
Telesat Canada, are not guarantees of future performance and invgigeand uncertainties that are difficult to predict or
guantify. Actual events or results may differ materially sssalt of a wide variety of factors and conditions, many of which
are beyond our control. For a detailed discussion of these drat €dactors and conditions, please refer to the Commitments
and Contingencies section below and to our other periodic reportisviith the Securities and Exchange Commission
(*SEC”). We operate in an industry sector in which the valtisecurities may be volatile and may be influenced by
economic and other factors beyond our control. We undertake rgatbh to update any forward-looking statements.
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Overview
Businesses

Loral is a leading satellite communications company wilatellite manufacturing unit and investments in setell
services businesses. Loral is organized into two tipgraegments, satellite manufacturing and satellitéce=vFor the
final two months of 2007 and going forward, Loral partitésan satellite services operations principally thioitg
investment in Telesat Canada.

Satellite Manufacturing

Space Systems/Loral, Inc. ("SS/L”), designs and manufes satellites, space systems and space system
components for commercial and government customersespications include fixed satellite services (“FSS”),
direct-to-home (“DTH”) broadcasting, mobile satelktrvices (“MSS”), broadband data distribution, wirgledephony,
digital radio, digital mobile broadcasting, military commzations, weather monitoring and air traffic management

Satellite manufacturers have high fixed costs relatingagpiiynto labor and overhead. Based on its currerit cos
structure, we estimate that SS/L covers its fixedscastluding depreciation and amortization, with an aveohdee to six
satellite awards a year depending on the size, poweingand complexity of the satellite. Cash flow in thiekite
manufacturing business tends to be uneven. It taketotthioee years to complete a satellite project amdenaus
assumptions are built into the estimated costs. S84sk receipts are tied to the achievement of contrédestones that
depend in part on the ability of its subcontractors tvelebn time. In addition, the timing of satellite adsis difficult to
predict, contributing to the unevenness of revenue anchignékinore challenging to align the workforce to the wankil

While its requirement for ongoing capital investmententain its current capacity is relatively low, S&#és
commenced a capacity expansion program through which SS#elking to accommodate as many as 13 satellite awards
per year depending on the complexity and timing of the speeifalites awarded, and which also provides for greater
in-house manufacturing of RF components and subasseniiiissexpansion, which includes the use of third pafsitef
capacity and the upgrading of existing SS/L satellitedpsrations and RF assembly and test operationgjrisaésd to
require total incremental capital expenditures of appratety $30 million. On February 27, 2008, SS/L and Northrop
Grumman announced that they are pursuing a group of ingatiivbroaden each company’s opportunities to provile th
U.S. government with cost competitive satellite systesspart of these initiatives, Northrop Grumman has algiree
principle to the use by SS/L of its satellite test fae8 and services, which would allow Loral to bettemage its capital
expenditures for facilities expansion at SS/L and tlegee cash flow requirements associated with that expansion.

The satellite manufacturing industry is a knowledge-intensusiness, the success of which relies heavilyson it
technological heritage and the skills of its workforflee breadth and depth of talent and experience residentlits SS
workforce of approximately 2,300 personnel is one of our keypetitive resources.

Satellites are extraordinarily complex devices designegdoate in the very hostile environment of space. This
complexity may lead to unanticipated costs during thegdesnanufacture and testing of a satellite. SS/L esteddi
provisions for costs based on historical experiencgamgtam complexity to cover anticipated costs. As moSISit's
contracts are fixed price, cost increases in excetsesé provisions reduce profitability and may resulbgsés to SS/L,
which may be material. The highly competitive satetfi@nufacturing industry has recently recovered from a seyeaal
period in the early part of this decade when order leealshed an unprecedented low level. Buyers, as a teswdt had
the advantage over suppliers in negotiating prices, tamthsanditions resulting in reduced margins and increased
assumptions of risk by manufacturers such as SS/L. S&lfuwther handicapped while it was in Chapter 11, because of
buyers’ reluctance to purchase satellites from a cagpnpabankruptcy.

Satellite Services

On October 31, 2007, Loral and its Canadian partner, PSP, thacughly-formed joint venture, completed the
acquisition of Telesat Canada from BCE. In connectioh thits acquisition, Loral transferred substantially all
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of the assets and related liabilities of Loral Skynéefe¢lesat Canada. Loral holds a 64% economic intemesh 831 /3 %
voting interest in Telesat Holdco, the ultimate parent comppéthe resulting new entity (see Note 8 to the findncia
statements).

The satellite services business is capital intensidgetize build-out of a satellite fleet requires substhniree and
investment. Once these investments are made, howhearosts to maintain and operate the fleet areualatow with the
exception of in-orbit insurance. Upfront investmenmtsearned back through the leasing of transponders to custoves
the life of the satellite. After nearly 40 years pkoation, Telesat Canada has established collaboratat®nships with its
customers so annual receipts from the satellite s=\iasiness are fairly predictable with long term cordraatl high
contract renewal rates.

Competition in the satellite services market has gense in recent years due to a number of factorsidimg
transponder over-capacity in certain geographic regiongiarehsed competition from fiber. This competition puts
pressure on prices, depending on market conditions inugagi@ographic regions and frequency bands. A stronger economy
and an increase in capital available for expanded consamdegnterprise-level services have more recesdlyd an
improvement in demand in certain markets. Much of Teleéaatida’s currently unleased capacity, however, is over
geographic regions where the market is characterizeddag® capacity, coupled with weak demand, or where regulator
obstacles are such that the company finds itself at petitimve disadvantage compared to local operators.

As of December 31, 2007, Telesat Canada’s twelve in-sab#lites (comprised of both owned and leased satgllite
had an average of approximately 60% of their expected totédasdife remaining, with an average expected remaining
service life in excess of eight years. Three additioatalliges, two of which are under construction at S8/k,scheduled
for launch in 2008 and 2009. Two of the satellites under agrigin are already 100% contracted to Bell ExpressVu for
15 years or such later date as the customer may request.

Until the closing of the Telesat Canada transactional Skynet operated a global fixed satellite ses/lmgsiness.
As part of this business, Loral Skynet leased transpaagercity to commercial and government customers foovide
distribution and broadcasting, high-speed data distribulitiernet access and communications, and also prbadeaged
network services to customers using a hybrid satelfitbground-based system. It also provided professsengkces to
other satellite operators such as fleet operating vt October 31, 2007, Loral Skynet had four in-orbit beelnd
one satellite under construction at SS/L.

Bankruptcy Reorganization

During the years 2001-2003, the sustained and unprecedentea deciemand for our satellites and the
transponder over-capacity in our satellite services basiexacerbated Old Loral’s already strained financiaditon
brought on primarily by the investments we had previoosdde in Globalstar, L.P. (“Globalstar”) that we sujosmntly
wrote-off. Globalstar filed voluntary bankruptcy petittounder Chapter 11 in February 2002. On July 15, 2003, Old Loral
and certain of its subsidiaries (the “Debtor Subsidiagesl collectively with Old Loral, the “Debtors”) &t voluntary
petitions for reorganization under Chapter 11. During tiselieg two-and-a-half year period we further increased ou
emphasis on cash conservation by reducing operating expenisel®sely monitoring capital expenditures.

On August 1, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court entered its confiomarder confirming the Plan of Reorganization. On
September 30, 2005, the Federal Communications Comm{#s®siFCC”) approved the transfer of FCC licensesfiOld
Loral to Loral Space & Communications Inc., whichnesented satisfaction of the last material conditrecqrent to
emergence. The Debtors emerged from their reorgamizptoceeding under Chapter 11 on November 21, 2005 pursuant to
the Plan of Reorganization. Pursuant to SOP 90-7 we adiopsbdstart accounting as of October 1, 2005 (see Notes 2 and
3 to the financial statements).

Future Outlook

Critical success factors for SS/L include maintainisgéjputation for reliability, quality and superior customer
service. These factors are vital to securing new custand retaining current ones. At the same time, wé consnue to
contain costs and maximize efficiencies. SS/L is fedusn increasing bookings and backlog, while maintainingdbe
efficiencies and process improvements realized inepast several years. In addition,
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SS/L must continue to align its direct workforce witk thvel of awards. In order to complete constructicalldhe
satellites in backlog and to accommodate long-term tr,085/L will need, and is hiring additional staff.ngsterm growth
at SS/L will also require expanded facilities, and wagkiapital requirements, primarily for the orbital comgminof the
satellite contract which is payable to SS/L overlifieeof the satellite.

As a result of the closing of the Telesat Canada tctiosaLoral holds a 64% economic interest and a/33%
voting interest in the world’s fourth largest satellite eparwith approximately $5.3 billion of backlog as of Decem@il,
2007. The integration of Loral Skynet’'s and Telesat Canagaisations offers customers expanded satellite and té&mtest
coverage while continuing to offer superior customer serWiée believe that this transaction allows the doedbcompany
to compete more effectively in the FSS industry thdmeeitoral Skynet or Telesat Canada would have beert@bie on
its own.

Telesat Canada is committed to continuing to providesttong customer service and focus on innovation and
technical expertise that has allowed it to successfullg litsibusiness to date. Building on its industry leadiagklog and
significant contracted growth, Telesat Canada’s fasumitaking disciplined steps to grow the core busiaedssell
existing in-construction satellite capacity; succesgiullegrate with Loral Skynet to improve operatinficegncy; and, in a
disciplined manner, use the strong cash flow generated styngxbusiness, contracted expansion satellites andaasigs
to strengthen the business.

Telesat Canada believes its existing satellite flfetoa strong combination of existing backlog, contdcevenue
growth (on Anik F3, and on the in-construction satelliiésiq 4 and Nimiq 5) and additional capacity (on tkistng
satellites and Telstar 11N) that provides a solid foundatpon which it will seek to grow its revenues and diasts.

When two satellite operators merge, there usuallgisficant overlap in their operations. Telesat Canaaa h
implemented a comprehensive integration plan that haseésnla substantial headcount reduction in certain arghe of
company and consolidated a number of Loral Skynet andalélasmada facilities, including satellite and network
operations centers, resulting in the achievement offgignt cost synergies. Telesat Canada has targetedxapptely
CAD 55 million in annual cost savings; approximately twoetiof these cost savings will result from the reduction i
staffing levels. Telesat Canada believes that itgiaten activities are proceeding according to plan,diggificant cost
savings have been achieved, and that the balance pfdfected cost savings will be achieved over a ohedgear
period.

Telesat Canada believes that it is well-positionegbtoe its customers and the markets in which it ppaties.
Telesat actively pursues opportunities to develop newitzgteparticularly in conjunction with current or prospee
customers, who will commit to a substantial amount pacéy at the time the satellite construction contigisigned.
Although Telesat Canada regularly pursues opportunitiesssatenew satellites, it does not procure additional or
replacement satellites unless it believes there isrmidgtrated need and a sound business plan for suchtgapaci

The satellite industry is characterized by a relativiedlgtf cost base that allows significant revenue growth wi
relatively minimal increases in operating costs, pas@ityfor sales of satellite capacity. Thus, Telesata@a anticipates
that it can increase its revenue without proportiamaieases in operating expenses, allowing for margin eiqrarishe
fixed cost nature of the business, combined with cor@ia@evenue growth, other growth opportunities and eaéhgs
from integration synergies is expected to produce growth iratipg income and cash flow.

For 2008, Telesat Canada is focused on the executionlafdiisess plan to serve its customers and the markets in
which it participates, the sale of capacity on itstexgssatellites, the continuing execution of its integrapitam to achieve
operating efficiencies, and on the completion and lawhds three in-construction satellites (Nimiq 4, Teisl1N, and
Nimiq 5).

We regularly explore and evaluate possible strategicactinas and alliances. We also periodically engage in
discussions with satellite service providers, satetiémufacturers and others regarding such matters, whaghnolude
joint ventures and strategic relationships as wdlisiness combinations or the acquisition or dispositi@ssets. For
example, in connection with an agreement entered into bet®&8/L and ViaSat, Inc. (“ViaSat”) for the constrontby
SS/L for ViaSat of a high capacity broadband satetileed ViaSat-1 (the “ViaSat-1 Satellite”),
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on January 11, 2008, we entered into certain agreementfddse&9 to the financial statements), pursuant tolwe are
investing in the Canadian coverage portion of the VidSaatellite and granting to Telesat Canada an optiongracour
rights to the Canadian payload. In order to pursue cerfitirese opportunities, we will require additional fundserghcan
be no assurance that we will enter into additionalegratransactions or alliances, nor do we know if webe able to
obtain the necessary financing for these transactiarfavorable terms, if at all. In connection with Felesat Canada
transaction, Loral has agreed that, subject to cegtaiaptions described in Telesat Canada’s shareholdersmegitedor so
long as Loral has an interest in Telesat Canada,lihatlcompete in the business of leasing, sellingloeretise furnishing
fixed satellite service, broadcast satellite serviceunlio and video broadcast direct to home service isingponder
capacity in the C-band, Ku-band and Ka-band (includireath case extended band) frequencies and the business of
providing end-to-end data solutions on networks comprisedrfi terminals, space segment, and, where appropriate,
networking hubs.

Consolidated Operating Results
Please refer to Critical Accounting Matters set farttow in this section.

The following discussion of revenues and Adjusted EBITD/Aeptdl the results of our business segments for 2007,
2006 and 2005. The balance of the discussion relates towsolidated results unless otherwise noted. As prdyious
discussed, we emerged from Chapter 11 on November 21, 2005 anebafdesh-start accounting as of October 1, 2005. As
a result of the adoption of fresh-start accountingShecessor Registrant’s financial statements areongparable with the
Predecessor Registrant’s financial statements. Refeseo full-year 2005 financial information throughout th&ussion
combine the periods of January 1, 2005 to October 1, 200650&ibber 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005. Management
believes that presenting the financial information is thiay is the most relevant and useful method for making
comparisons.

The common definition of EBITDA is “Earnings Before Irgst, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization.” In
evaluating financial performance, we use revenues paicting income (loss) before depreciation and amtidiza
(including amortization of stock based compensation), gaicontribution of Loral Skynet and reorganization expedses
to bankruptcy (“Adjusted EBITDA”) as the measure segment’s profit or loss. Adjusted EBITDA is equivalenthe
common definition of EBITDA before: reorganization experdi@s to bankruptcy; gain on discharge of pre-petition
obligations and fresh-start adjustments; gain on contaibwif Loral Skynet; gain (loss) on investments and gorei
exchange contracts; loss on extinguishment of debt; otbamia (expense); equity in net income (losses) of a#siznd
minority interest.

Adjusted EBITDA allows us and investors to compare @arating results with that of competitors exclusive of
depreciation and amortization, interest and investmeotne, interest expense, reorganization expenses due to bapkrupt
other income (expense), net losses of affiliates andnity interest. Financial results of competitors ur mdustry have
significant variations that can result from timing opital expenditures, the amount of intangible assets regotioe
differences in assets’ lives, the timing and amountwedstments, the effects of other income (expense) hvérie typically
for non-recurring transactions not related to theyoimg business, and effects of investments not direclyaged. The use
of Adjusted EBITDA allows us and investors to compareatpgy results exclusive of these items. Competitomsiin
industry have significantly different capital structuréise use of Adjusted EBITDA maintains comparability of
performance by excluding interest expense. In addition, d@tiragpter 11, we recognized interest expense only on the
actual interest payments we made. During this periodlidvaot make any further interest payments on our delgatlans
after March 17, 2004, the date we repaid our secureddesikReorganization expenses due to bankruptcy were only
incurred during the period we were in Chapter 11. Thegerses have been excluded from Adjusted EBITDA to maintain
comparability with our results during periods in which weeweot in Chapter 11 and with the results of competitorgusi
similar measures.

We believe the use of Adjusted EBITDA along with U.S. GAffnancial measures enhances the understanding of
our operating results and is useful to us and investors ipamamg performance with competitors, estimating enterprise
value and making investment decisions. Adjusted EBITDA a3 lusee may not be comparable to similarly titled mpss
reported by competitors. We also use Adjusted EBITDA ttuata operating performance of our segments, to allocate
resources and capital to such segments, to measurenpenfa for incentive compensation programs and to eesfuiare
growth opportunities. Adjusted EBITDA should be used in conjonatiith U.S. GAAP
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financial measures and is not presented as an alteratcash flow from operations as a measure of quidity or as an
alternative to net income as an indicator of our opeggterformance.

Loral is organized into two segments: Satellite Manufaeg and Satellite Services. Our segment reporting data
includes unconsolidated affiliates that meet the replersggment criteria of SFAS No. 13lisclosures about Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Informatidrhe satellite services segment includes 100% of thetisesplorted by Telesat
Canada for the period from October 31, 2007 to December 31, RBGugh we analyze its revenue and expenses under
the satellite services segment, we eliminate thdtsesf Telesat Canada in our consolidated financi&stants, where we
report our 64% share of Telesat Canada’s results as agniy loss of affiliates.

The following reconciles Revenues and Adjusted EBITDA organsat basis to the information as reported in our
financial statements (in millions):

Revenues:
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
2005 to 2005 to
Year Ended December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 (a) 2005 2005
(in millions)
Satellite Manufacturing $ 814 $ 696.E $ 491z $ 161 $ 329t
Satellite Services 241.2 163.€ 151.5 37.C 114.F
Segment revenues 1,055.¢ 860.: 642.€ 198.¢ 444.C
Eliminations(1) (55.29) (63.C) (16.4) (1.6) (14.9)
Affiliate eliminations(2) (117.¢) — — — —
Revenues as reportes) $ 882E $ 797.2 $ 6264 3 1972  $ 429.2

Satellite Manufacturing segment revenue increased by $1i@muil 2007 from 2006 primarily due to new satellite
awards received during 2007 and 2006. Satellite Serviceeségavenue increased by $77 million in 2007 from 2006
primarily due to the inclusion of Telesat Canada’s raedor the period October 31, 2007 to December 31, 2007.

Satellite Manufacturing segment revenue increased by $208miil 2006 from 2005 primarily due to new satellite

awards received during 2006 and 2005. Satellite Serviceseségavenue increased by $12 million in 2006 from 2005 due
primarily to the receipt of a customer termination pagtrof $15 million in 2006.

Adjusted EBITDA:

For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
2005 to 2005 to
Year Ended December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 (a) 2005 2005
(in millions)
Satellite Manufacturing $ 345 $ 65¢ $ 27C $ 116 $ 15.2
Satellite Services 118.4 68.C 51.2 11.t 39.8
Corporate expenses) (37.9) (26.8) (28.3) (11.0) (17.3)
Segment Adjusted EBITDA before

eliminations 115.C 107.1 50.C 12.2 37.7
Eliminations(1) (6.2) (6.0) (13.5) (1.2 (12.3

Affiliate eliminations(2) (65.3) — — — —

Adjusted EBITDA $ 43.6 $ 101.1 $ 36.E $ 11.1 $ 25.4




Satellite Manufacturing segment Adjusted EBITDA decreasec$Bibn in 2007 from 2006 as a result of
transponder rights valued at $19 million received in 2006alat the Satmex settlement agreement (see Notth8 to
financial statements), $9 million for settlementafnch vehicle litigation in 2006, increased research andapeaent
expenses of $16 million in 2007, forward loss recognition of $1dbmfor certain satellite programs
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awarded during 2007 and increased marketing expenses of $hnml2007, partially offset by $20 million of margin
increases from additional sales in 2007 and a $12 milidnction of warranty expenses. Satellite Servicgmeat

Adjusted EBITDA increased by $50 million in 2007 from 2006 prilpaue to the inclusion of Telesat Canada’s operating
results for the period October 31, 2007 to December 31, 200@Fokate expenses increased $11 million in 2007 from 2006
primarily due to legal costs of $7.1 million in connectionvéhareholders and noteholders lawsuits and severaris®tos
$7.0 million (see Note 17 to the financial statements).

Satellite Manufacturing segment Adjusted EBITDA increg&2®@ million in 2006 from 2005 as a result of
transponder rights valued at $19 million received in 2006aekat the Satmex settlement agreement, $9 million for
settlement of launch vehicle litigation in 2006, a $diomlimprovement in warranty expenses and margin increhsefo
higher 2006 sales. Satellite Services segment AdjustedEBIicreased by $17 million in 2006 from 2005 primarily due
to the increase in sales and lower operating costs.

Reconciliation of Adjusted EBITDA to Net (Loss) Incane:

For the
For the Period Period
October 2, January 1,
2005 to 2005 to
Year Ended December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 (a) 2005 2005
(in millions)
Adjusted EBITD# $ 43¢ $ 101.1 $ 36.5 $ 11.1 $ 254
Depreciation and amortization (103.9) (71.3) (77.9 (16.0) (61.3)
Gain on contribution of Loral Skynet) 104.¢ — — — —
Reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy — — (31.2) — (31.2)
Operating income (loss) from continuing operati 45.2 29.8 (72.0) (4.9 (67.2)
Gain on discharge of pre-petition obligations ant

fresh-start adjustments) — — 1,101.5 — 1,101.5
Interest and investment income 39.3 315 10.E 4.1 6.4
Interest expense (2.3 (23.4) (21.€) (4.4 17.2)
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange contracts 89.4 (5.8) — — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt (16.2) — — — —
Other income (expense) 2.4 (2.0 (1.2 0.2 (0.9
Income tax (provision) benefit (83.5) (20.8) 9.1 (1.8 10.¢
Equity losses in affiliates (21.4) (7.2) (8.2 (5.9 (2.8
Minority interest (23.2) (24.8) (2.6) (2.7) 0.1
Income (loss) from continuing operations 29.7 (22.7) 1,015.¢ (15.9 1,030.¢
Income from discontinued operations, net of tax — — 14.C — 14.C
Net income (los $ 297 $ (227 $ 1,029. $ (15.9) $ 1,044.¢

(&) The combination of the period January 1, 2005 to Octoh20d5 and the period October 2, 2005 to December 31,
2005 represents non-GAAP financial information. Managerelitves that presenting the financial information in
this way is the most relevant and useful method for ngagomparisons.

(1) Represents the elimination of intercompany salesraactompany Adjusted EBITDA, primarily for satellitesder
construction by SS/L for wholly owned subsidiaries.

(2) Represents the elimination of amounts attributableetesat Canada whose results are reported in our matsdl
statement of operations as equity in net loss ofatk.

(3) Includes revenues from affiliates of $22.0 million, $1rhiBion, $4.1 million and $10.0 million for the years edde
December 31, 2007 and 2006, for the period October 2, 2005&wiber 31, 2005 and for the period January 1,
2005 to October 1, 2005, respectively.

(4) Represents corporate expenses incurred in support of oatioperand for the years ended December 31, 2007 and



2006 and the period October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005 inclu@anifion, $1.2 million and $3.9 million,
respectively, of continuing expenses for bankruptcy relatgtens, which after the adoption of fresh-start acaognt
are classified as corporate general and administretjenses.
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(5) In connection with the Telesat Canada transaction, whagedlon October 31, 2007, we recognized a gain on the
contribution of substantially all of the assets aratee liabilities of Loral Skynet to Telesat Canadse(slote 8 to
the financial statements).

(6) In connection with our emergence from Chapter 11 anddmptin of fresh-start accounting on OctolheP005, we
recognized a gain on discharge of pre-petition obligationgrash-start adjustments of $1.101 billion, related
interest expense of $13.2 million and a tax benefit of $i#libn, each of which is reflected separately in our
statement of operations (see Note 4 to the finanitdraents).

2007 Compared with 2006 and 2006 Compared with 2005 (a)
The following compares our consolidated results for 20006 2nd 2005 as presented in our financial statements:
(&) The combination of the period January 1, 2005 to Octok20d5 and the period October 2, 2005 to December 31,
2005 represents non-GAAP financial information. Managerelitves that presenting the financial information in

this way is the most relevant and useful method for ngagomparisons.

Revenues from Satellite Manufacturing

% Increase

(Decrease)
Year Ended 2007 2006
December 31, VS. VS.
2005
2007 2006 @) 2006 2005

(in millions)

Revenues from Satellite Manufacturing $ 814 $ 697 $ 491 17% 42%
)

Eliminations (53) (60) (112) (12% 445Y%
Revenues from Satellite Manufacturing as reported $ 761 $ 637 $ 480 20% 33%

Revenues from Satellite Manufacturing before eliminatiotreased $117 million for 2007 as compared to 20086,
primarily as a result of $155 million of revenue from $721iamilof new orders received in 2007 and $236 million of
increased revenue from $1 billion of new orders receine2006, partially offset by $274 million of reduced revenue from
programs completed or nearing completion which were awandearlier years. Eliminations consist primarily efenues
recorded until October 31, 2007 for the construction of @&elkiN, a satellite being manufactured by SS/L foelft
Services. As a result, revenues from Satellite Manufig as reported increased $124 million in 2007 as compared t
2006.

Revenues from Satellite Manufacturing before eliminatioreased $206 million for 2006 as compared to 2005,
primarily as a result of $158 million of revenue from nedeos received in 2006 and $194 million of increased revenue
from $824 million of new orders received in 2005, partiaffget by $146 million of reduced revenue from programs
completed or nearing completion which were awarded ireegears. Eliminations consist primarily of reventasthe
construction of Telstar 11N, a satellite under consindby SS/L for Satellite Services. As a result, nexs from Satellite
Manufacturing as reported increased $157 million in 20@®empared to 2005.

Revenues from Satellite Services

% Increase

(Decrease)
Year Ended 2007 2006
December 31, VS. VS.
2005
2007 2006 (a) 2006 2005

(in millions)

Revenues from Satellite Services before specific items $ 126 $ 149 $ 147 17) 2%



Customer termination payment
Cash basis customer payments

Eliminations

Revenues from Satellite Services as reported

— 15 —
?3) — 5

) ®) ©)

$121 $ 161 $ 147
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Revenues from Satellite Services before specific igeeseased $23 million compared to 2006. This reduction is
driven by reduced revenues of $26 million due to the coninitbatf Loral Skynet to Telesat Canada on October 31, 2007,
$8 million resulting from reduced revenue in 2007 due to Boetigtontinuation of service on our Estrela do Sul steell
in late 2006, and reduced revenues of $4 million as a dghle restructuring of the network services businetstén2006.
These reductions were offset by higher utilization of §lllion, including $2 million on the Satmex 6 transpondees
were added to the fleet in the fourth quarter of 2006 andilién of increased usage of our network services praduct
Revenues from Satellite Services as reported in 2007 awee by $15 million as a result of Boeing’s contract teation
payment in 2006 (see Note 7 to the financial statemeantsby $3 million due to timing of cash revenue recognition.
Eliminations primarily consist of revenues from legsiransponder capacity to Satellite Manufacturinga Assult,
Revenues from Satellite Services as reported decreagzbyillion in 2007 as compared to 2006.

Revenues from Satellite Services before specific itagreased $2 million in 2006 as compared to 2005, primarily
from increased volume from fixed satellite service$®Million and increased network services business of $omill
offset by a decrease due to contract terminations inanketservices and professional services of $4 milliod $4 million,
respectively. Revenues also decreased $2 million due &ath of our business television service and amétienal
gateway. Revenues from Satellite Services as repiorteehsed as a result of the receipt of a customeiriation payment
of $15 million in connection with the termination of seed@n our Estrela do Sul satellite, partially offsetdwenue
associated with a payment made by a cash basis custbstemillion in 2005. Eliminations primarily consist r@venues
from leasing transponder capacity to Satellite ManufagjuAs a result, Revenues from Satellite Servisaeported
increased $14 million in 2006 as compared to 2005.

Cost of Satellite Manufacturing

% Increase

(Decrease)
2007 2006
Year Ended December 31, VS. VS.
2005
2007 2006 () 2006 2005
(in millions)
Cost of Satellite Manufacturing includes:
Cost of Satellite Manufacturing before specific identifeharges $ 657 $ 537 $ 394 23% 39%
Depreciation and amortization 36 23 15 56% 55%
Transponder rights provided to SS/L in the Satmex segtiem
agreement — (19) —
)
Accrued warranty obligations (4) 8 17 (53%
)
Provisions for inventory obsolescence — 2 4 (54%
Cost of Satellite Manufacturing $ 689 $ 551 $ 430 25% 28%
Cost of Satellite Manufacturing as a % of Satellite Maoufring
revenues as reported 90% 87% 90U

Cost of Satellite Manufacturing as reported for 2007 irsgedy $138 million over 2006. Cost of Satellite
Manufacturing before specific charges increased by $12milThis increase is primarily due to $106 million ofreesed
costs resulting from additional revenue during the year @mebfd loss recognition of $14 million for certain détte
programs awarded during 2007. Included in 2006 is a reductimosbbf $19 million related to transponder rights provided
to SS/L by the Satmex settlement agreement. Warexqignses improved $12 million based upon a resolution ofrcerta
warranty obligations for less than previously estimatedusnts. Depreciation and amortization expense increased by
$10 million as a result of additional amortization of falue adjustments in connection with the adoption ohfetart
accounting and $3 million from amortization of restricstock units awarded during 2007.

Cost of Satellite Manufacturing as reported for 2006 irsgedy $121 million over 2005. Cost of Satellite
Manufacturing before specific charges increased by $14Bmiprimarily as a result of the increase in salestC
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of Satellite Manufacturing also increased as a restiligbfer depreciation and amortization expense of $8amifirimarily
resulting from the net effect of the amortizatiorfaof value adjustments in connection with the adoptiomesi-start
accounting on October 1, 2005. These increases were ljfsieicreases of $19 million related to transponder rights
provided to SS/L by the Satmex settlement agreement amill&$ of warranty expenses based upon an analysis of the
status of satellites in-orbit.

Cost of Satellite Services

% Increase

(Decrease)
Year Ended 2007 2006
December 31, VS. VS.
2005
_ 2007 2006 (a) 2006 2005
(in millions)
Cost of Satellite Services includes:
) )
Cost of Satellite Services before specific identifiedrgha $ 42 $ 53 $ 59 (21% (10%
) )
Depreciation and amortization 44 46 61 (3% (25%
) )
Cost of Satellite Services $ 86 $ 99 $ 12C (13% (18%
Cost of Satellite Services as a % of Satellite $es/revenues as
reported 71% 61% 82%

Cost of Satellite Services was $86 million and $99 nnilfiar the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively. Cost of Satellite Services before sppeciéntified charges decreased $11 million in 2007 as compagfDéo
primarily as a result of the contribution of Loral SkiyteeTelesat Canada on October 31, 2007. In addition, in 2@9& th
was a $2 million reduction in personnel costs from 2006 al@rer headcount.

Cost of Satellite Services was $99 million and $120 milfar the years ended December 31, 2006 and 2005,
respectively. Cost of Satellite Services before speciéntified charges decreased $6 million in 2006 as compagaDto
primarily due to ground segment support costs declining by fiémiower employee related expenses of $2 million and
lower insurance premiums on our satellite fleet ameichird party capacity costs totaling $2 million. Taelecreases
were partially offset by a charge of $1 million relatedhi® buyout of a customer lease and a charge of $1 midlated to
the restructuring of network services global operatiDegreciation and amortization expense decreased by $15nnmillio
2006 as compared to 2005, primarily resulting from the rfettedf the fair value adjustments in connection with the
adoption of fresh-start accounting on October 1, 2005. Deficecend amortization for 2006 includes reduced charges of
depreciation and amortization of $12 million for fixed assetd a $3 million credit for amortization of intanggbfgimarily
resulting from the adoption of fresh-start accounting.

Selling, General and Administrative Expenses

% Increase

(Decrease)
2007 2006
Year Ended December 31, VS. VS.
2005
2007 2006 () 2006 2005
(in millions)
Selling, general and administrative expenses includes:
Selling, general and administrative expenses befordfispgtarges $ 133 $ 118 $ 108 12% 9%
Litigation costs 11 6 4 90% 50%
Stock based compensation 23 2 —
Continuing expenses for bankruptcy related matters — 1 4

Selling, general and administrative expenses as reported $ 167 $ 127 $ 116



% of revenues as reported 19% 16% 19% 31% U
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Selling, general and administrative expenses as repoeiesi$167 million and $127 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively. Selling, genetadministrative expenses before specific charges iredeas
by $15 million as compared to 2006, primarily due to: incre&®/L costs of $16 million for research and development of
payload product and satellite control improvements, $komifor marketing related expenses due to a higher vohfrbil
opportunities in the market place and $2 million for o#grenses and increased corporate costs of $7 millioeerance
related to personnel reductions. These cost increasegastially offset by decreases at Satellite Servaé&2 million in
marketing related expenses, $3 million reversal of badatebbther costs and $9 million as a result of theribwiton of
Loral Skynet to Telesat Canada on October 31, 2007.n0nedse in litigation costs was primarily a result ofoes
shareholder and noteholders suits. Stock-based comipenagpense of $23 million in 2007 included a charge of $6 millio
attributable to acceleration of options in connectigh e Telesat Canada transaction and a charge of $8nralii a
result of the approval of stock option plan amendmerttseastockholders meeting on May 22, 2007 (see Note 13 to the
financial statements). Continuing expenses for bankruptayed matters decreased $1 million as a result of ralnim
professional fees incurred in 2007 as compared to 2006.

Selling, general and administrative expenses as repoeiesi$127 million and $116 million for the years ended
December 31, 2006 and 2005, respectively. Selling, genetadministrative expenses before specific charges iredeas
by $10 million as compared to 2005, primarily due to: incid&®/L costs of $8 million for research and developmedt a
$2 million for rent as a result of the increased volupagtially offset by lower bid and proposal costs of $2iomj
increased costs at Satellite Services for bad debt sgpdr$2 million, primarily because of recoveries of $2iomlin 2005.
The increase in litigation costs was primarily a restivarious shareholder suits. Stock-based compensateased by
$2 million due to initial vesting stock-based compensatisards that were granted in January 2006. Expenses for
bankruptcy related matters decreased $3 million as & mfsulb3 million reimbursement in 2006 related to théesetint of
professional fees previously paid.

Gain on Contribution of Loral Skynet to Telesat Canada

Represents the gain on the contribution of substan&liiyf the assets and related liabilities of Lds&ynet to
Telesat Canada on October 31, 2007, in connection with theat @anada transaction, as follows (in millions):

Consideration received for the contribution of Loral Skyio Telesat Holdco:

Cash and marketable securities $ 61t
Fair value of equity in Telesat Holdco 670.5
Total consideration 732.C
Book value of contributed net assets of Loral Skynet 440.5
Consideration in excess of book value $ 291.t
Gain recognized $ 104.¢

The consideration we received for the contribution oftuttially all of Loral Skynet's assets and liab#igiwas
$292 million greater than the carrying value of thosetasand liabilities. In accordance with EITF 01-2, Iptetations of
APB Opinion No. 29, we recognized a gain of $105 million,espnting the gain attributable to PSP’s economic isttére
the contributed assets and liabilities of Loral Skyhstugh its 36% ownership interest in Telesat Canadal ididave a
significant continuing interest in Telesat Canada amdocdy recognize a gain to the extent of PSP’s inténetbie
contributed assets of Loral Skynet.

Gain on Litigation Settlement

Represents a $9 million recovery of launch vehicle depos2806 in connection with a claim against a supplier for
the wrongful termination of launch service agreements.
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Reorganization Expenses Due to Bankruptcy

Year Ended
December 31,
2005
2007 2006 (a)
(in millions)
Reorganization Expenses Due to Bankruptcy $— $— $ 31

Reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy decreased $31 foillibe year ended December 31, 2006 as
compared to 2005 as a result of the adoption of freshastemtinting on October 1, 2005. After the adoption of fstatt
accounting, continuing expenses related to the remaliginkruptcy matters are recorded in general and administrative
expenses.

Gain on Discharge of Pre-petition Obligations and Freshtart Adjustments
As a result of our emergence from Chapter 11 and adopéslg-fitart accounting, we recognized a gain of
$1.101 billion, excluding interest expense of $13 million atekaenefit of $15 million, in 2005 (see Note 4 to therfoial

statements).

Interest and Investment Income

Year Ended
December 31,
2005
2007 2006 (@)
(in millions)
Interest and investment income $ 39 $ 32 $ 11

Interest and investment income increased $7 milliothfe year ended December 31, 2007 as compared to 2006
primarily due to higher cash balances as a result ofviege293 million of proceeds from our February 27, 2007 prede
stock financing and higher short-term interest rat@90v over 2006. This includes increases of $4 million diégtoer
cash balances and short-term interest rates and aasprae&$4 million primarily due to the partial sale of boldings in
Globalstar Inc. common stock. These increases wetialpjaoffset by lower interest income on vendor finargeand
orbital incentives of $1 million.

The interest income increase of $21 million for the yraled December 31, 2006 as compared to 2005, is primarily
due to higher cash balances and higher short-termegtt@tes in 2006 over 2005. This includes increases of $i1&mil
due to higher cash balances and short-term intetestaad an increase of $8 million primarily due to théigdesale of our
holdings in Globalstar Inc. These increases were gdartitibet by lower SS/L interest income on vendor fitiag and
orbital incentives of $1 million.

Interest Expense

Year Ended
December 31,
2005
2007 2006 ()

(in millions)
Interest cost before capitalized interest $ 12 $ 26 $ 9
Interest expense in connection with our Plan of Reorgarnizatio — — 13
Capitalized interest (10) (3) —

Interest expense $ 2 $ 23 $ 22




Interest cost before capitalized interest decreased by Bighrfor the year ended December 31, 2007 as compared
to 2006, primarily due to reduced interest expense of $9 milliating to warranty liabilities. In addition, interest expe
was lower in 2007 by $5 million due to the early extinguishmetiteof oral Skynet 14% senior secured notes and the
repayment of the Valley National Bank loan in connectigth the Telesat Canada transaction (see Note 1@ tfoémncial
statements). Capitalized interest increased by $tomiflue to higher construction in process balances prinfarithe
Telstar 11N satellite.

Interest cost before capitalized interest increased $lidnmor the year ended December 31, 2006 as compared to
2005, primarily due to $14 million of increased interest expeasognized on the Loral Skynet 14% senior secured notes
issued in connection with our Plan of Reorganization abatellite Manufacturing
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interest accrual of $4 million related to warranty gations. In 2005, we incurred $13 million of interest expeelksting to
payments to pre-petition creditors in connection withRlan of Reorganization. Capitalized interest increas&a tmillion
due to higher construction in process balances.

Gain on Foreign Exchange Contracts

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded a neif@H9 million reflecting the change in the fair value
of the forward contracts and currency basis swap ehtete by Loral Skynet relating to the Telesat Canada actios.
The net gain on these transactions, which was réavben the instruments were contributed to Telesat ldabdc
October 23, 2007, has been recognized in the statementrafiops and avoided a corresponding increase in the US dolla
purchase price equivalent that would have been paid to BCEefesat Canada (see Notes 8 and 16 to the financial
statements).

Loss on Extinguishment of Debt

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded a ¢biatige early extinguishment of the Loral Skynet
14% senior secured notes, which is comprised of a $1@mikdemption premium and a $4 million write-off of deferred
financing costs.

Other Income (Expense)

Other income increased $4 million, primarily due toréegnition of a $4 million deferred gain realized in 2007 in
connection with the sale of an orbital slot in 2006r(pared to $1 million recognized in 2006) and the write-offrof
investment of $3 million in the fourth quarter of 2006, pdstiaffset by losses on foreign currency transactiotiser than
the foreign exchange contracts related to the Telesatdaaransaction).

Income Tax (Provision) Benefit

During 2007, 2006 and 2005, we continued to maintain a 100% val@dibovance against our net deferred tax
assets. However, upon emergence from bankruptcy in 2005, wee@\wrir valuation allowance relating to $2.0 million of
deferred tax assets for AMT credit carryforwards. ABefember 31, 2007, we had valuation allowances totaling
$241.2 million, which included a balance of $224.5 milliomtial to Old Loral periods preceding our adoption of
fresh-start accounting on October 1, 2005. We will cargito maintain the valuation allowance until sufficierdiipee
evidence exists to support its reversal. If, in the fytweewere to determine that we will be able to readilt or a portion of
the benefit from our deferred tax assets, any redutititime valuation allowance existing as of October 1, 2003irst
reduce goodwill, then other intangible assets withexogss treated as an increase to paid-in-capitaih@af07, we
utilized the benefits from $35.1 million of deferred tasets from Old Loral to reduce our current tax liapillthe
realization of this benefit created an excess valuatiowance of $35.1 million, the reversal of which wasareled as a
reduction to goodwill.

Our income tax provision and benefit can be summarigddllaws: (i) for 2007, we recorded a current tax priovis
of $51.3 million, including a provision of $17.1 million tacrease our liability for uncertain tax positions, ardeferred tax
provision of $32.2 million, resulting in a total provisioh$83.5 million on pre-tax income of $157.8 million; (iby 2006,
we recorded a current tax provision of $11.8 million art#ferred tax provision of $9.1 million, resulting in &ko
provision of $20.9 million on pre-tax income of $30.1 milti@nd (iii) for 2005, we recorded a current tax provigibn
$7.0 million and a deferred tax benefit of $16.1 million, résglin a net benefit of $9.1 million on pre-tax incoofe
$1.017 billion, which included a gain on discharge of pre-petdldigations and fresh-start adjustments of $1.101 billion.

The increase to our current provision for 2007 as coetpt® 2006 and 2005 was attributable to the higher amount
of taxable income in the current year after deductingabawable tax NOLs based upon the restrictions imposed by
Section 382 of the Internal Revenue Code and the additiamasiam required for uncertain tax positions. For 2007, we
projected federal tax income of approximately $71 millioeradtaiming our allowable deduction for tax NOLs of
$355 million, which included the tax gain of $308 million frore ttontribution of substantially all of the Loral Skynet
assets and related liabilities to Telesat Canadatengain of $89 million on the forward contracts and cuydrasis swap
entered into by Loral Skynet relating to the Telesat Catradaaction.
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The deferred income tax provision for 2007 of $32.2 millielated primarily to (i) a provision of $35.1 million on
current year income to the extent the taxes imposedamiscome were reduced by deferred tax benefits fronLQtal
(as discussed above, the utilization of these deferrdoktzefits created an excess valuation allowance of $38idnpthe
reversal of which was recorded as a reduction to gobdyiij a provision of $2.2 million for the decreaseour deferred
tax asset for federal and state AMT credits (whicHuslas an increase to AMT credits of $2.2 million upon adopifon
FIN 48), (iii) an additional valuation allowance of $3.0limn required against a net deferred tax asset cregied we
reduced the deferred tax credits in accumulated other coermigk income by $3.0 million, offset by (iv) a benefit
$9.0 million relating to current activity.

The deferred income tax provision for 2006 of $9.1 millielated to (i) a provision of $10.4 million on current year
income to the extent the taxes imposed on such incomeregueed by deferred tax benefits from Old Loral and the
utilization of these deferred tax benefits created anssxealuation allowance of $10.4 million, the reversatioich was
recorded as a reduction to goodwill, (ii) offset by a béméf$1.3 million for the increase to our deferred taset for
additional federal and state AMT credits.

During 2006, we also recorded a deferred tax provision oD$a8lion in accumulated other comprehensive income
related primarily to our adoption of Statement of Fiman&ccounting Standards No. 13Bmployers’ Accounting for
Defined Benefit Pension and Other Postretirement P(EBIEAS 158”) (see Note 12), which created an excess vaduat
allowance of $26.0 million that was reversed as a redutdignodwill.

For 2005, in connection with our emergence from bankrugiidy] oral realized cancellation of debt income
(“COD”) on its federal income tax return of approximgt®440 million. COD realized while in bankruptcy is excluded
from federal taxable income. We were required to rededeaia of our tax attributes, and to the extent sufficatributes
were not available on a separate company basis, régeitax basis in our assets, by an amount equal to thee2€lided
by Old Loral from its taxable income. This adjustmestuied in a reduction of approximately $160 million to our lete
tax assets and the related valuation allowance. Aéspad of our fresh-start accounting and plan of reorgaaivat
adjustments, we recognized a net income tax benefit of $iillion, which includes a net deferred tax benefit of
$16.5 million. See Notes 4 and 12 to the financial staté&sne

See Critical Accounting Matters FFaxationbelow for discussion of our accounting method for inedaxes.

Equity in Net Losses of Affiliates

Year Ended

December 31,
2007 2006 2005 (a)

(in millions)
Telesat Canada $ (18 $ — $ —
XTAR (10.6) (7.4) (8.1)
Other (9.0) 0.2 (0.1)

$ (214 $ (7.2 $ (8.2

On October 31, 2007, Loral and its Canadian Partner, PSP, thaaugwly-formed joint venture, completed the
acquisition of Telesat Canada from BCE. In connectioh thits acquisition, Loral transferred substantiallyohlihe assets
and related liabilities of Loral Skynet to Telesan&da. Loral holds a 64% economic interest and &/ 3346 voting interest
in Telesat Holdco, the ultimate parent company of thatierg new entity. Loral accounts for this investmesing the
equity method of accounting.

47




Summary financial information for Telesat Canadattier period October 31, 2007 to December 31, 2007 and as of
December 31, 2007 follows (in millions):

For the Period

October 31,
2007
to December 31,
2007
Statement of Operations Data:

Revenues $ 117.¢
Operating expenses (93.7)
Operating income 24.1
Net loss (1.3

December 31, 2007

Balance Sheet Data:

Current assets $ 143.7
Total assets 5,610.(
Current liabilities 229.t
Total liabilities 4,156.%
Redeemable preferred stock 143.1
Shareholders’ equity 1,310.2

As described in Note 8 to the financial statementsalloequity in net loss of Telesat Canada is based on our
proportionate share of their results in accordance with GA2\P and in U.S. dollars. In determining our equity ibloss
of Telesat Canada, Telesat Canada’s net loss has tmgortipnately adjusted to exclude the amortization ofdirevalue
adjustments applicable to its acquisition of the Lorangkyssets and liabilities. Our equity in net los§elésat Canada
also reflects the elimination of our profit, to theasitof our beneficial interest, on satellites wecestructing for them.

The increase in equity losses in XTAR, L.L.C. ("XTARYUr 56% owned joint venture (see Note 8 to the firsnci
statements) in 2007 as compared to 2006, represents ouoERa®R losses incurred in connection with its operations
Other equity losses in affiliates for 2007 include $3 millad cash distributions received from Globalstar de Mefoc
which our investment balance has been written dowermand a loss of $11 million recognized in connectioh it
agreement to sell our Globalstar investment partieistBrazil.

Minority Interest

Loral Skynet’s Series A preferred stock is reflectedhasority interest on our consolidated balance sheef a
December 31, 2006. Dividend expense of $23.2 million, $24.8 méioh$2.7 million for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 and for the period October 2 to December 31, 2Q8ctresly, is reflected as minority interest on our
consolidated statement of operations. On November 5, 206al, Skynet redeemed all issued and outstanding shares of this
preferred stock in connection with the completion of theJal Canada transaction (see Note 13 to the finandmingats).

Minority interest increased $22 million for 2006 as comg&oe2005, as a result of a full year of dividend expense in

2006 as compared to 2005 dividend expense from November 21, 200%hehemal Skynet Series A preferred stock was
issued in connection with our Plan of Reorganization (s#e Blto the financial statements).
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Backlog

Backlog as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, was as follows (ioma)t

2007 2006
Satellite Manufacturing $ 1,02t $ 1,11¢
Satellite Services 5,251 355

Total backlog before eliminations 6,27¢ 1,473
Satellite Manufacturing eliminations — (11€)
Satellite Services eliminations (5,257) (10)

Total backlog $ 1,02¢ $ 1,347

It is expected that 74% of satellite manufacturing backlagf Becember 31, 2007 will be recognized as revenue
during 2008.

Telesat Canada backlog at December 31, 2007 was approxi®@telyillion, of which approximately 10% will be
recognized as revenue during 2008, assuming no significagtidetze launch of the Nimiq 4 satellite. Included in bagkl
as of December 31, 2007 are contracts covering the eapeeity of the Nimig 4 and Nimiq 5 satellites, whickrdnheen
leased for the life of the satellites. These comdraontain provisions such that the customers, assumimggpective
satellites are successfully and timely launched aa@perating nominally, may only terminate their contg &y paying
Telesat Canada the present value of the entire coedrantounts that would have been due for the remaining kifeeo
satellite.

Telesat Canada has received approximately $315.7 million ofhcesfwrepayments, including approximately
$28.1 million relating to satellites under constructionhéf launch of a satellite under construction wereit@fa customer
were to terminate its contract with Telesat Canadarasult of a substantial delay in the launch of thellda, Telesat
Canada would be obligated to return the customer prepayaggiisable to such satellite. Such repayment obligations
would be funded by insurance proceeds (if any), cash on harat &Bod/owing availability under the revolving credit
facility.

Critical Accounting Matters

The preparation of financial statements in conformithw.S. GAAP requires us to make estimates and
assumptions that affect the reported amounts of agegi&ahilities and disclosure of contingent assetsleilities at the
date of the financial statements and the amountvehtes and expenses reported for the period. Actual resultsdiffer
from estimates.

Fresh-Start Accounting

In connection with our emergence from Chapter 11, we ad@y@satstart accounting as of October 1, 2005, which
required all of our assets and liabilities to be statesstimated fair value (see Note 4 to the finanti@éments).
Significant judgment was exercised by management in estigniie fair values.

Revenue recognition

Most of our Satellite Manufacturing revenue is assodiaii¢gh long-term fixed-price contracts. Revenue and profit
from satellite sales under these long-term cont@etsecognized using the cost-to-cost percentage of coompieethod,
which requires significant estimates. We use this metiecduse reasonably dependable estimates can be maderbased
historical experience and various other assumptions thbehesed to be reasonable under the circumstancese Thes
estimates include forecasts of costs and schedulesaésty contract revenue related to contract perforeéncluding
estimated amounts for penalties, performance incerdivé®rbital incentives that will be received as thelsiz performs
on orbit) and the potential for component obsolescencerinection with long-term procurements. These estinaates
assessed continually during the term of the contracteisions are reflected when the conditions beconogviin
Provisions for losses on contracts are recorded wsignages determine that a loss will be incurred oordract at
completion. Under firm fixed-price contracts, work penfied and products shipped are paid for at a fixed price without



adjustment for actual costs incurred in connection wighcontract; accordingly, favorable changes in estsriata period
will
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result in additional revenue and profit, and unfavorablegbsin estimates will result in a reduction of revenuepaofit
or the recording of a loss that will be borne solghus.

Billed receivables, vendor financing and long-term receivables

We are required to estimate the collectibility of oilled receivables, vendor financing and long-term rexdaies. A
considerable amount of judgment is required in assedsineptlectibility of these receivables, including therent
creditworthiness of each customer and related agititegbast due balances. Charges for (recoveries of) sl réeorded
to the income statement on billed receivables foydaes ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the periods October 2
2005 to December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 to December 31, 2@0$(2v¢) million, $0.3 million, $1.0 million and
$(2.9) million, respectively. At December 31, 2007 and 200&dbikceivables were net of allowances for doubtful
accounts of $0.2 million and $1.6 million, respectively. &/aluate specific accounts when we become awarsitfaion
where a customer may not be able to meet its finbabigations due to a deterioration of its financiahdition, credit
ratings or bankruptcy. The reserve requirements are loasthe best facts available to us and are re-evalpetautiically.

Inventories

Inventories are reviewed for estimated obsolescenaausable items and, if appropriate, are written dawthe net
realizable value based upon assumptions about future demanthdeed conditions. If actual future demand or market
conditions are less favorable than those we projdditianal inventory write-downs may be required. Thesecansidered
permanent adjustments to the cost basis of the inyer@@barges for inventory obsolescence recorded to toen@ac
statement for the year ended December 31, 2007 wereifitsigt. Charges for inventory obsolescence recorddueto t
income statement for the year ended December 31, 2@0pettod October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005, and the period
January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005 were $1.7 million, $1.5 mal $2.1 million, respectively.

Evaluation of Investments in Affiliates for Impairment

The carrying values of our investments in affiliatesr@viewed for impairment in accordance with Accounting
Principles Board (“APB”) Opinion No. 1&quity Method of Accounting for Investments in Common Sy&ekmonitor our
equity method investments for factors indicating othanttemporary impairment. An impairment loss would be razegn
when there has been a loss in value of the affilfaeis other than temporary.

Taxation

Management has concluded that, as of December 31, 2007,iipa@phad a material weakness with respect to
accounting for and disclosure of income taxes. Spedifidchle Company did not maintain adequate processes and a
sufficient number of technically qualified personnel tolfete the timely resolution of issues associated wigh th
Company'’s income tax closing process primarily relatmthose issues attributable to the Telesat Canausatton. As a
result of this material weakness, management has coddivatethe Company’s internal control over financialoréing as
of December 31, 2007 was not effective based on the aritdriternal Control — Integrated FrameworRdditional
review, evaluation and oversight have been undertakenstare that our consolidated financial statements pvepared in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principlésas a result, our chief executive officer and chief iren
officer have concluded that the consolidated financi&éstants in this Form 10-K present fairly, in all mate@spects,
our financial position, results of operations and daslas for the periods presented. The Company is evalyagveral
remedial steps to improve controls surrounding itemne tax closing process, including enhancing the techesalirces
in the income tax accounting function and conducting aruatiah of organizational processes and structure to fgemtd
implement the appropriate solutions regarding its inctarelosing process including retaining additional extern
resources.

New Loral, as a Delaware company, is subject to fédral, state and local income taxation on its worldwide
income. Prior to the Effective Date, Old Loral, @B8eamuda company, was subject to U.S. taxation onraxome that was
effectively connected with the conduct of a U.S. tradeusiness as well as a withholding tax on dividends aedeisit
received from its U.S. subsidiaries. Our U.S. subsiiacontinue to be subject to
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U.S. taxation on their worldwide income and foreign taxesestain income from sources outside the United States. O
foreign subsidiaries are subject to taxation in locasglictions.

We use the liability method in accounting for taxes whgrincome taxes are recognized during the year in which
transactions are recorded in the financial statemBrtferred taxes reflect the future tax effect of termyaldferences
between the carrying amount of assets and liabiltieinancial and income tax reporting and are rassss by applying
statutory tax rates in effect for the year during Whfee differences are expected to reverse. We assesscoverability of
our deferred tax assets and, based upon this analysis, rea@tdton allowance against the deferred tax assé¢teto
extent recoverability does not satisfy the “more likblgn not” recognition criteria in SFAS 109. Based upon tadyais,
we concluded during the fourth quarter of 2002 that, due to inguffipositive evidence substantiating recoverability, a
100% valuation allowance should be established for our fetee tax assets. As of December 31, 2007, we had gross
deferred tax assets of approximately $369.5 million, whicanndffset by our deferred tax liabilities of $124.9 milleomd
our valuation allowance of $241.2 million, resulted in edeferred tax asset of $3.4 million on our consolidatéahica
sheet.

For 2007, we continued to maintain the 100% valuation alloeagainst our net deferred tax assets decreasing the
valuation allowance at December 31, 2006 of $304.9 million by $68lidn to a balance of $241.2 million at December 31,
2007, which included $224.5 million relating to the opening balah@xctober 1, 2005. We will maintain the valuation
allowance until sufficient positive evidence existsupport its reversal. If, in the future, we were to detee that we will
be able to realize all or a portion of the benebtrf our deferred tax assets, any reduction to the vatuatiowance as of
October 1, 2005 will first reduce goodwill, then other intalegéssets with any excess treated as an increase to
paid-in-capital. During 2007, we reversed $35.1 millionxafess valuation allowance and $6.8 million of deferratesax
liabilities relating to the balance as of Octobe2d05, which were recorded as reductions to goodwill.

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the Financial Accayiandards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation ofBF8tatement No. 1Q9FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognirea gompany’s financial statements and prescribesogmgon
threshold and measurement attribute for the finastaement recognition and measurement of tax positi&an ta
expected to be taken in a tax return. For benefits tedmgnized in the financial statements, a tax positiost be
more-likely-than-not to be sustained upon examination byetking authorities based on the technical meritseptbsition.
The amount recognized is measured as the largest anfdenteadit that is greater than 50 percent likely of beiradjzed
upon ultimate settlement. The interpretation alsoipes/guidance on de-recognition, classification, interedipenalties,
accounting in interim periods, disclosure and transititre Company recognizes accrued interest and penaltiesdradat
uncertain tax positions in income tax expense.

Prior to adopting FIN 48, our policy was to establishdaxtingency liabilities for potential audit issues. Téve
contingency liabilities were based on our estimatd@fprobable amount of additional taxes that may be due ifutire.
Any additional taxes due would be determined only upon completioarrent and future federal, state and international tax
audits. At December 31, 2006, we had $42.6 million of taxirgancy liabilities included in long-term liabilities. Ding
2006, we had increased the tax contingency liabilities iy #lion through the current income tax provision, sdttle
$0.4 million with payment and reversed $4.2 million of tipening balance as of October 1, 2005 to goodwill for issues
where the statute of limitations on assessmentixdida expired during 2006 (see Notes 3 and 12 to the financial
statements).

Pension and other employee benefits

We maintain a pension plan and a supplemental retirementTlase plans are defined benefit pension plans. In
addition to providing pension benefits, we provide certamth care and life insurance benefits for retireglegees and
dependents. These pension and other employee benefitrends/aloped from actuarial valuations. Inherent isghe
valuations are key assumptions, including the discouatarad expected long-term rate of return on plan assetsrida
changes in these pension and other employee postretirbemaiit costs may occur in the future due to changesse the
assumptions, as well as our actual experience.
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The discount rate is subject to change each year, baselypothetical yield curve developed from a portfolio of
high quality, corporate, non-callable bonds with matigitiet match our projected benefit payment streamr&sulting
discount rate reflects the matching of the plan lipbdash flows to the yield curve. Changes in applicable-figlity
long-term corporate bond indices, such as the Moody <CAfporate Bond Index, are also considered. The discoent rat
determined on this basis was 6.5% as of December 31, 200Wraase of 50 basis points from December 31, 2006. This
had the effect of reducing our benefit obligations for fperssand other employee benefits by $27.8 million as of
December 31, 2007, as compared with December 31, 2006.

The expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assatected by taking into account the expected duration
of the plan’s projected benefit obligation, asset mik tre fact that its assets are actively managed tgatetrisk.
Allowable investment types include equity investmenis #&xed income investments. Pension plan assets araged by
Russell Investment Corp. (“Russell”), which allocates dssets into specified Russell-designed funds as we @ieet
specified Russell fund is then managed by investment mardgersn by Russell. The targeted long-term allocatiauof
pension plan assets is 60% in equity investments and@@%&d income investments. Based on this target allotatie
twenty-year historical return of our asset mix haanb®0.1%. The expected long-term rate of return on platsass
determined on this basis was 8.5% for 2007 and 9% for 2008@05. For 2008, we will use an expected long-term rate of
return of 8.5%.

Effective July 1, 2006, we amended our pension plan to stamddhgi future benefits earned at all company
locations for eligible employees. These amendmentsalidhange any benefits earned through June 30, 2006. Aglta res
of the amendments, all locations now have a carexnge plan that requires an employee contribution in ordecéive
the highest level of benefits. All current particifnow earn future benefits under the same formuldnawd the same
early retirement provisions. The amendments did pplyao certain employees under a bargaining unit arraagem
Additionally, employees hired after June 30, 2006, do noicpzate in the defined benefit pension plan but partteipa
our defined contribution savings plan with an additional Compantribution. As a result of these amendments, our
ongoing pension expense has been reduced commencing July 1, 2006.

These pension and other employee postretirement beosfs are expected to increase to approximately $®dmilli
in 2008 from $8 million in 2007, primarily due to a cumaént gain of $4 million in 2007 related to the contributiébn o
Loral Skynet to Telesat Canada, partially offset byititeease in the discount rate and the expected returrsets.as
Lowering the discount rate and the expected long-ternofatgurn each by 0.5% would have increased these pension and
other employee postretirement benefits costs by apprtedyr®0.7 million and $1.4 million, respectively, in 2007.

The benefit obligations for pensions and other emplogeefiis exceeded the fair value of plan assets by
$156 million at December 31, 2007 (the “unfunded benefit ditigs’’). In connection with our adoption of SFAS 158, we
are required to recognize the funded status of a benefibplanr balance sheet. As a result, in 2006 we reduced our
recorded liability for pensions by $50.5 million, with aremponding credit to accumulated other comprehensieemiac
and increased our recorded liability for other benéft$1.0 million, with a corresponding charge to other competen
income, to adjust to our actual unfunded benefit obligatiMarket conditions and interest rates significaafigct future
assets and liabilities of Loral’s pension and ottmaployee benefits plans.

Stock Based Compensation

Effective October 1, 2005, in connection with our adoptionesfrstart accounting, we adopted the fair value
method of accounting for stock based compensation, fetaak options granted by us after October 1, 2005, pursuant
the prospective method provisions of SFAS No. 1238Rare-Based PaymefiSFAS 123R”). In addition, we account for
options granted to non-employees in accordance with BBle No. 96-18, Accounting for Equity Instruments That Are
Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunctiin$elling, Goods or ServicésWe use the
Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model to measaievalue of these stock option awards. This is theesaethod we
used in prior years for disclosure purposes. The Blacki&stMerton model requires us to make significant judgments
regarding the assumptions used within the model, the ngosticint of which are the stock price volatility assuraptithe
expected life of the option award, the risk-free rateetirn and dividends during the expected term. Changes in these
assumptions could have a material impact on the amougidalf based compensation we recognize. (See Notes 3 amd 13 t
the financial statements).
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Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the amount by which the Companyigasization equity value exceeded the fair value of its
tangible assets and identified intangible assets lekahitities as of October 1, 2005. Pursuant to theiprons of
SFAS No. 142Goodwill and Other Intangible AssgtSFAS 1427), goodwill is not amortized and is subjecaih annual
impairment test which the Company performs on an annua ipetsie fourth quarter of each fiscal year. Our ¢ést
goodwill impairment for 2007 and 2006 did not result in any gabdnpairment. Goodwill is allocated to our reporting
units (the operating segment). SFAS 142 requires the Conipa@ompare the fair value of the reporting unit $océrrying
amount on an annual basis to determine if there is pdtenpairment. If the fair value of the reporting uisitess than its
carrying value, an impairment loss is recorded to thenexhat the implied fair value of the goodwill withiretreporting
unit is less than its carrying value. Estimating thevalue of reporting units requires a significant amaifjadgment by
management.

As of December 31, 2007, intangible assets consist pinwdiinternally developed software and technology and
trade names recorded in connection with the adoption sifftart accounting. The fair values of our intangiisieets were
calculated using several approaches that encompassasktbéexcess earnings, relief from royalty and the build-up
methods. The excess earnings, relief from royalty arid-opi approaches are variations of the income approaeh. T
income approach, more commonly known as the discouagtdflow approach, estimates fair value based on theloash f
that an asset can be expected to generate over its lifseflihis process involves subjective judgment by managém
Identifiable intangible assets with finite useful lia@® amortized on a straight-line basis over the astidhuseful lives of
the assets.

Contingencies

Contingencies by their nature relate to uncertairiiasrequire management to exercise judgment both in asgessi
the likelihood that a liability has been incurred adlas in estimating the amount of potential losany. We accrue for
costs relating to litigation, claims and other contingeatters when such liabilities become probable andnedity
estimable. Such estimates may be based on advicelnairparties or on management’s judgment, as appropriatigalAc
amounts paid may differ from amounts estimated, and stiehetices will be charged to operations in the periadghich
the final determination of the liability is made. Managat considers the assessment of loss contingenciesritisal
accounting policy because of the significant uncertaiglting to the outcome of any potential legal actiams other
claims and the difficulty of predicting the likelihood arathge of the potential liability involved, coupled witle tnaterial
impact on our results of operations that could resoithflegal actions or other claims and assessmentsndkleimportant
contingencies affecting our financial statementdateiled in Note 17 to the financial statements, “Commeiits and
Contingencies”.

Liquidity and Capital Resources
Cash and Available Credit

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $315 million of aagitash equivalents and $24 million of restricted
cash ($13 million included in other current assets and $llibnrincluded in other assets on our consolidated balsheet)
with no outstanding debt or established lines of cratigr than a $15 million cash collateralized lettezreflit facility with
JP Morgan Chase bank. Based on the Company’s working aag&as on its current base of business, capital expesslitur
to complete its expansion initiatives, requirements figrapriate contingencies, and resources for future grioutatives,
the Company expects to require additional capital this Jiéas new financing will permit us to meet unexpectashc
requirements due to unforeseen changes to our businesdl as provide cash liquidity for working capital and $trategic
investments as opportunities arise. In the past, lailityao obtain satellite contract awards has dependedriropaour
ability to provide vendor financing to our customersoomiake equity investments in them. The Company is diyren
exploring its financing options and expects to implemearlén to raise additional capital during 2008. If the Comny
not successful in obtaining such financing, its abiitynanage unforeseen cash requirements, to meet cortiegeo
obtain new satellite construction contracts and tkensérategic investments will be materially and advgrastécted. There
can be no assurance that it will be able to obtain Baahcing on favorable terms, if at all.

On October 31, 2007, the transaction for the purchaselegdiecCanada from BCE was closed. Our net cash funding
requirement for this transaction was approximately $185%amjlprimarily for the redemption of Loral
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Skynet’s Series A preferred stock, partially offsethgh receipts from Telesat Canada for certain Skysetsasold to
them, as well as true-up payments from PSP to bringghbiy contributions into the required economic positidisgs was
funded from cash on hand, which includes cash received fromssitence of the $300 million preferred stock financing
described below. As part of the transaction, a final atdj@st payment of approximately $9 million was made by Ltora
PSP on April 4, 2008 and is included in the $185 million exfeed above and as a payable in our financial statemtents
December 31, 2007.

Telesat Canada is subject to covenants in its debt agnégthat restrict cash payments to its shareholdesis C
payments of dividends to shareholders are restricted timeleredit agreement. Cash payments to Loral under our
consulting agreement with Telesat Canada are alsacted by the credit agreement. Loral does not belieseit will
receive cash dividends nor that Telesat Canada wikhaitted to make the $5 million fee payment under theudting
agreement in cash in the near term.

The Company has an investment program that seeks a ctivepstiurn while maintaining a conservative risk
profile. The Company’s investment policy establish@sservative policies relating to and governing thestment of its
surplus cash. The Company’s investment policy allowsiitvest in commercial paper, money market funds amer ot
similar short term investments but does not permiCibi@pany to engage in speculative or leveraged transaatiandoes
it permit the Company to hold or issue financial insteats for trading purposes. The investment policy wagyded to
preserve capital and safeguard principal, to meet albiityuiequirements of the Company and to provide a conyeetite
of return. The investment policy addresses dealer quldits, lists approved securities, establishes minigcoeptable
credit ratings, sets concentration limits, defines tntg structure, requires all firms to safe keep se@gitin the
Company'’s behalf, requires certain mandatory reportingigctind discusses review of the portfolio. The Company
operates its investment program under the guidelings ipiiestment policy and continuously monitors its gtreents and
policies. The Company believes that its policies aoditaring program mitigate the risks with regardtsocurrent
investments.

Loral currently maintains its cash in liqguid money marfkeds. We do not currently hold any investments in anctio
rate securities or enhanced money market funds that hameshbject to recent liquidity issues and price declWesdo
not anticipate moving into short-term investmentsli@ foreseeable future until liquidity returns to thesekets.

On February 27, 2007, Loral completed a $300 million prefestmek financing pursuant to the Securities Purchase
Agreement entered into with MHR on October 17, 2006, as dadeand restated on February 27, 2007 (the “Securities
Purchase Agreement”). See Note 13 to the financiaraetts.

The price of Loral’'s common stock on October 16, 2006, tlydodfore we signed the Securities Purchase
Agreement, was $26.92 and the conversion price was $30.150drid&def Loral's common stock on February 27, 2007,
when the financing closed was $47.40. Because of the diffetgetween the fair market value of the common stock®
date the financing closed, as compared to the convensitm fhe Company is required to reflect a benefimalersion
feature of the Loral Series A-1 Preferred Stock asw@ponent of its net income (loss) applicable to comnhaneholders
for the year ended December 31, 2007. We will also tedléeneficial conversion feature in a similar marfaethe
Series B-1 Preferred Stock, in the period in which shadlehalpproval of the creation of the new class o6€B1
non-voting common stock is received. This benefictmversion feature is recorded as a decrease to retéapplicable
to common shareholders and results in a reduction of lasib &nd diluted earnings per share results. Accordingllyein t
three months ended March 31, 2007, we recorded an increasddssrapplicable to common shareholders of $24.5 million.
In the period in which shareholder approval of the nessatd Class B-1 non-voting common stock is receivedsxpect
that our net income (loss) applicable to common $twdders will be reduced (increased), as applicable, by =ippacely
$154 million reflecting the beneficial conversion feat(less discount, if any, for the class B-1 non-votagmon stock
because of its non-voting status). To the extent thadeadids on the Loral Series-1 Preferred Stock are padditional
shares of Loral Series A-1 Preferred Stock, we reaor@talitional beneficial conversion feature that redoeceset income
applicable to common shareholders. For the year endeziibec 31, 2007, we recorded a beneficial conversionréeatu
$1.2 million for dividends paid in additional shares of L@aties A-1 Preferred Stock. We will also record an smidit
beneficial conversion feature in a similar mannerdigidends paid in additional shares of Loral Series B-1 RBazfeStock
in the period in which shareholder approval of the clags B

54




non-voting common stock is received, and thereafterdiMalends paid and accrued through December 31, 2007 on the
Loral Series B-1 Preferred Stock, the beneficial cosiva feature that will be recorded when shareholder appod the
class B-1 non-voting common stock is received, is appteiyn $7 million.

Cash requirements at Satellite Manufacturing are dnprenarily by working capital requirements to finance
long-term receivables associated with satellite cotsrather vendor financing and capital spending requireahiotain
and expand the manufacturing facility. While its requieat for ongoing capital investment to maintain itseuir capacity
is relatively low, SS/L has commenced a capacity exparmiogram through which SS/L is seeking to accommodate a
many as 13 satellite awards per year depending on thglexity and timing of the specific satellites awardeswall as to
provide for greater in-house manufacturing of RF compisnamd subassemblies. This expansion, which includes tloé use
third party offsite capacity and the upgrading of exis&®jL satellite test operations and RF assembly anhdperations,
is estimated to require total incremental capital edjeres of approximately $30 million. On February 27, 20@8L%nd
Northrop Grumman announced that they are pursuing a gfduojiatives to broaden each company’s opportunities to
provide the U.S. government with cost competitive stgedl/stems. As part of these initiatives, Northropr@man has
agreed in principle to the use by SS/L of its satetise facilities and services, which would allow La@better manage its
capital expenditures for facilities expansion at SS/Ltardelated cash flow requirements associated with that espans

Historically, a portion of Satellite Manufacturing ezwes are paid to SS/L in the form of “orbitals”, reable
payments from its customers that are earned ovdifehe the satellite. These payments are contingent gpatinued
satellite performance. As of December 31, 2007, SS/L Hathbreceivables of $134.7 million, which will be recsly
generally over 15 years from launch, an increase of $51libmfrom orbital receivables of $83.2 million as of
December 31, 2006. Continued growth in the Satellite Matwifag business will result in a corresponding grointthe
amount of such orbital receivables.

On November 30, 2007, SS/L entered into a second amendmen$1® imillion cash collateralized amended and
restated letter of credit agreement with JP Morgan CBask extending the maturity of the facility to Decem®&y 2008.
Letters of credit are available until the earlietha# stated maturity of the letter of credit, the feation of the facility, or
December 31, 2008. Outstanding letters of credit aredalii collateralized. As of December 31, 2007, $6.1 mitifon
letters of credit under this facility were issued antstanding.

On July 30, 2007, SS/L entered into an Amended and Restatenir@usEredit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”)
with Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. (“Sirius”). The Credigreement amends and restates in its entirety the @astGredit
Agreement entered into by SS/L and Sirius on June 7, 2006Q@riginal Credit Agreement”). The purpose of the
amendment and restatement is to make available tsSinancing for the purchase of a second satelliterithdeAmended
and Restated Satellite Purchase Agreement betweess &ird SS/L dated as of July 23, 2007 (the “Amended Satellit
Purchase Agreement”). Under the Credit Agreement, 8&slagreed to make loans to Sirius in an aggregatépaiinc
amount of up to $100,000,000 to finance the purchase of tilue 5M-5 and FM-6 Satellites (the “Sirius Satellited’pans
made under the Credit Agreement are secured by Sirglsrunder the Amended Satellite Purchase Agreemehicing
its rights to the Sirius Satellites. The loans ase ahtitled to the benefits of a subsidiary guaranter Batellite CD Radio,
Inc., and, subject to certain exceptions, any futurenmahgeibsidiary that may be formed by Sirius thereaftee maturity
date of the loans is the earliest to occur of (ieJid, 2010, (ii) 90 days after the FM-6 Satellite becamvasdable for
shipment and (i) 30 days prior to the scheduled laun¢heoFM-6 Satellite. Loans made under the Credit Agraéme
generally bear interest at a variable rate equal tedtm@nth LIBOR plus a margin. The Credit Agreement perniitgs3o
prepay all or a portion of the loans outstanding withpmitalty, and, upon the occurrence of certain events, &iniaguired
to prepay the loans. As of December 31, 2007, no loaressautstanding under the Credit Agreement. Siriusiiseatly
eligible to borrow $82 million under the Credit Agreemeapresenting reimbursement of payments previously rfoade
Sirius under the Amended Satellite Purchase Agreement.

On September 4, 2007, Loral Skynet entered into a Loasetwutity Agreement with Valley National Bank
(“Valley National”). The purpose of this loan agreemeat to make available to Loral Skynet a loan (theafi®pto fund
the redemption (the “Note Redemption”) of Loral Skyn&#86 senior secured notes (see Note 10 to the financial
statements). Pursuant to this loan agreement, Vabiéipial made the Loan in a single advance of $141,050,000, which
Loral Skynet used to fund the Note Redemption on SeptemB&07. This loan was fully
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cash collateralized with a CD purchased by Loral andineMalley National. The interest rate on the Loan wd9% per
annum. On October 31, 2007, the Loan was assumed by T@éksada as part of the Telesat Canada transaction and was
repaid in full that same day by Telesat Canada. Also @ab®c31, 2007, the cash collateral CD was released aruh

was returned to Loral.

Telesat Canada
Cash and Available Credit

As of December 31, 2007, Telesat Canada had CAD 42 millicash and short-term investments as well as CAD
133 million of borrowing availability under its Revolvingéility and $140 million of borrowing availability undes it
U.S. Term Il Loan Facility as discussed below. Telesata@a believes that cash and short-term investments as of
December 31, 2007, net cash provided by operating actjwitish flow from customer prepayments, and drawings on the
available lines of credit under the Credit Facilag @efined below) will be adequate to meet its expectedeastiement
for activities in the normal course of business,udtig interest and required principal payments on delvedss planned
capital expenditures through at least the next 12 months.

Telesat Canada has adopted conservative policies relatmgl governing the investment of its surplus cash. The
investment policy does not permit Telesat Canada tagenimp speculative or leveraged transactions, nor dpesnit
Telesat Canada to hold or issue financial instrumentseding purposes. The investment policy was designpregerve
capital and safeguard principal, to meet all liquidgguirements of Telesat Canada and to provide a competiie of
return. The investment policy addresses dealer qualditsitiists approved securities, establishes minimunptaide
credit ratings, sets concentration limits, defines tuntg structure, requires all firms to safe keep se@sitiequires certain
mandatory reporting activity and discusses review optirdolio. Telesat Canada operates its investment anogmder the
guidelines of its investment policy.

Liquidity

The Telesat Canada purchase price of CAD 3.25 billiomedisas transaction fees and expenses, the repayifent o
existing Loral Skynet debt and preferred stock, and Tetesmaada debt were funded by cash from Loral and P&€lbas
borrowings by Telesat Canada.

A large portion of Telesat Canada’s annual cash receipteasenably predictable because they are primarily
derived from an existing backlog of long-term customer cotgrand high contract renewal rates. Telesat Canadadx|
its cash flow from operations will be sufficient to yide for a portion of its capital requirements and tadfits interest and
debt payment obligations through 2008. Cash required footigraction of the Nimig 4, Nimiq 5 and Telstar 11N
satellites will be funded from some or all of thedaling: cash and short-term investments, cash flow fsperations, cash
flow from customer prepayments or through borrowings ailabvle lines of credit under the Credit Facility.

Telesat Canada maintains approximately CAD 25 milliorashcand cash equivalents within its subsidiary operating
entities for the management of its liquidity. Telesah&Ha’s intention is to maintain this level of cash aistl eguivalents
to assist with the day-to-day management of its castsflow

Debt

In connection with the acquisition, Telesat Canada ahinte agreements with a syndicate of banks to provide
Telesat Canada with, in each case as described beldar, secured credit facilities (the “Credit Facilityg,senior bridge
loan facility (the “Senior Bridge Loan”) and a senior autinated bridge loan facility (the “Senior Subordinatedigei
Loan”) (together the “Facilities”). The Facilitieseaalso guaranteed by Telesat Holdings Inc. and certaisafelanada
subsidiaries.

Senior Secured Credit Facilities
The Credit Facility consists of several tranches, Wwiaie described below.
The Credit Facility is secured by substantially all efeBat Canada’s assets. Under the terms of the Cigdliity,

Telesat Canada is required to comply with certain covendmthare usual and customary for highly leveraged
transactions, including financial reporting, maintenanaeedfin financial covenant ratios for leverage
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and interest coverage, a requirement to maintain miniteuets of satellite insurance, restrictions on @dg@kpenditures, a
restriction on fundamental business changes or theamezftsubsidiaries, restrictions on investments, refgmis on
dividend payments, restrictions on the incurrence of it debt, restrictions on asset dispositions artdetens on
transactions with affiliates. Telesat Canada is edgoired to enter into swap agreements that will effelstifix or cap the
interest rates on at least 50% of its funded debt foyemBperiod ending October 31, 2011. Each tranche of #ditCr
Facility is subject to mandatory principal repaymmetgjuirements, which, in the initial years, are genetallyof 1% of the
initial aggregate principal amount

Revolving Facility

The Revolving Facility is a CAD 153 million loan fagiiitvith a maturity date of October 31, 2012. Loans under the
Revolving Facility currently bear interest at a flogtmate of the Bankers Acceptance borrowing rate plapphicable
margin of 275 basis points. The applicable margin is sutgexteverage pricing grid. The Revolving Facility cuthehas
an unused commitment fee of 50 bps that is subject to amjnsbased upon a leverage pricing grid. As of December 31,
2007, CAD 20 million was drawn under this facility.

Canadian Term Loan Facility

The Canadian Term Loan Facility is a CAD 200 millioart with a maturity date of October 31, 2012. The Canadian
Term Loan Facility bears interest at a floating &dtthe Bankers Acceptance borrowing rate plus an applicastgin of
275 basis points.

U.S. Term Loan Facility

The U.S. Term Loan Facility is for $1.905 billion wittiimal maturity date of October 31, 2014. The U.S. Term
Loan Facility is made up of two facilities, a $1.755ibill U.S. Term Loan | Facility and a $150 million U.2rih Loan I
Facility that is a 12 month delayed draw facility foteflée capital expenditures. The U.S. Term Loan Hgddears interest
at LIBOR plus an applicable margin of 300 basis points.

The U.S. Term Loan Il Facility has an unused commitrfeanbf1 / 2 the applicable margin which is 150 basis
points. Telesat Canada anticipates that it will draanfitti amount of this facility during the 12 month availi#pperiod. As
of December 31, 2007, $10 million of the facility was drasvifyrther $38 million of the facility was drawn in Jangar
2008.

In order to hedge the currency risk for Telesat Canadaabatiosing and over the life of the loans, Loral Skyne
entered into a currency basis swap to syntheticatlyer $1.054 billion of US dollar commitment to CAD 1.22Uidn
and transferred the benefit of the basis swap tes@tl@anada prior to closing. The CAD 1.224 billion bé&sesest at a
floating rate of Bankers Acceptance plus an applicablgimaf approximately 387 basis points.

Senior Bridge Loan

The Senior Bridge Loan is a $692.8 million senior unsecwasd ddvanced on the closing date. The Senior Bridge
Loan has a maturity of October 31, 2008 and an initiat@st rate per annum equal to the greater of 9% or thoe¢
LIBOR plus the applicable margin. The applicable maigineases over time subject to an interest rate chp%f The
lenders under the Senior Bridge Loan have a right, agaadpril 28, 2008, to make a securities demand (afteac show
and marketing period customary for similar offerings) ngbg Telesat Canada would issue high yield notes with
registration rights but subject to an interest rate aetow the 11% cap in exchange for the Senior Bridge Lbalesat
Canada has been advised by its lenders to expect toliesaehtigh yield notes at or below the cap rate on 8@ri2008.
Subject to the terms and conditions of the loan ageeg failure to comply with the securities demand wouldlt@s an
event of default under the Senior Bridge Loan. If the SeBiiimige Loan should still be outstanding on October 31, 2008,
then, subject to satisfaction of certain conditionsluiding that there exists no default or event of defandeuthe senior
bridge loan agreement, the Senior Bridge Loan will auticaidy convert to senior rollover loans having ataority date of
seven years from the rollover date. The rollovensobear interest initially at the rate applicabléheoSenior Bridge Loan
on the rollover date, increasing thereafter over timesubject to the rate cap of 11%. On and after fhaveo date, holders
of at least $25 million principal amount of senior reéioloans can exchange their rollover loans for sesohange notes
and at a holder’s option, may further elect to fix thteriest rate on its exchange note at the then
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applicable rate. Covenants contained in the senior bladgeagreement are substantially the same as thos&red in the
Credit Facility except that there is no requirement tmtaa financial ratios.

Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan

The Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan is a $217.2 million senioordinated unsecured loan advanced on the
closing date. The Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan haswitgaif October 31, 2008 and an initial interest rategmeum
equal to the greater of 10.5% or three-month LIBOR plusypipéicable margin. The applicable margin increases ower t
subject to an interest rate cap of 12.5%. The lenders timel&enior Subordinated Bridge Loan have a right, as&sarly
April 28, 2008, to make a securities demand (after a foat and marketing period customary for similar offerjngs
whereby Telesat Canada would issue high yield notes vgtbtration rights but subject to an interest rate detow the
12.5% cap in exchange for the Senior Subordinated Bridge Letesal Canada has been advised by its lenders to expect to
issue these high yield notes at or below the cap rafgoh30, 2008. Subject to the terms and conditions ofdha
agreement, failure to comply with the securities demveoudd result in an event of default under the Senior Subateli
Bridge Loan. If the Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan shoildstoutstanding on October 31, 2008, then subject to
satisfaction of certain conditions, including that thexists no default or event of default under the seniborslinated
bridge loan agreement, the Senior Subordinated Bridge Wwibisautomatically convert to senior subordinated ra#ioloans
having a maturity date of nine years from the rollalegte. The rollover loans bear interest initiallyred rate applicable to
the Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan on the rollover dategasing thereafter over time but subject to theaapeof
12.5%. On and after the rollover date, holders of &t 825 million principal amount of senior subordinatedorat loans
can exchange their rollover loans for senior subordirateldange notes and at a holder’s option, may further elégtthe
interest rate on its exchange note at the then apldicate. Covenants contained in the senior subordinaiggedoan
agreement are substantially the same as those wedtai the Credit Facility except that there is no requérg to maintain
financial ratios.

Interest Expense

An estimate of the interest expense on the Facilgiéased upon assumptions of LIBOR and Bankers Acceptance
rates and the applicable margin for the Credit Facility,enior Bridge Loan and the Senior Subordinated Bridge. Loa
Telesat Canada’s estimated interest expense for 2008 axapately CAD 285 million.

Derivatives

Telesat Canada has used interest rate and currencytivesva hedge its exposure to changes in interest rates and
changes in foreign exchange rates.

Telesat Canada uses forward contracts to hedge itgriateirency risk on anticipated transactions, mairigted to
the construction of satellites. At December 31, 200lgskt Canada had outstanding foreign exchange contracts whic
require them to pay Canadian dollars to receive $198.9 mitiofuture capital expenditures. The fair value okthe
derivative contract liabilities resulted in an unrealifess of CAD 17.5 million as of December 31, 2007. Theseard
contracts are due between January 1, 2008 and December 1, 2009.

In order to hedge the currency risk for Telesat Canadha db@losing and over the life of the loans, Loralrgky
entered into a currency basis swap to syntheticatlyem $1.054 billion of the U.S. Term Loan Facility detto CAD
1.224 billion of debt. Loral Skynet transferred the curydpasis swap to Telesat Canada prior to closing. Tihedte of
this derivative contract at December 31, 2007 resulted unrealized loss of CAD 262 million.

On November 30, 2007, Telesat Canada entered into a sefiiesiaferest rate swaps to fix interest rates on
$600 million of U.S. dollar denominated debt and CAD 630ionilbf Canadian dollar denominated debt for an average
term of 3.2 years. Average rates achieved, before amgviag spread, were 4.12% on the U.S. dollar denominatefss
and 4.35% on the Canadian dollar denominated swaps. Asefiber 31, 2007, the fair value of these derivative ccintra
liabilities was an unrealized loss of CAD 6.4 milliéith these transactions, Telesat Canada has megiigement under
the Credit Facility to effectively fix or cap at |€&9% of its funded debt.
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Capital Expenditures

Telesat Canada has entered into contracts for constragttblaunch of the Nimiq 4 satellite, and construatioiine
Nimiqg 5 and Telstar 11N satellites. The outstanding comeritmas of December 31, 2007 on these contracts are
approximately $264 million. These expenditures will be funde@iddgsat Canada’s cash flow from operations as wéfieas
U.S. Term Loan Il Facility.

Contractual Obligations and Other Commercial Commitments

The following tables aggregate our contractual obligatind other commercial commitments as of December 31
2007 (in thousands).

Contractual Obligations:

Payments Due by Period

More
Less than than
Total 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Operating leaseg) $ 32,76¢ $ 8,58¢ $ 14,62« $ 7,57 $ 1,97¢
Unconditional purchase obligatio( 567,91( 495,24 70,88¢ 1,78C —
Liability to PSP(3) 9,30¢ 9,30¢ — — —
Other long-term obligation@) 30,541 16,13¢ 14,40: — —
Total contractual cash obligatios $ 640,52 $ 529,27 $ 99,91¢ $ 9,352 $ 1,97¢
Other Commercial Commitments:
Total Amount of Commitment Expiration Per Period
Amounts Less than More than
Committed 1 Year 1-3 Years 4-5 Years 5 Years
Standby letters of credi6) $ 6,127 $ 6,127 $ — $ — $ —

(2) Represents future minimum payments under operétases with initial or remaining terms of one yeamore, net of sub-lease rentals of
$0.7 million.

2) SS/L has entered into various purchase commitmititssuppliers due to the long lead times requiredroduce purchased parts.
3) Represents the final equity true-up payment to iS®nnection with the Telesat Canada transaction.
4) Primarily represents vendor financing amounts oteeslibcontractors and commitments under employar@ahgements.

5) Does not include our commitment of approximatelg 5million in connection with an agreement entergd between SS/L and ViaSat for the
construction by SS/L for ViaSat of a high capatitpadband satellite called ViaSat-1 and our FINidlities for uncertain tax positions of
$68.0 million. On January 11, 2008, we entered agaidain agreements (see Note 19 to the finanzigdments), pursuant to which we are
investing in the Canadian coverage portion of tieSdt-1 Satellite and granting to Telesat Canadapsion to acquire our rights to the Canadian
payload. Because the timing of future cash outflagsociated with our FIN 48 liabilities for uncéntéax positions is highly uncertain, we are
unable to make reasonably reliable estimates gbéned of cash settlement with the respectivenguaiuthorities.

(6) Letters of credit have a maturity of one year aredranewed annually.
Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Operating Activities
Net cash provided by operating activities for 2007 was $ftiobm This was primarily due to a decrease in accounts

receivable of $65 million from the collection of vendmrahcing from a customer and a $22 million increasmsh from
net income adjusted for non-cash items including anaseré income taxes payable attributable to taxes expenged7



to be paid in 2008 related to the gain from the contribudf®ubstantially all of the Loral Skynet assets aidted
liabilities to Telesat Canada. These sources of e&sh partially offset by an increase in contractsfibepss of $61 million
and a reduction in customer advances of $17 million due tinoedt progress on the related satellite programs.

Net cash provided by operating activities for 2006 was $8®m This was primarily due to the net loss adjusted
for non-cash items of $86 million, an increase in custadeances of $51 million resulting from timing of satelfirogram
milestone payments and higher accrued expenses andothant liabilities of $18 million in part due to highecaged
interest. This change was partially offset by an increaseventory of $32 million, which will accommodate tinereased
volume and a reduction of $20 million in pension and other gtdgiment liabilities primarily due to contributionade to
the pension plan of $27 million (see Note 15 to the finastaements).
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Net cash used in operating activities for the period lé&t@, 2005 to December 31, 2005 and for the period
January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005 was $38 million and $144 millispectively, totaling $182 million for 2005. This was
primarily due to $80 million of payments to creditors immection with our Plan of Reorganization, the reduction in
customer advances of $56 million because of continued pragreke related programs and the deferral of billings of
$46 million in connection with certain SS/L contracts.

Net Cash Provided By (Used in) Investing Activities

Net cash provided by investing activities for 2007 was $6Romjlprimarily resulting from the net effect of cash
management of short-term investments of $118 million ahgnoeeeds received for the contribution of Loral Skyoe
Telesat Canada of $58 million. These changes were padffdbt by capital expenditures of $96 million, an increase i
restricted cash of $20 million and a net distributiomfran equity investment of $2 million.

Net cash used in investing activities for 2006 was $176 mijltiesulting from capital expenditures of $82 million
and the Company’s purchase of short-term investmé&$tsay million, partially offset by proceeds from the sdle o
available-for-sale securities of $7 million and pratsegeceived from the disposition of an orbital slot oh$iflion.

Net cash (used in) provided by investing activities lfier period October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005, and the
period January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005 was $(5) million andrili¢&n, respectively, totaling $190 million for 2005,
primarily resulting from the insurance proceeds reckfee our Telstar 14 satellite.

Net Cash Provided by (Used in) Financing Activities

Net cash provided by financing activities for 2007 was $#ltom primarily resulting from the proceeds, net of
expenses, from the sale of preferred stock of $284 mitlienborrowing of a term loan of $141 million from Valley
National to fund redemption of the Loral Skynet Noted the proceeds from the exercise of stock options afisi®n,
partially offset by the distribution of proceeds for tademption of the Loral Skynet Preferred Stock of $238 anillihe
repayment of the Loral Skynet Notes of $126 million,rédemption premium of $13 million paid on the extinguishment of
the Loral Skynet Notes and cash dividends paid on t¢hal ISkynet Preferred Stock of $12 million.

Net cash used in financing activities for 2006 was $1anillresulting from the cash dividend payment on the Loral
Skynet Preferred Stock made in the third quarter.

Net cash provided by financing activities for the pef@ober 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005 and the period
January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005 was $121 million and zeroctigshe totaling $121 million for 2005, representing the
proceeds from the issuance of the Loral Skynet NogesNste 12 to the financial statements).

Other

During 2007, we made no contributions to the qualified pengsian and funded approximately $3 million for other
employee post-retirement benefit plans. In September 2@08él, tnade the minimum required contribution of $2.3 million
to the pension plan and made an additional voluntary contibtdgithe pension plan of $25.2 million. The additional
voluntary contribution was made to improve the funded stittise pension plan and to reduce future expected
contributions. During 2005, we contributed $20 million t® ¢jualified pension plan. During 2008, based on current
estimates, we expect to contribute approximately $34amitlb the qualified pension plan and expect to fund approximately
$4 million for other employee post-retirement benefingl

Affiliate Matters

Loral has made certain investments in joint venturéisersatellite services business that are accountehdar the
equity method of accounting (see Note 8 to the finarstaaéments for further information on affiliate magjer
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Our consolidated statements of operations reflectffieets of the following amounts related to transastieith or
investments in affiliates (in millions):

Successor Registrant Predecessor Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
(In millions)
Revenues $ 22.C $ 11.2 $ 4.1 $ 10.C
Elimination of Loral’s proportionate share of
(profits) losses relating to affiliate transactic 1.9 0.4 (2.9) 0.6
Profits (losses) relating to affiliate transactions
not eliminated (1.2) (0.3 2.3 (0.5)

Commitments and Contingencies

Our business and operations are subject to a numbemndifficant risks, the most significant of which are
summarized in Item 1A — Risk Factors and also in Note 1fid financial statements.

ltem 7A. Quantitative and Qualitative Disclosures about Market Risk

Foreign Currency

We, in the normal course of business, are subjecetagks associated with fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates. As of December 31, 2007, SS/L had the fo@mounts denominated in Japanese Yen and EUROs
(which have been translated into U.S. dollars basebd@bécember 31, 2007 exchange rates) that were unhedged (in
millions):

Foreign Currency Uus.$
Future revenues — Japanese Yen ¥ 84 $ 0.7
Future expenditures — Japanese Yen ¥ 4,222 $ 37.€
Future expenditures — EUROs E 3.7 $ 55

Interest

The Company has no long-term debt or any exposure tgekam interest rates with respect thereto. Pridneo t
close of the Telesat Canada transaction, Loral Skatdebt at a fixed rate of 14.0%.

As of December 31, 2007, the only marketable securiglestty the Company was approximately 43,200 shares of
Globalstar Inc. common stock. During the year, howeater Company did hold other marketable securities wtoctsisted
of corporate bonds, Euro dollar bonds, certificates pbsiés, commercial paper, Federal Agency notes and aueti®
securities. We invest in these other marketable se=urifth the intent to hold them to maturity and sifysthem as such,
except for the auction-rate-securities which we classfgvailable-for-sale securities. During the yeasold all of our
non-Globalstar marketable securities without any ¢dgmincipal to Loral as well as substantially all of doldings in
Globalstar Inc. common stock.

Iltem 8. Financial Statements and Supplementary Data

See Index to Financial Statements and Financial SeatieSchedules on page F-1.

Item 9. Changes in and Disagreements with Accountants on Accounting &mancial Disclosure



None.
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Iltem 9A. Controls and Procedures
Evaluation of Disclosure Controls and Procedures

Our chief executive officer and our chief financial offit@ve evaluated the effectiveness of our disclosureatsnt
and procedures (as defined in Rules 13a-15(e) and 15d-15(e)mfdhange Act) as of December 31, 2007, to determine
whether our disclosure controls and procedures enfsar@éformation relating to Loral and its consolidasedsidiaries
required to be disclosed in our filings under the ExchangesAecorded, processed, summarized and reported within the
time periods specified in the Securities Exchange Commissies and forms. The term disclosure controls and procedure
means controls and other procedures of an issuerrthdeaigned to ensure that information required to béodest by the
issuer in the reports that it files or submits undeBkehange Act is recorded, processed, summarized and repatted, w
the time periods specified in the Commission’s rulesfands. Disclosure controls and procedures include,ontth
limitation, controls and procedures designed to enbiatetie information required to be disclosed by an issurei
reports that it files or submits under the Exchange Aatésimulated and communicated to the issuer’'s management,
including its principal executive and principal financiffiagrs, or persons performing similar functions, pgrapriate to
allow timely decisions regarding required disclosure. 8asetheir evaluation, our chief executive officer andfchie
financial officer have concluded that, as of Decembef8Q7, our disclosure controls and procedures were notieée
due to a material weakness related to the operationephaitcontrol over financial reporting with respecttte accounting
for and disclosure of income taxes, as discussed belovamagément’s Report on Internal Control over Financial
Reporting. Additional review, evaluation and oversightehlagen undertaken to ensure that our consolidated fatanci
statements were prepared in accordance with genecalypted accounting principles and, as a result, our ekésiutive
officer and chief financial officer have concluded tHeg tonsolidated financial statements in this Form 10-Eeoriefairly,
in all material respects, our financial position utesof operations and cash flows for the periods pteden

Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

Our management is responsible for establishing and ma@mjeadequate internal control over financial reporting, as
such term is defined in Rule 13a-15(f) of the Exchange AaletUthe supervision and with the participation of our
management, including our chief executive officer and ouff &hincial officer, we conducted an evaluation of the
effectiveness of our internal control over financial répgrbased on the framework set fortHnternal Control —
Integrated Frameworkssued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizatiotiseol readway Commission (“COSQO”).
Based on our evaluation under such criteria, our managenmaitided that a material weakness existed in our internal
control over financial reporting as of December 31, 2@0ated to income tax accounting. A material weakness is
deficiency or a combination of deficiencies in interoahtrol over financial reporting such that there is acealsle
possibility that a material misstatement of the ahouaterim financial statements will not be prevehte detected on a
timely basis. Specifically, the Company did not mamtalequate processes and a sufficient number of tetlrgjoalified
personnel to facilitate the timely resolution of issassociated with the Company’s income tax closinggg®primarily
relating to those issues attributable to the Telesaa@atransaction. As a result of this material weaknemsagement has
concluded that the Company'’s internal control over firdmeporting as of December 31, 2007 was not effectget) on
the criteria ininternal Control — Integrated Framework

The effectiveness of our internal control over finangglorting as of December 31, 2007 has been audited by

Deloitte & Touche LLP, an independent registered publiclatiog firm, as stated in its attestation report whidngtuded
below.

Changes in Internal Controls Over Financial Reporting

There were no changes in our internal control over fighneporting during the quarter ended December 31, 2007
that have materially affected or are reasonably lit@ipaterially affect our internal control over fingdaeporting.

The Company is evaluating several remedial steps to immmantrols surrounding its income tax closing pes;
including enhancing the technical resources in the incomactaounting function and conducting an
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evaluation of organizational processes and structudetdify and implement the appropriate solutions reigayits income
tax closing process including retaining additional exderesources.

Inherent Limitations on Effectiveness of Controls

Our management, including our chief executive officer anctloigf financial officer, does not expect that our
disclosure controls or our internal control over finah@aorting will prevent or detect all error and addd. A control
system, no matter how well designed and operated, caidranly reasonable, not absolute, assurance thaotiieol
system’s objectives will be met. The design of a costystem must reflect the fact that there are resocwostraints, and
the benefits of controls must be considered relatiibeir costs. Further, because of the inherent liioitatin all control
systems, no evaluation of controls can provide absakgarance that misstatements due to error or frdudotioccur or
that all control issues and instances of fraud, yf anthin the company have been detected. These inhamatetions
include the realities that judgments in decision-makinghbeafaulty and that breakdowns can occur because of sampie
or mistake. Controls can also be circumvented by theithal acts of some persons, by collusion of two orerp®ople or
by management override of the controls. The design ofgstgm of controls is based in part on certain assungpdilbout
the likelihood of future events, and there can be naasse that any design will succeed in achieving its statdd goder
all potential future conditions. Projections of anylaation of controls effectiveness to future periods argestibo risks.
Over time, controls may become inadequate because of charageslitions or deterioration in the degree of comian
with policies or procedures.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Loral Space & Communications Inc.
New York, New York

We have audited the internal control over financipbréng of Loral Space & Communications Inc. and subsisa
(the “Company”) as of December 31, 2007, based on crist@blished ifnternal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued
by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizations of thedway Commission. The Company’'s management is responsib
for maintaining effective internal control over fircal reporting and for its assessment of the effestigs of internal
control over financial reporting, included in the acconygam Management’s Report on Internal Control Over Financial
Reporting. Our responsibility is to express an opimierthe Company’s internal control over financial rejppgrbased on
our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with the standatte éfublic Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan amidmpéhfe audit to obtain reasonable assurance aboth&he
effective internal control over financial reporting waaintained in all material respects. Our audit includedioing an
understanding of internal control over financial repaytiassessing the risk that a material weakness aesting and
evaluating the design and operating effectiveness ohilteontrol based on that risk, and performing such other
procedures as we considered necessary in the circunstiviedelieve that our audit provides a reasonable foxsisir
opinion.

A company’s internal control over financial reportin@iprocess designed by, or under the supervision of, the
company’s principal executive and principal financialceffs, or persons performing similar functions, andaéd by the
company'’s board of directors, management, and other pa&ldonprovide reasonable assurance regarding the figjiadbi
financial reporting and the preparation of financialesteents for external purposes in accordance with genaxagpted
accounting principles. A company’s internal controlrdugancial reporting includes those policies and prooesltinat
(1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reét®datail, accurately and fairly reflect the tranisest and
dispositions of the assets of the company; (2) prowdsanable assurance that transactions are recordedessary to
permit preparation of financial statements in accordaiitegenerally accepted accounting principles, and tleaipts and
expenditures of the company are being made only in acomedgith authorizations of management and directoiseof
company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance regarévengion or timely detection of unauthorized acquisiticsg, or
disposition of the company’s assets that could have aialatect on the financial statements.

Because of the inherent limitations of internal contk@rdinancial reporting, including the possibility of aglon
or improper management override of controls, materiastaiements due to error or fraud may not be preventetected
on a timely basis. Also, projections of any evalabf the effectiveness of the internal control dirncial reporting to
future periods are subject to the risk that the contnalg become inadequate because of changes in conditionat tret
degree of compliance with the policies or proceduresdassriorate.

A material weakness is a deficiency, or a combinatfaeficiencies, in internal control over financial repay,
such that there is a reasonable possibility thattenmhmisstatement of the company’s annual or intériancial
statements will not be prevented or detected on a tibalis. The following material weakness has beenifadehand
included in management’'s assessment:

The Company did not maintain adequate processes andczestffiumber of technically qualified personnel to
facilitate the timely resolution of issues associatdtl tie Company’s income tax accounting closing piocis
a result of this material weakness in the design efriral controls over the accounting for income tases, t
Company failed to complete its income tax accountinggs®in a timely manner. This deficiency results in a
more than remote likelihood that a material misstaternaetfite Company’s income tax expense and related
liabilities and deferred tax asset accounts in the aranuaterim consolidated financial statements wilt he
prevented or detected in a timely manner.

64




This material weakness was considered in determiningatuee, timing, and extent of audit tests applied in our
audit of the Company’s consolidated financial statememdsfiinancial statement schedules as of and for theepeked
December 31, 2007, and this report does not affect our r@pstich consolidated financial statements and financial
statement schedules.

In our opinion, because of the effect of the materiakwess identified above on the achievement of the otagecti
of the control criteria, the Company has not mairtisffective internal control over financial reportingpd®ecember 31,
2007, based on the criteria establishebhiarnal Control — Integrated Framewoiksued by the Committee of Sponsoring
Organizations of the Treadway Commission.

We have also audited, in accordance with the standatlle 8fublic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the consolidated financial statements and falastatement schedules as of and for the year endezihibec 31,
2007, of the Company and our report dated April 29, 2008 expressadjaalified opinion on those consolidated financial
statements and included an explanatory paragraph whictaieslithat as of January 1, 2007, the Company changed its
method of accounting for uncertain tax positions.

/s/ DELOITTE &TOUCHELLP

New York, New York
April 29, 2008
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Item 9B. Other Information

None.

PART IlI

Iltem 10. Directors and Executive Officers of the Registr:
Executive Officers of the Registrant

The following table sets forth information concernihg executive officers of Loral as of March 1, 2008.

Nam
e Age Position
Michael B. Targoff 63 Chief Executive Officer since March 1, 2006, Presidergesifanuary 2008

and Vice Chairman of the Board of Directors since Naver 2005. Prior
to that, founder of Michael B. Targoff & Co.

C. Patrick DeWitt 61 Senior Vice President since January 2008. Vice PresidentMovember
2005 to January 2008. Vice President of Old Loral from Jg2G02 to
November 2005. Chief Executive Officer of SS/L since ROGS.
President of SS/L from November 2001 to June 2006.

Avi Katz 49 Senior Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary 3anuary 2008.
Vice President, General Counsel and Secretary from Nosef005 to
January 2008. Vice President, General Counsel and Secre@ly bbral
from November 1999 to November 2005.

Richard P. Mastoloni 43 Senior Vice President of Finance and Treasurer simeeada2008. Vice
President and Treasurer from November 2005 to January Z(@@8.
President and Treasurer of Old Loral from February 200®bt@mber
2005. Vice President of Old Loral from September 2001 to Feb@H2.

Harvey B. Rein 54 Senior Vice President and Chief Finah€&Mficer since January 2008. Vi
President and Controller from November 2005 to January 2008.
President and Controller of Old Loral from April 1996November 2005.

John Capogrossi 54 Vice President and Controller since January 2008. ExecuthestDr,
Financial Planning and Analysis, from October 2006 to Jg2G08.
Assistant Controller from November 2005 to October 20G8istant
Controller of Old Loral from January 2001 to November 2005.

With the exception of Messrs. Targoff and Capogrossiatioye-named executive officers of Loral were officers of
Old Loral and certain of its subsidiaries which, on Jlly2003, filed voluntary petitions for reorganization under
Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code.

The remaining information required under Item 10 will bespnted in the Company’s 2008 definitive proxy
statement which is incorporated herein by reference.

tem 11. Executive Compensatic

Information required under Item 11 will be presented énGompany’'s 2008 definitive proxy statement which is
incorporated herein by reference.

Iltem 12. Security Ownership of Certain Beneficial Owners and Managamand Related Stockholder Matters

Information required under Item 12 will be presented énGompany’'s 2008 definitive proxy statement which is
incorporated herein by reference.
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Iltem 13. Certain Relationships and Related Transactions

Information required under Item 13 will be presented énGompany’'s 2008 definitive proxy statement which is
incorporated herein by reference.

Item 14. Principal Accountant Fees and Servic

Information required under Item 14 will be presented enGompany’'s 2008 definitive proxy statement which is
incorporated herein by reference.

PART IV

Item 15. Exhibits and Financial Statement Schedul

(a) 1. Financial Statements

Index to Financial Statements and Financial Statemgedsile F-1

Loral Spac & Communications Inc. and Subsidiaries:

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm F-2
Consolidated Balance Sheets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 F-4
Consolidated Statements of Operations for the yeatsdeDecember 31, 2007, and 2006 and the period:

October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005 (Successor Registrad@rmunaty 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005

(Predecessor Registrant) F-5
Consolidated Statements of Shareholders’ Equity foydlaes ended December 31, 2007, and 2006 and

periods October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005 (Successor Reyigiré January 1, 2005 to October 1

2005 (Predecessor Registrant) F-6
Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows for the yemtsdeDecember 31, 2007, and 2006 and the perioc

October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005 (Successor Registrad@raunaty 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005

(Predecessor Registrant) F-7
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-8

(a) 2. Financial Statement Schedules
Schedule II F-76

Separate Financial Statements of Subsidiaries not lodatsal Pursuant to Rule 3-09 of Regulation S-X

Telesat Holdings Inc. and Subsidiaries:

Report of Independent Registered Accountants F-77
Consolidated Statement of Earnings for the period Oct®ibe?2007 to December 31, 2007 F-78
Consolidated Statement of Comprehensive Loss fagpehed October 31, 2007 to December 31, 2007 F-79
Consolidated Statement of Shareholders’ Equity foptdreod October 31, 2007 to December 31, 2007 F-80
Consolidated Balance Sheet as of December 31, 2007 F-81
Consolidated Statement of Cash Flow for the periodlfect81, 2007 to December 31, 2007 F-82
Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements F-83

67




INDEX TO EXHIBITS

Exhibit
Numbe
r Description

21 Debtors’ Fourth Amended Joint Plan of Reorganization UGtiapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code dated
June 3, 2005(2)

2.2 Modification to Debtors’ Fourth Amended Plan of Reorgammatinder Chapter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code
dated August 1, 2005(3)

2.3 Letter Agreement among Loral Space & Communicatloos Loral Skynet Corporation, Public Sector
Pension Investment Board, 4363205 Canada Inc. and 4363213 Canatdaddd®ecember 14, 2006(9)

2.4 Share Purchase Agreement among 4363213 Canada Inc., B@Bdnielesat Canada dated December 16,
2006(9)

2.5 Letter Agreement among Loral Space & Communicatlons Public Sector Pension Investment Board and
BCE Inc. dated December 16, 2006(9)

2.6 Asset Transfer Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2007, bgraodg 4363205 Canada Inc., Loral Skynet
Corporation and Loral Space & Communications Inc.(15)

2.7 Amendment No. 1 to Asset Transfer Agreement, dateaf September 24, 2007, by and among 4363205
Canada Inc., Loral Skynet Corporation and Loral Spa@o&munications Inc.(18)

2.8 Asset Purchase Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2007, lansordy Loral Skynet Corporation, Skynet
Satellite Corporation and Loral Space & Communicatiome. (15)

3.1 Restated Certificate of Incorporation of Loral SpacE@nmunications Inc. dated November 21, 2005(4)

3.2 Loral Space & Communications Inc. Amended and Res&ykdvs dated December 17, 2007(20)

4.1 Certificate of Designation of Series A-1 Cumulative 7.508fivertible Preferred Stock and Series A-2
Convertible Preferred Stock of Loral Space & Commuianatinc.(10)

4.2 Certificate of Designation of Series B-1 Cumulative 7.8308avertible Preferred Stock and Series B-2
Convertible Preferred Stock of Loral Space & Commuianatinc.(10)

10.1 Consent Agreement among the United States Deparoh&tate, Loral Space & Communications Ltd. and
Space Systems/Loral, Inc. dated January 9, 2002(1)

10.2 Amended and Restated Letter of Credit Reimbursemerefggnt between Space Systems/Loral, Inc. and JP
Morgan Chase Bank, N.A. dated November 21, 2005(4)

10.3 Amended and Restated Cash Collateral Agreement dateshihber 21, 2005(4)

10.4 Amended and Restated Customer Credit Agreement, dat#daly30, 2007, by and between Sirius Sate
Radio Inc. and Space Systems/Loral, Inc.(14)

10.5 Ancillary Agreement, dated as of August 7, 2007, by and amora BEpace & Communications Inc., Loral
Skynet Corporation, Public Sector Pension Investmeat® 4363205 Canada Inc. and 4363230 Canada
Inc.(15)

10.6 Adjustment Agreement, dated as of Octab@r 2007, between Telesat Interco Inc. (formerly 4363212
Inc.), BCE Inc. and Telesat Canada(19)

10.7 Omnibus Agreement, dated as of October 30, 2007, by and amoalgSpace & Communications Inc., Loral
Skynet Corporation, Public Sector Pension Investmeat® Red Isle Private Investments Inc. and Telesat
Holdings Inc. (formerly 4363205 Canada Inc.)(19)

10.8 Shareholders Agreement, dated as of Oct8heP007, between Public Sector Pension Investment BRad
Isle Private Investments Inc., Loral Space & Commatioas Inc., Loral Space & Communications Holdings
Corporation, Loral Holdings Corporation, Loral Skynet @@wation, John P. Cashman, Colin D. Watson,
Telesat Holdings Inc. (formerly 4363205 Canada Inc.), &eleserco Inc. (formerly 4363213 Canada Inc.),
Telesat Canada and MHR Fund Management LLC(19)

10.9 Consulting Services Agreement, dated as of Octobe2(®)/,, by and between Loral Space &
Communications Inc. and Telesat Canada(19)

10.10 Indemnity Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2007, by andgiroral Space & Communications Inc.,
Telesat Canada, Telesat Holdings Inc., Telesat Intarc@and Henry Gerard (Hank) Intven(19)
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Exhibit
Numbe
r

10.11

10.12

10.13

10.14

10.15

10.16

10.17

10.18

10.19

10.20
10.21
10.22
10.23
10.24
10.25
10.26
10.27
10.28
10.29
10.30
10.31
10.32
10.33

10.34
10.35

Description

Acknowledgement and Indemnity Agreement, dated as of Octob20@1, between Loral Space &
Communications Inc., Telesat Canada, Telesat Holdmggformerly 4363205 Canada Inc.), Telesat Interco
Inc. (formerly 4363213 Canada Inc.) and McCarthy TétrauR(IL9)

Securities Purchase Agreement dated October 17, 200@easled and restated on February 27, 2007, by
and between Loral Space & Communications Inc. and MuRdfManagement LLC(10)

Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement Batedary 27, 2007 by and among Loral Space &
Communications Inc., Loral Skynet Corporation and thed?es Affiliated with MHR Fund Management
LLC Listed on the Signature Pages Thereof(10)

Memorandum of Understanding, dated March 21, 2007 relaiBgbus v. Targoff, et al.(11)

Letter Agreement dated April 25, 2007 between Loral Sga€emmunications Inc. and MHR

Fund Management LLC(12)

Letter Agreement dated August 8, 2007 between Loral Sp&endmunications Inc. and MHR

Fund Management LLC(16)

Letter Agreement, dated August 29, 2007, by and among Spade Communications, Inc. and the hold
of the outstanding Series A Cumulative 7.50% Converfitrkeferred Stock and Series B Cumulative
7.50% Convertible Preferred Stock of Loral Space & Comnatiioics Inc.(17)

Letter Agreement dated April 28, 2008 between Loral Sga€Cemmunications Inc. and MHR

Fund Management LLC*

Partnership Interest Purchase Agreement dated Dec@hp2007 by and among GSSI, LLC, Globalstar,
Inc., Loral/DASA Globalstar, LP, Globalstar do BiaSIA., Loral/DASA do Brasil Holdings Ltda., Loral
Holdings LLC, Global DASA LLC, LGP (Bermuda) Ltd., Medes-Benz do Brasil Ltda. (f/k/a
DaimlerChrysler do Brasil Ltda.) and Loral Space & @munications Inc.(20)

Beam Sharing Agreement, dated as of January 11, 2008, bytvekh Loral Space & Communications Inc.
and ViaSat Inc.(22)

Option Agreement, dated as of January 11, 2008, by and loehwesl Space & Communications Inc. and
Telesat Canada(22)

Employment Agreement between Loral Space & Commumoitatinc. and Michael B. Targoff dated

March 28, 2006(5)+

Form of Officers’ and Directors’ Indemnification Agreent between Loral Space & Communications Inc.
and Loral Executives(4)f

Officers’ and Directors’ Indemnification Agreement beténeSpace Systems/Loréiic. and C. Patrick DeWi
dated November 21, 2005(4)%

Loral Space & Communications Inc. 2005 Stock Incentiad PAmended and Restated as of April 16, 2007)
(13)%

Form of Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under L&phce & Communications Inc. 2005 Stock
Incentive Plan for Senior Management(4)t

Non-Qualified Stock Option Agreement under Loral Spgac&ommunications Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive F
between Loral Spa & Communications Inc. and Michael B. Targoff dated tfa28, 2006(5)+

Non Qualified Stock Option Agreement under Loral Sgacommunications Inc. 2005 Stock Incentive F
between Loral Spa & Communications Inc. and Richard J. Townsend dated 19, 2006(7)t

Form of Director 2006 Restricted Stock Agreement (13)+

Form of Director 2007 Restricted Stock Agreement (13)+

Form of Employee Restricted Stock Agreement (13)+

Space Systems/Loral, Inc. Supplemental Executive RetiteRian dated January 7, 2003(5)%

Amendment to the Space Systems/Loral, Inc. SupplehErecutive Retirement Plan dated November 21,
2005(4)t

Loral Space & Communications Inc. Severance PobcyCorporate Officers(6)t

General Release and Separation Agreement dated Jan@@68%etween Loral Space & Communications
Inc. and Richard J. Townsend (21) %
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Exhibit
Numbe
r

10.36
10.37

10.38
10.39
12.1
14.1
211
23.1
23.2
311
31.2
32.1
32.2

99.1

99.2

99.3

99.4
99.5
99.6

Description

Letter dated March 28, 2008 to Richard J. Townsend(23)%

General Release and Separation Agreement dated Janua®p&Mmetween Loral Space & Communications
Inc. and Dean A. Olmstead (22) £

General Release and Separation Agreement dated Janua®p&hetween Loral Space & Communications
Inc. and Eric J. Zahler (22)

Consulting Agreement dated January 4, 2008 between &peale & Communications Inc. and Richard J.
Townsend (21)

Statement Re: Computation of Ratiost

Code of Conduct, Revised as of August 1, 2006(8)

List of Subsidiaries of the Registrantt

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLPt

Consent of Deloitte & Touche LLPt

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 IC.S§8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002t

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant to W&.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 8§ 302 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002t

Certification of Chief Executive Officer pursuant to 18 IC.S§8 1350, as adopted pursuant to § 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002t

Certification of Chief Financial Officer pursuant toW&.C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 8 906 of the
Sarbanes-Oxley Act of 2002t

Credit Agreement, dated as of October 31, 2007, among Téelesao Inc. (formerly 4363213 Canada Inc.),
Telesat Holdings Inc. (formerly 4363205 Canada Inc.), 436328adzalnc., Telesat LLC, certain
subsidiaries of Telesat Holdings Inc., as guarantoedetiders party thereto from time to time, Morgan
Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as administrative agedtMorgan Stanley & Co. Incorporated, as collateral
agent for the lenders, UBS Securities LLC, as syndicatgent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., The Bank of
Nova Scotia, as issuing bank, and Citibank, N.A., Candglianch or any of its lending affiliates, as
co-documentation agents, and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incatgd, UBS Securities LLC and J.P. Morgan
Securities Inc., as joint lead arrangers and joint bopking managers(19)

Senior Bridge Loan Agreement, dated as of October 31, 26@ha@Telesat Interco Inc. (formerly 4363213
Canada Inc.), Telesat Holdings Inc. (formerly 4363205 Canadp #863230 Canada Inc., Telesat LLC,
certain subsidiaries of Telesat Holdings Inc., as guamsritoe lenders party thereto from time to time,
Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Inc., as administratyent for the lenders, UBS Securities LLC, as
syndication agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., The BaNkwh Scotia and Jefferies Finance LLC, as
co-documentation agents, and Morgan Stanley & Co. Incatgd, UBS Securities LLC and J.P. Morgan
Securities Inc., as joint lead arrangers and joint bopking managers(19)

Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan Agreement, dated as ob@c84, 2007, among Telesat Interco Inc.
(formerly 4363213 Canada Inc.), Telesat Holdings Inc. (fdsn#863205 Canada Inc.), 4363230 Canada
Inc., Telesat LLC, certain subsidiaries of Telesatkhgs Inc., as guarantors, the lenders party thereto from
time to time, Morgan Stanley Senior Funding, Ins.administrative agent for the lenders, UBS Securities
LLC, as syndication agent, JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A., @& Bf Nova Scotia and Jefferies Finance
LLC, as co-documentation agents, and Morgan Stanley & Corporated, UBS Securities LLC and

J.P. Morgan Securities Inc., as joint lead arrangers amtcbjook running managers(19)

Articles of Incorporation of Telesat Holdings Inc.r¢ferly 4363205 Canada Inc.)(19)

By-Law No. 1 of Telesat Holdings Inc. (formerly 4363205 Qlninc.)(19)

Letter Agreement dated March 28, 2008 among Loral SpaCer@munications Inc., Loral Skynet
Corporation, Public Sector Pension Investment Board,|8le Private Investment Inc. and Telesat Holdings
Inc.(23)

(1) Incorporated by reference from the Company's CurrepbRen Form 8-K filed on January 9, 2002.
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()
©)
(4)
(%)

(6)
(7)

(8)

9)
(10)
(11)
(12)
(13)
(14)
(15)
(16)
17)
(18)
(19)
(20)
(21)
(22)

(23)

Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on June 8, 2005.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on August 5, 2005.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on November 23, 2005.

Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Annual RepoFRorm 10-K for the fiscal year ended
December 31, 2005.

Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on June 20, 2006.

Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K/A filed by the Company on June 26,
2006.

Incorporated by reference from the Company’s Currentt®dia Report on Form 10-Q filed on August 8, 2006.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on December 21, 2006.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on February 28, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on March 21, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 10-Q filed on May 10, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on May 29, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on August 2, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on August 9, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 10-Q filed on August 9, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on August 31, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on September 27, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on November 2, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed December 21, 2007.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on January 10, 2008.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on January 16, 2008.
Incorporated by reference from the Company’s CurreppRen Form 8-K filed on March 31, 2008.
Filed herewith.

Management compensation plan.
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SIGNATURES

Pursuant to the requirements of Section 13 or 15(d) dd¢learities Exchange Act of 1934, the Registrant has duly
caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the ugdeds thereunto duly authorized.

LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

By: /s/ MICHAELB. TARGOFF
Michael B. Targoff
Vice Chairman of the Board,
Chief Executive Officer and President
Dated: April 29, 2008

Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchanigef A834, this report has been signed below by the
following persons on behalf of the Registrant and inctigacities and on the dates indicated.

Signatures Title Date
/s  MICHAELB. TARGOFF Vice Chairman of the Board, Chief April 29, 2008
Michael B. Targoff Executive Officer and President
/sl MARKH. RACHESKY, M.D. Director, Non-Executive Chairman of the  April 29, 2008
Mark H. Rachesky, M.D. Board
/sl SAIS.DEVABHAKTUNI Director April 29, 2008

Sai S. Devabhaktuni

/sl HALGOLDSTEIN Director April 29, 2008
Hal Goldstein
/s/  JOHND. HARKEY, JR. Director April 29, 2008

John D. Harkey, Jr.

/s/ ARTHURL. SIMON Director April 29, 2008
Arthur L. Simon

/s/  JOHNP.STENBIT Director April 29, 2008
John P. Stenbit

/s/ HARVEYB.REIN Senior Vice President and CFO April 29, 2008
Harvey B. Rein (Principal Financial Officer)

/s JOHNCAPOGROSSI Vice President and Controller April 29, 2008
John Capogrossi (Principal Accounting Officer)
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of
Loral Space & Communications Inc.
New York, New York

We have audited the accompanying consolidated baltieetssof Loral Space & Communications Inc. and
subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December 31, 2007 and 2886he related consolidated statements of operations,
shareholders’ equity, and cash flows for the yearsceBeéeember 31, 2007 and 2006, for the period from October 3, 200
to December 31, 2005 (Successor Registrant operationisipratihe period from January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005
(Predecessor Registrant operations). Our audits alkaled the financial statement schedules listed inrttiex at Item 15.
These financial statements and financial statesehdules are the responsibility of the Company’s manemgei@ur
responsibility is to express an opinion on the consolitfeancial statements and financial statement schethalsed on
our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with the standatte &fublic Company Accounting Oversight Board
(United States). Those standards require that we plan amdrpéife audit to obtain reasonable assurance abotievtthe
financial statements are free of material misstatemAn audit includes examining, on a test basis, ewslsapporting the
amounts and disclosures in the financial statemantsudit also includes assessing the accounting prinaigks and
significant estimates made by management, as welladisagwg the overall financial statement presentaiide.believe
that our audits provide a reasonable basis for ourapini

In our opinion, the Successor Registrant consolidateddialastatements referred to above present fairly, in all
material respects, the financial position of the Comengf December 31, 2007 and 2006, and the results of itsiopsrat
and its cash flows for the years ended December 31, 2007006, and for the period from October 2, 2005 to
December 31, 2005 in conformity with accounting princigieserally accepted in the United States of AmericahByrin
our opinion, the Predecessor Registrant consolidatedcfadastatements referred to above present fairlyll imaterial
respects, the consolidated results of the Compangsatipns and its cash flows for the period from Janua29@5 to
October 1, 2005, in conformity with accounting principlesagally accepted in the United States of America. Atsour
opinion, such financial statement schedules, when deresl in relation to the basic consolidated financébstents taken
as a whole, present fairly, in all material respdbits,information set forth therein.

As discussed in Note 1 to the consolidated financigstants, the Company emerged from bankruptcy on
November 21, 2005. In connection with its emergence, thep@oyradopted fresh-start reporting pursuant to American
Institute of Certified Public Accountants Statemenos$ition 90-7Financial Reporting by Entities in Reorganization
Under the Bankruptcy Codas of October 1, 2005. As a result, the consolidateddiabstatements of the Successor
Registrant are presented on a different basis than thelse Bfedecessor Registrant and, therefore, are muacable.

As discussed in Note 12 to the consolidated financitdrsients, as of January 1, 2007, the Company changed its
method of accounting for uncertain tax positions to adwpptovisions of FASB Interpretation No. 4&;counting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FASB No. 109.

As discussed in Note 15 to the consolidated financitdrsiants, as of December 31, 2006, the Company changed its
method of accounting for pensions and other employee betwidopt the provisions of Statement of Financ@odnting
Standards No. 15&mployers’ Accounting for Defined Benefit Pension and othetr&ement Plans.

As discussed in Note 3 to the consolidated financigrstants, as of October 1, 2005, the Company changed its

method of accounting for stock-based compensation to du®ptovisions of Statement of Financial Accounting8sads
No. 123(R),Share-Based Payment
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We have also audited, in accordance with the standatlle 8fublic Company Accounting Oversight Board (United
States), the Company’s internal control over finan@pbrting as of December 31, 2007, based on the crésadlished in
Internal Control — Integrated Framewor&sued by the Committee of Sponsoring Organizationseof teadway
Commission and our report dated April 29, 2008 expressed an edy@ngon on the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting because of a material weakness.

/s/ DELOITTE &TOUCHELLP

New York, New York
April 29, 2008
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS

(in thousands, except share data)

December 31,

2007 2006
ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents $ 314,69 $ 186,54:
Short-term investments — 106,58¢
Accounts receivable, net — 76,42(
Contracts-in-process 109,37¢ 40,437
Inventories 96,96¢ 82,18¢
Other current assets 48,85( 55,53¢
Total current assets 569,88¢ 547,70(
Property, plant and equipment, net 147,82¢ 558,87¢
Long-term receivables 132,40( 81,16¢
Investments in affiliates 566,19¢ 97,20:
Goodwill 227,05¢ 305,69:
Intangible assets, net 42 ,85¢ 111,74¢
Other assets 16,71¢ 27,52¢
Total assets $ 1,702,93¢ $ 1,729,91:
LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable $ 69,20¢ $ 67,60
Accrued employment costs 42,89( 43,797
Customer advances and billings in excess of costs andsprofit 251,95¢ 242,66
Income taxes payable 31,23¢ 2,567
Accrued interest and preferred dividends 4.97¢ 20,097
Other current liabilities 39,517 42 ,82¢
Total current liabilities 439,77¢ 419,55«
Pension and other postretirement liabilities 152,34: 167,987
Long-term debt — 128,08
Long-term liabilities 137,26: 153,02¢
Total liabilities 729,38: 868,65:
Minority interest — 214,25¢
Commitments and contingencies
Shareholders’ equity:
Series A-1 Cumulative 7.5% convertible preferred stock)$par value 2,200,000 shares
authorized, 141,953 shares issued and outstanding in 2007 41,87: —
Series B-1 Cumulative 7.5% convertible preferred stoclg1$par value 2,000,000 shares
authorized, 900,821 shares issued and outstanding in 2007 265,777 —
Common stock, $.01 par value; 40,000,000 shares authoriz822016 and 20,000,000 shat
issued and outstanding 203 200
Paid-in capital 663,127 644,70¢
Accumulated deficit (33,939 (37,98))
Accumulated other comprehensive income 36,517 40,07¢
Total shareholders’ equity 973,55¢ 647,00:
Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity $ 1,702,93¢ $ 1,729,91:

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS

(in thousands, except per share amounts)

Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Revenues from satellite manufacturing $ 761,36° $ 636,63: $ 161,06¢ $ 318,587
Revenues from satellite services 121,091 160,70: 36,09¢ 110,59¢
Total revenues 882,45/ 797,33 197,16¢ 429,18:
Cost of satellite manufacturing 688,991 550,82 138,88: 291,45
Cost of satellite services 86,21< 98,61+ 26,38¢ 94,16¢
Selling, general and administrative expenses 166,93¢ 127,08( 36,84: 79,41¢
Gain on contribution of Loral Skynet (104,947) — — —
Gain on litigation settlement — (9,000) — —
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations
before reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy 45,25¢ 29,81¢ (4,945) (35,859
Reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy — — — (31,23€)
Operating income (loss) from continuing operations 45,25¢ 29,81¢ (4,945) (67,09%)
Gain on discharge of pre-petition obligations and
fresh-start adjustments — — — 1,101,45:
Interest and investment income 39,27¢ 31,52¢ 4,12¢ 6,43¢
Interest expense (contractual interest was $36,610 fi
period ended October 1, 2005) (2,312) (23,449 (4,40¢) (17,219
Gain (loss) on foreign exchange contracts 89,36¢ (5,750 — —
Loss on extinguishment of debt (16,15%)
Other income (expense) 2,354 (2,02¢) (170) (931)
Income (loss) from continuing operations before incc
taxes, equity in net losses of affiliates and minority
interest 157,78¢ 30,117 (5,395 1,022,65:
Income tax (provision) benefit (83,457) (20,88() (1,752) 10,901
Income (loss) from continuing operations before equ
in net losses of affiliates and minority interest 74,32¢ 9,237 (7,147) 1,033,55:
Equity in net losses of affiliates (21,430) (7,169) (5,447) (2,79¢)
Minority interest (23,240) (24,79¢) (2,667) 126
Income (loss) from continuing operations 29,65¢ (22,72() (15,26)) 1,030,88:
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, net of taxes — — — 13,967
Net income (lost 29,65¢ $ (22,720) $ (15,26)) $ 1,044,84
Preferred dividends (19,379 — — —
Beneficial conversion feature related to the issuance
Loral Series A-1 Preferred Stock (25,68F) — — —
Net (loss) income applicable to common sharehc $ (15,408 % (22,7200 % (15,267) $ 1,044,84
Basic and diluted earnings (loss) per share:
Continuing operations $ 077y % 1149 $ (0.7€) $ 23.37
Discontinued operations — — — 0.32
(Loss) earnings per share $ 0.77) % (1149 % (0.7€) $ 23.6¢
Weighted average shares outstanding:
Basic and diluted 20,087 20,00( 20,00( 44 10¢




See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY

Series A-1
Convertible
Preferred Stock

(in thousands)

Common Stock

Shares
Issued Amount

Amount

Unearned
Compen- Accumulated
sation Deficit

Accumulated
Other Total
Comprehensive Shareholders’
Income (Deficit)
(Loss) Equity

Predecessor
Registrant
Balance, January 1
2005
Amortization of
unearned
compensation
Net income
Other
comprehensive
loss
Comprehensive
income
Cancellation of
Predecessor
Registrant
common stock
Issuance of commc
stock to creditors
Fresh-start
adjustment

Balance, October 1
2005

Successor
Registrant

Net los!

Other
comprehensive
income

Comprehensive los

Stock option
compensation

Balance,
December 31,
2005

Adjustment to
initially apply
SFAS 158, net o
tax, as restated

Net los!

Other
comprehensive
income, as
restated

Comprehensive los
as restated

Stock based
compensation

Balance,
December 31,
2006

Cumulative effect
related to
adoption of
FIN48

Net income

Other
comprehensive
income

Comprehensive
income

Issuance of
Series A-1
preferred stock 137 $ 40,237

Issuance of
Series B-1
preferred stock

Issuance of
Series A-1 5 1,636

$ 4,413

(4413)

200

200

200

200

$ (87) $ (4,348,23)

60
1,044,84¢

27 3,303,38:

(89,66) $ (1,044,10)

60

(808)

1,044,04:

642,26¢

90,46¢ =

(15,261)

— 642,26¢

15
(15,246)

142

— (15,261)

(22,720)

15 627,164

29,951 29,951

10,10¢
(12,611)

2,498

— (37,981)

(6,23¢)
29,65¢

40,07¢ 647,002

(6,239)

(3,556)

26,101

39,01¢

245,367

1,636



preferred stock a
payment for
dividend
Issuance of
Series B-1
preferred stock a
payment for
dividend
Exercise of stock
options
Restricted shares
surrendered to
fund withholding
taxes
Stock based
compensation
Preferred stock
dividends

Balance,
December 31,
2007 142 $ 41,87¢

42

901

12,76¢
108 1 1,920
(20) — (982)
205 2 26,345
$ 265,77 2029 $ 203 $ 663121 $  —

See notes to consolidated financial statements.

$

$

12,764

1,921

(982)
26,347

(19,379 (19,379

(33939 $ 36517 $ 973,55¢




LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(in thousands)

Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
Year Ended Year Ended For the Period For the Period
January 1, 2005
December 31, December 31, October 2, 2005 to to
2007 2006 December 31, 200! October 1, 2005
Operating activities:
Net income (loss) $ 29,65¢ $ (22,720 % (15,267) $ 1,044,84¢
Adjustments to reconcile net income (loss) to rmeshcprovided by
(used in) operating activities:
Non-cash items (35,97 108,58« 29,36¢ (1,051,330
Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable 64,82¢ (9,129) 1,85¢E 557
Contracts-in-process (60,889 5,551 42,45¢ (76,469
Inventories (15,872) (31,990 (7,899 (10,212
Long-term receivables (266) (2,214 (23,8379 (22,36)
Deposits — 9,08t (35) —
Other current assets and other assets 6,36¢ (2,121) (9,919 11,981
Accounts payable 6,041 (12,817 (13,250 (1,28%)
Accrued expenses and other current liabilities 15,86¢€ 17,75¢ (64,039) 21,57:
Customer advances (17,75)) 50,63¢ 5,73¢ (62,217)
Income taxes payable 28,71¢ 391 1,38¢ 3,07¢
Pension and other postretirement liabilities 8,662 (20,457) 3,077 (3,650
Long-term liabilities (2,282) (3,725) 335 1,844
Other 4 165 1,48C (196)
Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 27,12 88,00z (38,53)) (143,827)
Investing activities:
Capital expenditures (95,76]) (82,157) (4,972) (4,649)
(Increase) decrease in restricted cash in escrow (29,709 (323 (54) 1,56€
Insurance proceeds received — — — 205,00(
Proceeds received for the contribution of Loral isdynet of cash
contributed 57,591 — — —
Proceeds received from disposition of orbital slot — 5,74z — —
Proceeds from the sale of assets, net of expenses — — — 144
Distribution from an equity investment 2,95¢E 250 — —
Proceeds from the sale of short-term investmerds an
available-for-sale securities 468,57 7,09¢ — —
Purchase of short-term investments (350,895 (106,58¢) — —
Investments in and advances to affiliates (1,237) — (63) (7,354)
Net cash provided by (used in) investing activities 61,51¢ (175,97¢%) (5,089) 194,70
Financing activities:
Proceeds from term loan (Loral Skynet Notes refaiaa facility) 141,05( — — —
Repayment of Loral Skynet Notes (126,000 — — —
10% redemption fee on extinguishment of Loral Skywetes (12,600) — — —
Preferred stock issuance costs (8,864) — — —
Proceeds from the sale of Series-1 preferred stock 293,25( — — —
Redemption of Loral Skynet Preferred Stock (237,599 — — —
Proceeds from the exercise of stock options 2,097
Proceeds from Loral Skynet Notes — — 120,76: —
Cash dividends paid on Loral Skynet Preferred Stock (11,829 (1,27¢) — —
Net cash provided by (used in) financing activities 39,51( (1,27¢) 120,76: —
Increase (decrease) in cash and cash equivalents 128,15z (89,259 77,14% 50,88(
Cash and cash equivalents — beginning of period 186,54 275,79¢ 198,65 147,77
Cash and cash equivalents — end of period $ 314,69¢ $ 186,542 $ 275,79¢ $ 198,65:¢

See notes to consolidated financial statements.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1. Organization and Principal Business

Loral Space & Communications Inc. (“New Loral”), tbger with its subsidiaries is a leading satellite
communications company with substantial activities ielkgt manufacturing and investments in satelliteedas
communications services. New Loral, a Delaware cotjporawas formed on June 24, 2005, to succeed to the business
conducted by its predecessor registrant, Loral Space &r@oneations Ltd. (*Old Loral”), which emerged fromagiter 11
of the federal bankruptcy laws on November 21, 2005 (thecE#e Date”).

The terms “Loral,” the “Company,” “we,” “our” and “tsvhen used in these financial statements with respebgto t
period prior to the Effective Date, are reference®lhLoral, and when used with respect to the period cemeing on and
after the Effective Date, are references to New Lditaese references include the subsidiaries of Oldlloorislew Loral, as
the case may be, unless otherwise indicated or thexdartherwise requires.

Loral is organized into two segments:

Satellite Manufacturing:

Our subsidiary, Space Systems/Loral, Inc. (“SS/L”), glesend manufactures satellites, space systems and
space system components for commercial and governmngiohters whose applications include fixed satellite
services (“FSS”), direct-to-home (“DTH”) broadcastingpbile satellite services (“MSS”), broadband data
distribution, wireless telephony, digital radio, digitadloile broadcasting, military communications, weather
monitoring and air traffic management.

Satellite Services:

Until October 31, 2007, the operations of our satelliteices segment were conducted through Loral Skynet
Corporation (“Loral Skynet”), which leased transpond@acéy to commercial and government customers for video
distribution and broadcasting, high-speed data distribubdernet access and communications, and provided
managed network services to customers using a hybrititeaiad ground-based system. It also provided
professional services, such as fleet operating servicether satellite operators. At October 31, 2007alL8kynet
had four in-orbit satellites and had one satellite undestcuction at SS/L.

On October 31, 2007, Loral and its Canadian partner, Publiordeension Investment Board (“PSP”),
through Telesat Holdings Inc. (“Telesat Holdco”), a nefelyned joint venture, completed the acquisition of Telesat
Canada from BCE Inc. (“BCE”"). In connection with thegjaisition, Loral transferred on that same date subatbnti
all of the assets and related liabilities of Loral i&to Telesat Canada. Loral holds a 64% economicsttand a
331/3 % voting interest in Telesat Holdco, the ultimate pacentpany of the resulting new entity (see Note 8). We
use the equity method of accounting for our investmemtiasat Canada.

We refer to the acquisition of Telesat Canada andetlhéed transfer of Loral Skynet to Telesat Canadhas
Telesat Canada transaction. References to Telesat Gaithdaspect to periods prior to the closing of this
transaction are references to the subsidiary of BCEmthd espect to the period after the closing of trassaction
are references to Telesat Holdco and/or its subsidieas appropriate. Similarly, unless otherwise indicate
references to Loral Skynet with respect to periods poithe closing of this transaction are referenodhe
operations of Loral’s satellite services segmeniaslacted through Loral Skynet and with respect to the period
commencing on and after the closing of this transadre, if related to the fixed satellite services ress,
references to the Loral Skynet operations within Tél€saada.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)

2. Bankruptcy Filings and Reorganization

On July 15, 2003, Old Loral and certain of its subsidiathes ‘{Debtor Subsidiaries” and collectively with Oldrag
the “Debtors”), including Loral Space & Communicatiorddings Corporation (formerly known as Loral Space &
Communications Corporation), Loral SpaceCom CorpamgfiLoral SpaceCom”), SS/L and Loral Orion, Inc.\{nknown
as Loral Skynet Corporation), filed voluntary petitionsreorganization under chapter 11 of title 11 (“Chapi€) of the
United States Code (the “Bankruptcy Code”) in the U&hKBuptcy Court for the Southern District of New York (the
“Bankruptcy Court”) (Lead Case No. 03-41710 (RDD), Case N8s11709 (RDD) through 03-41728 (RDD)) (the
“Chapter 11 Cases”). Also on July 15, 2003, Old Loral andobiite Bermuda subsidiaries (the “Bermuda Group”) filed
parallel insolvency proceedings in the Supreme Court ohBda (the “Bermuda Court”), and, on that date, the Bean
Court entered an order appointing certain partners of KRS@int Provisional Liquidators (*JPLS”) in respecthaf
Bermuda Group (see Note 3).

The Debtors emerged from Chapter 11 on the Effective Parsuant to the terms of their fourth amended joint plan
of reorganization, as modified (the “Plan of Reorganind}iolhe Plan of Reorganization had previously beenigoefl by
order (the “Confirmation Order”) of the Bankruptcy Coentered on August 1, 2005. Pursuant to the Plan of
Reorganization, among other things, the business andtimpey of Old Loral were transferred to New Loral, &odal
Skynet and SS/L emerged intact as separate subsidiaresrganized Loral.

Pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization:

» 20 million shares of New Loral common stock were issuanitalistribution agent on the Effective Date,
19.9 million of which have been distributed to creditorsfa3ecember 31, 2007. The remaining undistributed
shares of New Loral common stock have been reservealiéw disputed claims and will be distributed quarterly
in accordance with the Plan of Reorganization upon reenlofithose claims.

» $200 million of Loral Skynet preferred stock was issuedutodistribution agent on the Effective Date,
$199.2 million of which has been distributed to creditorss Pheferred stock was redeemed in connection with
the Telesat Canada transaction. As for the remafn® million that had not been distributed as of the
redemption date, upon resolution of disputed claims, the redengstiount plus accrued interest through the
redemption date corresponding to such undistributed shardsevdistributed to creditors in accordance with the
Plan of Reorganization.

» Pursuant to a rights offering, Loral Skynet issued orEffective Date, $126 million, principal amount, of s@ni
secured notes (the “Loral Skynet Notes”, see Note 163rtain creditors who subscribed for the notes and to
certain creditors who committed to purchase any unsibescnotes (i.e., “backstopped” the offering). These
notes were redeemed in connection with the Telesat Canaadaction.

3. Basis of Presentation

The consolidated financial statements have been mefrmaccordance with accounting principles generally
accepted in the United States of America and includesthéts of Loral and its subsidiaries. All intercompaiay$actions
have been eliminated. References in these consolidatettifal statements to the Predecessor Registrantodferal until
October 1, 2005 and references to the Successor Regisfearnb Loral after October 1, 2005 and after givingetfto the
adoption of fresh-start accounting.

The accompanying consolidated financial statementfioPtedecessor Registrant have been prepared in
accordance with Statement of Position No. 9B#@ancial Reporting of Entities in Reorganization Under the Banksupt
Code(“SOP 90-7") and on a going concern basis, which contensptatginuing operations, realization of assets and
liquidation of liabilities in the ordinary course of busseeln addition, the consolidated statements of opesatbthe
Predecessor Registrant portray our results of operatimirsg the Chapter 11 proceedings. As a result, any ueyen
expenses, realized gains and losses, and provisi¢éost®s resulting directly from the reorganization @structuring of



the organization are reported separately as reorgmmizeems. We did not prepare combining financialesteents for Old
Loral and its Debtor Subsidiaries, since the subselahat
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)

did not file voluntary petitions for reorganization undé&a@ter 11 of the Bankruptcy Code were immaterialito o
consolidated financial statements.

As noted above, we emerged from bankruptcy on Novemb&0®5, and pursuant to SOP 90-7, we adopted
fresh-start accounting as of October 1, 2005 and deterrttieddir value of our assets and liabilities. Upon eraece, our
reorganization enterprise value as determined by th&rBptcy Court was approximately $970 million, which after
reduction for the fair value of the Loral Skynet Natesl Loral Skynet’'s Series A preferred stock (see Nb@egnd 13 and
Minority Interestbelow), resulted in a reorganization equity value of apprately $642 million. This reorganization equity
value was allocated to our assets and liabilities. €ggta and liabilities were stated at fair value in atzooce with
Statement of Financial Accounting Standards (“SFAS”) Nd.,Business Combinatior{8SFAS 141”). In addition, our
accumulated deficit was eliminated, and our new debt antyegeiie recorded in accordance with distributions pursigant
the Plan of Reorganization (see Note 4).

Investments in Telesat Canada and XTAR, L.L.C. (“"XTA&®e accounted for using the equity method of
accounting. Income and losses of affiliates are redobdsed on our beneficial interest. Intercompany pro§inay from
transactions with affiliates is eliminated to the exf our beneficial interest. Equity in losses ofligfes is not recognized
after the carrying value of an investment, includitigances and loans, has been reduced to zero, unlesstgearor other
funding obligations exist. We capitalize interest cosboninvestments, until such entities commence comalerc
operations. The Company monitors its equity method tmests for factors indicating other-than-temporary impairm
An impairment loss would be recognized when there has bese m value of the affiliate that is other than terapgr

Use of Estimates in Preparation of Financial Statements

The preparation of financial statements in conformitywgenerally accepted accounting principles in theddhit
States of America (“U.S. GAAP”) requires managemembaie estimates and assumptions that affect the reportaehisn
of assets and liabilities and disclosure of contingsseéts and liabilities at the date of the financakstents and the
amounts of revenues and expenses reported for the periodl Aesults could differ from estimates.

Most of our satellite manufacturing revenue is assatatth long-term contracts which require significant
estimates. These estimates include forecasts of anstschedules, estimating contract revenue relatethtact
performance (including orbital incentives) and the poaifir component obsolescence in connection with long-term
procurements. Significant estimates also include thmatstd useful lives of our satellites, other propertgnpand
equipment, and finite lived intangible assets, the falue of indefinite lived intangible assets, the fair vaifistock based
compensation, the realization of deferred tax asgatss or losses on derivative instruments and our petiallities.

Cash and Cash Equivalents, Short-term Investments and Availabledsesairities

As of December 31, 2007, the Company had $315 million of amagitash equivalents, and $24 million of restricted
cash ($13 million included in other current assets and $llibmrincluded in other assets on our consolidatedree sheet).
Cash and cash equivalents include liquid investmentsmatiarities of less than 90 days at the time of purct&isert-term
investments consist of investments whose maturityree of purchase was greater than 90 days and lessrlearear or
investments which had been long-term whose final ritgtisrless than one year from December 31. Management
determines the appropriate classification of its itnmesits at the time of purchase and at each balaee¢ date. Our
short-term investments typically include corporate bpidso dollar bonds, certificates of deposit, commerager,
Federal Agency notes and auction rate securities. Auettersecurities, long-term obligations that are sottigurchased
through an auction process for a period of 7, 28, 35 or 49 diayspnsidered to be short-term investments and assifetd
as available for sale securities. We had no auctiensecurities at December 31, 2007 and the carrying ghlug auction
rate securities as of December 31, 2006, approximatecctstirinvestments in publicly traded common stock arsitiked
as
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)

available for sale securities. Available for saleusities are carried at fair value with unrealized gaimd losses, if any,
reported in accumulated other comprehensive income.

Concentration of Credit Risk

Financial instruments which potentially subject us tocentrations of credit risk consist principally of castd cash
equivalents, foreign exchange contracts, contracts-icepsy long-term receivables and advances and loaffisdes (see
Note 8). Our cash and cash equivalents are maintairtedhigh-credit-quality financial institutions. Historlga our
customers have been primarily large multinational cefpamns and U.S. and foreign governments for whieh th
creditworthiness was generally substantial. In receatsy we have added commercial customers which are Iégielyaged,
as well as those in the development stage, some ohwahécpartially funded. Management believes that its cegdltiation,
approval and monitoring processes combined with contxblsiiling arrangements provide for effective management o
potential credit risks with regard to our current custobaese.

Receivables

As of December 31, 2006, accounts receivable were reducad d&jowance for doubtful accounts of $1.6 million.

Inventories

Inventories consist principally of parts and subass@&sbised in the manufacture of satellites which have not bee
specifically identified to contracts-in-process, anel\aalued at the lower of cost or market. Cost is detexd using the
first-in-first-out (FIFO) or average cost method. Aafcember 31, 2007 and 2006, inventory was reduced by an allowance
for obsolescence of $28.4 million and $29.6 million, respelsti

Property, Plant and Equipment

As of October 1, 2005, we adopted fresh-start accountingangroperty, plant and equipment were recorded at
their fair values using the planned future use of easit @ group of assets, quoted market prices for askete & market
exists for such assets, the expected future revenue andlpiibfitof the business unit utilizing such assets tedexpected
future life of such assets. In our determination of falug, we also considered whether an asset would beitoé
individually or with other assets and the proceeds we éxgé¢o receive from such a sale. Assumptions relatitigeto
expected future use of individual assets could affect thedaie of such assets and the depreciation expense recorded
related to such assets in the future. Depreciation wagdprbon the straight-line method for satellites analteel
equipment over the estimated useful lives of the releasets. Depreciation is provided primarily on accétetanethods
for other owned assets over the estimated useful lifieeofelated assets. Leasehold improvements ardiaetoover the
shorter of the lease term or the estimated usefubfifee improvements. Below are the estimated usefes lof our
property, plant and equipment as of December 31, 2007:

Years
Land improvements 20
10 tc
Buildings and building improvements 45
Leasehold improvements 2to1i
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 5to 1(

Costs incurred through October 30, 2007 in connection withdhstruction and successful deployment of Loral
Skynet satellites and related equipment were capital2ech costs included direct contract costs, allocat#ect costs,



launch costs, launch and in-orbit test insurance anstieection period interest. Capitalized interest relatatie¢
construction of satellites for 2007, 2006 and 2005 was $8liém$2.2 million and $0, respectively.
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LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)

All capitalized satellite costs were amortized overektimated useful life of the related satellite. Thienesed useful life
of the satellites was determined by engineering anapesésrmed at the satellite’s in-service date. Sagdiles were
reevaluated periodically based on updated engineering asialysses from unsuccessful launches and in-orhitrésilof
our satellites, net of insurance proceeds (so lorsges amounts were determinable and receipt was probable), w
recorded in the period a loss occurred (see ValuatioateflBes and Long-Lived Assets below). Satellite trandpomights,
representing the contractual right to satellitespmmder capacity for the economic life of a satelite,accounted for as
capital leases, included in fixed assets and depreciatedh@ieestimated useful life. Depreciation of satelftitansponder
rights is included in cost of satellite services. Omober 31, 2007, all Loral Skynet satellites and relatedpaugent were
contributed to Telesat Canada in connection with the de@asnada transaction (see Note 8).

Valuation of Satellites and Long-Lived Assets

The carrying values of our satellites and long-livesbtsare reviewed for impairment in accordance with SEXS
Accounting for the Impairment or Disposal of Long-lived Asséfe periodically evaluate potential impairment losatireg
to our satellites and other long-lived assets, wheraag#hin circumstances occurs, by assessing whether thi@gar
amount of these assets can be recovered over theiniegives through the future undiscounted expected cash flmvs
generated by those assets (excluding financing costisg #éxpected undiscounted future cash flows are less than the
carrying value of the long-lived asset, an impairmeatgh would be recorded based on such asset’s carryinginalue
excess of its estimated fair value. Changes in estimatesite cash flows could result in an impairment of treetm a
future period. On October 31, 2007 our satellites were cotedito Telesat Canada as part of the Telesat Canada
transaction (see Note 8).

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill represents the amount by which the Companyigasization equity value exceeded the fair value of its
tangible assets and identified intangible assets lekaliiities, as of October 1, 2005. Pursuant to the grons of
SFAS No. 142Goodwill and Other Intangible AssgtSFAS 1427), goodwill is not amortized and is subjecaih annual
impairment test which the Company performs on an annua ioetsie fourth quarter of each fiscal year. Our ¢ést
goodwill impairment for 2007 did not result in any impainhé&oodwill was allocated to our reporting units (ofiaca
segment or one level below an operating segment). SFA&tdires the Company to compare the fair value of the
reporting unit to its carrying amount on an annual basietermine if there is potential impairment. If thie falue of the
reporting unit is less than its carrying value, an impairhoss is recorded to the extent that the impliedv&lire of the
goodwill within the reporting unit is less than its carryiradue.

Intangible assets consist primarily of backlog, internddlyeloped software and technology, orbital slots (until
October 31, 2007), trade names and customer relationships@atailer 31, 2007), all of which were recorded at faineal
in connection with the adoption of fresh-start accountiing. fair values were calculated using several approdlches
encompassed the use of excess earnings, relief frontyrayead the build-up methods. The excess earnings, freliaf
royalty and build-up approaches are variations of thenrecapproach. The income approach, more commonly kaewime
discounted cash flow approach, estimates fair value basth@ @ash flows that an asset can be expected to genenaits ove
useful life. Identifiable intangible assets with finite usdfves are amortized on a straight-line basis overestimated
useful lives of the assets.

Contingencies

Contingencies by their nature relate to uncertainiiasrequire management to exercise judgment both in asgessi
the likelihood that a liability has been incurred adlas in estimating the amount of potential losany. We accrue for
costs relating to litigation, claims and other contingeatters when such liabilities become probable andnedity
estimable. Such estimates may be based on advicelinahparties or on management’s judgment,
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as appropriate. Actual amounts paid may differ from amastimated, and such differences will be charged to opesatio
in the period in which the final determination of the lidypis made.

Revenue Recognition
Satellite Manufacturing

Revenue from satellite sales under long-term fixed-pioogracts is recognized following the provisions of
Statement of Position 81-Accounting for Performance of Construction-Type and Certain Produciype Contracts
using the cost-to-cost percentage-of-completion methoceriRe includes the basic contract price and estimatedrasnou
for penalties and incentive payments, including awaed, fperformance incentives, and estimated orbitahitives
discounted to their present value at launch date. Gudtsle the development effort required for the produatio
high-technology satellites, non-recurring engineering asjdesfforts in early periods of contract performaraseywell as
the cost of qualification testing requirements. Contractsypically subject to termination for conveniencéor default. If
a contract is terminated for convenience by a custaméue to a customer’s default, we are generally edtith our costs
incurred plus a reasonable profit.

Revenue under cost-reimbursable type contracts is remmbas costs are incurred; incentive fees are estinaatd
recognized over the contract term.

U.S. government contract risks include dependence on fapmrepriations and administrative allotment of funds
and changes in government policies. Costs incurred undegbi&nment contracts are subject to audit. Management
believes the results of such audits will not have aer@teffect on Loral’s financial position or itssedts of operations.

Losses on contracts are recognized when determinesidevin profit estimates are reflected in the pemod
which the conditions that require the revision beconmynand are estimable. In accordance with industry peactic
contracts-in-process include unbilled amounts relatngpntracts and programs with long production cy@egsortion of
which may not be billable within one year.

Loral Skynet

Through the closing of the Telesat Canada transactiddctober 31, 2007, satellite capacity and networkcssv
were provided under lease and network services agreethantgenerally provided for the use of satellite trandpomand,
in certain cases, earth stations and other terkstimmunications equipment for periods generally ranfyiom one year to
the end of life of the satellite. Some of these agesgehad certain obligations, including providing spaubstitute
capacity, if available, in the event of satellitéuige. If no spare or substitute capacity was avaglathie agreement may be
terminated. Revenue under transponder lease and networtesangreements was recognized as services were pagform
provided that a contract existed, the price was fixed wrinable and collectibility was reasonably assuRevenues
under contracts that included fixed lease payment increasesecognized on a straight-line basis over thefifbe lease.

Lease contracts qualifying for capital lease treatnigpically based, among other factors, upon the tertheofease
and the transfer of substantially all of the beneiitd risks incident to the ownership of the transpondeatellite, were
accounted for as sales-type leases. For sales-tygetiamsactions, we recognized as revenue the nehpredue of the
future minimum lease payments or the cash receivedépap lease arrangements. The cost basis of the tratespoas
charged to cost of sales. During the life of thedeag recognized as interest income in each respeeiiad, that portion
of each periodic lease payment, if any, deemed to lleutittble to interest. The balance of each period&el@ayment,
representing principal repayment, was recognized eduetion of the net investment in sales-type leases.

Other terrestrial communications equipment represesttgank elements (such as antennas and transmission
equipment) necessary to enable communication betwebiplaterrestrial locations through a customer-
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selected satellite communications service providereRe® from equipment sales was recognized upon acceptart by t
customer or upon delivery, if the equipment already meiff &ifie criteria and specifications in the customer-sigeci
acceptance provision, provided that a contract exidtedprice was fixed or determinable and collectibiligsweasonably
assured. Revenues under arrangements that included batlesarnd equipment elements were allocated based on the
relative fair values of the elements of the arrangéputherwise, revenue was recognized as servicespvevaled over

the life of the arrangement.

Research and Development

Independent research and development costs, which are edenisicurred, were $37 million for 2007, $20 million
for 2006 and $7 million and $5 million for the periods framnuary 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005 and from October 2, 2005 to
December 31, 2005, respectively, and are included in sediereeral and administrative expenses in our statement of
operations.

Derivative Instruments

We follow SFAS No. 133Accounting for Derivative Instruments and Hedging Activifi&&AS 133”) as amended
and interpreted, which among other things requires thdesitative instruments be recorded on the balance ah#wstir
fair value. During December 2006 and January 2007, we enteoackitidin derivative investments to minimize our
exposure to currency fluctuations associated with our adquisit Telesat Canada (see Notes 8 and 16). On October 23,
2007, such investments were contributed to Telesat Holdparasef the Telesat Canada transaction.

Minority Interest

On November 21, 2005, Loral Skynet issued one million ohitsrhillion authorized shares of Series A 12%
non-convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value peregitlae “Loral Skynet Preferred Stock”), which were distréal in
accordance with the Plan of Reorganization.

The Loral Skynet Preferred Stock is reflected as ntinorterest on our consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2006, and dividends on Loral Skynet Preferreld &teceflected as minority interest on our consolidated
statements of operations for the years ended Dece3ib@007 and 2006 and for the period from October 2, 2005 to
December 31, 2005. On November 5, 2007 all of the issuedutstdrading shares of Loral Skynet Preferred Stock were
redeemed in connection with the completion of the Teléaahda transaction (See Note 13).

Stock-Based Compensation

Effective October 1, 2005, in connection with our adoptionesfrstart accounting, we adopted the fair value
method of accounting for stock based compensation, fetaak options granted by us after October 1, 2005, pursuant
the prospective method provisions of SFAS No. 1238Rare-Based PaymefiEFAS 123R”). Stock options granted to
non-employees are accounted for in accordance with EBbe No. 96-18\ccounting for Equity Instruments That Are
Issued to Other Than Employees for Acquiring, or in Conjunctitm 8elling, Goods or Servic€EITF 96-18"). We use
the Black-Scholes-Merton option-pricing model to meafairezalue of these stock option awards. This is the saetbod
we used in prior years for disclosure purposes. The Bbabloles-Merton model requires us to make significant judtgne
regarding the assumptions used within the model, the ngosticint of which are the stock price volatility assuraptithe
expected life of the option award, the risk-free rateetirn and dividends during the expected term.

We emerged from bankruptcy on November 21, 2005, and as a vesdib, not have sufficient stock price history
upon which to base our volatility assumption. In determittiegvolatility used in our model, we considered the dkatf
the stock prices of selected companies in the sataibiustry, the nature of those companies, our
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emergence from bankruptcy and other factors in deterghimin stock price volatility. We based our estimatthefaverage
life of a stock option using the midpoint between theingsind expiration dates as allowed by SEC Staff Accognti
Bulletin No. 107 Share-Based PaymenOur risk-free rate of return assumption for optioas Wwased on term-matching,
nominal, monthly U.S. Treasury constant maturitygae of the date of grant. We assumed no dividendsgdiiwen
expected term.

Prior to October 1, 2005, we followed the disclosure-pnbywisions of SFAS No. 14&ccounting for Stock-Based
Compensation-Transition and Disclosyf8&FAS 148"), an amendment of SFAS No. 188¢counting for Stock-Based
Compensatioff*SFAS 123"). We accounted for stock-based compensatioanfiployees using the intrinsic value method
(as defined below) as prescribed by Accounting PringiBleard Opinion No. 2%\ccounting for Stock Issued to Employees
(“APB 257), and related interpretations. Under APB 25campensation expense was recognized for employee shame opt
grants because the exercise price of the options gragteled the market price of the underlying shareseodéte of grant
(the “intrinsic value method”). We used the Black-Schdlerton option pricing model to determine the pro foefiact. If
we had used the fair value method under SFAS 123, our pnafoet loss and pro forma loss per share would not teare
materially different than reported on the accompanyimgaidated statements of operations for the period Jadu@005
to October 1, 2005.

Deferred Compensation

Pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization we entered inorddfcompensation arrangements for certain key
employees that generally vest over four years and expaesaften years. The initial deferred compensation awaes
calculated by multiplying $9.44 by the number of shareswfroon stock underlying the stock options granted to tkege
employees (see Note 13). We are accreting the liabiliugh charges to expense over the vesting period. Theedkefer
compensation cost charged to expense, net of estimateduias, was $6.4 million and $3.2 million for the yeanded
December 31, 2007 and 2006 and $0.2 million for the period Q202605 to December 31, 2005. As of December 31,
2007, there was $2.5 million of unrecognized deferred compendghat will be charged to expense over the remaining
vesting period. The value of the deferred compensation nwdipeelepending on stock price performance within a defined
range, until the occurrence of certain events, incluttiegexercise of the related stock options and vestingedgelerate if
there is a change of control as defined. In connectidntivi Telesat Canada transaction which closed on Octob20(32,
deferred compensation cost of $2.6 million was chargedpense due to accelerated vesting from change in control
provisions.

Income Taxes

Loral Space & Communications Inc. and its subsidiaaiessubject to U.S. federal, state and local incaxetion
on their worldwide income and foreign taxation onaiertncome from sources outside the United States. dteGzmada is
subject to tax in Canada and other jurisdictions andl kaliaprovide in operating earnings any additional U.&rent or
deferred tax required on distributions or deemed distributiereived from Telesat Canada.

Deferred income taxes reflect the future tax effe¢ewfporary differences between the carrying amountsgftas
and liabilities for financial and income tax reportergd are measured by applying statutory tax rates in effetlid year
during which the differences are expected to reverseridef tax assets are reduced by a valuation allowance &xtbnt it
is more likely than not that the deferred tax asselswilbe realized. Any reduction to the balance ofiaation
allowance as of October 1, 2005 will first reduce googhatiid then other intangible assets with any excessdrasatan
increase to paid-in-capital (see Note 12).

Effective January 1, 2007, we adopted the Financial Accayiandards Board (“FASB”) Interpretation No. 48,
Accounting for Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation ofBF8tatement No. 1Q9FIN 48”). FIN 48 clarifies the
accounting for uncertainty in income taxes recognirea gompany’s financial statements and prescribesogmgon
threshold and measurement attribute for the finastaement recognition and
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measurement of tax positions taken or expected to be itaketax return. For benefits to be recognized in thecial
statements, a tax position must be more-likely-thartaebe sustained upon examination by the taxing autestiased on
the technical merits of the position. The amount recaghig measured as the largest amount of benefit tgegaser than
50 percent likely of being realized upon ultimate settlenidmg. interpretation also provides guidance on de-recognition
classification, interest and penalties, accountingtierim periods, disclosure and transition. The Compatggrézes
accrued interest and penalties related to uncertain tatkgpasin income tax expense.

Prior to adopting FIN 48, our policy was to maintain tamtrmency liabilities for potential audit issues. The ta
contingency liabilities were based on our estimatd@fprobable amount of additional taxes that may be due ifutihre.
Any additional taxes due would be determined only upon completioarrent and future federal, state and international tax
audits. At December 31, 2006, we had $42.6 million of taxirgency liabilities included in long-term liabilities.
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Additional Cash Flow Information

The following represents non-cash activities and supgiéahinformation to the consolidated statements st ca
flows (in thousands):

Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Non-cash operating items:
Gain on contribution of Loral Skynet $ (104,94) % — — $ —
Gain on discharge of pre-petition
obligations and fresh-start adjustmen — — — (1,101,453
Gain on sale of discontinued operations
net of tax — — — (13,967
Equity in net losses of affiliates 21,43( 7,163 5,441 2,79¢
Satmex settlement — (18,605 — —
Minority interest 23,24( 24,79 2,667 (126)
Deferred taxes 32,20¢ 9,10¢ — (16,134
Depreciation and amortization 76,91( 68,30( 16,02 61,27
Stock based compensation 26,34 2,997 — —
Impairment of cost basis investment — 3,00C — —
Provisions for inventory obsolescence 543 1,67¢ 1,52¢ 2,127
Warranty expense accruals (accrual
reversals) (18,879 12,18( 2,704 11,85(
(Recoveries of) provisions for bad debts
billed receivables (1,917 356 953 (2,880
Adjustment to revenue straightlining
assessment (204) — 46 1,031
Write-off of construction in process 2,164
Loss on equipment disposals — — — 3,45¢€
Loss on extinguishment of debt 16,15¢ — — —
Curtailment gain (1,68¢€) — — —
Amortization of prior service credit and
actuarial gains (3,28%) — — —
Gain on disposition of an orbital slot (3,600 (1,149 — —
Gain on disposition of available for sale
securities (11,08¢) (7,09¢) — —
Non-cash net interest and (gain) loss or
foreign currency transactions and
contracts (89,364 5,86: — 693
Net non-cash operating items $ (3597) $ 108,58: % 29,36¢ $ (1,051,330
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Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Non-cash financing activities:
Issuance of Preferred stock by subsidiary i
payment for dividend $ 23,34: $ 14,26( $ — $ —
Issuance of Loral Series-1 Preferred Stock
payment for dividend $ 14,40C $ — $ — $ =
Accrued dividend on Series A-1 and
Series B-1 Preferred Stock $ 4,97¢ $ — $ — $ —
Increase in restricted cash related to debt
proceeds $ — $ = $ — $ 98,73¢
Supplemental information:
Interest paid $ 24,891 $ 17,921 $ 15,54¢ $ —
Taxes paid, net of refunds $ 5,292 $ 6,36¢ $ (418) $ 2,16¢€
Cash (paid) received for reorganization ite|
Professional fees $ (160) $ (9,58) $ (9,650) $ (17,533
Employee retention costs $ (4,790
Restructuring costs $ (740) $ (55)
Interest income $ 2,53¢
Vendor settlement $ (432)

New Accounting Pronouncements
SFAS 157

In September 2006, the FASB issued SFAS No. E&ir,Value Measuremen{§SFAS 157”), to define fair value,
establish a framework for measuring fair value in agaoce with U.S. GAAP and expand disclosures about faieval
measurements. SFAS 157 requires quantitative disclosuresausibglar format in all periods (interim and annual) and
qualitative disclosures about the valuation techniques useddsure fair value in all annual periods. The provisibrtisis
statement are required to be adopted as of January 1, 2068 fxahe provisions relating to non-financial assetd
liabilities measured at fair value on a nonrecurringshdsr which the effective date has been deferred dawiuary 1, 2009.
We do not believe the adoption of SFAS 157 will have @&ri@timpact on the manner in which we measure fair véluie,
it may require additional disclosures.



SFAS 159

In February 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. T%@ Fair Value Option for Financial Assets and Financial
Liabilities ("SFAS 159”). SFAS 159 expands opportunities to use fair vakesurements in financial reporting and permits
entities to choose to measure many financial instrimand certain other items at fair value. SFAS 15%i#testive for us
on January 1, 2008 and we did not elect the fair valuerofeifcany of our qualifying financial instruments.
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SFAS 141R

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. 141 (revised B@sipess CombinatiorfsSSFAS 141R”).
SFAS 141R broadens the guidance of SFAS 141, extending itsaplity to all transactions and other events in Whooe
entity obtains control over one or more other busiegslt broadens the fair value measurement and réicogof assets
acquired, liabilities assumed, and interests transferradesilt of business combinations. SFAS 141R expands onegqui
disclosures to improve the statement users’ abilitievaluate the nature and financial effects of busio@sbinations.
SFAS 141R requires the acquirer to recognize as an adjustrienome tax expense, changes in the valuation all@vanc
for acquired deferred tax assets. SFAS 141R is effectivdéoCompany on January 1, 2009. We are currently atuady
the impact of adopting SFAS 141R.

SFAS 160

In December 2007, the FASB issued SFAS No. Na®-controlling Interests in Consolidated Financial
Statements — an amendment of ARB N@"SHAS 1607). SFAS 160 requires that a non-controllingriest in a subsidiary
be reported as equity and the amount of consolidatedecmhe specifically attributable to the non-contrglinterest be
identified in the consolidated financial statements.sib &hlls for consistency in the manner of reportirandes in the
parent’s ownership interest and requires fair value meammt of any non-controlling equity investment retdiimea
deconsolidation. SFAS 160 is effective for the Companyamuary 1, 2009. We are currently evaluating the impact
adopting SFAS 160 will have on our consolidated finanteéements.

4. Fresh-Start Accounting

On August 1, 2005, the Bankruptcy Court entered its Contiiom®rder confirming the Company’s Plan of
Reorganization. On September 30, 2005, the Federal Comrtiongc€ommission (“FCC”) approved the transfer of FCC
licenses from Old Loral to New Loral, which represertedsatisfaction of the last material condition pdece to the
Debtors’ emergence from bankruptcy. Our emergence frioaptér 11 proceedings on November 21, 2005 resulted in a new
reporting entity and adoption of fresh-start accountirgcirordance with SOP 90-7 as of October 1, 2005, asteeflecthe
following financial information. Reorganization adjustrteehave been made in the financial information teotfihe
discharge of certain pre-petition liabilities and the adwoptif fresh-start accounting. These adjustments werel bass the
relative fair values of our assets and liabilities ancevii@alized during 2006.
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CONDENSED CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (a)

Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts receivable, net
Contracts-in-process
Inventories
Other current assets

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net
Long-term receivables
Investments in and advances to affiliate
Deposits
Goodwill
Other assets

LIABILITIES AND SHAREHOLDERS' (DEFICIT) EQUITY

Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued employment costs
Customer advances and billings in exce
of costs and profits
Interest payable
Vendor financing payable
Income taxes payable
Other current liabilities

Total current liabilities
Pension and other postretirement liabilities
Long-term liabilities
Long-term debt

Total liabilities
Liabilities subject to compromise
Minority interest
Shareholders’ equity:
Common stock, par value $.01 and Paic
capital
Other
Accumulated (deficit) retained earnings

Total shareholders’ (deficit) equity

Predecessor Plan
October 1, Reorganization
2005 Adjustments
(in millions)
ASSETS
$ 198.7 $ =
14.4 —
914 —
45.E —
41.3 97.5(b)
391.¢ 97.5
536.5 (3.5) (i)
67.€ —
53.7 —
9.8 —
42.1 2.1(b)(j)
$ 1,101.( $ 96.1

$ 36.1 $ 45.1(c)(h)
33.¢ 0.5(c)
108.Z 24.9(c)(h)
— 19.1(c)(h)
— 37.1(c)(h)
— 0.8(c)
25.5 17.8(0)(h)
203.¢ 145.4
— 156.€(c)
84.5 34.6(c)
— 103.4(b)
288.4 440.C
1,914.( (1,914.0 (¢)
2.3 200.((b)
3,397. 642.%(d)
(93.6) —
(4,407.) 727 .§(c)(d)
(1,103.) 1,370.1
$ 1,101 $ 96.1

Fresh-Start Successor
Valuation October 1,
Adjustments

(e) 2005

$ — $ 198.7

— 14.4

(14.9) 77.1

— 45.E

3.4 142.2

(10.9) 477.¢

0.2 533.2

(23.9) 43.¢

56.3 110.C

— 9.8

340.1(g) 340.1

126.7 170.¢

$ 488.€ $ 1,685.7

$ 1.2 $ 82.14

— 34.4

(3.2) 130.1

— 19.1

— 37.1

— 0.8

(1.7) 41.7

(3.7) 345.€

78.2 234.¢

40.E 159.¢€

— 103.4

115.C 843.4

(2.3) 200.C

(3,397.9) () 642.%

93.§(f) —

3,679.%(f) —

375.¢€ 642.5

$ 488.¢€ $ 1,685.7
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(@ The Condensed Consolidated Balance Sheet refleetsrganization enterprise value of $970 millioséié on the Bankruptcy Court's
determination (see Note 2), which, after reducfanthe fair value of the Loral Skynet Notes andadld&kynet Preferred Stock (see Notes 10 and
13), results in a reorganization equity value giragimately $642 million. This results in goodwéitjual to the excess of reorganization equity
value over fair value of identifiable net assets.

(b) Reflects $98.7 million of proceeds from the rigbtfering of Loral Skynet Notes held in escrow a®atober 1, 2005, and the related deferred
debt issuance costs of $4.7 million and $200 nmiltdd Loral Skynet Preferred Stock issued pursuatiié Plan of Reorganization (see Notes 10

and 13).

(c) Reflects the discharge of pre-petition liabilitiraccordance with the Plan of Reorganization &edéclassification of the remaining liabilities
subject to compromise to the appropriate liab#itgounts in accordance with the Plan of ReorganizaDischarge of Loral's pre-petition
liabilities is summarized as follows (in millions):

Exchanged for stock $ 1,298.(
Cancelled 292.2
Reinstated and/or paid in cash 323.¢

$ 1,914.(

Additionally, in accordance with the Plan of Rearigation, holders of claims to be paid in cash weiel interest at the rate of 6% per annum for
the period from the petition date to the Effectdvate of the Plan of Reorganization. This interést13.2 million was recorded as interest expense
for the period ended October 1, 2005.

(d) Reflects the issuance of New Loral common stogbréspetition creditors and the gain on the dischargliabilities subject to compromise.
(e) Reflects changes to carrying values of assetsiahitities to reflect estimated fair values.

® Reflects the revaluation gain and the eliminatibthe retained deficit and other equity balances.

(9) Reflects goodwill equal to the excess of reorgafneequity value over the estimated fair valuédeftifiable net assets.

(h) Amounts payable upon emergence are included ireouliabilities.
@ Reflects agreement to return certain fixed asseteftlement of certain pre-petition obligations.

0] Reflects elimination of deferred charges relateth&Old Loral debt and preferred stock, which wdiseharged in accordance with the Plan of
Reorganization.

Liabilities subject to compromise included debt@mts payable, accrued expenses and other liebititat were discharged as part of our
emergence from bankruptcy. Creditors receivedibigions consisting of cash, debt, preferred stmatt common stock in settlement of their
bankruptcy claims. The ratio of cash, debt, prefistock and common stock that individual crediter®ived depended upon the priority of the
claim allowed for each creditor. We recorded a gairthe estimated settlement of these liabilities727.8 million (including interest expense and
tax benefit) in the period January 1, 2005 to Oetdh 2005.

As a result of the above we recognized the follgwin millions):

Gain on discharge of pre-petition obligations $ 727.€
Gain on fresh-start valuation adjustments 375.€
Total gain on discharge of pre-petition obligatiamsl fresh-start adjustments 1,103.7
Add interest expense to holders of claims paidaishc 13.2
Less tax benefit on Plan of Reorganization anchfigtart valuation adjustments (15.4)
Total gain on discharge of pre-petition obligatiemal fresh-start adjustments excluding intereseegp and income tax benefit $ 1,101t



The allocation of the reorganization equity value toviallial assets and liabilities was adjusted in 2006 during the
completion of the fair valuation process.
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5.  Accumulated Other Comprehensive Income (Loss)

The components of accumulated other comprehensive ingoss¢ and other comprehensive income (loss) are as
follows (in thousands):

Accumulated Other

Comprehensive Other Comprehensive Income (loss)
Income (Loss) Predecessor
Successor Registrant Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
2005 to 2005 to
Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2007 2006 2005 2005
Cumulative translation adjustment $ 498 $ 287 $ 211 % 2712 $ 15 $ (222)
Derivatives classified as cash flow
hedges, net of taxes:
Reclassifications into revenues,
cost of sales and income taxe
from other comprehensive
income (487)

Unrealized net gains (losses) on
derivatives (487)

Unrealized gains (losses) on
available-for-sale securities, net

taxes 6,987 9,837 (2,850) 9,837 (99)
Reclassification adjustment for gai

included in net income (6,54¢€) (6,54¢€)
Pension actuarial gains and prior

service credit, net of taxes 40,07z 10,121
Reclassification due to amortizatic

and contribution of Loral Skynet (4,494 — (4,499 — — —
Adjustment to initially appl

SFAS 158, net of tax 29,951
Total $ 36,517 $ 40,07t $ (3559 $ 10,10¢ $ 15 | $ (808)

Accumulated other comprehensive income (loss) is shatiof taxes of $23.0 million and $26.0 million as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

In our previously issued financial statements for ther ymded December 31, 2006 and in the related notes, we
disclosed and included the $30.0 million adjustment to ihitegdply SFAS 158Employers Accounting for Defined Benefit
Pension and Other Postretirement Plans the caption “Other Comprehensive Income.” Tdggdtion includes changes in
equity that are part of other comprehensive incom#é®iperiod. We based that presentation on our interpretitite
principles in SFAS 13@®eporting Comprehensive Incomehich requires accounting changes to be included in
comprehensive income for the period. Subsequently, wearteeaware that transition provisions of SFAS 158 required t
this cumulative effect be presented as a direct adjustméme t'ending balance of Accumulated Other Comprehensiv
Income” rather than as part of comprehensive incamt period. Consequently, the amount reported undeagtmsn
“Other Comprehensive Income” for 2006 should have beeri $iillion, rather than the $40.1 million we reported. The
difference, $30.0 million, should have been reported aseatdicrease of accumulated other comprehensive imeathin
equity. The amount reported as “Comprehensive Income2@d06 should have been $(12.6) million rather than the
$17.3 million we reported. We have restated our presenfati@06 in the consolidated statement of shareholdgtstye



to correct this error. This correction only affects thsplay of the cumulative effect of the adoption of SBAS within the
consolidated statement of shareholders’ equity and dutesthrerwise affect our consolidated financial statgse
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6. Contracts-in-Process and Long-Term Receivables
Contracts-in-Process

Contracts-in-Process consists of (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006

U.S. government contracts:
Amounts billed $ 193 $ 983
Unbilled receivables 1,16€ 1,544
1,35¢ 2,527

Commercial contracts:

Amounts billed 60,35¢ 17,30¢
Unbilled receivables 47,662 20,60(
108,017 37,90¢

$ 109,37¢ $ 40,43:

Unbilled amounts include recoverable costs and accrued pngfitogress completed, which have not been billed.
Such amounts are billed in accordance with the corteaus, typically upon shipment of the product, achieveroent
contractual milestones, or completion of the contaact, at such time, are reclassified to billed retd@s Fresh-start fair
value adjustments relating to contracts-in-process aoetized on a percentage of completion basis as performaies
the related contract is completed.

Long-Term Receivables

Billed receivables relating to long-term contractsexected to be collected within one year. We classiir o
billings and the orbital component of unbilled recelealexpected to be collected beyond one year as longfeesh-start
fair value adjustments relating to long-term receivablee amortized on the effective interest method theelife of the
related orbital stream.

Receivable balances related to satellite orbitadntiee payments and billings deferred as of December 31, 2807 a
scheduled to be received as follows (in thousands):

Long-Term

_Receivables

2008 $ 2,25C
2009 2,64(
2010 8,16¢
2011 10,347
2012 9,85:
Thereafter 101,39:
134,65(

Less, current portion included in contracts-in-process (2,250



Long-term receivables $ 132,40(

Amortization of fresh-start accounting fair value atfjusnts relating to contracts-in-process, long-terceiv@bles,
customer advances and billings in excess of costs andspaofitdeferred revenue was $(4.7) million, $(18.2) million and
$(7.9) million in 2007, 2006 and for the period October 2, 26@3ecember 31, 2005, respectively.
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7. Property, Plant and Equipment (see Note 3)

Property, Plant & Equipment consists of (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Land and land improvements $ 26,79¢ $ 27,53:
Buildings 49,917 53,57
Leasehold improvements 8,691 6,434
Satellites in-orbit, including satellite transponder rigbft $136.7 million in 2006 — 386,19¢
Satellite under construction — 59,08t
Earth stations — 18,141
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 94,84« 76,78
Other construction in progress 18,552 18,167

198,80: 645,91t
Accumulated depreciation and amortization (50,975 (87,036

$ 147,82¢ $ 558,87¢

Depreciation and amortization expense for property, pladtequipment was $62.8 million in 2007, $69.7 million in
2006, and $17.7 million and $58.6 million for the periods Oct@b&005 to December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 to
October 1, 2005, respectively. Accumulated depreciation aodiaation as of December 31, 2006 included $16.7 million
related to satellite transponders where Loral hadigiwsrto transponders for the remaining life of thatesl satellite.

In January 2004, our Telstar 14/Estrela do Sul-1 (‘EDS”) g&tsINorth solar array only partially deployed after
launch, diminishing the power and life expectancy of thellga. SS/L had submitted to its insurers a claamaf total
constructive loss of the satellite, seeking recoverytfelinsured value of $250 million. At the end of March 2@0d,
satellite began commercial service with substantraijuced available transponder capacity and with an expéeted |
reduced to 2010. During March 2004, we recorded an impairmemfecbb$12 million to reduce the carrying value of the
satellite and related assets to the expected proceedsnfsarance of $250 million. On May 10, 2005, the Bankruptcy tCour
approved the terms of a settlement arrangement bet8@&nand the insurers pursuant to which SS/L would lwe§226
of the insured amount and the insurers would waive ghysrthey may have to obtain title to EDS as a re$ylayment on
the insurance claim. As of October 1, 2005, SS/L haelwved $205 million in insurance proceeds, representing the ful
settlement amount, from the insurers.

In September 2006, Loral Skynet terminated a customasselld interests with respect to two transponders on
Telstar 18 by exercising its option to accelerate thgeléarmination payment that would otherwise have beembfEapy
Loral Skynet to the customer in August 2009. In connectitin tive early termination, Loral Skynet made a paymettie
customer of $9.1 million. As a result, our long-term liéibs as of December 31, 2006 included $21.2 million fordeas
termination obligations, reflecting the reduction of finesent value of our lease termination obligation uporexercise of
the acceleration option. Loral Skynet's remaining leagmination obligations consist of a payment of $18.lianilin 2008
for four transponders and a payment of $9.1 million fortransponders in 2009. We recorded a charge to Satelliie&e
cost of sales of $1.0 million in connection with this temt®n, which represents the difference betweenadgmpnt made
and the present value of our lease termination obligticine two transponders at the date of the trarsactihis lease
termination obligation was assumed by Telesat Canadanirection with the Telesat Canada transaction.

On August 17, 2006, The Boeing Company (“Boeing”) deliveredotalLlSkynet a termination notice pursuant to
which all the transponders leased by it on our Estrelautlsa®ellite were to be terminated by December 31, 2006. O
September 29, 2006, an affiliate of Boeing signed an agreéewtar_oral Skynet to lease
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transponder capacity on Estrela do Sul for a period of @ithm beginning January 2007 and ending August 2008, with an
option to renew the contract for two consecutive yeae periods. To exercise the termination option, Bopaid a
termination fee of $14.9 million on September 29, 2006. Thisitetion fee has been recognized as Revenue from &atelli
Services in our consolidated statement of operati@806. In addition, Boeing prepaid $4.0 million for futsesvices

under the September 2006 agreement.

On October 31, 2007 Loral Skynet's satellites in-orbiglste under construction and related equipment were
contributed to Telesat Canada in connection with the de@snada transaction.

8. Investments in Affiliates

Investments in affiliates consist of (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Telesat Holdings Inc. $ 479,57¢ $ —
XTAR, LLC 86,611 97,20z
$ 566,19¢ $ 97,20
Equity in net losses of affiliates consists of (in thowsy:
Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Telesat Holdings Inc. $ (1,792 $ — $ — $ —
XTAR, LLC (10,585 (7,417 (5,382 (2,796
Globalstar, L.P. and Globalstar service prov
partnerships (9,059 250 — —
Other — — (63) —
$ (21,430 $ (7,169 $ (5,447 | $ (2,796)

The consolidated statements of operations refleatffieets of the following amounts related to transastiwith or

investments in affiliates (in thousands):

Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Revenues $ 21,96¢ $ 11,26% $ 4,14¢ $ 10,02¢
Elimination of Loral’s proportionate share of 1,93t 412 (2,949 593



(profits) losses relating to affiliate
transactions
Profits (losses) relating to affiliate transactio
not eliminated (2,082 (324) 2,31¢ (466)
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Telesat Canada

On December 16, 2006, a subsidiary of Telesat Holdco, ajemtire formed by Loral and its Canadian partner,
PSP entered into a definitive agreement (the “SharénBsecAgreement”) with BCE and Telesat Canada to actioi
of the stock of Telesat Canada from BCE for CAD 3.25duill\MWe hold equity interests in Telesat Holdco reprasgdd%
of the economic interests and 883 % of the voting interests. Our Canadian partner, R8s 36% of the economic
interests and 66/ 3 % of the voting interests in Telesat Holdco (exceph watspect to the election of directors as to which it
holds a 30% voting interest).

Contribution of Loral Skynet

In connection with the transactions contemplated un@eStare Purchase Agreement, on August 7, 2007, we and
Loral Skynet entered into an asset transfer agreententAsset Transfer Agreement”) with Telesat Holdmogd an asset
purchase agreement (the “Asset Purchase Agreemetit”avgubsidiary of Telesat Canada. Pursuant to the Asaetf@r
Agreement, we agreed, subject to certain exceptiongriefér substantially all of Loral Skynet's assetsratated
liabilities to Telesat Canada in return for an equitgriest in Telesat Holdco. In addition, pursuant to tegefPurchase
Agreement, we agreed to transfer certain of Loral Skymassets located in the U.S. and related lialslitiethe Telesat
Canada subsidiary in exchange for $25.5 million in marketsderities. On August 7, 2007, we, Loral Skynet, PSP,
Telesat Holdco and a subsidiary of Telesat Holdco adsered into an Ancillary Agreement providing, amongeotinings,
for the settlement of payments by and among us, PSPeakesal Holdco in connection with the Telesat Canada sitiqni
the transactions contemplated under the Asset Trafigfeement, and related transactions. As a resulteesived true-up
payments of $45 million from PSP in 2007 to bring the equibtrébutions into the required economic positions. As pf
the Telesat Canada transaction, a final adjustmemiguatyof approximately $9 million was made by Loral to BSRpril
4, 2008 and is included as a payable in our financiamstits as of December 31, 2007.

The Telesat Canada transaction closed on October 31, 2007.

Summary balance sheet information for the assets aitities of Loral Skynet contributed to Telesat Canala
October 31, 2007 is as follows (in millions):

Current assets $ 254
Property, plant and equipment, net 443.¢
Foreign currency contracts 83.€
Goodwiill 42.2
Intangible assets, net 50.4
Other assets 3.2
Total assets $ 648.€
Current liabilities $ 181.1
Long-term liabilities 27.C
Total liabilities $ 208.1
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The following summarizes the gain on the contributiosulfstantially all of the Loral Skynet assets anatteel
liabilities on October 31, 2007:

Consideration received for the contribution of Loral Skyio Telesat Holdco:

Cash and marketable securities $ 61t
Fair value of equity in Telesat Holdco 670.5
Total consideration 732.C
Book value of contributed net assets of Loral Skynet 440.5
Consideration in excess of book value $ 291.t
Gain recognized $ 104.¢

The consideration we received for the contribution oftuttially all of the Loral Skynet assets and related
liabilities was $292 million greater than the carryintuesof those assets and liabilities. In accordande BITF 01-2,
Interpretations of APB Opinion No. 2%ve recognized a gain of $105 million, representing tirea&ibutable to PSP’s
economic interest in the contributed assets and liakildf Loral Skynet through their 36% ownership intereStalesat
Canada. Loral will have a significant continuing ietgrin Telesat Canada and can only recognize a gaie &xtant of
PSP’s economic interest in the contributed assets alitities of Loral Skynet. The amount recorded as oustment in
Telesat Canada is based on our retained interest Imstioeical book value of the contributed assets arniities of Loral
Skynet and the gain recognized.

Following the transfer of the assets of Loral Skynfxsd satellite services business pursuant to the Asaasfer
Agreement and Asset Purchase Agreement, Telesat Caoadaperates a fleet of twelve in-orbit satellitedwtitree
satellites under construction (two by SS/L), of whisb tire 100% leased. Telesat Canada provides fixed sateltiees
(FSS) on a global basis, including video distributiod dinect-to-home (DTH) video, as well as end-to-endroomications
services using both satellite and hybrid satellimigd networks.

The following table presents summary financial datalfelesat Canada, as of December 31, 2007 and for thel perio
October 31, 2007 to December 31, 2007, subsequent to the aogugitioral and PSP (in millions):

For the Period

October 31,
2007
to December 31,

Statement of Operations Data: 2007
Revenues $ 117.¢
Operating expenses (93.7)
Operating income 24.1
Net loss (1.3
Balance Sheet Data: December 31, 2007
Current assets $ 143.7
Total assets 5,610.(
Current liabilities 229.E
Total liabilities 4,156.7

Redeemable preferred stock 143.1



Shareholders’ equity 1,310.2
We use the equity method of accounting for our investinenélesat Canada because we own 88% of the

voting stock, and do not exercise control via other mdamral’s equity in net loss of Telesat Canada is thaseour
proportionate share of its results in accordance with GAAP and in U.S. dollars. Our proportionate share of
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Telesat Canada’s net loss is based on our 64% econom@siras our holdings consist of common stock andvoting
participating preferred shares that have all the right®mmon stock with respect to dividends, return of cagitdlsurplus
distributions but have no voting rights.

The contribution of Loral Skynet to Telesat Canada hes becorded by Loral at historical book value of our
retained interest combined with the gain as describedealtiowever, the contribution has been recorded by Telasaida
at fair value. Accordingly, the amortization of faalue adjustments applicable to the Loral Skynet assdtabilities
have been proportionately eliminated in determining oaresbf the earnings of Telesat Canada. Our equity inehless
of Telesat Canada also reflects the elimination of ooiitpto the extent of our economic interest, on §itdslwe are
constructing for them.

See Note 12 for the impact on income taxes of the TigB=maada transaction and our investment in Telesat Canada.

XTAR

We own 56% of XTAR, L.L.C. (“XTAR”), a joint venture beeen us and Hisdesat Servicios Estrategicos, S.A.
(“Hisdesat”) of Spain. We account for our investmenXiAR under the equity method of accounting because wetlo n
control certain of its significant operating decisioDsr interest in XTAR has been retained by Loral and mot
transferred to Telesat Canada as part of the Tel=satda transaction.

XTAR owns and operates an X-band satellite, XTAR-EWRaled at 29 E.L., which entered service in March
2005. The satellite is designed to provide X-band commiioitsaservices exclusively to United States, Spanishadlied
government users throughout the satellite’s coverage achading Europe, the Middle East and Asia. The governient
Spain granted XTAR rights to an X-band license, normalgrved for government and military use, to develop a
commercial business model for supplying X-band capatisppport of military, diplomatic and security communications
requirements. XTAR also leases up to eight 72 MHz X-beartsponders on the Spainsat satellite located av2Q..,
owned by Hisdesat, which entered commercial service il 2p0i6. These transponders, designated as XTAR-LANT,
allow XTAR to provide its customers in the U.S. and abrwith additional X-band services and greater flexibili

In January 2005, Hisdesat provided XTAR with a convertible Indghe amount of $10.8 million due 2011, for
which Hisdesat received enhanced governance rights in XTfAfRsdesat were to convert the loan into XTAR equayr
equity interest in XTAR would be reduced to 51%.

XTAR's lease obligation to Hisdesat for the XTAR-LANfBnsponders are $13.2 million in 2007, growing to
$23 million per year in 2008 with increases thereaftermmaimum of $28 million per year through the end of theulsef
life of the satellite. Under this lease agreement, Istimay also be entitled under certain circumstancashare of the
revenues generated on the XTAR-LANT transponders. XTsAguirently making limited payments under its lease
agreement with Hisdesat. Hisdesat has agreed to defengsrdue from XTAR until March 31, 2008.

In May 2005, XTAR signed a contract with the U.S. Departroéftate for the lease of transponder capacity for a
period of three years with two one-year options. TheeRepartment is authorized pursuant to its procuregwedelines
to lease up to $137.0 million for a specified capacity urdsrcbntract, to the extent that capacity is availaieof
December 31, 2007, the U.S. Department of State has ctadnutlease three transponders under this contrachdhavi
total lease value of $30.2 million, and has the rightsaiption, to renew the leases for additional terugch, if fully
exercised, would bring the total value of the leas&882 million. There can be no assurance as to how nfiaty,i
additional capacity the U.S. Department of State maseldrom XTAR under this contract. XTAR also has @mt to
provide services to the U.S. Department of DefengeSthanish Ministry of Defense, the Belgium Ministrybaffense and
the Danish armed forces.
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XTAR entered into a Launch Services Agreement wittadespace, S.A. (“Arianespace”) providing for launch of its
satellite on Arianespace’s Ariane 5 ECA launch vehigi@anespace provided a one-year, $15.8 million, 10%este
paid-in-kind (i.e., paid in additional debt) loan for a mrtof the launch price, secured by certain of XTA&Ssets,
including the XTAR-EUR satellite, ground equipment and righthie orbital slot. The remainder of the launcleeri
consisted of a revenue-based fee to be paid over tim& AjRXThrough a series of amendments to the loan agregme
XTAR and Arianespace agreed to extend the maturityafates loan to September 30, 2007. As part of thesedments,
XTAR agreed to make scheduled and excess cash payment] as foregoing the ability to incur secured deth the
Arianespace collateral. The loan, including accrued irteses paid in full by XTAR on July 6, 2007. On February 29,
2008, XTAR paid Arianespace $1.54 million representing thermes-based fee through December 31, 2007.

The following table presents summary financial data<fbAR as of December 31, 2007 and 2006 and for each of
the three years in the period ended December 31, 2007 (iarsjtli

Statement of Operations Data:

Year Ended
December 31,
2007 2006 2005
Revenues $ 194 $ 15.3 $ 94
Operating expenses (5.0 (6.7) (4.0)
Operating loss (14.4) (8.6) (5.9)
Net loss (18.4) (12.€) (9.6)

Balance Sheet Data:

December 31,

2007 2006
Current assets $ 8.9 $ 64
Total assets 124.¢€ 132.1
Current liabilities 29.6 20.1
Total liabilities 64.4 53.2
Members’ equity 60.5 78.€

Satmex

In 1997, in connection with the privatization of SatelMeExicanos, S.A. de C.V. (“Satmex”) by the Mexican
Government of its satellite services business, Lomgliaed a 49% indirect economic interest in Satmex, wiveh
accounted for using the equity method.

On June 14, 2005, certain of our subsidiaries, including Skynet and SS/L, entered into a settlement agreement
with Satmex to settle certain liabilities between thémnhe third quarter of 2005, Loral Skynet recorded income of
$4.6 million representing the reversal of reservesaaeduals recorded in previous periods related to thigsent
agreement.

On August 11, 2006, Satmex filed a voluntary petition for reorgdion under Chapter 11 in the U.S. Bankruptcy
Court to implement its restructuring plan. Satmex emerged @bapter 11 on November 30, 2006. As a result of the
restructuring that was implemented in its reorganingbimceeding, our equity interest in Satmex was reduce@38al.
Satmex is accounted for as a cost basis investmesgcudnt to November 30, 2006.



In connection with Satmex’s restructuring, and as a setdtlieof certain liabilities owed by Satmex to SS/L punsua
to the June 14, 2005 settlement agreement, we receividdvember 30, 2006, asufructoto four transponders on Satmex
6. A usufructois a property right under Mexican law which grants thdérca right to use

F-29




LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)

the subject property. SS/L assigned its rights tafufructoto Loral Skynet in consideration of a cash payment gqubk
fair value of the four Satmex 6 transponders. As a resthie finalization of Satmex’s restructuring plan ie tourth
quarter of 2006, we recorded satellite transponder rigtfi2@million representing the fair value of the fournsax 6
transponders, a $19 million reduction to cost of satelldaufacturing and deferred revenue of $1 million.

At the same time that we received tisaifructoto the Satmex 6 transponders, Loral Skynet's endeofddse for
three transponders on Satmex 5 was also convertedgsidraicto. The Satmex 5 and Satmexi$ufructorights have been
transferred to Telesat Canada as part of the Telssaida transaction. The equity interest in Satmexamest by Loral.

Other

On April 14, 2004, Globalstar, L.P. announced the completidts financial restructuring following the formal
acquisition of its main business operations and assdikdiyno Capital Partners LLC (“Thermo”), effectivebsulting in
Globalstar, L.P. exiting from bankruptcy. Thermo irtees$43 million in the newly formed Globalstar company
(“Globalstar Inc.”) in exchange for an 81.25% equity intensgh the remaining 18.75% of the equity to be distridute
the creditors of Globalstar, L.P. Our share of tipaity interest was approximately 2.7% of Globalstar Imcwhich we
assigned no value. On November 1, 2006, Globalstar Inc. etedmn initial public offering, at which time we owned
1,609,896 shares of Globalstar Inc. We agreed not t@@%lof our Globalstar Inc. holdings for at least 180 dali@wing
the completion of its offering. As of December 31, 2007pwaed 43,200 shares of Globalstar Inc. which are accotorted
as available-for-sale securities. Unrealized gainthese shares were $0.4 million, net of taxes as of Dese81, 2007.

As of December 31, 2007, the Company held various indwaership interests in three foreign companies that
currently serve as exclusive service providers for &kibr service in Brazil, Mexico and Russia. The Comgaxcounts
for these ownership interests using the equity methadamunting. Loral had written-off its investments in thesmpanies,
and, because we have no future funding requirementsgetatthese investments, there is no requirement ftw povide
for our allocated share of these companies net ldSeethe year ended December 31, 2007, the Company reedgniz
earnings of $3.0 million from our Globalstar investmgarttnerships which were attributable to a cash distribugoeived
from one of our investments.

On December 21, 2007, Loral and certain of its subsidian@®aASA Globalstar LLC entered into an agreement to
sell their respective interests in Globalstar do Biagl. (“GdB”), the Globalstar Brazilian service proer, to Globalstar
Inc. Closing of the transaction occurred on March 25, 2B0Bsuant to the sale agreement, Loral received 883,38%sbfa
common stock of Globalstar Inc. in consideration fer ghle of its interest. The shares have been registeder the
Securities Act of 1933 and may be sold by Loral withoutictstn. In addition, Loral agreed to indemnify Globalstac.
for certain GdB pre-closing liabilities, primarily e¢éd to Brazilian taxes. Loral has agreed that proceewfstfre sale of
the Globalstar Inc. stock received in the transadtifirbe kept in a segregated account and may be usedanpayment
of the indemnified liabilities. As a result of the safel taking into account our estimate of the indemnifiduiliiies, we
recorded a loss of $11.3 million during the year ended DeceBib@007.

We also owned an indirect interest in a U.S. based distrithat has the exclusive right to sell Globalstavises to
certain agencies within the U.S. Government. In conoreetith the settlement of a litigation matter invalgithis business,

on October 17, 2006, we agreed to transfer this inter€btmalstar Inc. for $500,000. We had previously writtefioaf
interest in such investment.

9. Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets
Goodwill

Goodwill was established in connection with our adoptioimesh-start accounting (see Notes 3 and 4).
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The following table summarizes the changes in the cayrgmount of goodwill for the period December 31, 2005 to

December 31, 2007 (in thousands):

Goodwill — December 31, 2005
Adjustments due to the completion of the fair valuatiacess:
Deferred revenues — fair value
Fixed assets — fair value
Intangibles — fair value
Contracts-in-process — fair value
Reversal of excess valuation allowance on deferred tatsass
Release of tax contingency liability

Goodwill — December 31, 2006

Cumulative effect of adopting FIN 48

Settlement of FIN 48 liabilities

Reversal of excess valuation allowance on deferred taksass
Reversal of Old Loral deferred state tax liabilities
Contribution of Loral Skynet to Telesat Canada

Goodwill — December 31, 2007

Other Intangible Assets

$ 340,09

6,07C
502

(212)

(172)
(36,367)
(4,225)

305,69:
7,542
(2,000
(35,08%)
(6,840)
(42,24))

$ 227,05¢

Other Intangible Assets were established in conmegtith our adoption of fresh-start accounting (see Notewl3 a
4). Intangible assets are included in Other Assets onomigsotidated balance sheet (in millions, except years):

Weighted Average

Remaining December 31, 2007 December 31, 2006
Amortization Period Gross Accumulated Gross Accumulated
(Years) Amount Amortization Amount Amortization
Internally developed software and

technology 3 $59.C $ (243) $ 59.C % (13.5)
Orbital slots — — — 10.€ (1.8)
Trade names 18 9.2 (2.0 13.2 (0.8)
Customer relationships — — — 20.C a.7)
Customer contracts — — — 33.C (8.3
Other intangibles — — — 2.7 (0.8)
Total $ 682 $ (25.3) $ 1387 $ (26.9)

The allocation of our reorganization equity value tovidlial intangible assets was adjusted in 2006, as additional
information became available, during the completiotheffair valuation process. The reduction of othargible assets as

of December 31, 2007 is a result of the contribution oL8kynet to Telesat Canada.

Total amortization expense for intangible assets of $18l®mfior 2007, $21.1 million for 2006 and $6.2 million
for the period October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005 primafigcts the net amortization of the fair value adj@stts

recorded in connection with our adoption of fresh starbacting. Total amortization expense
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was $2.6 million for the period January 1, 2005 to October 1,. 20@tual amortization expense for intangible assets for the
five years ended December 31, 2012 is estimated to b#asgsf¢in millions):

2008 $ 11.2
2009 11.2
2010 9.2
2011 2.9
2012 2.3

10. Debt Obligations

Long-term debt consists of (in thousands):

December 31,
2007 2006

Loral Skynet 14.0% Senior Secured Notes due 2015 (priraipalint $126 million) $ — $ 128,08¢

Successor Registrant
Loan Payable Valley National Bank

On September 4, 2007, Loral Skynet entered into a Loaleautity Agreement (the “Loan Agreement”) with
Valley National Bank (“Valley National”). The purposetbe Loan Agreement was to make available to Lorah8ky
loan (the “Loan”) to fund the redemption (the “Note Redear)i of Loral Skynet’'s 14% Senior Secured Cash/PIK Notes
due 2015. Pursuant to the Loan Agreement, Valley Natioaderthe Loan in a single advance of $141,050,000, which
Loral Skynet used to fund the Note Redemption on Septes2&07.

The maturity date of the Loan was the earlier obgcember 17, 2007 or (ii) the date on which the assetsraf L
Skynet were transferred in connection with the preWyoaisnounced acquisition of Telesat Canada (see Noted 87an
The Loan Agreement permitted Loral Skynet to prepayradl mortion of the amounts outstanding under the Loanyat a
time prior to maturity without penalty or premium.

As security for repayment of the Loan, Loral Skynethgeed security interests in certain of its assetsré@p@yment
of the Loan was guaranteed by Loral (the “Guaranty”) withCompany’s obligations under the Guaranty being secured
pursuant to a pledge agreement (the “Pledge Agreementitexday the Company. Loral purchased a certificate of deposi
(the “CD”) from Valley National in the initial princgd amount of $142,720,659, such amount being equal to the sum of the
principal of the Loan and accrued interest thereon frothirecluding September 4, 2007 through, but not including,
December 17, 2007. The CD accrued interest at a rate5863p8r annum. Pursuant to the terms of the Pledge Agréem
the money on deposit under the CD secured the obligatfdrgal Skynet under the Loan Agreement and the Cosnpan
under the Guaranty.

The interest rate on the Loan was 4.10% per annum. Ihéeqasnse related to the Loan was $0.9 million for the
year ended December 31, 2007. On October 31, 2007, the |saasstzmed by Telesat Canada as part of the Telesat Canada
transaction and was repaid in full that same day by TeGzmadda. Also on October 31, 2007, the cash collateral &D w
released and the cash was returned to Loral.

Loral Skynet Notes



On November 21, 2005, pursuant to the Plan of Reorganizitioal, Skynet issued $126 million principal amount
of 14% Senior Secured Cash/PIK Notes due 2015 under an Indetdtee as of November 21, 2005 (the “Indenture”),
which notes were guaranteed on a senior secured basis ybsittiary Loral Asia Pacific Satellite (HK) Limitechd all of
Loral Skynet’s existing domestic, wholly-owned subsid&r{én September 5, 2007 Loral
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Skynet paid $141.1 million in the aggregate to redeemdtes at a redemption price of 110% including accrued apaidi
interest from July 15, 2007 of $2.45 million.

Interest expense related to these notes was $12.1 nfillidr8 million and $3.4 million for the years ended
December 31, 2007 and 2006 and the period from October 2, 20@s¢mber 31, 2005, respectively. In addition to the
$2.45 million of cash interest paid on the redemption ohtites discussed above, Loral Skynet made cash interest
payments of $8.8 million on the Loral Skynet Notes on eddanuary 15 and July 16, 2007.

As a result of the redemption of the Loral Skynet Notesincurred a loss on the early extinguishment of debt
$16.2 million, which is comprised of the redemption premafi$i12.6 million and a $3.6 million write-off of deferred
financing costs.

Certain holders of Loral Skynet Notes have commendtigdtion with respect to the redemption of the Loralridty
Notes (see Note 17).

SSI/L Letter of Credit Facility

On November 30, 2007, SS/L entered into a second amendmenateended and restated letter of credit agreement
with JP Morgan Chase Bank extending the maturity of tfseO®illion facility to December 31, 2008. Letters of ctede
available until the earlier of the stated maturityhodf letter of credit, the termination of the fagilior December 31, 2008.
Outstanding letters of credit are fully cash collateri As of December 31, 2007, $6.1 million of letters aitrender
this facility were issued and outstanding.

Predecessor Registrant

As a result of our voluntary petitions for reorganizatmihof Old Loral’s prepetition debt obligations were
accelerated. These debt obligations have been discharngedpt to the Plan of Reorganization (see Note 2).

Subsequent to our voluntary petitions for reorganizatioruynlb, 2003, we only recognized and paid interest on
our bank debt through March 18, 2004 and stopped recognizing ¥ind pderest on all other outstanding debt obligations.
While we were in Chapter 11, we only recognized intezrgense to the extent paid. For the period ended Octob@03,
we did not recognize $32.6 million of interest expense orsenior notes (excluding our 10% senior notes) and
$46.0 million of a reduction to accrued interest on our 16&os notes, as a result of the suspension of intpegshents on
our debt obligations.

11. Reorganization Expenses Due to Bankruptcy

Reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy for the period €uielder 1, 2005 were as follows (in thousands):

For the
Period
January 1,
2005 to
October 1,
2005
Professional fees $ 32,24(
Employee retention costs (917)
Severance costs 972
Lease rejection claims (gains) (265)

Vendor settlement losses (gains) 289



Restructuring costs 1,50¢

Interest income (2,586)
Total reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy $ 31,23¢
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12. Income Taxes

The (provision) benefit for income taxes on the inedinss) from continuing operations before incomedagquity
in net losses of affiliates and minority intereshsigts of the following (in thousands):

Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Current:
U.S. Federal $ (31,14) $ (4,01 $ (532 | $ (1,235)
State and local (29,712) (2,467) (429) (2,339
Foreign (399) (5,290) (791) (1,65¢)
Total current (51,257) (11,775 (1,752) (5,237)
Deferred:
U.S. Federal (47,209 (7,342) 325 (259,379
State and local 31,291 (1,769 97 (45,737)
Valuation allowance (16,287 — (422) 321,24«
Total deferred (32,205) (9,10%) — 16,13¢
Total income tax (provision) benefit $ (8345) $ (20,8800 $ (1,752 $ 10,901

For the year ended December 31, 2007, we continued toamaiineé 100% valuation allowance that had been
established at December 31, 2002 against our net deferrasisiets, with the exception of our $3.4 million deferred tax
asset relating to AMT credit carryforwards. The aigsof the Telesat Canada transaction in 2007 allowed uslitteraa
significant portion of our deferred tax liabilities andizge pre-emergence federal and state net operating I(fd80&s”).

The components of our FIN 48 provision for uncertainp@sitions for 2007, included in the current provision were:

Unrecognized tax benefits $ (12,657)
Interest expense (4,18¢)
Interest income 41
Penalties (303)
Total $ 17,10(

For 2007, we projected federal taxable income of approgln&v1 million, which included the tax gain of
$308 million from the contribution of substantially alltbé assets and related liabilities of Loral Skynéfatesat Canada
and, the gain of $89 million on the forward contracts amteacy basis swap entered into by Loral Skynet relatirige
Telesat Canada transaction, partially offset by a deducfi&855 million for pre-emergence tax NOLs subject & th
limitations imposed by Section 382 of the Internal RevergeC

The deferred income tax provision of $32.2 million redgtemarily to (i) a provision of $35.1 million on cunte
year income to the extent the taxes imposed on such ineemeereduced by deferred tax benefits from Old Loralthed
utilization of these deferred tax benefits created anssxeaduation allowance that was reversed as a reductgwotiwill,



(i) a provision of $2.2 million for the decrease to deferred tax asset for federal and state AMT credits fwéxcludes
an increase to AMT credits of $2.2 million upon adoptioRIdf 48), (iii) an additional valuation allowance of $3.0lion
required against a net deferred tax asset created whegdwced the
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deferred tax credits in accumulated other comprehensigmmby $3.0 million, offset by (iv) a benefit of $9.0 nailii
relating to current activity.

For 2006, the deferred income tax provision of $9.1 mill@ated to (i) a provision of $10.4 million on current year
income to the extent the taxes imposed on such incomeregueed by deferred tax benefits from Old Loral and the
utilization of such deferred tax benefits created an exeasiation allowance that was reversed as a reductigoodwill
(i) offset by a benefit of $1.3 million for the increat® our deferred tax asset for additional federal anel AT credits.

In connection with our emergence from bankruptcy, OldaLialized cancellation of debt income (“COD”) on its
federal income tax return of approximately $439 millio2@®5. COD realized while in bankruptcy is excluded from federal
taxable income. We were required to reduce certain afesuattributes, and to the extent sufficient attributesamot
available on a separate company basis, reduce thagesxit our assets, by an amount equal to the COD excludad by
Loral from its taxable income. For the period endetber 1, 2005, this adjustment resulted in a reduction of
approximately $160 million to our deferred tax assets ancetated valuation allowance. Also, as part of our figsint
accounting and plan of reorganization adjustments, wededa net deferred tax charge of $13.2 million (See Note 4).

The provision for income taxes presented above excluddsltowing items: (i) a deferred tax benefit of
$6.3 million related to the initial adoption of FIN 48, effee January 1, 2007, which was adjusted by $4.1 million during
2007 for a change to our FIN 48 liability, resulting in a238illion increase to our AMT credits upon adoption dfl Ei8;
(ii) a deferred tax benefit of $6.5 million and a defereedgrovision of $6.4 million for the years ended Decendie 2007
and 2006, respectively, related to the unrealized gain diableafor-sale securities recorded in accumulated other
comprehensive income; (iii) a deferred tax provisib5 million and $19.6 million for the years ended Decendlie
2007 and 2006, respectively, related to pension actuarred gad prior service credits and the initial adoptioBFAS 158
recorded in accumulated other comprehensive incomea (leferred tax benefit of $6.8 million related to theersal of
Old Loral deferred state tax liabilities recorded asdaicton to goodwill; and (v) a current benefit of $2.6 millior the
period ended October 1, 2005, related to the gain on salecohtinued operations.
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The (provision) benefit for income taxes on the inedinss) from continuing operations before incomegagquity
in net losses of affiliates and minority interedtetis from the amount computed by applying the statutoBy Bederal
income tax rate because of the effect of the folloviteigs (in thousands):

Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Tax (provision) benefit at U.S. Statutory Rate
35% $ (55,228 % (10,547 % 1,88¢ $ (357,929
Permanent adjustments which change statut
amounts:
State and local income taxes, net of federz
income tax 5,101 (2,749 (216) (31,249
Additional tax imposed on foreign source
income (94) (3,43¢) (847) (6,30¢)
Reorganization expenses due to bankrupt: — — (94) (9,944
Plan of Reorganization and Fresh-Start
valuation adjustments — — — 94,20¢
Equity in net losses of affiliates 7,162 2,58t — —
Tax gain on transfer of Loral
Skynet assets to Telesat Canada (16,419 — — —
Provision for unrecognized tax benefits (8,370 — — —
Nondeductible expenses (2,682) (3,06%) (1,410 (1,122
Change in valuation allowance (16,287) — (422 321,24«
Other, net 3,357 (3,672) (651) 2,00z
Total income tax (provision) benefit $ (8345) $ (20,88() $ (1,752) | $ 10,901

On January 1, 2007, we adopted the provisions of FIN 48unitbcognized tax benefits relating to uncertain tax
positions of $42.5 million and also recorded the cumulatffext of adopting FIN 48 as an increase of $6.2 mill@on t
accumulated deficit, an increase of $7.5 million to goodwaitlecrease of $6.3 million to deferred income tax ltssland

an increase of $20.0 million to long-term liabilities.

The Company recognizes accrued interest and penaltiesirelatrcertain tax positions in income tax expense. As

of January 1, 2007 in connection with the adoption, we recapieaximately $5.7 million and $12.6 million for the
payment of tax-related interest and penalties, respégtin 2007 we recognized additional interest charges of $4lidrm
Interest and penalties of $1.5 million and $0.1 milliospeetively, were transferred to Telesat Canada in ctionewith

the Telesat Canada transaction. At December 31, 2007wseaherued $8.3 million and $12.5 million for the payment of

tax-related interest and penalties, respectively.
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The following table summarizes the activity relate@dwo unrecognized tax benefits (in thousands):

_ Total
Balance at January 1, 2007 $ 42,48¢
Increases related to prior year tax positions 157
Decreases related to prior year tax positions (342
Decrease as a result of tax settlements (1,50¢)
Increases related to current year tax positions 21,70
Decrease for indemnified liabilities transferred toeBak Canada and recorded in other long term liabiliti (2,595
Balance at December 31, 2007 $ 59,90

With few exceptions, the Company is no longer subjett.6. federal, state or local income tax examinatmynsix
authorities for years prior to 2004. Earlier yearsteelao certain foreign jurisdictions remain subjectxtanination.
Various state and foreign income tax returns are currantlgr examination. While we intend to contest any futaxe
assessments for uncertain tax positions, no assucandae provided that we would ultimately prevail. Durirgrlext
twelve months, the statute of limitations for asses# of additional tax will expire with regard to severabur
U.S. income tax returns filed for 2004, potentially réeglin a $1.8 million reduction to our unrecognized tax bénefi

The liability for uncertain tax positions is includedlong-term liabilities in the consolidated balanceeslas of
December 31, 2007. For the period January 1, 2007 to Deceml28031 we increased our FIN 48 liability for uncertain
tax positions from $61.1 million to $68.0 million. The rmatriease of $6.9 million relates to (i) current year fgiows of
$17.5 million for tax positions and potential additional irdesnd penalties, offset by (ii) the settlement of ligds with
certain tax authorities totaling $2.4 million, of whi$R.0 million was recorded as a reduction to goodwill and $illén
was treated as a current income tax benefit, (i@daction of $4.1 million to the deferred tax asset estadti at adoption,
and (iv) the transfer of $4.1 million of uncertain tax foss to Telesat Canada in the Telesat Canada ttisaffset by a
contractual indemnification.

If our positions are sustained by the taxing authoritiggraximately $37.2 million would be treated as a reduction
of goodwill, $28.6 million would reduce the Company's effeetiax rate and $2.2 million would reduce deferred tax assets
Other than as described above, there were no signiftbanges to our unrecognized tax benefits during the twiebvehs
ended December 31, 2007, and we do not anticipate any ajh#icant increases or decreases to our unrecognized tax
benefits during the next twelve months.

In connection with the Telesat Canada transaction, Ippogided a contractual indemnification to Telesat Canad
for Loral Skynet tax liabilities, offset by tax depositsiating to periods preceding 2007. The unrecognized tafitsene
related to the Loral Skynet subsidiaries were traresfieto Telesat Canada subject to the tax indemnificatiorided by
Loral. Loral's net indemnified liability at December 2007 is not significant.

At December 31, 2007, we had federal NOL carryforwardppfaximately $554 million and state NOLs of various
amounts representing approximately $193.8 million and$8lion of deferred tax assets for federal and staspeetively
(before reduction for the valuation allowance), which exfriom 2022 to 2024 as well as AMT credit carryforwards of
approximately $3.4 million that may be carried forward indiefly.

The reorganization of the Company on the Effective Datestituted an ownership change under section 382 of the
Internal Revenue Code. Accordingly, use of our tax attribstesh as NOLs and tax credits generated prior to thership
change, are subject to an annual limitation of approxim&g2y6 million, subject to increase or decrease basedrtaince
factors. Our annual limitation was increased significatitigsng 2006 and 2007 for the additional benefit from the
recognition of our “net unrealized built-in -gains,” (i.#e excess of fair market value over tax basis foaesets) as of the
Effective Date. For the year ended December 31, 2007 ntitation on the
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use of our federal tax NOLs was increased to approxim&g&§g million. For 2008, we expect the limitation to be
$32.6 million.

We assess the recoverability of our NOLs and othermeféax assets and based upon this analysis, record a
valuation allowance to the extent recoverability dogssatsfy the “more likely than not” recognition critem
SFAS No. 109. Based upon this analysis, we concluded durifiguttie quarter of 2002 that, due to insufficient positive
evidence substantiating recoverability, a 100% valuatiowance should be established for our net deferreddagts.

As of December 31, 2007, we had valuation allowancesrtgtéR41.2 million, which included a balance of
$224.5 million relating to Old Loral periods preceding adoption of fresh-start accounting on October 1, 2005.

We will continue to maintain the valuation allowance Iusifficient positive evidence exists to support full ortigar
reversal. If, in the future, we were to determine thawill be able to realize all or a part of theeft from our deferred tax
assets, a reduction to the balance of this valuatlowance at October 1, 2005 will be accounted for &issé reduction in
goodwill, then intangible assets, and if these accountxdugusted, further reductions to the valuation allowanitée
recorded as an increase to paid-in-capital during thedpostich determination is made.

For the period January 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007, outivalaiowance decreased by $63.7 million. The net
change consisted primarily of (i) a decrease of $35.1amililating to the reversal of an excess valuation afioe/a
recorded as a reduction to goodwill, (ii) a decrease of $4Hlian offset by a corresponding decrease to the defeared
asset, (iii) an increase of $0.3 million as part ofdheulative effect of adopting FIN 48, and (iv) an increafse
$16.3 million charged to continuing operations.

During 2006, our valuation allowance decreased by $32.4 millioa net change consisted primarily of a decrease
of $36.4 million relating to an excess valuation allowancetakiersal of which was recorded as a reduction to gdoad
an increase of $4.0 million to provide an additional véduaallowance against Old Loral deferred tax assetxded to
goodwill.

For the period October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005, ourtizadwslowance increased by $0.4 million to a balance
of $337.3 million. For the period January 1, 2005 to Octob20@5, our valuation allowance decreased by $322.9 million
to a balance of $336.9 million, primarily as a resulthtdinges to our deferred tax balances upon adoption ofdtah-
accounting as described above.
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The significant components of the net deferred incarasset (liability) are (in thousands):

December 31,

2007 2006
Deferred tax assets:
Postretirement benefits other than pensions $ 31,591 $ 33,641
Inventoried costs 17,94: 37,83¢
Net operating loss and tax credit carryforwards 205,20¢ 376,20
Compensation and benefits 22,80z 9,23¢
Deferred research & development costs 18,94¢ 20,73¢
Income recognition on long-term contracts 26,70 19,781
Other, net 7,08¢ 5,98(C
Federal benefit of uncertain tax positions 3,61( —
Pension costs 35,61: 33,451
Total deferred tax assets before valuation allowance 369,50¢ 536,86’
Less valuation allowance (241,22 (304,889
Net deferred tax asset 128,28( 231,98!
Deferred tax liabilities:
Property, plant and equipment 18,65: 144,79«
Intangible assets 18,56¢ 47,86¢
Investments in and advances to affiliates 87,70« 50,91«
Total deferred tax liability 124,92¢ 243,57,
Net deferred tax asset (liability) $ 3,354 $ (11,59

At December 31, 2007 the Company had $17.5 million of me¢rudeferred tax assets included in other current
assets and $14.1 million of net non-current deferredahifities included in long-term liabilities. At Decdrar 31, 2006 the
Company had $17.6 million of net current deferred tax agseluded in other current assets and $29.1 million of net
non-current deferred tax liabilities included in long-tdiabilities.

13. Shareholders’ Equity and Minority Interest
Successor Registrant
Common Stock

As of November 21, 2005, all of the securities of Old Laradluding, among other securities, the common stéck o
Old Loral, were extinguished and deemed cancelled. In acamadth the Plan of Reorganization, New Loral issued
20 million of its 40 million authorized shares of comnsbock, par value $0.01 per share (the “Common Stock”),hwhic
shares were distributed in accordance with the Plareofdanization.

In connection with a stipulation entered into with certinectors and officers of Old Loral and a stipulatiotessd
into with the plaintiffs in a purported class actiowsait brought by participants in the 401(k) Savings Plan dfl@tal,
certain claims aggregating $77 million may result indiséribution of our Common Stock in addition to the 20 rwilli
shares distributed under the Plan of Reorganization (see1N).

Preferred Stock



On February 27, 2007 (the “Issuance Date”), Loral comple®20D@ million preferred stock financing pursuant to
the Securities Purchase Agreement entered into with iRl Management LLC (“MHR”) on October 17, 2006, as
amended and restated on February 27, 2007 (the “SecutitigzaBe Agreement”). Pursuant
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to the Securities Purchase Agreement, Loral sold 136B&@s of its Series A-1 cumulative 7.5% convertibléepred
stock (the “Series A-1 Preferred Stock”) and 858,486 shudiies Series B-1 cumulative 7.5% convertible pref@stck
(the “Series B-1 Preferred Stock” and, together with #ré&eS A-1 Preferred Stock, the “Loral Series-1 Prefe8tck”) at
a purchase price of $301.504 per share to various fundsteffiidith MHR. Each share of the Series A-1 PreferredkSs
convertible, at the option of the holder, into ten sekaf Loral common stock at a conversion price of $30.p804hare.
Prior to the Majority Ownership Date (as defined bgland following stockholder approval of the creatiom ofew class
of Class B-1 non-voting common stock, each share dbéhnies B-1 Preferred Stock will be convertible, atdpgon of the
holder, into ten shares of this Class B-1 non-votingrnomstock at a conversion price of $30.1504 per share. Frdm a
after the Majority Ownership Date, the Series B-Ifdfred Stock and the Class B-1 non-voting common stockbmay
converted by the holder into Loral common stock, indhge of the Series B-1 Preferred Stock, at the sanversion price,
and in the case of the Class B-1 non-voting commoik stoca share for share basis. The conversion prileetea
premium of 12% to the closing price of Loral’'s commarckton October 16, 2006. The conversion price is subject to
customary adjustments. Dividends on the Loral SerieefefPed Stock are paid in kind (i.e., in additional shafésral
Series-1 Preferred Stock) through April 2011. Thereafteoral satisfies certain financial requirements, tivdends will
be payable in cash or in kind at Loral’s option. Punstathe terms of this financing, MHR has the rigtttich it has not
exercised, to nominate one additional member to the boiald of directors.

The terms of the Loral Series-1 Preferred Stock angrkss so that, prior to the Majority Ownership Datey a
shares of common stock issuable to MHR or its affiaupon conversion of the Loral Series-1 PreferreckStden taken
together with holdings by MHR or its affiliates of commgtock at such time, will not represent more than 39.980%e
aggregate voting power of the securities of Loral. Feort after the Majority Ownership Date, this reswitiwill no longer
apply, and all shares of Loral Series-1 Preferred Stitke convertible into common stock. The “Majori®wnership
Date” means the earlier of the date that (i) theebeial ownership of common stock by MHR and its &dfés, but not
including any of the common stock issuable upon the convedsitihe Loral Series-1 Preferred stock, represents tian
50% of the common stock of Loral, or (i) a third partg laaquired a majority of Loral’s common stock on a fullyted
basis other than pursuant to certain prohibited transfehe Series A-1 Preferred Stock from MHR or itsliaftes.

The Company and MHR agreed on August 8, 2007 that, in calculhénmercentage of the aggregate voting power
of Loral securities held by MHR or its affiliates puastito the terms of the Loral Series-1 Preferredk$i@) the number
of shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock and/or comnook sieemed to be held by MHR entities shall be inctebge
number of shares (i) equal to the number of sharessbicted stock and the number of shares subject to gppions of the
Company then personally held by Dr. Mark H. Racheskpf{&@ecember 31, 2007, Dr. Rachesky held 10,000 such shares),
and (ii) equal to 50% of the number of shares of commmk seserved for issuance pending resolution of certauidid
third party claims under the Plan of Reorganizationldfl®@ral, such number of reserved shares not to exceed
71,500 shares and (b) the number of outstanding shacemafon stock of the Company shall be decreased by a namber
shares equal to 45% of the total number of shareswifated stock (issued to persons other than directossiput to the
Company’s Amended and Restated 2005 Stock Incentive RErgre then subject to vesting but have not yet vestefd as
the date of the calculation, such numbers of shanesstifcted stock not to exceed one million shares.

In the event of a liquidation, dissolution or winding up & @ompany, the holders of the Loral Series-1 Preferred
Stock are entitled to a liquidation preference per sbqual to the greater of (i) the share purchase phiseaccrued and
unpaid dividends plus, during the first 66 months following tkadace Date, a Make-Whole Amount (as defined below)
and (ii) the amount that would be payable to a holddnetbral Series-1 Preferred Stock if such holder had cted/such
share into common stock immediately prior to such ligiedadissolution or winding up. Loral will be able tausa the
Loral Preferred Stock (as defined below) to be conventedcommon stock or Class B non-voting common stoak aft
5.5 years from the Issuance Date if the common stotkding above certain volume thresholds and above 125pefce
the conversion price for twenty trading days in a 30-day
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trading day period, but only if the Class B-1 and ClassB#Rvoting stock has been authorized by stockholders (the
“Class B Non-Voting Stock Authorization”).

In the event of a Change of Control (as defined in thificates of designation relating to the Loral Prefer Stock),
a holder of Loral Series-1 Preferred Stock may aiptson (i) redeem some or all of its shares of prefesteck for cash in
an amount equal to the share purchase price plus accrued@aid dividends, (ii) convert some or all of itsrasaof
Series-1 Preferred Stock, in the case of the Serie®referred Stock, into shares of common stock, and icatbe of the
Series B-1 Preferred Stock, into shares of Class B-Ivating common stock, or if on or after the Majoritwfership Date,
shares of common stock, or (iii) if the holder of dloBeries-1 Preferred Stock does not elect to so redeeonvert, such
shares of Loral Series-1 Preferred Stock will remaistantling. In certain cases, a holder’s option to redeeca#tr is
exercisable only following Board approval of the Chanfgéamtrol event. Upon a Change of Control, a holddraral
Series-1 Preferred Stock is also entitled to receivakeMVhole Amount, provided that the Make-Whole Amosamntat
payable if the Change of Control involves either MHBuatng more than 50% but less than 90% of the common stock or
another person acquiring more than 50% of the common stazkesult of an acquisition of Loral shares from MHR,
either case so long as the Board has not approvedramsiaction. The Make-Whole Amount means an amount emahl| t
dividends that would have accrued and accumulated on eacto$haral Series-1 Preferred Stock (assuming payment of
all accrued dividends on each dividend payment date) frerddte of a Change of Control through the date that is
66 months after the Issuance Date. The Make-Whole Anvaillrite paid in either cash (if the holder elects shca
redemption, or if so elected by the Company in the etenCbmpany is then eligible to pay dividends in casishares of
Class B-2 non-voting common stock (if the holder eleotesersion). If on the Change of Control redemption dhte,
Class B Non-Voting Stock Authorization has not yet belatained, then the Make-Whole Amount, if payable iarsh, will
be paid not in shares of Class B-2 non-voting common spotkather, in the case of the Series A-1 PreferteckSin
shares of Series A-2 convertible preferred stock ‘#eeies A-2 Preferred Stock”) and in the case of theS8-1
Preferred Stock, in shares of Series B-2 convertildéemed stock (the “Series B-2 Preferred Stock”).

Each share of the Series A-1 Preferred Stock, Ser2®referred Stock, Series B-1 Preferred Stock ands3grie
Preferred Stock (collectively, the “Loral Preferredc®t’) entitles the holder to 1/10,000 vote for each shbpeaferred
stock. If the Company (i) fails to pay three quarterlydbnd payments on the Loral Series-1 Preferred Stock wirenrd
(i) fails to make any dividend payment when due and taeigs at such time assets or funds available to p&y suc
dividends, then the holders of the Loral Preferred Stak etect two directors to the Company’s board of dirsctwhich
directors shall serve until such time as the Compsionce again current on its dividend payments on tha Series-1
Preferred Stock. In addition, there are certain actiogisthe Company may not undertake without the cori$ehe holders
of a majority of the outstanding shares of the Loral PrefeStock.

If the Class B Non-Voting Stock Authorization occurgdime when no shares of Series A-2 Preferred Stodk
Series B-2 Preferred Stock are issued and outstandingettes A-2 Preferred Stock and Series B-2 Preferred Sitidoe
eliminated from the authorized share capital of thengamy.

The Company paid dividends of $14.4 million through the issuahs@27 shares of Series A-1 Preferred Stock and
42,335 shares of Series B-1 Preferred Stock for the peldeDecember 31, 2007. Accrued but unpaid dividends for Loral
Series-1 Preferred Stock as of December 31, 2007 werenfibod.

The price of Loral’'s common stock on October 16, 2006, tlydodfore we signed the Securities Purchase
Agreement, was $26.92 and the conversion price was $30.150drid&def Loral's common stock on February 27, 2007,
when the financing closed was $47.40. Because of the diffetgetween the fair value of the common stock odatethe
financing closed, as compared to the conversion prieeCtimpany is required to reflect a beneficial conwer&ature of
the Loral Series A-1 Preferred Stock as a compondts nét loss applicable to common shareholders foye¢he ended
December 31, 2007. We will also reflect a beneficialveosion feature in a similar manner for the Serigs Beferred
Stock, in the period in which shareholder approval ottleation of the new
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class of Class B-1 non-voting common stock is receiVad beneficial conversion feature is recorded dscaease to net
income applicable to common shareholders and resultseiuation of both basic and diluted earnings per share.
Accordingly, in the three months ended March 31, 2007 eaerded an increase to net loss applicable to common
shareholders of $24.5 million. In the period in which shelder approval of the new class of Class B-1 noimgatommon
stock is received, we expect that our net income (Bggslicable to common shareholders will be reduced (ined@aas
applicable, by approximately $154 million reflecting the bieredfconversion feature (less discount, if any,tfar class B-1
non-voting common stock because of its non- voting gtafasthe extent that dividends on the Loral Series-feResl
Stock are paid in additional shares of Loral SeriesPxeferred Stock, we record an additional beneficial amnwe feature
that reduces our net income applicable to common shdeeisoFor the year ended December 31, 2007, we recorded a
beneficial conversion feature of $1.2 million, for tfieidends in additional shares of Loral Series A-1 PrefeStock. We
will also record an additional beneficial conversiortdeain a similar manner for dividends in additional shafdsral
Series B-1 Preferred Stock in the period in which shadehalpproval of the class B-1 non-voting common steck
received, and thereafter. For dividends paid and accrued thBragmber 31, 2007 on the Loral Series B-1 Preferred Stock,
the beneficial conversion feature that will be recdraden shareholder approval of the class B-1 non-vatingmon stock
is received, is approximately $7 million.

In connection with the preferred stock financing, Logakead to present certain proposals to its stockholdéss a
annual meeting but requested that MHR waive such undertaiingegard to Loral’s 2008 annual meeting. MHR has
agreed to Loral's request as more specifically seh fiorits April 28, 2008 letter agreement entered into witraldroral
intends to seek stockholder approval for these propasétsannual meeting in 2009 or at a special meetingdkisolders.

Loral incurred issuance costs of $8.9 million in conneatith this preferred stock financing. In addition, Loraig
MHR a placement fee of $6.75 million upon closing of the filremnc

Loral Skynet Series A Preferred Stock

On November 21, 2005, Loral Skynet Corporation issued 1.0omibf its 2.0 million authorized shares of Series A
12% non-convertible preferred stock, $0.01 par value pee gthee “Loral Skynet Preferred Stock”), which were distied
in accordance with the Plan of Reorganization. The issiiads were distributed to holders of allowed claims iorOr
Class 4, as such term is used in the Plan of ReorgamizBilddends on the Loral Skynet Preferred Stock (tfpead or
accrued as permitted under certain circumstances) wgablpan kind (in additional shares of Loral Skynetfémred Stock)
if the amount of any dividend payment would exceed certa@siimlds.

The Loral Skynet Preferred Stock is reflected as ntinorterest on our consolidated balance sheet as of
December 31, 2006 and dividend expense of $23.2 million, $24i8nralhd $2.7 million for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 and the period October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005jvelspace reflected as minority interest on our
consolidated statements of operations.

Dividends paid on Loral Skynet Preferred Stock are dawdin millions, except share data):

Cash PIK Dividends Total
Payment
__Date Dividend Period Dividends Shares Amount Dividends
November 5, 7/14/07 to
2007 11/05/07 $ 8.7¢ = $ — $ 8.7¢
1/14/07 to
July 13, 2007 7/13/07 1.2€ 61,282 12.2¢ 13.52
7/14/06 to
January 12, 200 1/13/07 1.77 55,43¢ 11.0¢ 12.8¢€
11/21/05 to

July 14, 2006 7/13/06 1.27 71,281 14.2¢ 15.5¢



On November 5, 2007, in connection with the completion of #lesit Canada transaction, all issued and
outstanding shares of Loral Skynet Preferred Stock weremeszte
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Stock Plans

On November 21, 2005, the New Loral 2005 stock incentive plar'$ttock Incentive Plan”) became effective
pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization. The Stock IneeRiian allows for the grant of several forms o€lkstbased
compensation awards including stock options, stock algpietrights, restricted stock, restricted stock unttsgksbonuses
and other stock-based awards (collectively, the “Awgrddie total number of shares of Common Stock inytisdkerved
and available for issuance under the Stock Incentivewds 1,390,452 shares. In addition, shares of Common $&tuck t
are issuable under awards that expire, are forfeited celeh or withheld in payment of the exercise pricewes relating
to an Award, will again be available for Awards unter Stock Incentive Plan. Options issued on Decembet(®b,
totaling 1,390,452 shares, have an exercise price equalfairthearket value of our stock, as defined, vest oveusnyear
period and have a seven year life. However, because gnitaions to certain employees with options totaling
643,500 shares were made on January 9, 2006, recognition oathh@bthese options was delayed to such date. The
Awards provide for accelerated vesting if there éhange in control, as defined in the Stock Incentive Plan.

On May 22, 2007, at our annual meeting of stockholders, owtwsilters approved the Company’s Amended and
Restated 2005 Stock Incentive Plan (the “Plan”) to ineregsl,582,000 the number of shares available for grargLthder.
These amendments covered the following grants that Wesebgect to stockholder approval of the plan amendments
(a) the grant in March 2006 of options to purchase 825,008sstmour Chief Executive Officer in connection with his
entering into an employment agreement with us (the “CEfcM2006 Option Grant”), (b) the grant in June 2006 of nptio
to purchase 20,000 shares to our former Chief Financiie®fn connection with his entering into an amendmehigo
employment agreement, (c) the grant in June 2006 of optigmarchase 120,000 shares to a former director in connectio
with his entering into a consulting agreement and (d)tgi@approximately 175,000 shares of restricted stock, phma
employees of SS/L. In addition, these amendments covered 3h#&@8 sf restricted stock granted to our directorses p
of their compensation and approximately 410,300 sharesbleafor future grant. The shares available for fugret will
be used for awards to our employees, to fulfill existingrextual obligations and to cover the equity componkoaio
directors compensation. These grants were recognized astimrad upon stockholder approval of the amendments.

The above-mentioned grant to a former director in cororeetith his entering into a consulting agreement has been
accounted for in accordance with EITF 96-18 as a non-engplpnt and resulted in compensation expense of $2.6 million
in 2007 (see Notes 3 and 19).

The fair value of employee and non-employee awardgimmated using the Black-Scholes-Merton model based on
the assumptions below for the periods indicated:

Year Ended For the Period
December 31, October 2, 2005
2007 2006 to December 31, 2005
Risk — free interest rate 4.5% 4.3% 4.4%
Expected life (years) 2.8C 4.75 4.7¢
Estimated volatility 32.&% 27.4% 27.4%
Expected dividends None None None
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A summary of the status of stock options awarded underttick icentive Plan as of December 31, 2007 is

presented below:

Outstanding at October 2, 2005

Granted (weighted average grant date fair value $¢
per share)

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31, 2005

Granted (weighted average grant date fair value $:
per share)

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31, 2006

Granted (weighted average grant date fair value $:
per share)

Exercised

Forfeited

Outstanding at December 31, 2007
Vested and expected to vest at December 31, 200

Exercisable at December 31, 2007

A summary of non-vested restricted stock as of Decemb&08%, and changes during the year is presented below

Weighted
Weighted Average Aggregate
Average Remaining Intrinsic
Exercise Contractual Value
Shares Price Term (in millions)
746,95; $ 28.4¢ 7 year:
746,95: $ 28.44 7 year:
643,50( $ 28.4¢
(80,000 $ 28.4<
1,310,45. $ 28.4¢ 5.8 year $ 16.1
965,00( $ 26.9¢
(208,750 $ 27.8: $ 2.9
(15,000 $ 27.57
2,051,70: $ 27.81 4.2 year $ 13.2
2,043,65! $ 27.81] 4.2 year $ 13.2
1,376,21. $ 27.8¢ 4.3 year $ 8.8

(restricted stock generally vests over a two to four pegiod):

Non-vested restricted stock at January 1, 2007
Granted

Vested (intrinsic value of $3,016,000)
Forfeited

Non-vested restricted stock at December 31, 2007

The total fair value of options vested was $21.6 miliod $2.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2007 and

2006, respectively. No options vested in 2005.

Weighted
Average
Grant- Date
Shares Fair Value
206,70  $ 46.65
(62,777  $ 46.6¢
(1,919 $ 46.65
142,00 $ 46.65




In connection with the Telesat Canada transaction, puruahange of control provisions in certain stock option
agreements, vesting on 503,113 shares was accelerategbatied in stock compensation cost of $6.1 million charged to
expense in 2007. Total compensation cost charged to expehgéestmated forfeitures, for stock options and retst
stock was $26.3 million and $3.0 million in 2007 and 2006, resdecaind $0.1 million for the period from October 2,
2005 to December 31, 2005. The tax benefit recognized in eem&at of operations for this compensation cost was
$10.3 million, $1.1 million and zero in 2007, 2006 and 2005,
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respectively. As of December 31, 2007, there was $12.2millf total unrecognized compensation cost related to
non-vested stock options and restricted stock which isceagbéo be recognized over the next two years.

As of December 31, 2007, there were 628,004 shares of darahon stock available for future grant under the
Stock Incentive Plan.

Predecessor Registrant
Common Stock and Old Loral Stock Plans

All shares of Old Loral common stock were cancelled uporemargence pursuant to the terms of the Plan of
Reorganization. Options to purchase 2,002,870 shares &fotdticommon stock, with a weighted average exercise jofi
$47.86, were forfeited on November 21, 2005 in accordancehetRlan of Reorganization.

14. Earnings (Loss) Per Share

Basic earnings (loss) per share is computed based upoeitjiged average number of shares of common stock
outstanding. For the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 treddferiods from October 2, 2005 to December 31,
2005 and January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005, the effect of apptekira.1 million, 1.3 million, 0.7 million, and
2.0 million stock options outstanding, which would be calcdlatng the treasury stock method, were excluded from the
calculation of diluted loss per share, as the effectavbaive been antidilutive. In addition, for the year erfdecember 31,
2007, the effect of 0.1 million shares of non-vested iettistock was excluded from the calculation of dilutesl jhes
share as the effect would have been antidilutive.

The following table sets forth the computation of basid diluted loss per share:

Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
For the Year For the Year October 2, January 1,
Ended Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005

(in thousands, except per share data)
Numerator for basic and diluted loss per sha
(Loss) income applicable to common
shareholders from continuing operations $ (15,40 $ (22,7200 $  (15,26)) $ 1,030,88:
Gain on sale of discontinued operations, r
of taxes — — — 13,96

Net (loss) income applicable to common
stockholders $ (1540 $ (22,720 $ (15,26 $ 1,044,84!

Denominator:
Weighted average common shares
outstanding 20,08 20,00( 20,00( 44,10¢

Basic and diluted (loss) earnings per share:
Continuing operations $ 077 % 119 % (0.7€) $ 23.37
Discontinued operations — — — 0.32

(Loss) earnings per share $ 077 % (1.1 3 (0.7€) $ 23.6¢
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15. Pensions and Other Employee Benefits
Pensions

We maintain a pension plan and a supplemental retirementTiase plans are defined benefit pension plans, and
members may contribute to the pension plan in ordexceive enhanced benefits. Benefits are based prinoarigembers’
compensation and/or years of service. Our funding pdity fund the pension plan in accordance with the Internal
Revenue Code and regulations thereon and to fund the suppdénetirement plan on a discretionary basis. P&sets are
generally invested in equity investments and fixed ireomiestments. Pension plan assets are managed by Russell
Investment Corp. (“Russell”), which allocates the asidb specified Russell-designed funds as we direct.

We recognize the long term nature of pension liaédjtthe benefits of diversification across assasefmand the
effects of inflation. Loral’s diversified pension portfols designed to maximize returns consistent with fegéliquidity
and investment risk that are prudent and reasonable.sEhtsare invested using specified Russell-designed funds as
directed by the plan’s investment committee. Russel asaulti asset multi style multi manager investment ambrn
designing its funds. Portfolio risk is controlled throulgts diversification process and Russell's constant taong of
money managers. Performance results and fund accoanérgyovided to the Company on a monthly basis. Periodic
reviews of the portfolio are done with Russell andgla@’s investment committee. The performance of tmsipa plans
are reported to the board of directors at the quarbedyd meetings. The portfolio includes holdings of doimest
non-U.S. and private equities, fixed income investsiand alternative investments.

Effective July 1, 2006, we amended our pension plan to stamddhgi future benefits earned at all company
locations for eligible employees. These amendmentsalidhange any benefits earned through June 30, 2006. Aglta res
of the amendments, all locations now have a carexnge plan that requires an employee contribution in ordecéive
the highest level of benefits. All current particifenow earn future benefits under the same formuldnawd the same
early retirement provisions. The amendments did pplyao certain employees under a bargaining unit arraagem
Additionally, employees hired after June 30, 2006, do noicpzate in the defined benefit pension plan, but padite in
our defined contribution savings plan with an additional Comgantribution. As a result of these amendments, our
ongoing pension expense and cash funding requirement hasdoleeed commencing July 1, 2006.

Other Benefits

In addition to providing pension benefits, we provide certealth care and life insurance benefits for retired
employees and dependents. Participants are eligible forlibreéits generally when they retire from activeviserand
meet the eligibility requirements for our pension plan.sehleenefits are funded primarily on a pay-as-you-gspwaith the
retiree generally paying a portion of the cost througitrdmitions, deductibles and coinsurance provisions.

Curtailment

In connection with the Telesat Canada transaction, th&quebenefits of Loral Skynet employees have beerefro
and they will no longer earn additional benefits undeiptresion plans. Unvested pension plan participants wiive
credit for Telesat Canada service for vesting purposhs In addition, only service prior to the date of fhelesat Canada
transaction will be considered to determine eligibfidyretiree, medical and life insurance benefits. Assalt, and
because of other related employee actions, a curtaitja@nhas been recorded upon completion of the Telesat Canada
transaction and is reflected in the tables below. Theeredion liability has been excluded from the Telesat daana
transaction and retained by Loral.
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Funded Status

The following tables provide a reconciliation of theucehes in the plans’ benefit obligations and fair valuesséts
for 2007 and 2006, and a statement of the funded statues@mber 31, 2007 and, 2006, respectively. We use a
December 31 measurement date for the pension planshergost retirement benefit plans. The effect of tréadment
was measured as of October 31, 2007, the date of theaxT€lmsada transaction. The plans’ benefit obligatiods a
recorded liabilities were revalued as of October 1, 200&nmection with our adoption of fresh-start accounting.

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
For The Year Ended For The Year Ended
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006

(in thousands) (in thousands)
Reconciliation of benefit obligati
Obligation at beginning of period $ 371,88 $ 406,90¢ $ 8565: $ 81,17¢
Service cost 10,14~ 10,92¢ 1,607 1,482
Interest cost 22,45¢ 21,83¢ 4,99t 4,834
Participant contributions 1,612 1,051 1,827 1,56¢
Amendments — (35,849 (2,81%) (2,159
Actuarial (gain) loss (15,497 (12,427) (3,125 3,51¢
Benefit payments (21,387 (20,567) (5,00¢) (4,774
Curtailment gain (1,35)) — (1,169 —
Transfer of liability due to Telesat Canada transaction — — (8,17€) —
Obligation at December 31, $ 36787( $ 371,88 $ 73,78 $ 85,65-
Reconciliation of fair valu of plan assets
Fair value of plan assets at beginning of period $ 284,27 $ 247,72¢ $ 866 $  1,02¢
Actual return on plan assets 18,93¢ 27,762 89 38
Employer contributions — 27,46( 3,181 3,00¢
Participant contributions 1,612 1,051 1,827 1,56¢
Benefit payments (20,540 (19,726 (5,00¢) (4,774
Fair value of plan assets at December 31, $ 284,280 $ 284,271 $ 955  $ 866
Funded status at end of period $ (83587) $ (87,608 $ (72,837 $ (84,786

The benefit obligations for pensions and other emplogeefiis exceeded the fair value of plan assets by
$156.4 million at December 31, 2007, (the “unfunded bendfgations”). In connection with our adoption of Statemeait
Financial Accounting Standards No. 1&8nployers’ Accounting For Defined Benefit Pension and OtbstrBtirement
Plans, (“SFAS 158"), as of December 31. 2006, we were requireectagnize the funded status of a benefit plan on our
balance sheet. As a result, as of December 31, 200@dweead our recorded liability for pensions by $50.5 milliath &
corresponding credit to accumulated other comprehensive@and increased our recorded liability for other benley
$1.0 million, with a corresponding charge to accumulated etiraprehensive income, to adjust to our actual unfunded
benefit obligations. The unfunded benefit obligatiomsenmeasured using a discount rate of 6.5% and 6.0% at Dercainb
2007 and 2006, respectively. Lowering the discount rate by @:&%e have increased the unfunded benefit obligations by
approximately $27.8 million and $26.6 million as of DecembefB8@y and 2006, respectively. Market conditions and
interest rates will significantly affect future assmtsl liabilities of Loral’s pension and other emplopeaefits plans.
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The pre-tax amounts recognized in accumulated other chenpize income as of December 31, 2007 and 2006
consist of (in thousands):

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006
Actuarial gain (loss) $ 26,47 $ 16,03: $ (2,109 $ (2,899
Amendments-prior service credit 30,82¢ 34,45( 3,44¢ 1,91F

$ 57,30¢ $ 50,48: $ 1,348 $ (979

The amounts recognized in other comprehensive incomegdilre year ended December 31, 2007 consist of (in
thousands):

Pension
Benefits Other Benefits
Actuarial gain during the period $ 10,66( $ 3,17¢
Prior service credit during the period — 2,81¢
Amortization of actuarial gain (59) 111
Amortization of prior service credit (2,784 (553)
Recognition due to curtailment (994) (693)
Recognition due to Telesat Canada transaction — (2,537)
Total recognized in other comprehensive income $ 6,82< $ 2,321
Amounts recognized in the balance sheet consist dfidusands):
Pension Benefits Other Benefits
December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2007 2006

Current Liabilities $ 892 $ 797 $ 3,187 $ 3,61C
Long-Term Liabilities 82,69¢ 86,811 69,64¢ 81,17¢

$ 83,58 $ 87,60¢ $ 72,838 $ 84,78¢

The estimated actuarial gain and prior service creditie pension benefits that will be amortized fraroumulated
other comprehensive income as a credit into net peramdit over the next fiscal year is $0.1 million and $dillion,
respectively. The estimated actuarial loss and geovice credit for other benefits that will be anred from accumulated
other comprehensive income as a credit into netas@stthe next fiscal year is $0 and $0.5 million, respelst

The accumulated pension benefit obligation was $364.3 méliwl $366.2 million at December 31, 2007 and 2006,
respectively.

During 2007, there were no employer contributions requodittmade to the plan. In September 2006, Loral made
the minimum required contribution of $2.3 million to the penglan and made an additional voluntary contribution to the
pension plan of $25.2 million. The additional voluntary cdmittion was made to improve the funded status of the pensio



plan and to reduce future expected contributions. During 2008] base current estimates, we expect to contribute
approximately $34 million to the qualified pension plan axmket to fund approximately $4 million for other employee
post-retirement benefit plans.
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The following table provides the components of net peciodst for the plans for the years ended December 31,

2007 and 2006, and for the periods October 2, 2005 to Decemi#08land January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005 (in
thousands):

Pension Benefits Other Benefits
Predecessor Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period For the Period For the Period
For The Year October 2, January 1, For The Year October 2, January 1,
Ended 2005 to 2005 to Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, October 1, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005 2007 2006 2005 2005
Service cost $ 10,24t $ 10,92¢ $ 2,89€ $ 7787 $ 1607 $ 148z $ 255 $ 680
Interest cost 22,45¢ 21,83t 5,76C 17,601 4,99t 4,834 1,157 3,407
Expected return on
plan assets (23,76¢) (22,229) (5,545) (15,34%) (36) (52) (23) (78)
Amortization of
prior service
credit (2,784) (1,399 — (27) (553) (239 — (1,443
Amortization of net
actuarial
loss(gain) (59) — — 4,97€ 111 127 — 1,843
Curtailment gain (2,345) — — — (1,862) — — —
Net periodic cost  $ 3644 $ 9,13z $ 3,111 $ 14994 $ 426z $ 6,152 $ 1,38¢ $ 4,40¢

The discount rate used to determine net periodic pensibmvass.00% for the period January 1, 2007 to
October 31, 2007 and, as a result of the remeasuremehefourtailment as of October 31, 2007, 6.50% for the period
November 1, 2007 to December 31, 2007. Assumptions used to uetereh periodic cost:

Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
For The Year October 2, January 1,
Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31 December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Discount rate 6.00%/6.50%  5.75% 5.75% 6.00%
Expected return on plan assets 8.50% 9.00% 9.00% 9.00%
Rate of compensation increase 4.25% 4.25% 4.25% 4.25%
Assumptions used to determine the benefit obligation:
Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Discount rate 6.5C% 6.0C% 5.75% 5.75%
Rate of compensation increase 4.25% 4.25% 4.25% 4.25%

The expected long-term rate of return on pension plan assatected by taking into account the expected duration
of the projected benefit obligation for the plans, tteetimix of the plans and the fact that the plan aasetactively
managed to mitigate risk. Allowable investment typetuithe equity investments and fixed income investments. &ensi



plan assets are managed by Russell, which allocatesstits o specified Russell designed funds as per ouretirasset
allocation. Each specified Russell fund is then managé&avbgtment managers chosen by Russell. The targeteddong-t
allocation of our pension plan assets is 60% in equigsimrents and 40% in fixed income investments. Based omthet t
allocation, the twenty-year historical return of awwastment managers has been 10.1%. The expected long-tewh ra
return on plan assets determined on this basis was 8.5%
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for the year ended December 31, 2007 and 9.0% for theeydad December 31, 2006, and the periods October 2, 2005 to
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005.

Our pension and other employee benefits plan asset atlosdty asset category as of December 31, 2007 and 2006
are as follows:

December 31,

2007 2006
Equity investments 54% 55%
Fixed income investments 46% 45%

10C% 10C%

Actuarial assumptions to determine the benefit obligaftio other benefits as of December 31, 2007, used a health
care cost trend rate of 9.5% decreasing gradually 86 #$y62014. Actuarial assumptions to determine the bestgfgation
for other benefits as of December 31, 2006, used a ezatttcost trend rate of 10.25% decreasing gradually to 4/5% b
2014. Assumed health care cost trend rates have a sigh#itact on the amounts reported for the health carespA 1%
change in assumed health care cost trend rates for 200d aeé the following effects (in thousands):

1% 1%
Increase Decrease

Effect on total of service and interest cost companehhet periodic postretirement healtl
care benefit cost $ 474 $ (390
Effect on the health care component of the accumulatgdghioement benefit obligation $ 5,944 $ (4,999

The following benefit payments, which reflect futureviees, as appropriate, are expected to be paid (in thoysands

Other Benefits

Gross Medicare

Pension Benefit Subsidy

Benefits Payments Receipts
2008 $ 23,52i $ 4,55¢ $ 284
2009 24,191 4,83¢ 314
2010 24,841 5,114 342
2011 25,61¢ 5,39¢ 369
2012 25,771 5,65( 400
2013 to 2017 140,18: 30,60( 2,37¢

Assets designated to fund the obligations of our supplemamwtigment plan are held in a trust. Such assets
amounting to $6.0 million and $6.4 million as of Decemlder2®07 and 2006, respectively, are not available for genera
corporate use; however, these assets would be avaieddmeral creditors in the event of bankruptcy aretefore, do not
qualify as plan assets. Accordingly, other currenttasseluded $0.8 million of these assets as of DeceBihe2007 and
other assets included $5.2 million and $6.4 million of tlessets as of December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectively.

Employee Savings (401k) Plan



We have an employee savings (401Kk) plan, to which the Congpaxygles matching contributions of 663 % of
up to 6% of a participant’s pay, and retirement contringti®etirement contributions represent contributioade by the
Company to provide added retirement benefits to employess o or after July 1, 2006, as they are not eligible to
participate in our defined benefit pension plan. Retireroentributions are provided regardless of an
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employee’s contribution to the savings (401k) plan. Matchimdributions and retirement contributions are colledyive
known as Company contributions. Company contributesesnade in cash and placed in each participant’s age appeopri
“life cycle” fund. For the years ended December 2007, and ZD@&pany contributions were $7.7 million, and

$5.5 million, respectively. For the periods from Octabe2005 to December 31, 2005, and January 1, 2005 to October 1,
2005, Company contributions were $1.0 million and $3.3 onillrespectively. Participants of the savings (401k) plan are
able to redirect Company contributions to any av&l&mnd within the plan. Participants are also abldittect their
contributions to any available fund.

16. Financial Instruments and Foreign Currency
Financial Instruments
The carrying amount of cash and cash equivalents appresrfzat value because of the short maturity of those
instruments. The fair value of short-term investmentsstments in available-for-sale securities and supgi¢al
retirement plan assets is based on market quotationsaifivalfie of our long-term debt was $143.6 million at
December 31, 2006 based on market pricing at that time.

The fair value of the investments in available-foressdcurities of Globalstar Inc. represents an unreataredof
$0.3 million, before taxes as of December 31, 2007 (see 8ot

Foreign Currency

We, in the normal course of business, are subjecetagks associated with fluctuations in foreign currency
exchange rates.

As of December 31, 2007, SS/L had the following amountsrderated in Japanese Yen and EUROs (which have
been translated into U.S. dollars based on the Dece3db@007 exchange rates) that were unhedged (in millions):

Foreign Currency Us.$
Future revenues — Japanese Yen ¥ 84 $ 0.7
Future expenditures — Japanese Yen ¥ 4,22; $ 37.€
Future expenditures — EUROs E 3.7 $ 55

Derivatives

As part of the Telesat Canada transaction, TeleslalcH received financing commitments from a syndicateaoks
for $2.279 billion (based on an exchange rate of $1.00/CAD 0.918B@ctober 31, 2007) of senior secured credit facilities,
$692.8 million of a senior unsecured bridge facility and $inillion of a senior subordinated unsecured bridge facilit
The purchase price of Telesat Canada was in Canadiansd@hile most of the debt financing was in U.S. della
Accordingly, to insulate themselves from Canadian det#asus US dollar fluctuations, Loral, through Loral Skyaad
PSP, entered into financial commitments to lock in exghaates to convert some of the U.S. dollar denomirceted
proceeds to Canadian dollars. On October 23, 2007, LkyakStransferred its financial commitments undecdastracts to
Telesat Holdco.

A summary of these transactions is as follows:
1) In December 2006, Loral Skynet entered into a currensig Bavap with a single bank counterparty, effectively

converting $1.054 billion of U.S. debt into CAD 1.224 bitliof Canadian debt for a seven year period beginning
December 17, 2007. This debt amortizes 1% per year wittalanfiaturity of December 17, 2014. No cash payment was



made by Loral Skynet to the counterparty for enteringtinis transaction. This currency basis swap was eamsf to
Telesat Holdco on October 23, 2007. Loral Skynet recogrizesss of $39.0 million on the
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currency basis swap ($36.5 million for 2007 and $2.4 milla 2006). As of December 31, 2006, other current liakslitie
included $2.4 million, reflecting the fair value of theep.

2) In December 2006, Loral Skynet entered into forwarddareurrency contracts with a single bank counterparty
selling $497.4 million for CAD 570.1 million ($1.00/CAD 1.1461) witlsettlement date of December 17, 2007. In January
2007, Loral Skynet entered into additional forward foreignemay contracts with the same single bank counterpdlitygse
$200.0 million for CAD 232.8 million ($1.00/CAD 1.1512) with dtkament date of December 17, 2007. No cash payments
were made by Loral Skynet to the single bank counterfargntering into these transactions. Loral Skynfet's/ard
foreign currency contracts were transferred to Btlel®ldco on October 23, 2007. Loral Skynet recognized adjain
$122.6 million ($125.9 million gain for 2007 and a $3.3 milliorslfx 2006) on the forward foreign currency contracts. As
of December 31, 2006, other current liabilities include $3lBomreflecting a mark-to-market exchange rate of $1.00/CAD
1.1539 of the forward foreign currency contracts.

17. Commitments and Contingencies
Financial Matters
We had outstanding letters of credit of approximately $6.1omiks of December 31, 2007.

Due to the long lead times required to produce purchases] pre have entered into various purchase commitments
with suppliers. These commitments aggregated approximatelyrfis as of December 31, 2007 and primarily relate to
Satellite Manufacturing backlog.

We paid $1.7 million in January 2008 and are obligated to p&yrillion in January 2009 to the U.S. Department
of State pursuant to a consent agreement entered intta thyofal and SS/L.

SS/L has deferred revenue and accrued liabilities for pesfoce warranty obligations relating to satellites sold
customers, which could be affected by future performandeecfdtellites. These reserves for expected costsafvamty
reimbursement and support are based on historical failia® However, in the event of a catastrophic faibire satellite,
which cannot be predicted, these reserves likely wilbecsufficient. SS/L periodically reviews and adjusesdbferred
revenue and accrued liabilities for warranty reservesdan the actual performance of each satellite andmemai
warranty period. A reconciliation of such deferred amsimt the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006 ana for th
periods October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005 and January 10200fber 1, 2005, is as follows (in millions):

Balance of deferred amounts at January 1, 2005 $ 27.2
Accruals for deferred amounts issued during the period 1.3
Accruals relating to pre-existing contracts (includingralfes in estimates) 10.5
Balance of deferred amounts at October 1, 2005 39.C
Accruals for deferred amounts issued during the period —
Accruals relating to pre-existing contracts (includingralfes in estimates) 2.7
Balance of deferred amounts at December 31, 2005 41.7
Accruals for deferred amounts issued during the period 4.8
Accruals relating to pre-existing contracts (includingralfes in estimates) 7.4
Balance of deferred amounts at December 31, 2006 53.6
Warranty costs incurred including payments (10.9)
Accruals relating to pre-existing contracts (includingralfes in estimates) (8.1)

Balance of deferred amounts at December 31, 2007 $ 35.C
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The reduction of the deferred amounts was primarilybatizble to a resolution of certain warranty obligatifans
less than previously estimated amounts. In connectittintiv reduction of the deferred amounts, interest experse wa
reduced by $4.5 million for the year ended December 31, 2007.

In connection with the Telesat Canada transaction, israktructuring its corporate functions. Through mid-2008
Loral will reduce the number of employees at its headgsatensolidating some functions at SS/L. During 2007alLor
charged approximately $7.0 million to selling, general and rmigdtrative expenses, mainly for severance and related costs
and expects to make cash payments related to the restiggtrimarily during 2008 and 2009. Approximately $0.2 million
was paid as of December 31, 2007.

Many of SS/L'’s satellite contracts permit SS/L’s custosrto pay a portion of the purchase price for thelgatel
over time subject to the continued performance of thdlisatéorbitals”), and certain of SS/L’s satellitontracts require
SS/L to provide vendor financing to its customers, corabination of these contractual terms. Some of tagsegements
are provided to customers that are start-up companiesnpanies in the early stages of building their busine3$ese
can be no assurance that these companies or theiessssnwill be successful and, accordingly, that thesterers will be
able to fulfill their payment obligations under theimtracts with SS/L. We believe that these provisiaiil not have a
material adverse effect on our consolidated finanpmaltion or our results of operations, although no asseraan be
provided. Moreover, SS/L’s receipt of orbital paymeaatsubject to the continued performance of its stdslljenerally
over the contractually stipulated life of the satellitemce these orbital receivables could be affecteditoyd satellite
performance, there can be no assurance that SS/henglble to collect all or a portion of these recdrsb

On July 30, 2007, SS/L entered into an Amended and Restatenr@usEredit Agreement (the “Credit Agreement”)
with Sirius Satellite Radio Inc. (“Sirius”). The Credigreement amends and restates in its entirety the @astGredit
Agreement entered into by SS/L and Sirius on June 7, 2006Q@riginal Credit Agreement”). The purpose of the
amendment and restatement is to make available tsSinancing for the purchase of a second satelliterithdeAmended
and Restated Satellite Purchase Agreement betweess &ird SS/L dated as of July 23, 2007 (the “Amended Satellit
Purchase Agreement”). Under the Credit Agreement, 8&slagreed to make loans to Sirius in an aggregatépaiinc
amount of up to $100,000,000 to finance the purchase of tilue 5M-5 and FM-6 Satellites (the “Sirius Satellited’pans
made under the Credit Agreement are secured by Sirglsrunder the Amended Satellite Purchase Agreemehiding
its rights to the Sirius Satellites. The loans ase ahtitled to the benefits of a subsidiary guaranter Batellite CD Radio,
Inc., and, subject to certain exceptions, any futurenahgeibsidiary that may be formed by Sirius hereaftee fiaturity
date of the loans is the earliest to occur of (ieJi@, 2010, (ii) 90 days after the FM-6 Satellite becamvasdable for
shipment and (i) 30 days prior to the scheduled laun¢heoFM-6 Satellite. Loans made under the Credit Agraéme
generally bear interest at a variable rate equal tedtm@nth LIBOR plus a margin. The Credit Agreement perniitgs3o
prepay all or a portion of the loans outstanding withpmurtalty, and, upon the occurrence of certain events, &iniaguired
to prepay the loans. As of December 31, 2007, no loaressautstanding under the Credit Agreement. Siriusiiseatly
eligible to borrow $82 million under the Credit Agreemeapresenting reimbursement of payments previously rfoade
Sirius under the Amended Satellite Purchase Agreement.

See Note 19 — Related Party Transactions — Transactitmg\ffiliates — Telesat Canada for commitments and
contingencies relating to our agreement to indemnifgdatl Canada for certain liabilities and our arrangesneitih ViaSat,
Inc. and Telesat Canada.

Satellite Matters

Satellites are built with redundant components or additioomponents to provide excess performance margins to
permit their continued operation in case of componentrigiln event that is not uncommon in complex sasllit
Twenty-three of the satellites built by SS/L and laudckiace 1997 have experienced losses of power from their solar
arrays. There can be no assurance that one or mtire affected satellites will not experience additiggaater loss. In the
event of additional power loss, the extent of the perfacaaegradation, if any, will
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depend on numerous factors, including the amount of thé@udipower loss, the level of redundancy built inte th
affected satellite’s design, when in the life of tffeced satellite the loss occurred, how many trandpaare then in
service and how they are being used. It is also pesfibt one or more transponders on a satellite maytodedremoved
from service to accommodate the power loss and &epre full performance capabilities on the remainingspanders. A
complete or partial loss of a satellite’s capacity daekult in a loss of orbital incentive payments td_S®/ith respect to
satellites under construction and the constructioreef satellites, based on its investigation of the ena8S/L has
identified and has implemented remediation measures thab8i2lkzes will prevent newly launched satellites from
experiencing similar anomalies. SS/L does not expectrtipdémentation of these measures will cause any signifidelay
in the launch of satellites under construction orabrestruction of new satellites. Based upon informatiorectly available,
including design redundancies to accommodate small povsarsioand that no pattern has been identified as tarfngytor
specific location within the solar arrays of the fels; we believe that this matter will not have a maltadverse effect on
our consolidated financial position or our results ofrapens, although no assurance can be provided.

In November 2004, Intelsat Americas 7 (formerly TelZdaexperienced an anomaly which caused it to completely
cease operations for several days before it wamlbharecovered. Four other satellites manufactured by 88/other
customers have designs similar to Intelsat Americasd( therefore, could be susceptible to similar anomialigee future.

A partial or complete loss of these satellites couldlté@s the incurrence of warranty payments by SS/L.

SSL relies, in part, on patents, trade secrets and-kioawwto develop and maintain its competitive position. &her
can be no assurance that infringement of existing thitgt patents has not occurred or will not occur. Inglaent of
infringement, we could be required to pay royalties to nkadicense from the patent holder, refund moneystatners for
components that are not useable or redesign our praduaysid infringement, all of which would increase owtsoWe
may also be required under the terms of our customeractgto indemnify our customers for damages.

See Note 19 — Related Party Transactions — Transactitng\ffiliates — Telesat Canada for commitments and
contingencies relating to SS/L’s obligation to makenpayts to Telesat Canada for transponders on Telstltabated to
ChinaSat.

Regulatory Matters

SS/L is required to obtain licenses and enter into teahassistance agreements, presently under the juiasdadt
the State Department, in connection with the exporttefltas and related equipment, and with the disclosfitechnical
data to foreign persons. Due to the relationship betvaerch technology and missile technology, the U.S. governnasnt
limited, and is likely in the future to limit, launel from China and other foreign countries. Delays iniolotg the
necessary licenses and technical assistance agredmasetin the past resulted in, and may in the futuretriastihe delay
of SS/L’s performance on its contracts, which could resuthé cancellation of contracts by its customers,rtberrence of
penalties or the loss of incentive payments under ttaseacts.
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Lease Arrangements

We lease certain facilities and equipment under ageatnexpiring at various dates. Certain leases covering
facilities contain renewal and/or purchase options whialy be exercised by us. Rent expense, net of subleasedinsas
follows (in thousands):

Gross Sublease
Rent Income Net Rent
Year ended December 31, 2007 $ 26,307 $ (76) $ 26,22¢
Year ended December 31, 2006 $ 27,317 $ (200 $ 27,297
October 2, 2005 to December 31, 2005 $ 6,53€ $ (38 $ 6,49¢
January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005 $ 20,057 $ (261) $ 19,79¢

Future minimum payments, by year and in the aggregatr aperating leases with initial or remaining termsra o
year or more consisted of the following as of Decen®igr2007 (in thousands):

2008 $ 8,58¢
2009 7,671
2010 6,952
2011 4,922
2012 2,651
Thereafter 1,97¢

$ 32,76¢

Legal Proceedings
New York Shareholder Litigation

On or about November 3, 2006, plaintiff Maxine Babus, derightion behalf of Loral Space & Communications
Inc., filed a shareholder derivative complaint in ther8ope Court of the State of New York, County of New Ry @gainst
all the members of the Loral board of directors andresgjioral as a nominal defendant. On or about ApriD@72the
plaintiff filed an amended shareholder class and derivatingoaint against all members of the Loral board ofatianes,
MHR and certain funds (the “MHR Funds”) and other entdéifi§iated with MHR (collectively, MHR, the MHR Fuls and
such other entities, the “MHR Entities”) and Lorabasominal defendant. The amended complaint alleges, amoerg ot
things, that, in connection with the Company’s Secwiflarchase Agreement dated October 17, 2006, as amended and
restated on February 27, 2007, pursuant to which the Compaintyp sbe MHR Funds $300 million in new convertible
preferred stock, the directors and the MHR Entities bieghdeir fiduciary duties to the Company, including the fidyci
duties of care and loyalty, and that the MHR Entities@n Mark H. Rachesky have aided and abetted the diséti@ach
of fiduciary duty. The amended complaint seeks, among othgstHaoth as to the derivative claims and the clagsnact
claims, preliminary and permanent injunctive relgaf,award of compensatory damages in an amount to be detérmine
rescission of the Securities Purchase Agreement amtiffls costs and disbursements, including attorneyd’ experts’
fees and expenses.

The plaintiff, Mrs. Babus, died in November 2006, and, in Aug067, her son was substituted as plaintiff in place
of his deceased mother. After discussions betweergtitiepin which it was decided not to proceed with a Bramdum of
Understanding entered into in March 2007 (more fully describéidei Company’s Report on Form 8-K filed on March 21,
2007, and the full text of which is attached as Exhibit leteto) in light of a further advanced Delaware shareholde



litigation (discussed below), the parties have agreedthencburt in an order dated December 5, 2007 orderedhthat t
Babuslawsuit be stayed pending final resolution of such Delawhareholder litigation.
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In addition, the Company has received requests for inderatidh and advancement of expenses from its directors
pursuant to their indemnification agreements with the Comfia any losses or costs they may incur as atresthe
Babuslawsuit.

Delaware Shareholder Litigation

On or about May 14, 2007, the Court of Chancery of thie $feDelaware in and for New Castle County entered an
order consolidating two civil actions previously conmoed by certain stockholders of the Company against thgp&@uy,
the MHR Entities and the individual members of the Camjsaboard of directors under the captiarre: Loral Space and
Communications Inc. Consolidated LitigatioRlaintiffs in this action are certain stockholdershef Company who allege
that they hold over 25% of the outstanding common stotireo€ompany (the “Blackrock Plaintiffs”) and Highland
Crusader Offshore Partners, L.P. (“Highland,” and, tagretiith the Blackrock Plaintiffs, the “Delaware Pldfiist), the
purported owner of over 7% of Loral’s outstanding commockstdhe Blackrock Plaintiffs have brought the case
derivatively on behalf of the Company and directlybetalf of the Blackrock Plaintiffs individually. Thase has also been
brought by Highland as a class action on behalf of a ofdssral stockholders consisting of all security hotdef the
Company (except the defendants and persons or entiagsd éb or affiliated with the defendants) who, agalikin the
amended and consolidated complaint, “are or will be teneal with injury arising from Defendants’ actions” asaiied
in the amended and consolidated complaint.

In the amended and consolidated complaint, the Blackroaktiifsahave brought derivative claims alleging, among
other things, that, in connection with the SecuritiecPage Agreement, pursuant to which the Company sold $300rmilli
of preferred stock to the MHR Funds, the directors andtiR Entities breached their fiduciary duties to the Company
including the fiduciary duties of care and loyalty, the MBRities have aided and abetted the directors’ breafiduciary
duty, and the directors have engaged in conduct, or intetitiar recklessly approved conduct, that has caused the
Company to waste valuable corporate assets. In addhie®lackrock Plaintiffs have brought a direct claim agjaihe
MHR Entities and Dr. Rachesky alleging breach of thdirdiary duties allegedly owed to the Blackrock Plaintiffe] a
claim alleging that, by approving, engaging in and clp$ine transactions contemplated by the SecuritieshBse
Agreement, defendants violated the restriction on traiesadbetween companies and their interested stockholders
contained in Section 203 of the Delaware General Catiporbaw.

In the amended and consolidated complaint, Highland has brdaghtataims alleging, among other things, that, in
connection with the Securities Purchase Agreement, MitiRthe individual defendants breached their fiduciaryed i
negotiating and approving the Securities Purchase AgreemMBEiR and the individual defendants breached their fidyciar
duties by failing to terminate and re-negotiate the StesiPurchase Agreement after it was announcedndiddual
defendants committed an ultra vires abdication of theiutstag authority, MHR and the individual defendants breach
their fiduciary duty of disclosure by stating publicly thagytiwould seek to renegotiate the Securities Purchaseegre
after it was announced or to obtain an alternativeiastédad proceeding with the Securities Purchase Agreeare MHR
aided and abetted the individual defendants in their brefatiuciary duty.

In May 2007, the defendants filed answers, denying any atbegatf wrongdoing and asserting various defenses.
On February 20, 2008, the court entered an order (i) certifytigss action as to the class claims for a clgal iecord
and beneficial owners of common stock of Loral a®ctiober 17, 2006 and their successors, representativesetus
executors, administrators, heirs, assigns or traresfe(g) appointing Highland as class representative(iéghdesignating
counsel to the class.

In a pre-trial stipulation and order entered into in Fetyr@808, the Delaware Plaintiffs stated that the retiejt
were seeking was, among other things, (a) an ordetidigghat MHR offer the preferred stock purchased purdoahe
Securities Purchase Agreement, together with all adand PIK dividends thereon, to all other holders of Looanmon
stock on a pro rata basis, and that in connection with sffer, the terms of the preferred
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stock be modified to reflect market terms and otherigstir to Loral’s non-controlling stockholders; bj) {n the
alternative, (i) an order, pending conversion of théepred stock into nonvoting common stock, imposing atcoosve
trust on the preferred stock for the benefit of Laradl the class pursuant to which MHR cannot receivébangfits from
the preferred stock or exercise any of the rights &ssotcwith the preferred stock; and (i) an order detemgiaind
resetting the conversion price of the preferred stotheatair market value of Loral as of October 17, 2006 ‘ftlegv
conversion price”); and (iii) an order re-charactergihe preferred stock as that number of shares efotimg common
stock into which the preferred stock would convert atrtbw conversion price (the “new resulting shares’)alternatively,
an order enjoining MHR from converting the preferreatistinto any more shares than the new resulting shemgsning
Loral from issuing to MHR in place of the preferredcktany more shares than the new resulting shares atidwiog the
constructive trust with respect to any remaining shafreseferred stock); (c) an order directing MHR to disgohge t
$6.75 million placement fee paid by Loral to MHR in conigectvith the preferred stock issuance and, to the ext#nt n
disgorged, an order holding MHR and the director defendanttyjaimd severally liable for that amount; (d) an order
directing MHR to repay Loral for the fees incurred blRIs financial and legal advisors in connection with $ities
Purchase Agreement and, to the extent not repaid, an otderchbIHR and the directors defendants jointly and sewerall
liable for that amount; (e) an order holding MHR alnel director defendants jointly and severally liabledib other costs
and expenses incurred by Loral in connection with the BesuPurchase Agreement and the litigation; (faaard of
attorneys’ fees, costs and expenses, including exgsittiethe Delaware Plaintiffs’ counsel; and (g) sublercand further
relief as the court deems just and proper. If therelet@mination of liability, however, the Court of Chang which is a
court of equity, has wide latitude in determining remedies.

A trial in this action commenced in early March 2008. Festimony was completed, but expert testimony is
scheduled to be heard on May 12, 2008.

In addition, the Company has received requests for inderatidfh and advancement of expenses from certain of its
directors under their indemnification agreements withGbmpany for any losses or costs they may incurrasudt of the
In re: Loral Space and Communications Inc. Consolidated Litigddwasuit.

Although there can be no assurance as to the outobthis litigation, we do not currently believe that thigation
will have a material adverse effect on our consolilfiteancial position or results of operations.

Skynet Noteholders Litigation

On November 21, 2005, Loral Skynet issued $126 million principaluat of Loral Skynet Notes under the
Indenture. The Loral Skynet Notes could be redeemed prioctober 15, 2009 (an “Early Redemption”) at a redemption
price of 110% of the principal amount plus accrued and dnpgerest if the holders of two-thirds of the print¢igaount of
the Loral Skynet Notes did not object to the redemptimJune 13, 2007, at the request of Loral Skynet, thed¢rusider
the Indenture (the “Trustee”) issued a Notice of Prowigi Redemption. On July 12, 2007, the Trustee reported that
objections to the proposed redemption had been receivechfiluters of Loral Skynet Notes representing less than
two-thirds of the outstanding Loral Skynet Notes, amdJuy 16, 2007, at the request of Loral Skynet, the Trusteed an
unconditional Notice of Full Redemption. Consequentlg,Ltbral Skynet Notes were redeemed on September 5, 2@D7, an
the Indenture was discharged.

In connection with the redemption of the Loral Skynet NatesJune 13, 2007, GPC XLI L.L.C., Rockview Trading,
Ltd., KS Capital Partners L.P., Murray Capital Managetninc. Watershed Capital Institutional Partners, MWrtershed
Capital Partners (Offshore), Ltd. and Watershed CapahBrs L.P. (collectively, the “Skynet Noteholdeaifliffs”) as
holders of Loral Skynet Notes commenced an action iCtuet of Chancery of the State of Delaware in andHerCounty
of New Castle against Loral, Loral Skynet and the subigidiaf Loral Skynet that are obligors under the Indenture
(collectively, “Defendants”) alleging that Defendants bheacthe Indenture and the implied covenant of good faith &nd fa
dealing in the Indenture and the Loral Skynet Notes.
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Specifically, the Skynet Noteholder Plaintiffs’ complaialates to the Securities Purchase Agreement, datedd as
October 17, 2006, as amended and restated on February 27, 200&nkdatved and MHR, pursuant to which, in February
2007, funds affiliated with MHR purchased $300 million of Lorali€s-1 Preferred Stock from Loral as described in
Note 13. In that agreement, among other things, MHR glised to cause its affiliated funds, which collectivelidiroore
than one-third of the outstanding Loral Skynet Notestmobject to a proposed Early Redemption of the Lkghet
Notes in connection with a transaction such as the Teél@ssmda transaction, subject to the consummation of that
transaction. The Skynet Noteholder Plaintiffs allege tlesal compensated MHR for the Early Redemption canéand
that MHR did not waive its objection to the provisabiall for free. The Skynet Noteholder Plaintiffs het allege that the
payment to MHR for the Early Redemption covenant waofieted to any other noteholder, and was a way of paying
MHR more than the stated redemption price for the LSkghet Notes and evading the non-MHR noteholderktsitp
object to a redemption. The Skynet Noteholder Plairdifésseeking, among other things, an order (i) declaring that
Defendants violated the terms of the Indenture; ()aténg an event of default pursuant to the Indentuiigdifecting the
Defendants to pay them a sum not less than $17.9 mitlimst interest; (iv) an award of attorneys feests and expenses,
including expert fees, to their counsel pursuant to the Inderand (v) granting such other relief as the cowshdgjust and
proper.

In connection with a motion for a preliminary injunctiorought by the Skynet Noteholder Plaintiffs prior to the
redemption, which was denied by the court, Loral agregtht® $12 million, which is included in restricted cashtireo
current assets in our consolidated balance sheedcinve for the benefit of holders of Loral Skynet Natéser than funds
affiliated with MHR should they ultimately prevail.

A trial on the merits commenced in early March 2008 togetiitd the trial in thdn re: Loral Space and
Communications Inc. Consolidated Litigatifdiscussed above). Fact testimony was completed, butt éegimony is
scheduled to be heard on May 12, 2008.

Loral believes that the September 5, 2007 Early Redemigtimmoper in accordance with the terms of the Indenture.
Although there can be no assurance as to the outebthes litigation, Loral believes that the likelihootlam unfavorable
outcome is remote, and therefore, the Company hagoaided a loss contingency related to this matter.

Informal SEC Inquiry

In June and July 2007, we received letters from the StéffeoDivision of Enforcement of the SEC informing the
Company that it is conducting an informal inquiry and reqagghat the Company provide certain documents and
information relating primarily to the Securities Purea@greement, dated as of October 17, 2006, as amended atetrest
on February 27, 2007, between Loral and MHR and actiligézre and after its execution as well as documents and
information relating to the redemption of the Loral SkyNetes (see Note 10) and documents and informatiomdiegahe
directors and officers of Loral. The letter advised thatinformal inquiry should not be construed as an atitin by the
SEC or its staff that any violations of law have ocedy or as an adverse reflection upon any person oiityedure
Company is cooperating with the SEC staff. In additionCtbpany has received requests for indemnification and
advancement of expenses from certain of its advisorsregipect to costs they may incur as a result of cammai with
SEC document requests.

Rainbow DBS Litigation

In March 2001, Loral entered into an agreement (therititar DBS Sale Agreement”) with Rainbow DBS Holdings,
Inc. (“Rainbow Holdings”) pursuant to which Loral agréedell to Rainbow Holdings its interest in Rainbow DBS
Company, LLC (formerly R/L DBS Company, LLC, “Rainb@BS") for a purchase price of $33 million plus interesamat
annual rate of 8% from April 1, 2001. Loral’'s receiptias purchase price was, however, contingent on the rerae of
certain events, including without limitation, the salswabstantially all of the assets of Rainbow DBS. Attilme of the
Rainbow DBS Sale Agreement, Loral’s investment imBaw DBS had been recorded at zero and Loral did notdec
receivable or gain from this sale. In November 2005, Rainb
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DBS sold its Rainbow 1 satellite and related assetstio&ar Communications Corporation. Rainbow Holdings, kewe
informed Loral that it did not believe that Loral wergtitled to receive an immediate payment of the purchase under

the Rainbow DBS Sale Agreement as a result of the&ahasale transaction. Loral disputed Rainbow Holdings’
interpretation of the agreement and, in September 2068neaced a lawsuit in the Supreme Court of the Statewf N
York to enforce its rights thereunder. After a juigltheld in January 2007, the jury returned a verdictworfaf Loral, and

a final judgment in the amount of $52 million (representhe $33 million purchase price plus interest at 8% fpnil 1,
2001 through the date of the judgment) was entered by theotoarch 12, 2007. Rainbow Holdings filed a motion to set
aside the verdict or, in the alternative, a new twhich motion was denied by the court by order dated Mag; 2007.
Rainbow DBS appealed the final judgment and the coudsratenying Rainbow DBS’s motion to set aside the veodic

for a new trial. In February 2008, the Appellate DivisiBinst Department, unanimously affirmed the final judgmentthad
court’s order denying Rainbow Holding’s motion to setlashe verdict or for a new trial. Rainbow Holdings'tiao for

leave to appeal to the Court of Appeals was denied oih &2008. On April 15, 2008, Rainbow Holdings moved for leave
to appeal directly from the Court of Appeals. A thirdtpdras asserted a prepetition claim against the Compahg

amount of $3 million with respect to the purchase price.

Indemnification Claims of Directors and Officers of Old Loral

Old Loral was obligated to indemnify its directors anficefs for any losses or costs they may incur igsalt of
the lawsuits described below in Class Action Securitiggdtions, Class Action ERISA Litigation and Globs&lr Related
Class Action Securities Litigations. The Plan of Rpmization provides that the direct liability of New abr
post-emergence in respect of such indemnity obligatiomitelil to theln re: Loral Space ERISA LitigaticendIn re: Loral
Space & Communications Ltd. Securities Litigatiases and then only in an aggregate amount of $2.5 nttieriDirect
Indemnity Liability”). In addition, most directors amwfficers have filed proofs of claim (the “D&O Claimst) unliquidated
amounts with respect to the prepetition indemnity obligetiof the Debtors. The Debtors and these directorsfacers,
including Mr. Bernard L. Schwartz, Loral's Chairman o Board and Chief Executive Officer until his retiremeffiective
March 1, 2006, with respect to all claims he may haver ¢hiae the Globalstar settlement for which he hasparate
indemnity claim of up to $25 million as described below, feyreeed that in no event will their indemnity claims agai
Old Loral and Loral Orion in the aggregate exceed $25 miliod $5 million, respectively. If any of these claimanadtely
becomes an allowed claim under the Plan of Reorganizdtierc)aimant would be entitled to a distribution underRlan
of Reorganization of New Loral common stock based uponrttoaiat of the allowed claim. Any such distribution afckt
would be in addition to the 20 million shares of New Laahmon stock distributed under the Plan of Reorganiz#gion
other creditors. Instead of issuing such additionaleshadew Loral may elect to satisfy any allowed claimash in an
amount equal to the number of shares to which planiiffuld have been entitled multiplied by $27.75 or in a combmatio
of additional shares and cash. We believe, althoughsuvaagce can be given, that New Loral will not incuy smbstantial
losses as a result of these claims.

Class Action Securities Litigations

In August 2003, plaintiffs Robert Beleson and Harvey Matcovisgg & purported class action complaint against
Bernard L. Schwartz in the United States District Cérthe Southern District of New York. The complaiaeks, among
other things, damages in an unspecified amount and reimiemsef plaintiffs’ reasonable costs and expenses. The
complaint alleges (a) that Mr. Schwartz violated $eciiO(b) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934 (the “Exchawat$
and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, by making materiaiatgisgents or failing to state material facts about our
financial condition relating to the sale of assetsitelsat and our Chapter 11 filing and (b) that Mr. Schwarsecondarily
liable for these alleged misstatements and omissiater Bection 20(a) of the Exchange Act as an alleged “cbngyol
person” of Old Loral. The class of plaintiffs on whdmhalf the lawsuit has been asserted consists afiygl$ of Old Loral
common stock during the period from June 30, 2003 through JuB003, excluding the defendant and certain persons
related to or affiliated
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with him. In November 2003, three other complaints agdinsGchwartz with substantially similar allegationsreve
consolidated into thBelesoncase. In February 2004, a motion to dismiss the contpieits entirety was denied by the
court. The defendant filed an answer in March 2004. Discamehjs case has been completed. Plaintiffs have filed a
motion for class certification which is pending. Sinftis tase was not brought against Old Loral, but only agairesof its
officers, we believe, although no assurance can be divat) to the extent that any award is ultimately gdhtaehe
plaintiffs in this action, the liability of New Loraif any, with respect thereto is limited solely be@tD&O Claims as
described above under “Indemnification Claims.”

In November 2003, plaintiffs Tony Christ, individually andcastodian for Brian and Katelyn Christ, Casey
Crawford, Thomas Orndorff and Marvin Rich, filed a purpdrtlass action complaint against Bernard L. Schwadz a
Richard J. Townsend in the United States Distriair€for the Southern District of New York. The complaseteks, among
other things, damages in an unspecified amount and reimiemsef plaintiffs’ reasonable costs and expenses. The
complaint alleges (a) that defendants violated Sectior) b®¢he Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereungder, b
making material misstatements or failing to statéema facts about Old Loral’s financial conditioriating to the
restatement in 2003 of the financial statements forebensl and third quarters of 2002 to correct accountingefidain
general and administrative expenses and the alleged impiagoemdng for a satellite transaction with APT Satelli
Company Ltd. and (b) that each of the defendants is sedgri@dnie for these alleged misstatements and ommssunder
Section 20(a) of the Exchange Act as an alleged “contrgiimgon” of Old Loral. The class of plaintiffs on whdashalf
the lawsuit has been asserted consists of all buf€@kld oral common stock during the period from July 31, 2008ugh
June 29, 2003, excluding the defendants and certain peraesl te or affiliated with them. In October 2004, a motmn
dismiss the complaint in its entirety was denied by thetc The defendants filed an answer to the complaineireber
2004. Discovery in this case has been stayed, and theifiteemain in effect until 30 days after a decismmthe pending
class certification motion in tHgelesorcase discussed above or upon 20 days notice by either Partg this case was not
brought against Old Loral, but only against certain obffisers, we believe, although no assurance can lemgthat to the
extent that any award is ultimately granted to the pfésriti this action, the liability of New Loral, if anwith respect
thereto is limited solely to the D&O Claims as ddsedi above under “Indemnification Claims.”

Class Action ERISA Litigation

In April 2004, two separate purported class action lawdiets ih the United States District Court for the Southe
District of New York by former employees of Old Loraldgparticipants in the Old Loral Savings Plan (the “Savirigs”)
were consolidated into one action titkadre: Loral Space ERISA Litigationin July 2004, plaintiffs in the consolidated
action filed an amended consolidated complaint againshémebers of the Loral Space & Communications Ltdirsgsv
Plan Administrative Committee and certain existing amch& members of the Board of Directors of SS/Lludmng
Bernard L. Schwartz. The amended complaint seeks, amoegtbihgs, damages in the amount of any losses sutfgred
the Savings Plan to be allocated among the particigadigidual accounts in proportion to the accountssks an order
compelling defendants to make good to the Savings Plan sdislés the Savings Plan resulting from defendants’ alleged
breaches of their fiduciary duties and reimbursemeobsts and attorneys’ fees. The amended complaint al{ey¢hat
defendants violated Section 404 of the Employee Retiremenme Security Act (‘ERISA”), by breaching theiddiciary
duties to prudently and loyally manage the assets @alangs Plan by including Old Loral common stock as an imerg
alternative and by providing matching contributions undefSénngs Plan in Old Loral stock, (b) that the director
defendants violated Section 404 of ERISA by breaching fideiciary duties to monitor the committee defendants and t
provide them with accurate information, (c) that defendeintated Sections 404 and 405 of ERISA by failing to provide
complete and accurate information to Savings Plan paatits and beneficiaries, and (d) that defendants violated
Sections 404 and 405 of ERISA by breaching their fiduciaredut avoid conflicts of interest. The class of gifimon
whose behalf the lawsuit has been asserted consetgarticipants in or beneficiaries of the SavingsPht any time
between November 4, 1999 and the present and whosenseaotluded investments in Old Loral stock. Plaintitkvé also
filed a proof of claim against Old Loral with respezthis case and have
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agreed that in no event will their claim against Olddlevith respect to this case exceed $22 million. If pldsitdlaim
ultimately becomes an allowed claim under the Plan ofgization, plaintiffs would be entitled to a distributiorder

the Plan of Reorganization of New Loral common stodebtaipon the amount of the allowed claim. Any such disioitout
of stock would be in addition to the 20 million sharedlefv Loral common stock being distributed under the Plan of
Reorganization to other creditors. Instead of issuing additional shares, New Loral may elect to satisfyallowed

claim in cash in an amount equal to the number of shareglith plaintiffs would have been entitled multiplied by $27.75
or in a combination of additional shares and cash.

In addition, two insurers under Old Loral’s directors affiders liability insurance policies have denied coverage
with respect to the case titléalre: Loral Space ERISA Litigatigneach claiming that coverage should be provided under
the other’s policy. In December 2004, one of the defaisdarthat case filed a lawsuit in the United Statesridts€ourt for
the Southern District of New York seeking a declarajiodgment as to his right to receive coverage under the polinies
March 2005, the insurers filed answers to the complaihbae of the insurers filed a cross claim againsother insurer
which such insurer answered in April 2005. In August and Oct(b@5B, each of the two potentially responsible insurers
moved separately for judgment on the pleadings, seeking aratgtabsolving it of liability to provide coverage okth
ERISA action. In March 2006, the court granted the nadioone of the insurers and denied the motion of theransurer.
Discovery with regard to defenses to coverage assertée Ipotentially responsible insurer has ended, and the dafenda
insurer moved for summary judgment with respect to diits coverage defenses. This motion was denied bgdte in
September 2007.

In April 2008, the defendant insurer, the plaintiffs and toem@any agreed in principle to a settlement of both the
insurance coverage litigation and thae: Loral Space ERISA Litigatiotase. Pursuant to this settlement, the settlement
will be funded entirely by the defendant insurer, and Newal will not be required to make any contribution tosvtre
settlement. In addition, the bankruptcy claim filed byrglfis against Old Loral with respect to threre: Loral Space
ERISA Litigationcase will be disallowed and expunged. The settlement jecstib execution of a definitive settlement
agreement and approval by the court.

We believe, although no assurance can be given, thaidghe settlement not be consummated, the liabilitye#
Loral, if any, with respect to tHa re: Loral Space ERISA Litigatiorase or with respect to the related insurance coserag
litigation is limited solely to the Direct Indemnitydbility and the D&O Claims as described above under “Indfezation
Claims” and, to the extent that any award is ultimagented to the plaintiffs in this action, to distributiomsler the Plan
of Reorganization as described above.

Globalstar Related Class Action Securities Litigations

On September 26, 2001, the nineteen separate purported tlesdaaesuits filed in the United States District Court
for the Southern District of New York by various holdefsecurities of Globalstar Telecommunications LichitéGTL")
and Globalstar, L.P. (“Globalstar”) against GTL, QMtal, Bernard L. Schwartz and other defendants were tdate
into one action titledn re: Globalstar Securities Litigationln November 2001, plaintiffs in the consolidated acfiled a
consolidated amended class action complaint against GlabaBTL, Globalstar Capital Corporation, Old Laaatl
Bernard L. Schwartz seeking, among other things, damagesunspecified amount and reimbursement of plaintifists
and expenses. The complaints alleged (a) that all defen@aaept Old Loral) violated Section 10(b) of the Exchange A
and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder, by making materiaiatgisgents or failing to state material facts about
Globalstar's business and prospects, (b) that defen@dahisoral and Mr. Schwartz are secondarily lialdethese alleged
misstatements and omissions under Section 20(ag&xbhange Act as alleged “controlling persons” of Gldhgl¢c) that
defendants GTL and Mr. Schwartz are liable under Secfiaf the Securities Act of 1933 (the “Securities Act”) otrue
statements of material facts in or omissions of maltiacts from a registration statement relatingwdale of shares of
GTL common stock in January 2000, (d) that defendant GTLAkeliander Section 12(2)(a) of the Securities Act foruent
statements of material facts in or omissions of naltiacts from a prospectus and prospectus supplemetihgela the
sale of shares of GTL common stock in January 2000(egrttlat defendants Old Loral and
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Mr. Schwartz are secondarily liable under Section lthefSecurities Act for GTL’s primary violations cé@&ions 11 and
12(2)(a) of the Securities Act as alleged “controllingspas” of GTL. The class of plaintiffs on whose beltfadf lawsuit
has been asserted consists of all buyers of secwit@mbalstar, Globalstar Capital and GTL during thegaefrom
December 6, 1999 through October 27, 2000, excluding the defenddrdsréain persons related to or affiliated with them.
This case was preliminarily settled by Mr. Schwartduty 2005 for $20 million with final approval of the settkmin
December 2005. In September 2006, two objectors to thensettievho had filed appeals concerning the attorneys’ fee
awarded to the plaintiffs withdrew their appeals withualiee. Mr. Schwartz has commenced a lawsuit againsta@tar’s
directors and officers liability insurers seeking tooner the full settlement amount plus legal fees and erpensurred in
enforcing his rights under Globalstar’s directors afiiders liability insurance policy. In January 2007otef the four
insurers settled with Mr. Schwartz and paid him the neimg limits under their policies and, after a jurylirtae jury
returned a verdict against the other two insurefavor of Mr. Schwartz awarding him the remaining $9.lionlbalance
of his claim. The insurers’ motion to set aside theliet or, in the alternative, for a new trial, wasigel, and they have
appealed the verdict. In addition, Mr. Schwartz has @l@doof of claim against Old Loral asserting a genersécured
prepetition claim for, among other things, indemnificatielating to this case. Mr. Schwartz and Old Loralehagreed that
in no event will his claim against Old Loral with resp® the settlement of this case exceed $25 million. If3¢hwartz’s
claim ultimately becomes an allowed claim under the BfeReorganization and assuming he is not reimbursed by
Globalstar's insurers, Mr. Schwartz would be entitted distribution under the Plan of Reorganization of Neval
common stock based upon the amount of the allowed chaignsuch distribution of stock would be in addition to the

20 million shares of New Loral common stock distributed utlgePlan of Reorganization to other creditors. Instéad o
issuing such additional shares, New Loral may electiefg any allowed claim in cash in an amount equal tatmber of
shares to which plaintiffs would have been entitled rpligsil by $27.75 or in a combination of additional shares ash.c
We believe, although no assurance can be given, thatNi@hwill not incur any material loss as a restilthos settlement.

On March 2, 2002, the seven separate purported class lastsunits filed in the United States District Court floe
Southern District of New York by various holders of Olddlaommon stock against Old Loral, Bernard L. Sclavand
Richard J. Townsend were consolidated into one atitled In re: Loral Space & Communications Ltd. Securities
Litigation . On May 6, 2002, plaintiffs in the consolidated actiordfdeconsolidated amended class action complaint
seeking, among other things, damages in an unspecified amaourmbursement of plaintiffs’ costs and expenses. The
complaint alleged (a) that all defendants violated Sedtii{b) of the Exchange Act and Rule 10b-5 promulgated thereunder,
by making material misstatements or failing to staétemal facts about Old Loral’s financial conditiordats investment in
Globalstar and (b) that Mr. Schwartz is secondardiglé for these alleged misstatements and omissiates Bection 20(a)
of the Exchange Act as an alleged “controlling persorOldfLoral. The class of plaintiffs on whose behalfgnesuit has
been asserted consists of all buyers of Old Loralheomstock during the period from November 4, 1999 through
February 1, 2001, excluding the defendants and certain pesdates! to or affiliated with them. After oral argumenta
motion to dismiss filed by Old Loral and Messrs. Schwanid Townsend, in June 2003, the plaintiffs filed an antende
complaint alleging essentially the same claims as imtiginal amended complaint. In February 2004, a motionsimids
the amended complaint was granted by the court insofdessrs. Schwartz and Townsend are concerned. Pursuhat to
Plan of Reorganization, plaintiffs received no distribotivith respect to their claims in this lawsuit.

In addition, the primary insurer under the directors dfidens liability insurance policy of Old Loral has dedi
coverage under the policy for there: Loral Space & Communications Ltd. Securities Litigatase and, on March 24,
2003, filed a lawsuit in the Supreme Court of New York CoseBking a declaratory judgment upholding its coverage
position. In May 2003, Old Loral and the other defendagngesl an answer and filed counterclaims seeking a deolarati
that the insurer is obligated to provide coverage and glesiiar breach of contract and the implied covenagbofl faith.
In May 2003, Old Loral and the other defendants also &ilédrd party complaint against the excess insuekisg a
declaration that they are obligated to provide covendfgebelieve that the insurers have wrongfully deniectianye and,
although no assurance can be given, that the liability
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of New Loral, if any, with respect to the re: Loral Space & Communications Ltd. Securities Litigatase or with respect
to the related insurance coverage litigation is lith&elely to the Direct Indemnity Liability and the @8Claims as
described above under “Indemnification Claims.”

Reorganization Matters

In connection with our Plan of Reorganization, certaimdéhave been filed against Old Loral and its Debtor
Subsidiaries, the validity or amount of which we dispWe.are in the process of resolving these disputed claihish
may involve litigation in the Bankruptcy Court. To theéent any disputed claims become allowed claims, thenalais
would be entitled to distributions under the Plan of Redrgdion based upon the amount of the allowed claim, payabl
either in cash for claims against SS/L or Loral S@are or in New Loral common stock for all other clainAs of
December 31, 2007, we have resolved all disputed claimaragyable in cash and have reserved approximately 107,000
of the 20 million shares of New Loral common stock distiable under the Plan of Reorganization for disputed sl#iat
may ultimately be payable in common stock. To the extertdisputed claims do not become allowed claims, shatés h
in reserve on account of such claims will be distriby@cuant to the Plan of Reorganization pro rata tonelafs with
allowed claims.

Confirmation of our Plan of Reorganization was opposed éytficial Committee of Equity Security Holders (the
“Equity Committee”) appointed in the Chapter 11 Casedagrtte self-styled Loral Stockholders Protective Corteait
(“LSPC"). Shortly before the hearing to consider conéition of the Plan of Reorganization, the Equity Commisiso
filed a motion seeking authority to prosecute an actionetalbof the estates of Old Loral and its Debtor Siiasies
seeking to unwind as fraudulent, a guarantee provided by O#dl ihd2001, of certain indebtedness of Loral Orion, (tiee
“Motion to Prosecute”). By separate Orders dated Auguxdds, the Bankruptcy Court confirmed the Plan of
Reorganization (the “Confirmation Order”) and denied tratidh to Prosecute (the “Denial Order”). On or aboug#st 10,
2005, the LSPC appealed (the “Confirmation Appeal”) to thitdd States District Court for the Southern Distridiew
York (the “District Court”) the Confirmation Order atite Denial Order. On February 3, 2006, we filed withDistrict
Court a motion to dismiss the Confirmation Appeal. OryI26, 2006, the District Court granted our motion to dsrthe
Confirmation Appeal. The LSPC subsequently filed a motwomdconsideration of such dismissal, which the RQis@iourt
denied on June 14, 2006 (the “Reconsideration Order”). @baut July 12, 2006, a person purportedly affiliated with the
LSPC appealed the dismissal of the Confirmation Appedlthe Reconsideration Order to the United States Gbur
Appeals for the Second Circuit (the “Second Circuiti€Coration Appeal”). On February 22, 2008, the Second Qircui
affirmed the District Court’s judgment dismissing then@wonation Appeal and the Reconsideration Order.

Other and Routine Litigation

We are subject to various other legal proceedings aimds;laither asserted or unasserted, that arise ortlreary
course of business. Although the outcome of these legag¢guiings and claims cannot be predicted with certairgtyjo
not believe that any of these other existing legalenaittill have a material adverse effect on our cadatgd financial
position or our results of operations.

18. Segments

Loral is organized into two segments: Satellite Manufaeg and Satellite Services. Our segment reporting data
includes unconsolidated affiliates that meet the replersggment criteria of SFAS No. 13lisclosures about Segments of
an Enterprise and Related Informatiofihe satellite services segment includes 100% of gutseeported by Telesat
Canada for the period from October 31, 2007 to December 31, ABGugh we analyze Telesat Canada’s revenue and
expenses under the satellite services segment, waatanits results in our consolidated financial statemevhere we
report our 64% share of Telesat Canada’s results as @yuoiy losses of affiliates.
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Our investment in XTAR, for which we use the equity noétlof accounting, is included in Corporate in 2007.
XTAR was owned by Loral Skynet until the closing of fredesat Canada transaction; however, we retainethoestment
in XTAR, and it was not transferred to Telesat Canadannection with the Telesat Canada transaction.

We use Adjusted EBITDA to evaluate operating performancaiosegments, to allocate resources and capital to
such segments, to measure performance for incentiveasmsation programs, and to evaluate future growth oppbets
The common definition of EBITDA is “Earnings Before Irgst, Taxes, Depreciation and Amortization”. In evanhgat
financial performance, we use revenues and operatiogia (loss) before depreciation and amortization (inefudi
amortization of stock based compensation), gain on toritn of Loral Skynet and reorganization expenses due to
bankruptcy (“Adjusted EBITDA”) as the measure of a segtis profit or loss. Adjusted EBITDA is equivalent t@th
common definition of EBITDA before: reorganization experdigs to bankruptcy; gain on contribution of Loral Skynet;
gain on discharge of pre-petition obligations and fresh-atjnstments; gain (loss) on investments and foreignagxeh
contracts; loss on extinguishment of debt; other ire¢@xpense); equity in net income (losses) of affilisaad; minority
interest.

Adjusted EBITDA allows us and investors to compare q@arating results with that of competitors exclusive of
depreciation and amortization, interest and investmeotne, interest expense, reorganization expenses due to bapkrupt
other income (expense), net losses of affiliates andnity interest. Financial results of competitors ur mdustry have
significant variations that can result from timing opital expenditures, the amount of intangible assets regotioe
differences in assets’ lives, the timing and amountwestments, the effects of other income (expense) hvénrie typically
for non-recurring transactions not related to theyoimg business, and effects of investments not direclyaged. The use
of Adjusted EBITDA allows us and investors to compareatpgy results exclusive of these items. Competitomsiin
industry have significantly different capital structuréise use of Adjusted EBITDA maintains comparability of
performance by excluding interest expense. In addition, d@tiragpter 11, we only recognized interest expense on the
actual interest payments we made. During this periodlidvaot make any further interest payments on our delgatlans
after March 17, 2004, the date we repaid our secureddeikReorganization expenses due to bankruptcy were only
incurred during the period we were in Chapter 11. Thegenses have been excluded from Adjusted EBITDA to maintain
comparability with our results during periods we were n@hapter 11 and with the results of competitors using simila
measures.

We believe the use of Adjusted EBITDA along with U.S. GAffnancial measures enhances the understanding of
our operating results and is useful to us and investors ipamamg performance with competitors, estimating enterprise
value and making investment decisions. Adjusted EBITDA a3 lusee may not be comparable to similarly titled mpss
reported by competitors. Adjusted EBITDA should be used ijunation with U.S. GAAP financial measures and is not
presented as an alternative to cash flow from operatioasreesasure of our liquidity or as an alternative tdrmsgime as an
indicator of our operating performance.
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Intersegment revenues primarily consists of satelliteter construction by Satellite Manufacturing for Hisge
Services and the leasing of transponder capacity bili@atdanufacturing from Satellite Services. Summed4inancial
information concerning the reportable segments is asafsl|

2007 Segment Information

(in millions)
Satellite Satellite
Corporate
Manufacturing Services(1) () Total

Revenues and Adjusted EBITDA:
Revenueg) $ 739.¢ % 238.¢ $ 978.¢
Intersegment revenuéey 74.4 2.3 76.7
Operating segment revenues $ 814.: % 241.2 1,055.¢
Intercompany elimination@) (55.29)
Affiliate eliminations(1) (117.%)
Revenues as reported $ 882.5
Segment Adjusted EBITDA before

eliminations(5)(6) $ 345 $ 1184 $ (379 % 115.C
Intercompany elimination@) (6.2)
Affiliate eliminations(1) (65.3)
Adjusted EBITDA 43.€
Depreciation and amortizatign) (103.3)
Gain on the contribution of Loral Skynet tc

Telesat Canada 104.€
Operating income from continuing operatit 45.2
Interest and investment income 39.8
Interest expense (2.3
Unrealized gain on foreign exchange

contracts 89.4
Loss on extinguishment of debt (16.2)
Other expense 24
Income tax provision (83.5)
Equity loss in affiliates $ (1.8 $ (19.6 (21.4)
Minority interest (23.2)
Income from continuing operations $ 29.7
Other Data:
Segment depreciation and amortization $ 363 $ 85¢ $ 2232 % 144.F
Affiliate eliminations(1) — (41.2) — (41.2)
Depreciation and amortization as reported $ 36.3 $ 447 $ 222 $ 103.:
Segment capital expenditur@s $ 378 $ 887 $ — $ 126.2



Affiliate eliminations(1)

Capital expenditures as reported

Segment total assets
Affiliate eliminations(1)

Total assets as reportey

— (30.4) — (30.4)
375 $ 58.2 —  $ 95.€
9634 $ 6,221 1281 $ 7,312
— (5,610.0) — (5,610.0)
9634 $  611. 128.1 $ 1,702
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2006 Segment Information

(in millions)
Satellite Satellite
Corporate
Manufacturing Services @) Total

Revenues and Adjusted EBITDA:

Revenueg) $ 636.€ $ 160.7 $ 797.:
Intersegment revenues 59.€ 3.1 63.C
Operating segment revenues $ 696.E $ 163.€ 860.<
Intercompany elimination@) (63.0)
Revenues as reported $ 797.C
Segment Adjusted EBITDA before eliminatioiBgs6) $ 65.¢ $ 68.0 $ (26 $ 107.1
Intercompany elimination@) (6.0)
Adjusted EBITDA 101.1
Depreciation and amortizatign) (71.3)
Operating income from continuing operations 29.8
Interest and investment income 31kt
Interest expense (23.9
Other expense (7.8)
Income tax provision (20.9)
Equity loss in affiliates (7.2)
Minority interest (24.9)
Loss from continuing operations $ (22.7)
Other Data:

Depreciation and amortization as reporntad $ 23.2 $ 459 $ 2.1 $ 71.3
Capital Expenditures as reported $ 18.4 $ 637 $ 0.1 $ 82.2
Total assets as reporteul $ 944.€ $ 7504 3 34.¢ $ 1,729.¢
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2005 Segment Information
(in millions)

October 2, 2005 through December 31, 2005

Revenues and Adjusted EBITDA:
Revenuegi)
Intersegment revenues

Operating segment revenues

Intercompany elimination@)

Revenues as reported

Segment Adjusted EBITDA before eliminatioags)

Intercompany elimination@)

Adjusted EBITDA
Depreciation and amortizatign)

Operating loss from continuing operations
Interest and investment income

Interest expense

Other expense

Income tax provision

Equity loss in affiliates

Minority interest

Loss from continuing operations

Other Data:
Depreciation and amortization as reported

Capital Expenditures as reported

Total assets as reported

Satellite

Manufacturing

Satellite

Services

Corporate
@

Total

161.C
0.8

$ 36.1
0.9

161.¢

$ 37.C

11.8

$ (110

3.2

$ 12.4

$  (15.9

©

16.C

3.0

©
on
o

871.t

$ 7414

$ 66.1

$ 1,679.(
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2005 Segment Information

(in millions)
Predecessor Registrant
January 1, 2005 through October 1, 2005
Satellite Satellite
Manufacturing Services Corporate (2) Total

Revenues and Adjusted EBITDA:
Revenueg) $ 318.¢ $ 1112 $  429.¢
Intersegment revenues 10.€ 3.2 14.1
Operating segment revenues $ 329.F  $ 114t 444.C
Intercompany elimination@) (14.9)
Revenues as reported $ 429.
Segment Adjusted EBITDA before eliminatioBgs) $ 15.2 $ 39.8 $ 17.9) $ 37.7
Intercompany elimination@) (12.3
Adjusted EBITDA 254
Depreciation and amortizatign) (61.3
Reorganization expenses due to bankruptcy (31.2)
Operating loss from continuing operations (67.2)
Gain on discharge of pre-petition obligations and

fresh-start adjustments) 1,101t
Interest and investment income 6.4
Interest expensg) (17.2)
Other expense (0.9)
Income tax benefit) 10.€
Equity loss in affiliates (2.8)
Minority interest 0.1
Income from continuing operations $ 1,030.¢
Other Data:
Depreciation and amortization as reported $ 11.¢ $ 48¢&8 $ 06 $ 61.2
Capital Expenditures as reported $ 24 3 22 % — $ 4.6
Total assets as reportenl $ 510.7 $ 521t $ 68.6 $ 1,101.C

2) Satellite Services for 2007 include Loral Skynettfee period January 1, 2007 to October 30, 20@7Tabesat Canada for the period October 31,
2007 to December 31, 2007. Affiliate eliminatioepresent the elimination of amounts attributabl@atesaiCanada whose results are reporte
our consolidated statement of operations as equitgt income of affiliates and in our consolidabedance sheet as investment in affiliates.



2) Includes corporate expenses incurred in suppastiobperations and for the years ended Decemb&@RI, and 2006 and the period October 2,
2005 to December 31, 2005 includes $0.3 million2$tillion and $3.9 million, respectively, of comtiing expenses for bankruptcy related
matters, which after the adoption of fresh-stadoamting are classified as corporate general andrastrative expenses. Corporate for 2007
includes our equity investments in XTAR and Glotmiservice providers.
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Includes revenues from affiliates of $0.5 millicar 2007, $11.3 million in 2006 and $4.1 million ftve period October 2, 2005 to December 31,
2005, and $10.0 million for the period JanuarydQ2to October 1, 2005, respectively. In 2007 segment revenues include $21.5 million of

revenue from affiliates.

4) Represents the elimination of intercompany salesimiercompany Adjusted EBITDA, primarily for sditeds under construction by SS/L for

wholly owned subsidiaries.

5) Satellite manufacturing includes (in millions):

Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
Adjusted EBITDA before specific identified charges $ 273 % 56.8 $ 20.5 $ 274
Transponders rights provided to SS/L in the Satmex
settlement agreement — 19.0 — —
Accrued warranty obligations 6.7 (8.2) (7.2) (20.2)
Provisions for inventory obsolescence 0.5 (1.7) (1.5) (2.1)
Satellite manufacturing segment Adjusted EBITD Adoef
eliminations $ 345 % 659 $ 11.8 $ 15.2

(6) Satellite Services Revenue and EBITDA include $dilflon resulting from receipt of a customer tenaiion payment for the year ended

December 31, 2006.

(@) Amounts are presented after the elimination ofrgdenpany profit and include goodwill of $227 milidor Satellite Manufacturing, as of
December 31, 2007. In addition, total assets asrte excludes $2.5 billion of satellite servicesdwill related to Telesat Canada as of

December 31, 2007.

(8) In connection with our emergence from Chapter Id @ur adoption of fresh-start accounting on Octdhe2005 we recognized a gain on
discharge of pre-petition obligations and freshtstdjustments of $1.101 billion, related interegbense of $13.2 million and a tax benefit of

$15.4 million (see Note 4).

Revenue by Customer Location

The following table presents our revenues by countrycbaseustomer location for the years ended December 31,
2007 and 2006 and for the periods from October 2, 2005 to Dec&hl2005 and January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005, (in

thousands).
Predecessor
Successor Registrant Registrant
For the Period For the Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1,
2007 2006 2005 2005
United States $ 702,60¢ $ 691,98¢ $ 170,10: $ 350,62
People’s Republic of China (including Hong
Kong) 47,591 26,607 2,411 4,49¢
United Kingdom 45,59¢ 11,94: 2,61z 8,374
Japan 4,79t 6,75¢ 4,19¢ 13,48¢



Thailand
Spain
Mexico
Other

69 997 2,711 6,01C

385 5,682 3,41¢ 7,48:
117 7,735 1,327 7,12z
81,29¢ 45,62 10,39( 31,58¢
882,45¢ $ 797,33 $ 197,16¢ $ 429,18
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During 2007, two of our customers accounted for approxima@¥ and 16% of our consolidated revenues. During
2006, four of our customers accounted for approximately 17%, 15%.,and 11% of our consolidated revenues. During
2005, four of our customers accounted for approximately 13%, 1B%.,and 10% of our consolidated revenues. With the
exception of our satellites in-orbit through October 31, 2607 Jong-lived assets are primarily located in the Wh#ates.

19. Related Party Transactions
Transactions with Affiliates
Telesat Canada

As described in Note 8, we own 64% of Telesat Canadaesalint for our investment under the equity method of
accounting.

In connection with the Telesat Canada transaction, laor@icertain of its subsidiaries, PSP and one of its
subsidiaries, Telesat Holdco and certain of its subsaigincluding Telesat Canada, and MHR entered into ilsblders
Agreement (the “Shareholders Agreement”). The Sharelsohitgreement provides for, among other things, the nranne
which the affairs of Telesat Holdco and its subsidianiédbe conducted and the relationships among the pahtersto and
future shareholders of Telesat Holdco. The Shareholdgeefent also contains an agreement by Loral naotgage in a
competing satellite communications business and agnas by the parties to the Shareholders Agreemend isoticit
employees of Telesat Holdco or any of its subsidiarieditidtially, the Shareholders Agreement details theerstt
requiring the approval of the shareholders of Teleséddd (including veto rights for Loral over certain extdioary
actions), provides for preemptive rights for certdiarsholders upon the issuance of certain capital sbBfetesat Holdco
and provides for either PSP or Loral to cause Teldslaico to conduct an initial public offering of its equityasés if an
initial public offering is not completed by the fourth anmgzey of the Telesat Canada transaction. The Shareholders
Agreement also restricts the ability of holders ofaiarshares of Telesat Holdco to transfer such sharessurdetain
conditions are met or approval of the transfer étgd by the directors of Telesat Holdco, provides fagtd of first offer
to certain Telesat Holdco shareholders if a holdeqoity shares of Telesat Holdco wishes to sell any shafes to a third
party, provides for, in certain circumstances, tag-@lights in favor of shareholders that are not affdd with Loral if
Loral sells equity shares and drag-along rights in faf/bomal in case Loral or its affiliate enters into agreement to sell
all of its Telesat Holdco equity securities.

Under the Shareholders Agreement, in the event therei) ownership or control, directly or indirectlyy
Dr. Rachesky, President of MHR, of Loral’s voting &téells below certain levels or (ii) there is a chaigthe
composition of a majority of the members of the LoreaRI of Directors over a consecutive two-year petiodal will
lose its veto rights relating to certain extraordinaetions by Telesat Holdco and its subsidiaries. In iddiafter either of
these events, PSP will have certain rights to enahbeeitit from its investment in Telesat Holdco, incluganright to cause
Telesat Holdco to conduct an initial public offering ihigh PSP’s shares would be the first shares offereaéiroy,such
offering has occurred within one year due to a lack of catiperfrom Loral or Telesat Holdco, to cause the ealEelesat
Holdco and to drag along the other shareholders in suehssddject to Loral’s right to call PSP’s shares iatnfearket
value.

The Shareholders Agreement provides for a board oftdiseof each of Telesat Holdco and certain of its
subsidiaries, including Telesat Canada, consistii@dafirectors, three nominated by Loral, three nominatedSiByand
four independent directors to be selected by a nominatimgnittee comprised of one PSP nominee, one nominleeraf
and one of the independent directors then in office. Eath pathe Shareholders Agreement is obligated to &ibtef its
Telesat Holdco shares for the election of the dirsatominated by the nominating committee. Pursuant ioraloy the
board of directors taken on October 31, 2007, Dr. Racheskyjsnon-executive Chairman of the Board of Directifrs
Loral, was appointed non-executive Chairman of the Bollfdrectors of Telesat Holdco and certain of its sdissies,
including Telesat Canada. In addition, Michael B.
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Targoff, Loral’s Vice Chairman, Chief Executive Officand President serves on the board of directors of Télietdco
and certain of its subsidiaries, including Telesat Canada.

SSI/L has contracts with Telesat Canada for the constnuatithe NIMIQ 5 and Telstar 11N satellites. SS/L dlas
agreed to procure a launch vehicle on behalf of Teléaaada for Telstar 11N. SS/L received milestone patgrisom
Telesat Canada totaling $20.1 million for the period froctoBer 31, 2007 to December 31, 2007. Amounts receivable by
SS/L from Telesat Canada as of December 31, 2007 were ${206 nelated to the construction of these satellites.

On October 31, 2007, Loral and Telesat Canada entereddnttsalting services agreement (the “Consulting
Agreement”). Pursuant to the terms of the Consultinge@gent, Loral provides to Telesat Canada certain roustve
consulting services in relation to the business of ILBkgnet which was transferred to Telesat Canada asfidue Telesat
Canada transaction as well as with respect to cerdgiects of the satellite communications business as&elCanada. The
Consulting Agreement has a term of seven years withu@matic renewal for an additional seven year tercetifain
conditions are met. In exchange for Loral's servigeden the Consulting Agreement, Telesat Canada will pagl lam
annual fee of US$5,000,000, payable quarterly in arrears d¢asthday of March, June, September and Decemberchbf ea
year during the term of the Consulting Agreementhéfterms of Telesat Canada’s bank or bridge facilitiezdain other
debt obligations prevent Telesat Canada from paying seshriecash, Telesat Canada can issue junior subordinated
promissory notes to Loral in the amount of such paymeith interest on such promissory notes payabtieeatate of 7%
per annum, compounded quarterly, from the date of issue lofosamissory note to the date of payment thereof.

In connection with the Telesat Canada transaction, ba@indemnified Telesat Canada for certain liabilities
including Loral Skynet's tax liabilities arising priar 8anuary 1, 2007. As of December 31, 2007 we have providedrfor
estimate of the probable outcome of these matteestryping liabilities of approximately $6.9 million. Thegdbllities are
offset by tax deposit assets of $7.0 million relating t@ogerprior to January 1, 2007. There can be no assutamweeyer,
that the eventual payments required by us will not exteetabilities established.

In connection with an agreement entered into between @%flViaSat, Inc. (“ViaSat”) for the construction by/ISS
for ViaSat of a high capacity broadband satellite calecbat-1 (the “ViaSat-1 Satellite), on January 11, 2008 entered
into certain agreements, described below, pursuant tdweare investing in the Canadian coverage portion of the
ViaSat-1 Satellite and granting to Telesat Canada aonojat acquire our rights to the Canadian payload. MicBael
Targoff and another Loral director serve as membiettseoviaSat Board of Directors.

A Beam Sharing Agreement between us and ViaSat prolddesmong other things, (i) the purchase by us of a
portion of the ViaSat-1 Satellite payload providing caggr into Canada (the “Loral Payload”) and (ii) paynisnas of
15% of the actual costs of launch and associated sgrl@eanch insurance and telemetry, tracking and doserueices for
the ViaSat-1 Satellite. The aggregate cost to uhiofdregoing is estimated to be approximately $60 million.

An Option Agreement between us and Telesat Canada gaesat Canada the option to cause us to assign to
Telesat Canada our rights and obligations with respebetbdral Payload and all of our rights and obligatiordenrthe
Beam Sharing Agreement upon payment by Telesat Canadaofdi) all amounts paid by us with respect to the lLora
Payload and pursuant to the Beam Sharing Agreementmiooto the date Telesat Canada exercises its optior(iplaa
option premium of between $6,000,000 and $13,000,000 depending datéhof exercise. Telesat Canada’s option under
the Option Agreement expires on October 31, 2009 (the “&xpir Date”). In consideration for the grant of the@pt
Telesat Canada (i) agreed in a Cooperation Agreement withdi¥iaSat (the “Cooperation Agreement”) to relisui
certain rights Telesat Canada has to the 115 degree Wital grosition (the “Orbital Slot”) so as to make skeaights
available to ViaSat pursuant to a license (the “Vid$a#nse”) to be granted by Mansat Limited (“Mansat”ViaSat and
(ii) agreed to provide tracking, telemetry and congealvices to ViaSat for the ViaSat-1 Satellite amgdy us all of the
recurring fees Telesat Canada receives for providiol services. We have agreed to reimburse ViaSatdsrdiee to
Mansat as well as certain other
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regulatory fees due under the ViaSat License for ta@fithe ViaSat-1 Satellite. If Telesat Canada dot&xercise its
option on or prior to the Expiration Date, then Tel&Sanada shall, at our request, transfer to us Telesatd@as remaining
rights from Mansat with respect to the Orbital Séotg assign to us Telesat Canada’s related rights amghbiis under the
Cooperation Agreement.

In connection with an agreement reached in 1999 and anll@atteement reached in February 2005 with ChinaSat
relating to the delayed delivery of ChinaSat 8, SS/Lgnegided ChinaSat with usage rights to two Ku-band tramdgrs
on Telesat’s Telstar 10 for the life of such transpon@&ibject to certain restoration rights) and tokaéand transponder
on Telesat’s Telstar 18 for the life of the Telst@rsatellite plus two years, or the life of such trangio (subject to certain
restoration rights), whichever is shorter. Underageeement, SS/L makes monthly payments to Telesat &dorathe
transponders allocated to ChinaSat. As of December 31, @0gonsolidated balance sheet included a liability of
$11.5 million for the future use of these transponders.

XTAR

As described in Note 8 we own 56% of XTAR, a joint veatoetween us and Hisdesat and account for our
investment in XTAR under the equity method of accounting cd/estructed XTAR’s satellite, which was successfully
launched in February 2005. We provide certain servicE3 AR for which we earn a management fee as described below

XTAR and Loral Skynet have entered into agreementseflyd oral Skynet provided to XTAR (i) certain selling,
general and administrative services, (ii) telemetagking and control services for the XTAR satellit&) {iansponder
engineering and regulatory support services as neededvasdtéllite construction oversight services. L@kynet has
agreed to defer amounts due from XTAR under these agréeomeii March 31, 2008. For the period January 1, 2007 to
October 30, 2007 and for the year ended December 31, 2006 Skgreet did not recognize revenue associated with
providing these services to XTAR unless payment had tesmived or was reasonably assured. During October POGA,
Skynet received a payment of $1.2 million from XTAR dutstanding accounts receivable. In September 2007, Loral
Skynet reversed an allowance for doubtful accounts of $illiemrelated to outstanding accounts receivable fXORAR.
These agreements and the related receivables havadsgned to Telesat Canada.

XTAR and Loral have entered into a management agreemtaneby Loral provides general and specific services of
a technical, financial, and administrative nature T®AR. For the services provided by Loral, XTAR is chargegliarterly
management fee equal to 3.7% of XTAR’s quarterly grossitmsge No revenues were recognized by Loral under this
agreement for the years ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and\g@f@nts due to Loral under the management agreement
as of December 31, 2007 and December 31, 2006 were $1.6 raillioh0.9 million, respectively. Loral has agreed with
XTAR to defer receivable amounts owed to it under thisemgent and XTAR has agreed that its excess cash badance (
defined) will be applied at least quarterly towards repayrokreceivables owed to Loral, as well as to Histlasd Telesat
Canada.

Other Equity Investments

In 2007, we recognized $9 million of equity losses in afarom our other equity investments, which was
primarily attributable to a loss of $11 million due tosmreement to sell our Globalstar investment pattieis Brazil,
offset by a $3 million cash distribution from one of our Iglistar investment partnerships (see Note 8).

MHR Fund Management LLC

Three of the managing principals of MHR, Mark H. Rachgeblal Goldstein and Sai S. Devabhaktuni, are members
of Loral’s board of directors and MHR has the rightjal it has not exercised, to nominate one additional reetob
Loral's board.
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As of December 31, 2007, various funds affiliated with MHRI ladl issued and outstanding shares of Loral Series-1
Preferred Stock (issued in February 2007) which, if condéateommon stock, would represent, when taken together with
holdings by MHR or its affiliated funds of common stock ofal at such time, approximately 57.3% of the common stock
of Loral. However, the terms of the preferred stockdmsigned so that, prior to certain change of contraitewaf Loral,
any shares of common stock issuable to MHR or itBa#fd funds upon conversion of such preferred stock, waiean
together with holdings by MHR or its affiliated funds ohemon stock of Loral at such time, will not representertban
39.999% of the aggregate voting power of the securitiesrafl. Various funds affiliated with MHR held, as of
December 31, 2007 and 2006, approximately 35.4% and 35.9%, resiysactithe outstanding common stock of Loral.
These funds also held approximately $81.9 million (38.2%)et tiral Skynet Preferred Stock as of December 31, 2006,
which Loral Skynet Preferred Stock was redeemed on Novebnl2907 for $90.8 million. As of December 31, 2006,
various funds affiliated with MHR held approximately $56.2 imill(44.6%) of the Loral Skynet Notes, which were
redeemed on September 5, 2007 for $61.9 million. Informatiotividends and interest paid to the funds affiliateéh wit
MHR, with respect to their holdings of the Loral SkyRe¢ferred Stock, Loral Skynet Notes and Loral SeriesefeRed
Stock for the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, ioasfon millions, except share amounts):

December 31, December 31,
2007 2006

Loral Series-1 Preferred Stock
Dividends paid in cash $ — $ —
Dividends paid in the form of additional shares
— Number of shares 47,76: —
— Amount $ 14.4 $ =
Loral Skynet Preferred Stock
Dividends paid in cash $ 4.5 $ 0.5
Dividends paid in the form of additional shares
— Number of shares 44,53¢ 27,011
— Amount $ 8.9 $ 5.4
Loral Skynet Notes
Interest payments paid in cash $ 9.0 $ 5.1
Redemption premium paid in cash $ 5.6 $ =

Pursuant to the Plan of Reorganization, holders ofineclaims at Loral Orion, Inc. were entitled to subiserior up
to $120 million of Loral Skynet Notes. MHR and P. SchekhAsset Management LLC agreed to backstop 95% and 5%,
respectively, of the rights offering, in consideratafra $6 million fee, paid in additional Loral Skynet Notas well as
reimbursement of certain costs and expenses. In connedtiothis backstop agreement, MHR received $5.7 million
principal amount of Loral Skynet Notes.

On February 27, 2007, in connection with the Securitieshi@gecAgreement, Loral and Loral Skynet entered into an
Amended and Restated Registration Rights Agreement ffilthtad funds of MHR. Pursuant to that agreement, intaud
to certain piggy-back registration rights granted tdiaféd funds of MHR, such funds may also demand, under rertai
circumstances, that their (i) Loral common stock,l@jal Skynet Preferred Stock, (iii) Loral Skynet Bioor (iv) Loral
preferred stock, be registered under the SecuritiesfA@38, as amended, in each case subject to the terms atitioosn
of the registration rights agreement. All outstanding shafresral Skynet Preferred Stock and all outstandiogal. Skynet
Notes have been redeemed and, therefore, such secusties langer subject to registration rights.
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Funds affiliated with MHR own preferred stock convertitlerently into approximately 18.2% of the common stock
of Protostar Ltd. (“Protostar”) assuming the conimrof all issued and outstanding shares of preferrett.stipon
conversion of such preferred stock, such funds would o9#b 8f the common stock of Protostar on a fully-dilutedasi
assuming the exercise or conversion, as the case malyddkegurrently outstanding shares of preferred stookyertible
notes and warrants. MHR has the right (which has rtdigen exercised) to nominate one of nine directoPsdtostar’s
board of directors. Such funds are also participantsdtostar’'s $200,000,000 credit facility, dated March 19, 2008, arith
aggregate participation of $6,041,000. Protostar acquirediinasat 8 satellite from China Telecommunications Bragtdca
Satellite Corporation and China National Postal andcbenmunications Appliances Corporation under an agegaem
reached in 2006, and, pursuant to a contract with Protasized at $26 million, SS/L is modifying the satelliterteet
Protostar’s needs.

In connection with the $300 million preferred stock finagonith affiliated funds of MHR, we paid MHR a
placement fee of $6.75 million and paid $4.4 million in legal Binancial advisory fees and out-of-pocket expenses
incurred by MHR. We also paid $578,000 in 2006 in legal fee®atidf-pocket expenses incurred by MHR in connection
with our reorganization and other legal matters.

Other Relationships

In the ordinary course of business, SS/L has entered itdititeaconstruction contracts and Loral Skynet hasrexat
into telemetry, tracking and control agreementsteentsponder lease agreements with affiliates of EchoSta
Communications Corporation, a corporation that owoesarthan 5% of our common stock. The Loral Skynet agretsme
have been assigned to Telesat Canada in connection willel#sat Canada transaction.

Mr. Targoff serves on the board of directors of Leapel@ss International, Inc., a company of which Dr.Heaky
is the non-executive Chairman of the Board and of whiciheer Loral director is a board member.

On June 7, 2006, Loral entered into a consulting agreenignawirector, Dean A. Olmstead. Pursuant to this
agreement, Mr. Olmstead provided consulting servic#set@ompany relating generally to exploration of strategit
growth opportunities for Loral and achievement of efficies within the Company’s divisions. The Company gchite
Mr. Olmstead seven-year options to purchase 120,000 sifaresimon stock of the Company, with a per-share exercis
price equal to $27.135. Vesting of options for 100,000 of thleares was based on performance, while options for
20,000 shares were to vest over a four-year period. Mrst®&d earned total compensation of $479,000 and $349,000 for
the years ended December 31, 2007 and 2006, respectivellyclnding stock-based compensation of $2.6 million
recorded in 2007.

The consulting agreement was terminated effectivé @stober 31, 2007, and Mr. Olmstead was paid a termination
fee of $285,000. On January 10, 2008, Mr. Olmstead resignedtfeoBoard of Directors of the Company. All of
Mr. Olmstead’s 100,000 performance-based options to purtlsagkecommon stock at $27.135 vested upon consummation
of the Telesat Canada transaction, and he exerciseeldptiens in November 2007. 10,000 of Mr. Olmstead'’s 20,000
time-based options to purchase shares of Loral commok at&27.135 were fully vested as of the termination of
Mr. Olmstead’s consulting agreement but expired withouitnlgalveen exercised on January 31, 2008; the remaining
10,000 options were cancelled upon termination of his camgw@greement. In addition, Mr. Olmstead had previousiy bee
granted 1,000 shares of restricted stock as part of higezation for services rendered as a director prioistbdgoming
a consultant, 500 shares of which are vested and 500 siiavkiEh were forfeited upon his resignation as a threc

In 2006, K&F Industries, Inc. ("K&F”), a subsidiary of K&mdlustries Holdings, Inc., a company of which our
former CEO, Bernard L. Schwartz was Chairman of thar@&oprovided administrative and certain other servicest
Loral paid K&F a fee based on the cost of such seryikesout of pocket expenses. For the year ended December 31, 2006,
K&F billed us approximately $156,000. In 2005, we provided adminigtrand certain other services to K&F. K&F paid
us a fee based on the cost of such services plus outk&tgpenses. For the period October 2, 2005 to Decembed(HL, 2
and the period January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005, we billed K&F
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$12,000 and $146,000, respectively. In addition, K&F charged u8@ldnd $108,000 for the periods October 2, 2005 to
December 31, 2005 and January 1, 2005 to October 1, 2005, nedpeftir certain expenses and services.

During 2006, we paid BLS Group LLC and BLS Aviation, LLCrgzanies owned by Mr. Schwartz) and The Air
Group (a company commissioned by Mr. Schwartz to handlednporate jet affairs) approximately $16,000, $9,000 and
$162,000, respectively, for our use of Mr. Schwartz’s cotpged. Additionally, in 2006, Loral reimbursed the BL&®
LLC $6,000. During 2005, we paid BLS Group LLC and The Air Grqugreximately $14,000 and $2,000, respectively,
for our use of Mr. Schwartz’s corporate jet.

Robert B. Hodes, a former director and member of mm@znsation Committee until his resignation from the
Board of Directors on February 28, 2006, is counsel ttatdirm of Willkie Farr & Gallagher LLP, which &g as our
counsel.

For the year ended December 31, 2005, we paid fees smdsitments in the amount of approximately $91,000 for

corporate communications consultations and relatedcserto Kekst & Company Incorporated, of which compa@eyshon
Kekst, is President and principal stockholder. Prior ageinber 21, 2005, Mr. Kekst was a director of Old Loral.

20. Selected Quarterly Financial Information (unaudited, inthousands, except per share amounts)

Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

Year ended December 31, 2007
Revenues $ 220,53 $ 226,00( $ 235,64( $ 200,28.
Operating income (loss), (12,799 (15,127 66 72,10¢
Income (loss) before income taxes, equity in net

losses of affiliates and minority interest (4,017 54,99( 58,441 48,36¢
Minority interest (6,98¢€) (6,487) (7,07¢) (2,689
Net income (loss) (16,829) 20,621 25,92¢ (74)
Basic and diluted loss per shatg:

Basic income (loss) per share (2.16) 0.7C 0.9¢ (0.30)

Diluted income (loss) per share (2.16) 0.67 0.9€ (0.30)

Quarter Ended

March 31, June 30, September 30, December 31,

Year ended December 31, 2006
Revenues $ 171,97¢ $ 192,88: $ 226,79 $  205,68(
Operating income (loss) (6,21€) (520) 17,56¢ 18,98¢
Income (loss) before income taxes, equity in net

losses of affiliates and minority interest (5,82¢) (1,08¢) 16,47z 20,55¢
Minority interest (6,000 (6,000 (6,36€) (6,42¢)
Net income (loss) (15,840 (11,395 1,18¢ 3,32¢
Basic and diluted loss per shatg:

Income (loss) per share (0.79) (0.57) 0.0€ 0.1€

(1) The quarterly earnings per share information ispated separately for each period. Therefore, the@usuch quarterly per share amounts may
differ from the total for the year.
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SCHEDULE I

LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.
VALUATION AND QUALIFYING ACCOUNTS
For the Year Ended December 31, 2007, 2006 and 2005
(in thousands)

Additions

Balance at Charged to Charged to Deductions Balance at

Beginning Costs and Other From End of
Description of Period Expenses Accounts (1) Reserveg?) Period
Predecessor Registrant:
January 1, 2005-October 1, 2005
Allowance for billed receivables $ 644 $ (2,880 $ 2 $ 942 $  4,50¢
Inventory allowance $ 34,000 $ 2,127 % — $ (2,20) $ 33,92
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 659,78 $ (321,249 $ (1,615 $ — $ 336,92
Successor Registrant:
October 2, 2005-December 31, 2005
Allowance for billed receivables $ 450¢ B 953 $ — 3 — $ 5,462
Inventory allowance $ 3392( $ 1528 & — $ (L,705) $ 33,74
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 336,92 $ 422  $ — 3 — $ 337,34¢
Year ended 2006
Allowance for billed receivables $ 546z $ (307) $ 1 $ (353) $ 1,624
Inventory allowance $ 33,74. $ 1,67¢ — $ (5827 $ 29,59¢
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 337,34 $ — $ 390t $ (36,367 $ 304,88¢
Year ended 2007
Allowance for billed receivables $ 1622 $ (620) $ 20 $ (1,029 % —
Inventory allowance $ 2959 $ (543) $ — $ (609) $ 28,44¢
Deferred tax valuation allowance $ 304,88 $ 16,287 $ (34,749 $ (45,199) $ 241,22¢

2) Allowance for long-term receivables recorded asduction to revenues. Deferred tax valuation allimeaagainst Old Loral deferred tax assets
recorded to goodwill and adjustments from adoptbRIN 48 in 2007.

2) Receivable allowance reflects write-offs of uncdiiele accounts. Inventory allowance was primardgiuced as a result of disposals of the related
inventory. Reversal of excess deferred tax valnagitbwance recorded as a reduction to goodwill.
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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED ACCOUNTANTS

To the Shareholders of Telesat Holdings Inc.

We have audited the consolidated balance sheet e§dtaHoldings Inc. as at December 31, 2007 and the
consolidated statements of earnings, comprehensivestumsholders’ equity and cash flows for the perioohftactober 31,
2007 to December 31, 2007. The financial statements aredpensibility of the Company’s management. Our
responsibility is to express an opinion on these finastaéements based on our audit.

We conducted our audit in accordance with Canadian genetapted auditing standards and the standards of the
Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United Stafdsse standards require that we plan and perform artaudi
obtain reasonable assurance whether the financiahstats are free of material misstatement. An auditdtes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts aidstiges in the financial statements. An audit alslu@tes assessing
the accounting principles used and significant estimageterhy management, as well as evaluating the overaikfala
statement presentation. We believe that our audit pre&@ddeasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, these consolidated financial statememseptt fairly, in all material respects, the finanpiagition of
the Company as at December 31, 2007 and the results pérations and its cash flows for the period from Oct@der
2007 to December 31, 2007 in accordance with Canadian gener&ptedt accounting principles.

The Company is not required to have, nor were we engageetform, an audit of its internal control over finahci
reporting. Our audit included consideration of internatrover financial reporting as a basis for designindijta
procedures that are appropriate in the circumstancespbtdr the purpose of expressing an opinion on the Coygpan
internal control over financial reporting. Accordingly, @epress no such opinion.

/s/ [DELOITTE& TOUCHELLP

Independent Registered Chartered Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto, Canada

March 20, 2008
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TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF EARNINGS
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)

October 31 to
December 31,

Notes 2007
Operating revenues
Service revenues $  103,50¢
Equipment sales revenues 7,907
Sales-type lease revenues
Operating revenues (4) 111,41¢
Amortization 40,04¢
Operations and administration 43,27¢
Cost of equipment sales 6,48~
Cost of sales-type lease
Total operating expenses 89,807
Earnings from operations 21,60¢
Interest expense (5) (43,86))
Other expense (6) (43,969
Loss before income taxes (66,22))
Income tax recovery (7) (62,170
Net loss $ (4,057
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TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE LOSS
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)

October 31 to
December 31,

2007
Net loss $ (4,057
Other comprehensive loss, net of tax:
Unrealized loss on translation of financial statermefiself sustaining foreign operations (665)
Related tax 66
Comprehensive loss $ (4,650)
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Balance at October 3:
2007

Common shares issu¢
as part of the sale
transaction

Preferred shares issur
as part of the sale
transaction

Net loss

Unrealized losses on
translation of
financial statements
of self sustaining
foreign operations

Balance at
December 31, 2007

TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF SHAREHOLDERS’ EQUITY
FOR THE PERIOD FROM OCTOBER 31 TO DECEMBER 31, 2007
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)

Accumulated

Deficit and
Accumulated Accumulated
Other Other Total
Common Preferred Accumulated Comprehensive Comprehensive Shareholders’
Notes Shares Shares Deficit Loss Loss Equity
$ — 8 — 8 — 8 — 8 — 8 =
(3),(16) 756,41« 756,41«
(3),(16) 541,76¢ 541,76¢
(4,051) (4,05]) (4,05])
(599 (599 (599
$ 756,41« $ 541,76: $ (4,05) $ (599 $ (4,650 $ 1,293,52¢
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TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)

ASSETS
Current assets
Cash and cash equivalents
Accounts and notes receivable
Current future tax asset
Assets held for sale
Other current assets

Total current assets
Satellites, property and other equipment, net
Other long-term assets
Intangible assets, net
Goodwill

Total assets

LIABILITIES
Current liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities
Other current liabilities
Debt due within one year

Total current liabilities
Debt financing

Future tax liability

Other long-term liabilities
Senior preferred shares

Total liabilities

Shareholders’ equity
Common shares (74,252,460 common shares issued)
Preferred shares
Accumulated deficit
Accumulated other comprehensive loss

Total shareholders’ equity

Total liabilities and shareholders’ equity
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December 31,

Notes 2007
$ 42,20
(8) 53,87¢
7) 2,594
(9) 4,037
(10) 57,77
160,48¢
(11) 1,818,61:
(10) 27,36¢
(12) 1,092,35!
(12) 2,446,60:
$ 5,545,421
$ 61,59¢
(13) 152,37t
(14) 18,41¢
232,39:
(14) 2,775,94
7) 439,64:
(13) 662,48;
(15) 141,43
__ 4,251,901
(16) 756,41¢
(16) 541,76¢
(4,057)
(599)
$ 5,545,42!




TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOW
(In thousands of Canadian dollars)

Cash flows from operating activities
Net loss

Adjustments to reconcile net loss to cash flows fr@erating activities:

Amortization
Future income taxes
Unrealized foreign exchange
Other

Operating assets and liabilities

Cash flows from investing activities
Satellite programs

Property additions

Business acquisitions

Proceeds on disposals of assets

Cash flows from financing activities

Debt financing and bank loans

Repayment of bank loans and debt financing
Capitalized debt issuance costs

Note repayment

Common shares issued

Preferred shares issued

Capital lease payments

Satellite performance incentive payments

Preferred dividends paid
Effect of changes in exchange rates on cash and cash eqgtsvale

Increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents, beginning of period

Cash and cash equivalents, end of period

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information
Interest paid
Income taxes paid
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Notes

October 31 to
December 31,
2007

(17)

()

(16)
(15, 16)

(17)

$ (4,051)

40,04¢
(60,659)

43,06¢

(317)

207,18t

225,27¢

(15,49€)

(14,019

(3,229,19)
25

(3,258,68)

2,767, 71
(44,899)
(83,58F)

(129,339
311,12/
258,83:

(1,306)
(4,19€)

3,074,35:
1,25¢
42,20:

$ 42,20:

$ 18,33¢
343




TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(Amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless othenag noted)

1. Basis of Presentation

On October 31, 2007, Canada’s Public Sector Pension InvesBoard (“PSP”) and Loral Space &
Communications Inc. (“Loral”), through a newly formedigy called Telesat Holdings Inc. (“Telesat” or th@dmpany”),
completed the acquisition of Telesat Canada from BCEUm@l and PSP hold an economic interest in TelefSa4% and
36%, respectively, and a voting interest 0133 % and 6& / 3 % respectively.

As part of the same transaction, substantially athefassets of a Loral subsidiary, Loral Skynet Cotjmorg“Loral
Skynet”), were transferred to Telesat, along withgshares of all of the legacy Skynet subsidiaries.

Headquartered in Ottawa, Canada, with offices and fasiléround the world, Telesat is the fourth largest fixed
satellite services operator. The Company provideslisatéélivered communications solutions to broaddastcom,
corporate and government customers. Telesat has a fieddadf 12 satellites and 3 additional satellites urmdaistruction,
and manages the operations of 13 additional satellitekifdrparties.

The consolidated financial statements of Telesat Hgklinc. have been prepared in accordance with Canadian
generally accepted accounting principles (“GAAP”). Thesatidated financial statements have been preparedad &br
the 2 months ended December 31, 2007. Telesat consoligatiézancial statements of its wholly owned subsidgri
Telesat Interco Inc., Telesat Canada, Infosat Comeations Inc. (Infosat), Telesat Brasil Limitada @szt Brazil), The
SpaceConnection, Inc. (SpaceConnection), Skynet Satdthidings Corporation (“Skynet”) and its wholly owned
subsidiaries, and Loral Asia Pacific Satellite (HKinited. All transactions and balances between thesganies have
been eliminated on consolidation.

Regulation

As an operator of a privately owned global satellitéesys Telesat is subject to: the regulatory authoritypef
Canadian government and other countries which licenseéltites; the regulatory authority of other countriesvimich it
operates; and, the frequency coordination process oftémational Telecommunication Union (“ITU”). Telesa#ibility
to provide satellite services in a particular countryegiion is subject also to the technical constraihits gatellites,
international coordination, constraints associated il regulatory approval and any limitation to thoppravals.

The Company operates Canada’s domestic fixed satellstemunication system and is subject to regulation by
the Canadian Radio-television and Telecommunicatiamraission (“CRTC”). Under the current regulatory regime,
Telesat has pricing flexibility subject to a priceliogj on certain Full Period Fixed Satellite ServicesS&F) offered in
Canada under minimum five-year lease arrangements.atsl&srect Broadcast Services offered within Canadalsie
subject to CRTC regulation, but have been treated asaseard distinct from Telesat’s FSS and facilitidse CRTC has
approved the specific customer agreements relating atbef the capacity on the Nimiq satellites, includmgrates,
terms and conditions of service set out therein.

Telesat’s ground network services have been forbiooneregulation since 1994. The Commission has the right of
examination of the Company’s accounting policies.

2. Summary of Significant Accounting Policies
Use of Estimates

When preparing financial statements according to 8B Amanagement makes estimates and assumptions relating to
the reported amounts of revenues and expenses, assegbiitidd and the disclosure of contingent assetdiabidities.
We base our estimates on a number of factors, includitorizial experience, current events and actiongtieaCompany
may undertake in the future, and other assumptions thbéleve are reasonable under the circumstances. Aesudts
could differ from those estimates under different assiamgr conditions. We use estimates when accountingefeain
items such as the valuation of goodwill and intangibletasand for
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TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)
(Amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherag noted)

revenues, allowance for doubtful accounts, useful livesipital assets, capitalized interest, asset impairamentory
reserves, legal and tax contingencies, employee compenpkns, employee benefit plans, evaluation of minimegse
terms for operating leases, income taxes, and goodwillrdangible asset impairments. We also use estimétes
recording the fair values of assets acquired and liasilassumed in a business combination.

Revenue Recognition

Telesat recognizes operating revenues when earnedyigesare rendered or as products are delivered to
customers. There must be clear proof that an arrangenxistg, the amount of revenue must be fixed or determiaalble
collectibility must be reasonably assured. Consult@wgmnues for cost plus contracts are recognized aftevdhiehas been
completed and accepted by the customer. The percentagemétiommethod is used to account for fixed price consltin
revenue contracts. Deferred revenues consist of remiorereceived in advance of the provision of sergite are
recognized in income on a straight-line basis overdime bf the related customer contract. When it is quesbie whether
or not Telesat is the principal in a transaction tthesaction is evaluated to determine whether it shmelicecorded on a
gross or net basis.

Equipment sales revenues are recognized when the equigndetivered to the customer and accepted. Only
equipment sales are subject to warranty or return anel iiao general right of return. Historically Telelsas not incurred
significant expense for warranties and consequentlyoxgson for warranty is recorded. When a transactieolires more
than one product or service, revenue is allocated todeliverable based on its relative fair value; othegywievenue is
recognized as services are provided over the term @ustemer contract.

Lease contracts that qualify for capital lease treatraee accounted for as sales-type leases. Sales-agwes lare
those where substantially all of the benefits andsre ownership are transferred to the customer. $aelesnue recognized
at the inception of the lease represents the preaére of the minimum lease payments net of any execotstg,
computed at the interest rate implicit in the lease adred finance income, effectively the differencenaen the total
minimum lease payments and the aggregate present \satlgfeired and recognized in earnings over the lease term to
produce a constant rate of return on the investmentifetise. The net investment in the lease includesitiimum lease
payments receivable less the unearned finance income

Cash and Cash Equivalents

All highly liquid investments with an original maturity of @@ys or less are classified as cash and cash equivalents

Inventories

Inventories are valued at the lower of cost or mankdtamnsist of work in process and finished goods. Cost for
substantially all network equipment inventories is deit@echon an average cost basis. Cost for work in procebsatain
one-of-a-kind finished goods is determined using the spedéitification method.

Satellites, Property and Other Equipment

On October 31, 2007 our satellites, property and other equipmeeatrecorded at their fair values in conjunction
with the allocation of the purchase price (note 3}Heracquisition of Telesat and Skynet. Satellitesp@rty and other
equipment, which are carried at cost (equal to fair valuadsets acquired on October 31, 2007) less accumulated
amortization, include the contractual cost of equipmepitalized engineering and, with respect to satellifescost of
launch services, launch insurance and capitalized im#mgag construction.



The Company shares equally with a developer, the owperstst and debt of the Company’s headquarters land and
building. The Company has leased the developer’s sh#ne building which is accounted for as a capital lease
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TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)
(Amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherag noted)

Amortization is calculated using the straight line metbeer the respective estimated service lives of thetas
Below are the estimated useful lives of our satellitegpgrty and other equipment as of December 31, 2007:

Years

Satellites 6 to 1t

12 tc
Transponders under capital lease 15
Earth stations 5 to 3(
Office buildings 30
Leasehold improvements 1
Equipment, furniture and fixtures 5to 1(

The estimates of useful lives are reviewed every gedradjusted if necessary. Liabilities related to ¢gell
obligation of retiring property, plant and equipment are ihtimeasured at fair value and are adjusted for anygdsan
resulting from the passage of time and the amounteofdirent estimate of the undiscounted cash flowslidbiities
recorded to date have not been significant.

In the event of an unsuccessful launch or total intaddiellite failure, all unamortized costs that@oerecoverable
under launch or in-orbit insurance are recorded as aatopgexpense.

The investment in each satellite will be removed fthmproperty accounts when the satellite has been fully
amortized and is no longer in service. When other prgjperetired from operations at the end of its usefe) the amount
of the investment and accumulated amortization are rethfsem the accounts. Earnings are credited with theiatrod
any net salvage and charged with any net cost of remidan an item is sold prior to the end of its usefal he gain or
loss is recognized in earnings immediately.

Impairment of Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived assets, including finite life intangible etssand satellites, property and other equipment, arssasstor
impairment when events or changes in circumstancesieditat the carrying value exceeds the total undisedwash
flows expected from the use and disposition of the assé@tgpadirment is indicated, the loss is determined by déuythe
asset’s fair value (based on discounted cash flows expectedts use and disposition) from its carrying value iand
recorded in other expense.

Translation of Foreign Currencies

Assets and liabilities denominated in foreign currenaiedranslated into Canadian dollars at the exchangemates
effect as of the balance sheet dates. Operating revandespenses, and interest on debt transacted in fagigmcies
are reflected in the financial statements using the avevadange rates during the period. The translation gathbases
are included in other expense in the statement of earnings.

For those subsidiaries that we consider to be seléisurst) foreign operations, assets and liabilitiestianeslated at
the exchange rate in effect on the balance sheetatat@evenues and expenses are translated at average exeltesge
during the year. The resulting unrealized gains or $oase reflected as a component of Other Compreheinsiome
(HOCIH).

For those subsidiaries that we consider to be intedjfateign operations, non-monetary assets and liabittie
translated at their historical exchange rates and rmnassets and liabilities are translated at thiange rate in effect on



the balance sheet date, and revenues and expenses sladatlagt average exchange rates during the year. Thengesul
unrealized gains or losses are reflected as a compoinet earnings.
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TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)
(Amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherag noted)

Goodwill and Other Intangible Assets

Goodwill and other intangible assets were recordeth®mdquisition of Telesat Canada and Skynet as desanibed
note 1. For goodwill and intangible assets with indefingeful lives an assessment for impairment is undertakem o
annual basis on November 30, or whenever events or changesumstances indicate that the carrying amourtiese
assets is likely to exceed their fair value. The Compgangiders orbital slots and trade names to be indefiméd
intangible assets. To date, Telesat has not recahainepermanent impairment in value of these asseteses assets were
only acquired on October 31, 2007 and there have been notiodgcthat circumstances have changed.

Finite life intangible assets consist of backlog, austorelationships and favourable leases, all of whiate we
recorded in connection with the acquisition of Telesat Gamad Skynet. Intangible assets with finite useful lives a
amortized over their estimated useful lives using theréization method that most accurately representashef the asset.
Below are the estimated useful lives of our finite lifamgible assets as of December 31, 2007:

Years
Backlog 4to01i
11 tc
Customer relationships 21
Favourable leases 3to4
Patents 18

The estimates of useful lives are reviewed every gedradjusted if necessary.

Derivative Financial Instruments

The Company uses derivative financial instrumentsdace its exposure to foreign exchange rate risk associated
with anticipated purchases and with debt denominated irgforeirrencies, as well as to reduce its exposure to shtarte
risk associated with debt. The use of derivatives is ezgeotgenerate enough cash flows and gains or incur lmseéset
these risks. Telesat does not use derivative finams#aliments for speculative or trading purposes. Cuytefglesat does
not designate any of its derivative financial instratseas hedging instruments for accounting purposes. il gad losses
on these derivative financial instruments are recoimlétle statement of earnings.

Embedded Derivatives

The Company has chosen to account for embedded fongiggmcy derivatives in a host contract as a single
instrument where the contract requires payments demabadinn the currency that is commonly used in contragtsdcure
non-financial items in the economic environment in wiviehtransact.

Transaction Costs

Transaction costs are expensed as incurred for finanstaiments classified or designated as held-for-trading
(“HFT") or available-for-sale (“AFS”). For otherrfancial instruments, transaction costs are amortizedttmcome over
the expected life of the financial instrument using tifectf/e interest method. Currently the only transarctiosts which
Telesat has elected to capitalize are related to delth@se costs are amortized to net income as a contpurieterest
expense.

Employee Benefit Plans



Telesat maintains one contributory and three non-caritrip defined benefit pension plans which provide bésefi
based on length of service and rate of pay. Telesasponsible for adequately funding these defined beneidiqre plans.
Contributions are made based on various actuarial cetstoals that are permitted by pension
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TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)
(Amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherag noted)

regulatory bodies and reflect assumptions about futuretineas returns, salary projections and future servioefits.
Telesat also provides other post-employment and retirebeaefits, including health care and life insuraoeeefits on
retirement and various disability plans, workers compenrsand medical benefits to former or inactive employtesr
beneficiaries and covered dependents, after employmen¢fouebretirement, under certain circumstances. The @oynp
accrues its obligations under employee benefit plansranietated costs, net of plan assets. Pension cubtstlzer
retirement benefits are determined using the projectedibemethod prorated on service and management's béstagstof
expected investment performance, salary escalatioremiit ages of employees and expected health care costs.

Pension plan assets are valued at fair value whichasteshasis used for calculating the expected rate ohretur
plan assets. The discount rate is based on the markesintate of high quality long-term bonds. Past serasesarising
from plan amendments are amortized on a straighblses over the average remaining service period ofctivea
employees at the date of amendment. The Company deducts 1d8denefit obligation or the fair value of plan asse
whichever is greater, from the net actuarial gailtogs and amortizes the excess over the average remsaminge period
of active employees. A valuation is performed at leastydaieee years to determine the present value of treed
pension and other retirement benefits. The 2007 pensionspaltulation is extrapolated from a valuation perfornsed a
of January 1, 2007. The accrued benefit obligation is exasgzbfrom an actuarial valuation as of January 1, 2008. T
most recent valuation of the pension plans for fundinggaes was as of January 1, 2007, and the next requiredicalis
as of January 1, 2010.

In addition, Telesat provides certain health care andhifierance benefits for retired employees and depesidént

Skynet. These benefits are funded primarily on a payeasgo basis, with the retiree generally paying a powidhe cost
through contributions, deductibles and coinsurance progsio

Stock-Based Compensation Plans
The Company does not have a stock-based compensaticasptéiDecember 31, 2007. Both Telesat Canada and
Loral Skynet offered stock-based compensation plans taicemployees prior to being acquired by Telesat. Thidrbe

no further options granted under either of these @ahsequent to October 30, 2007 as these plans were diseahivith
the acquisition of Telesat Canada and Loral Skynet l3s@e

Income Taxes

Current income tax expense is the estimated income pay@ble for the current year after any refundseuse of
losses incurred in previous years. The Company uséskiley method to account for future income taxes.

Future income taxes reflect:

» the temporary differences between the carrying amairissets and liabilities for accounting purposes hed t
amounts used for tax purposes

« the benefit of unutilized tax losses that will mokely than not be realized and carried forward to futesryto
reduce income taxes.

The Company estimates future income taxes using theaiadesed by tax law and those substantively enacted. The

effect of a change in tax rates on future income taxsaseiliabilities is included in earnings in the period wihenchange
is substantively enacted.
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NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)
(Amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherag noted)

Recent Changes to Accounting Standards
Financial Instruments

In December 2006, the CICA issued two new handbook sec8868,“Financial Instruments — Disclosures” and
3863 “Financial Instruments — Presentation.” These nevdatds are effective for Telesat beginning January 1, 2008.

These sections replace CICA handbook section 3861, “Findnstaiments — Disclosure and Presentation.” These
new sections enhance disclosure requirements on the matdirextent of risks arising from financial instruments fzow
the entity manages those risks.

Capital Disclosures

In December 2006, the CICA issued a new handbook section X&&5itdl Disclosures,” which requires an entity to
disclose its objectives, policies and processes for nrampagpital. This new standard is effective for Teldsginning
January 1, 2008. The impact of implementing this standamt isxpected to be significant.

Inventories

In June 2007, the CICA issued handbook section 3031 “InveritonikEh replaces section 3030 and harmonizes
the Canadian standards related to inventories with Inten@é Financial Reporting Standards. This section pravide
changes to the measurement and more extensive guidarieeaetérmination of cost, narrows the permitted costitas,
requires impairment testing, and expands the disclosure rexpnite to increase transparency. This new standafteiive
for Telesat beginning January 1, 2008. The impact of impi&ngethis standard is not expected to be significant.

Goodwill and Intangible Assets

In February 2008, the CICA issued handbook section 3064 “Goaawvdlintangible Assets”, which replaces
sections 3062 and 3450. This section applies to goodwilldadgible assets subsequent to initial recognition in aessi
combination and establishes standards for recognitieasarement, presentation and disclosure of intangbktsa This
new standard is effective for Telesat beginning JanLig?2009. The Company is currently evaluating the impaatiopting
this new standard.

3. Business Acquisitions

On October 31, 2007, Canada’s Public Sector Pension InvesBoart and Loral Space & Communications Inc.,
through a newly formed entity, Telesat, completed the sitmpum of 100% of the common shares of Telesat Canada fro
BCE Inc. Loral and PSP hold an economic interest insielef 64% and 36%, respectively, and a voting interest of 33
3% and 66 / 3 %, respectively. As part of the Telesat Canada atguissubstantially all of the assets of a Loral stibsy,
Loral Skynet Corporation, were transferred to Teldsaaddition, Telesat acquired the shares of the ren@lmral Skynet
subsidiaries. The aggregate fair value of the net asaatsferred by Loral Skynet was $773.7 million, of wis&4 million
was paid using cash equivalents and the balance in costmoes and non-voting participating preferred shafiréglesat.
In addition, Loral Skynet transferred foreign exchange fodwantracts with a value of $119.9 million, in exchange for
non-voting participating preferred shares, which veattled for cash on October 31, 2007 and have been indhuttes
balance of cash acquired. The Telesat Canada purahesevps paid in cash. The shares issued as part of itieage
transaction were valued based on the estimated fair whthe assets contributed by Loral Skynet as agreby tioe
shareholders. The results of operations for Telesaadzaand Skynet have been included in these consolidadedial
statements since October 31, 2007. The acquisition hasibeamnted for as a purchase transaction.
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The asset and liability values acquired are based orchgse price which was calculated as follows:

Total
Cash paid (net of cash acquired) 3,229,19:
Shares issued (note 16) 869,65¢
Transaction costs 32,692
Purchase price 4,131,54;

Other adjustments include severance costs and adjustménésgension plan as a result of the restructurifbgtht
Telesat Canada and Skynet. The plan to restructure babkat €@anada and Skynet was in place on October 31, 2007 and
for the most part was executed on November 30, 2007. $trecturing plan will be completed on or before Octdier
2008. Severance costs include payments to severed employieesaf notice and benefits, as well as incentive bonus
payments that would have otherwise been received byetieeesi employees had they remained with the CompankieOf t
total severance costs included in the purchase pricen$llidh was paid prior to December 31, 2007. The adjustsien
the pension plan include an increase in the benefit oldigas a result of the early retirement program whiah partially
offset by a curtailment gain due to the overall decreatieeinumber of employees.

The following table summarizes the estimated fair valube assets acquired and liabilities assumed aatieeod
acquisition. Telesat determined the fair value of tisetasacquired and liabilities assumed based on informataitable as
well as certain assumptions we consider reasonableylsicd may be revised as additional information becomailable.
The purchase price was allocated to the assets at@uicHliabilities assumed based on their fair valueSawober 31,
2007:

Current assets 101,31"
Satellites, property and other equipment 1,826,04
Other long term assets 19,21¢
Intangible assets 1,099,96!
Assumed debt (171,620)
Current liabilities, less current portion of debt (285,01¢)
Future income tax liability (497,419
Other long term liabilities (407,559
Total net assets acquired 1,684,93!
Goodwill 2,446,60:
Purchase price 4,131,54;

Of the $1,100 million of acquired intangible assets, $59@I®mrelates to orbital slots and $17.0 million rtels to
trade names, both of which are not subject to amadizathe remaining intangible assets include revenue baoklog
$274.5 million, customer relationships of $207.7 million, farable leases of $4.4 million, and patents of $0.1 millibofal
which will be subject to amortization. See note 12 fecldisure of amortization periods.

Of the total amount of goodwill, $355.7 million is expectedé¢ deductible for tax purposes.

Other long term liabilities assumed include severansesad $15.5 million and adjustments to the pension plan as a
result of the restructuring at both Telesat Canada kyige® The plan to restructure both Telesat Canada lyrmkeBwas in



place on October 31, 2007 and for the most part was executesvember 30, 2007. The restructuring plan will be
completed on or before October 31, 2008. Severance cosigarmEayments to severed
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employees in lieu of notice and benefits, as welhasritive bonus payments that would have otherwise beeived by
the severed employees had they remained with the ComPéthe total severance costs included in the purghréce
$5.0 million was paid prior to December 31, 2007. The adgrstsrto the pension plan include an increase in thdibene
obligation as a result of the early retirement progwdmnch was partially offset by a curtailment gain due to Ve all
decrease in the number of employees.

4. Segmented Information

The Company operates in a single industry segment, in \ttpebvides satellite-based services to its broadcast,
enterprise and consulting customers around the wohnlel Cbmpany derives revenues from the following services

* Broadcas — distribution or collection of video and audio signalthe North American and International
markets which include television transmit and recegreises, occasional use, bundled Digital Video
Compression and radio services.

» Enterpris¢ — provision of satellite capacity and ground rakservices for voice, data, and image
transmission and internet access around the world.

» Consulting and Other— all consulting services related to space and earthesggngovernment studies,
satellite control services, R&D.

For the period ended December 31, 2007, revenues derivethie@bove service lines were as follows:

Broadcast 52,771
Enterprise 53,75¢
Consulting and Other 4,887
Total operating revenues 111,41¢

Geographic Information

For the period ended December 31, 2007, revenue by geograpbit weg based on the point of origin of revenues
(destination of billing invoice), allocated as follows:

Revenues — Canada 60,08t
Revenues — United States 34,352
Revenues — Europe 6,10¢
Revenues — Asia 5,58¢
Revenues — South America 4,58¢
Revenues — all others 697
Total operating revenues 111,41¢

As at December 31, 2007, the $2,447 million of goodwill matsallocated to geographic regions.

F-90






TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS — (Contin ued)
(Amounts in thousands of Canadian dollars, unless otherag noted)

As at December 31, 2007, satellites, property and othepment by geographic region, based on the location of the
asset, are allocated as follows:

Satellites, property and other equipment — Canada 1,373,51.
Satellites, property and other equipment — United States 434,59¢
Satellites, property and other equipment — all others 10,50:
Total satellites, property and other equipment 1,818,61.

Major Customers

For the period ended December 31, 2007, two customerstioBroadcast segment represented 14.9% and 11.1%
of consolidated revenues.

5. Interest Expense

December 31,

2007
Debt service costs 47,53¢
Dividends on senior preferred shares 1,69t
Capitalized interest (5,369

43,861

6. Other Expense

December 31, 2007

Foreign exchange loss (118,039
Gain on financial instruments 75,09¢
Interest income 301
Performance incentive payments and milestone intexpginse (499)
Other (835)

(43,969

7. Income Taxes

A reconciliation of the statutory income tax ratejakhis a composite of federal and provincial rateshéoeffective
income tax rate is as follows:

December 31, 2007

Statutory income tax rate 35.2%



Permanent differences

Adjustment for tax rate changes
Resolution of uncertain tax positions
Other

Effective income tax rate
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TELESAT HOLDINGS INC.

The components of the income tax expense are as follows:

Future
Current

Total income tax expense

(60,659
(1,517)

(62,170)

The tax effects of temporary differences between thrging amounts of assets and liabilities for accounting
purposes and the amounts used for tax purposes are presgated b

Future Tax Assets
Capital assets

Intangible assets
Investments

Loss carry forwards
Derivative assets

Other

Less: valuation allowance

Total future tax assets

Future Tax Liabilities
Capital assets
Intangibles
Derivative liabilities
Other

Total future tax liabilities

Total future income taxes — net

Total future income taxes are comprised of:

Net future income tax asset — current portion
Net future income tax liability — long-term portion

Total future income taxes — net

8. Accounts and Notes Receivable

December 31, 2007

7,912
5,352
8,25¢
12,61(
17,89t
3,56(

(34,35¢)

21,22¢

December 31, 2007

(170,276
(276,009
(7,399)
(4,596)

(458,279

(437,04)

2,592
(439,64

(437,04)

December 31, 2007




Trade receivables — net of allowance for doubtful aceunt 54,11¢
Less: long-term portion of trade receivables 239

53,87¢

The allowance for doubtful accounts was $4.3 million atdbdeber 31, 2007.

The long-term portion of trade receivables includesst¢éhat will not be collected during the subsequent yeaisand
included in other long term assets in note 10.
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9. Assets Held for Sale
As a result of the consolidation of facilities of twe legacy operating entities, Telesat Canada and Béxaet, the
Hawley facility was slated to be sold as part ofdlerall integration plan. On February 13, 2008, Skynet Satellite
Corporation, a wholly-owned subsidiary of Skynet, ententmlan agreement with a third party to sell the Havideility,

along with most of the equipment located within the figciThe sale is expected to close on May 1, 2008, butigst to
the satisfaction of standard closing conditions. A@dober 31, 2007, these assets were no longer amortized.

10. Other Assets

December 31, 2007

Current portion Long term portion Total

Net investment in leas¢s) 16,747 3,39t 20,14:
Income taxes recoverable 12,84 — 12,84
Accrued pension benefit (see note 20) — 9,911 9,911
Prepaid expenses and depogi}s 15,23¢ 712 15,94¢
Deferred chargeg) 4,80¢ 8,637 13,44¢
Inventories(d) 7,23¢ — 7,23¢
Other assetg) 900 4,71% 5,612

57,771 27,36¢ 85,14t

(@ The net investment in leases is classified on #iertze sheet in other current assets and othertéongassets, and includes the following:

December 31,

Net

investment

in leases as

at 2007

Total minimum lease payments 21,38:

Unearned finance income (1,247)

20,14:

Current portion (16,747

Long-term portion 3,39
Unearned finance income is allocated to income theeterm of the lease in a manner that producessatant rate of return on the investment in
the leases. The investment in the leases for pagpofkincome recognition is composed of net minineasepayments and unearned finance
income. Future minimum lease payments receivahiieutihe sales-type leases are $18.0 million in 2868 $3.4 million in 2009.

(b) Prepaid expenses and deposits includes mainly igrémurance for in-orbit satellites, prepaid ietgron banker's acceptances, and deposits
related to foreign taxes.

(c) Deferred charges include deferred costs relateigéferred revenue, as well as deferred financinggesrelated to the revolving credit facility and

the Canadian Term Loan (n 14).



(d) Inventories are valued at lower of cost or market eonsist of $5.7 million of finished goods and3bnillion of work in process. Cost for
substantially all network equipment inventoriesiéermined on an average cost basis. Cost for ingukocess and certain one-of-a-kind finished

goods is determined using specific identification.

(e) Other assets includes: tax indemnifications reddéevérom Loral of $2.3 million (note 22), other argits of $2.1 million, investments of
$0.6 million, derivative assets of $0.4 million dodg term trade receivables of $0.2 million.

Investments are recorded at cost. No impairmente vézorded as no events or changes in circumstameee identified during the period that may
have a significant adverse effect on the carryialge of the investments. Telesat has a portfolierest in Hellas-Sat Consortium Limited. The
consortium has one satellite which provides redicogerage to Greece, Cyprus and the Balkans. ae#so holds a
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nominal portfolio interest in Anik-Colombia. Tele'sawholly-owned subsidiary Infosat has a 22% iastiin Pakistan's Comstar ISA Ltd., a satellite
service provider.

Derivative assets relate to a foreign currency &dicontract that matures in January 2008.

11. Satellites, Property and Other Equipment

At December 31, 2007, satellites, property and other eguipis comprised of the following:

Accumulated Net Book

Cost Amortization Value
Satellites 1,285,58: (26,329 1,259,25!
Earth stations 120,21( (4,54¢) 115,66¢
Transponders under capital lease 67,08t (1,417 65,67¢
Office buildings and other 32,61¢ (1,544 31,07¢
Construction in progress 346,94( — 346,94(

1,852,43 (33,82%) 1,818,61.

The cost of assets under capital lease, includingigateansponders, was $68.0 million at December 31, 2007. A
December 31, 2007 the net book value of these assets wagrii6ra

12.  Goodwill and Intangible Assets

As part of the acquisition transactions described ie Bptntangible assets were acquired. The carrying anaoa
accumulated amortization of the acquired intangible assbject to amortization consisted of the followingpatember 31,
2007:

Accumulated Net Book
Cost Amortization Value
Finite life intangible assets:
Revenue backlog 274,48 (5,31€) 269,17:
Customer relationships 207,704 (2,072) 205,63:
Favourable leases 4,36¢ (218) 4,15C
Patents 59 — 59
486,61¢ (7,606) 479,01
Indefinite life intangible assets:
Orbital slots 596,341 — 596,34
Trade name 17,00(C — 17,00(
Intangible assets 1,099,96! (7,60€) 1,092,35!
Goodwill 2,446,60: — 2,446,60:

Goodwill and intangible assets 3,546,56¢ (7,60€) 3,538,96.




Revenue backlog is amortized based on the annual rate attivibhcklog is recognized in revenue which is
estimated to be between 4 and 17 years. Customer nelaifis, favourable leases and patents are amortized on a
straight-line basis over the asset’s estimated us&uldustomer relationships have an estimated usefuflifetween 11
and 21 years. Favourable leases have an estimated useffildetween 3 and 4 years. Patents have an estimatied liis
of 18 years. The Company recorded amortization expersé ®mmillion for the period ended December 31, 2007.
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13.  Other Liabilities

Current Long term December 31, 2007

portion portion Total
Deferred revenues and depogiis 54,652 257,25¢ 311,90¢
Derivative liabilities(b) 14,811 271,06 285,87
Capital lease liabilitieg) 29,00¢ 44,341 73,352
Deferred satellite performance incentive paymeénts 7,538 35,791 43,32¢
Interest payable 40,14¢ — 40,14¢
Dividends payable on senior preferred shares (note 15) 1,69¢ — 1,69
Pension and other post retirement liabilities (note 20) — 24,31z 24,31z
Other liabilities(e) 4,53( 29,72 34,25:
152,37: 662,48’ 814,86:

(@ Deferred revenues represent the Company’s lialfhityhe provision of future services. The prepandount is brought into income over the
period of service to which the prepayment appliége net amount outstanding at Decenier2007 will be reflected in the Statement of Haga
as follows: $54.7 million in 2008, $27 million iD@9, $25.9 million in 2010, $25 million in 2011,42 million in 2012, and $154.4 million

thereaftel

(b) Derivative liabilities comprise the following:

Derivative

liability Maturity December 31, 2007

Foreign currency forward contracts January 1, 2008 to December 1, 2 17,54¢

Cross currency basis swap October 31, 201 261,97

Interest rate swaps January 31, 2010 to November 28, 2 6,35¢
285,87

(c) The obligation under the capital lease is classifie the balance sheet in other current liabilitied other long-term liabilities.

Capital lease

obligations December 31, 2007

Total minimum lease payments 90,02¢

Amount representing interest (9)% (16,679)

73,352
Current portion (29,009
Long-term portion 44,34¢

Future minimum lease payments payable undeagital leases are $34 million in 2008, $17.9imillin 2009, $7.8 million in 2010,
$7.8 million in 2011, $7.8 million in 2012 akd4.7 million thereafter.



(d)

(e)

Deferred satellite performance incentive paymerggayable over the lives of the Nimiqg 1, Anik Bhik F2, Anik F3 and Anik F1R satellites.
The present value of the payments is capitalizguhatsof the cost of the satellite, recorded aalaility, and charged against operations as part of
the normal amortization of the satellite. The amsyrayable on the successful operation of the pranders are $7 million in 2008, $3.1 million

in 2009, $3.4 million in 2010, $2.8 million in 201%2.1 million in 2012, and $24.4 million thereafte

Other liabilities includes: tax indemnificationsyadle to Loral of $6.9 million (note 22), potentiatome tax liabilities of $1.8 million,
unfavourable leases of $2.2 million, unfavourahlstemer revenue backlog of $15.2 million, incomestapayable of $0.9 million, and other
liabilities of $7.3 million at December 31, 2007.
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14.  Debt Financing

December 31, 2007

Senior secured credit faciliti¢s) :

Revolving facility 20,00(
The Canadian term loan facility 200,00(
The U.S. term loan facility 1,687,65.
The U.S. term loan Il facility 5,842
Senior bridge loarb) 667,80¢
Senior subordinated bridge loga 209,32«
Other debt financingy) 3,73¢
2,794,36:

Current portion (18,419
Long-term portion 2,775,94

The outstanding debt balances above, with the exceptitre oévolving credit facility and the Canadian Ternaho
are shown net of related debt issuance costs. Thésdabhce costs related to the revolving credit fadilitst the Canadian
Term Loan are included in Other Assets (note 10) andnaoetized to interest expense on a straight-line badistiAér
debt issuance costs are amortized to interest expemsgtiusieffective interest method.

(&) The senior secured credit facilities are secured by sutztaall of Telesat's assets. Under the termtheke
facilities, Telesat is required to comply with certamwvenants including financial reporting, maintenance of
certain financial covenant ratios for leverage and ist@average, a requirement to maintain minimum levels
of satellite insurance, restrictions on capital expenesitua restriction on fundamental business changég or t
creation of subsidiaries, restrictions on investmaetsrictions on dividend payments, restrictions @n th
incurrence of additional debt, restrictions on ass@oditions, and restrictions on transactions with aféiat
The financial covenant ratios include total debt to HBA (earnings before interest, taxes, depreciation and
amortization) and EBITDA to interest expense. Bothrfiial covenant ratios become tighter over the term of
the credit facility. At December 31, 2007 Telesat wasoimpliance with all of the required covenants.

Telesat is required to hedge, at fixed rates, 50% ofoisifflg interest rate debt for a three year period ending
October 31, 2011. Each tranche of the credit facility igestito mandatory principal repayment requirements,
which, in the initial years, are generailys to 1% of the initial aggregate principal amount. Themesecured
credit facility has several tranches which are dbsdrbelow:

0] A revolving Canadian dollar denominated credit facility (fRevolving Facility”) of up to the Canadian
dollar equivalent of $153 million (US$154.8 million) is avhiato Telesat. This Revolving Facility
matures on October 31, 2012 and is available to be draanyaime. The drawn loans will bear interest at
the prime rate or LIBOR or Bankers’ Acceptance pluagplicable margin of 175 to 275 basis points per
annum. The average interest rate was 7.53% for the twth® ended December 31, 2007. Undrawn
amounts under the facility are subject to a commitrfemn As at December 31, 2007, $20 million was
drawn under this facility.

(i) The Canadian Term Loan Facility is a $200 million loasility denominated in Canadian dollars, bears
interest at a floating rate of the Bankers’ Accepgarate plus an applicable margin of 275 basis points per
annum, and has a maturity of October 31, 2012. There arguioae: repayments on the
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Canadian Term Loan facility until the third quarter of 20008 average interest rate was 7.55% for the two
months ended December 31, 2007. This facility was fully dravibecember 31, 2007.

The U.S. Term Loan Facility is a $1,755 million loan liacdenominated in US dollars ($1,733.7 million
CAD), bears interest at LIBOR plus an applicable mao§i@00 basis points per annum, and has a maturity
of October 31, 2014. The average interest rate was 7.92%efond months ended December 31, 2007.
This facility was fully drawn at December 31, 2007.

The U.S. Term Loan Il Facility is a $150 million delaydrdw facility denominated in US dollars

($148.2 million CAD), bears interest at LIBOR plus an appleanargin of 300 basis points per annum, and
has a maturity of October 31, 2014. The average interesivest 8.0% for the two months ended

December 31, 2007. The U.S. Term Loan Il Facility islalske to be drawn for 12 months after the closing
of the acquisition described in Note 3 to fund capital exjpered. The undrawn amount of the Term loan
B-2 is subject to a commitment fee. As at Decembe2@Q7, US$10 million ($9.9 million CAD) of the
facility was drawn.

Senior Bridge Loan is a $692.8 million loan facility denortédan US dollars ($684.6 million CAD). The
Bridge Loan is unsecured but is guaranteed by certain Tseldssidiary entities. This facility has a maturit
October 31, 2008, and an initial interest rate per annum twmjtied greater of 9% or three-month LIBOR plus
the applicable margin. The applicable margin increasesstovie subject to an interest rate cap of 11%. The
average interest rate was 9.0% for the two months dbdeember 31, 2007. This facility was fully drawn at
December 31, 2007. The lenders under the Bridge Loan hayi,aas early as April 28, 2008, to make a
Securities Demand whereby Telesat would issue high yakb subject to registration rights at an interes

at or below the 11% cap in exchange for the Bridge LoahelSenior Bridge Loan is not repaid in full before
October 31, 2008, the Senior Bridge Loan is automaticaflyerbed into a rollover loan which matures on
October 31, 2015 and has escalating interest rates wigidapped at 11%.

Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan is a $217.2 million loatitiadenominated in US dollars ($214.6 million
CAD). The Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan is unsecured lguiaisanteed by certain Telesat subsidiary
entities. This facility has a maturity of October 31, 2668 an initial interest rate per annum equal to the
greater of 10.5% or three-month LIBOR plus the applicable imarpe average interest rate was 10.5% for
the two months ended December 31, 2007. The applicable nracggases over time subject to an interest
rate cap of 12.5%. This facility was fully drawn at Debem31, 2007. The lenders under the Senior
Subordinated Bridge Loan have a right, as early as Apr2@&3, to make a Securities Demand whereby
Telesat would issue high yield notes subject to registraights at an interest rate at or below the 12.5% cap
in exchange for the Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan. IS&mor Bridge Loan is not repaid in full before
October 31, 2008, the Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan is atitafhaconverted into a rollover loan which
matures on October 31, 2015 and has escalating interesivhatbsare capped at 12.5%.

Other debt financing includes the financing for the @any’s headquarters building. With respect to the
headquarters building, the Company shares equally wittieedoper, the ownership, cost and debt of the
building. The Company has leased the deve’s share for twenty years beginning January 25, 1989 for an
annual rent, excluding operating costs, of $1.8 million. Tretaldquarters financing of $3.7 million includes
the amount owing under this capital lease of $1.8 millioDbecember 31, 2007. The imputed interest rate for
the capital lease is 10.69% per annum.

Mortgage financing for the Company’s share of theitgdilas been arranged by the developer for a

twenty-year term coincident with the lease with ingeis 11% per annum and with annual payments of
principal and interest of $1.8 million.
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The outstanding balance of long term debt, excluding debance costs, will be repaid as follows (in milliohs
Canadian dollars):

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total

$25.9 $27.7 $32.4 $107.5 $117.4 $2,556.0 $2,866.9

15. Senior Preferred Shares

Telesat issued 141,435 Senior Preferred Shares in exchangsHawith an issue price of $1,000 per Senior
Preferred Share on October 31, 2007 as part of the dimjuisansaction described in notes 1 and 3. The Seniterree
Shares rank in priority, with respect to payment of divdtieand return of capital upon liquidation, dissolution or
winding-up, ahead of the shares of all other class&glefat stock which have currently been created, dssvahy other
shares that may be created that by their terms rande jt;the Senior Preferred Shares. The Senior Peef@hares are
entitled to receive cumulative preferential dividenta eate of 7% per annum on the Liquidation Value, b&hg§00 per
Senior Preferred Share plus all accrued and unpaid ddsdéime annual dividend may be paid in cash, if such payment is
permitted under the terms of (i) the senior securedtdaadiities and the indenture governing the senialdeiloans, and
(ii) any indebtedness incurred to refinance the ses@oured credit facilities or the senior bridge loanthdfcash payment
is not permitted under the terms of the senior securekt taeilities or senior bridge loans, the dividends wélpaid in
Senior Preferred Shares based on an issue price of $1,00énpar Breferred Share. Dividends of $1.7 million have been
accrued at December 31, 2007 (note 13) and included as intqreste.

The Senior Preferred Shares may be submitted by the Hotdedemption on or after the twelfth anniversary of the
date of issue, subject to compliance with law. Upon agdahcontrol which occurs after the fifth anniversaryhefissue
of the Senior Preferred Shares, or on the fifth anrawvgri§ a change of control occurs prior to the fifth aensary of the
issue, Telesat must make an offer of redemption to Eleh®of Senior Preferred Shares, and must redeem aigyr Se
Preferred Shares for which the offer of redemption égpted within 25 days of such offer. As a result, the $é&trieferred
Shares have been classified as a liability on thenleal sheet.

The holders of the Senior Preferred Shares arentitied to receive notice of or to vote at any megth
shareholders of the Company except for meetings ofdluets of the Senior Preferred Shares as a classd ¢alamend
the terms of the Senior Preferred Shares, or otkeras required by law.

16. Capital Stock

The authorized capital of the Company is comprise@)aéin unlimited number of common shares, (i) anmitéd
number of voting participating preferred shares, (iiualimited number of non-voting participating preéstishares,
(iv) an unlimited number of redeemable common shavgsn(unlimited number of redeemable non-voting pawdiang
preferred shares, (vi) 1000 director voting preferredeshand (vii) 325,000 senior preferred shares. Norfeeof t
Redeemable Common Shares or Redeemable Non-Votirigifeihg Preferred Shares have been issued as at Dacginbe
2007.

Common Shares

The holders of the Common Shares are entitled toveeoetice of and to attend all annual and special mgetf
the shareholders of the Company and to one vote pecesf each common share held on all matters at@hl sieetings,
except in respect of a class vote applicable only tshilaees of any other class, in respect of which the @mm
shareholders shall have no right to vote. The holdditsedCommon Shares are entitled to receive dividendsagde



declared by the Board of Directors of the Compang, ae entitled to share in the distribution of the tsssethe Company
upon liquidation, winding-up or dissolution, subject to tights, privileges and conditions attaching to any otheesscbf
shares ranking in order of priority. The Common Shares a
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convertible at the holders’ option, at any time, Mating Participating Preferred Shares or Non-VotingiBigating
Preferred Shares, on a one-for-one basis.

The following table provides the details of the issuatl@ritstanding Common Shares as at December 31, 2007. All
amounts are in thousands of Canadian dollars, exceptithieen of shares:

Common Shares

Value
Number ($)
Opening balance, October 31, 2007 1 —
Issued for cash (notes 1 and 3) 35,172,211 311,12«
Issued in exchange for contributed assets (notes 1 and 3) 39,080,24 445,29(
Ending balance, December 31, 2007 74,252,46! 756,41«

Voting Participating Preferred Shares

The rights, privileges and conditions of the Votingtiegrating Preferred Shares are identical in all resgedisose
of the Common Shares, except for the following:

* The holders of Voting Participating Preferred Sharesiarentitled to vote at meetings of the shareholdetise
Company on resolutions electing directors.

» For all other meetings of the shareholders of the Gompthe holders of Voting Participating Preferredr&ba
are entitled to a variable number of votes per VoRagicipating Preferred Share based on the numbertafg/o
Participating Preferred Shares, Non-Voting PartiangaPreferred Shares and Redeemable Non-Voting
Participating Preferred Shares outstanding on the rectedfithe given meeting of the shareholders of the
Company.

* The Voting Participating Preferred Shares are corblertat any time, at the holdeigption into Common Shar
or Non-Voting Participating Preferred Shares on a oneifierbasis as long as the result of such conversies do
not cause the Company to cease to be a “qualified cororavithin the meaning of the Canadian
Telecommunication Common Carrier Ownership and ContegluRations pursuant to the Telecommunications
Act (Canada).

Non-Voting Participating Preferred Shares

The rights, privileges and conditions of the Non-¥gtParticipating Preferred Shares are identical in sleets to
those of the Common Shares, except for the following:

» The holders of Non-Voting Participating Preferred $hare not entitled to vote on any matter at meethtise
shareholders of the Company, except in respect of avdéssipplicable only to the Non-Voting Participating
Preferred Shares.

» The Non-Voting Participating Preferred Shares ar@exdible, at any time, at the holders’ option intan@oon
Shares or Voting Participating Preferred Shares on doprme basis as long as the result of such conversion
does not cause the Company to cease to be a “qualifipdration” within the meaning of the Canadian
Telecommunication Common Carrier Ownership and ContegluRations pursuant to the Telecommunications



Act (Canada).
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Director Voting Preferred Shares

The rights, privileges and conditions of the Diredfoting Preferred Shares are identical in all respectisose of
the Common Shares, except for the following:

* The holders of Director Voting Preferred Shares arnélehto receive notice of and to attend all megiof the
shareholders of the Company at which directors oCthrapany are to be elected. The holders of the Directo
Voting Preferred Shares are not entitled to attenetimgs of the shareholders of the Company and havigmo r
to vote on any matter other than the election of thrscof the Company.

» The holders of Director Voting Preferred Shares arée@nto receive annual non-cumulative dividends of $10
per share if declared by the board of directors of thagany, in priority to the payment of dividends on the
Common Shares, Voting Participating Preferred Sharas;\'oting Participating Preferred Shares, Redeemable
Common Shares, and Redeemable Non-Voting ParticgpBtieferred Shares, but after payment of any accrued
dividends on the Senior Preferred Shares.

* In the event of liquidation, wind-up or dissolution, thédeos of Director Voting Preferred Shares are eutitte
receive $10 per share in priority to the payment of divildeon the Common Shares, Voting Participating
Preferred Shares, Non-Voting Participating PretéSkares, Redeemable Common Shares, and Redeemable

Non-Voting Participating Preferred Shares, but aftgment of any accrued dividends on the Senior Preferred
Shares.

» The Director Voting Preferred Shares are redeemalife aption of the Company, at any time, at a redemption
price of $10 per share.

The following table provides the details of the issuatl @rtstanding preferred shares as at December 31, 2007. All
amounts are in thousands of Canadian dollars, exceptithiean of shares:

Voting Participating Non-Voting Participating Director Voting Total
Value Value Value Value
Number ($) Number $) Number ($) Number $)

Opening balance,
October 31, 2007 — — — - — _
Issued for cash

(note 3) 7,034,44. 117,38¢ 1,00 10 7,035,44. 117,39¢
Issued in exchang

for contributed

assets (note 3) 25,794,02! 304,44¢ 25,794,02! 304,44

Issued in exchang
for the novation
of forward
contracts from
Loral Skynet
(note 3) 10,159,79! 119,917 10,159,79! 119,917

Ending balance,
December 31,
2007 7,034,44. 117,38¢ 35,953,82. 424,36¢ 1,00C 10 42,989,26! 541,76«
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17. Cash Flow Information

Cash and cash equivalents is comprised of:

December 31, 2007

Cash 32,73
Short term investments, original maturity 90 days ss le 9,46¢
42,20:
Changes in operating assets and liabilities are commfsed
Receivables (4,71¢)
Other assets 132,76¢
Accounts payable 72,38(
Income taxes payable (749)
Other liabilities 7,504
207,18¢
Non-cash investing and financing activities are coneprisf:
Purchase of satellites, property and other equipment 4,767
Shares issued in exchange for assets contributed (note 3) 869,65¢
18.  Financial Instruments
The carrying amounts and fair values of financial imsgants were as follows as at:
December 31, 2007
Carrying Value
Loans &
AF
HFT S Receivables Total Fair Value
Financial Assets
Cash and cash equivalents 42,20: — — 42,20: 42,20:
Accounts and notes receivable — — 55,29¢ 55,29¢ 55,29¢
Derivative financial instruments 354 — — 354 354
Other assets 7,20 — = 7,20¢ 7,20¢
49,76( — 55,29¢ 105,05¢ 105,05¢
Carrying Value
HFT Other Total Fair Value
Financial Liabilities
Accounts payable and accrued liabilities — 81,221 81,221 81,221
Customer and other deposits — 6,291 6,291 6,291
Debt — 2,792,57! 2,792,57! 2,865,111



Derivative financial instruments 285,87z — 285,87: 285,87:
Other liabilities — 80,92¢ 80,92¢ 80,92¢

285,87: 2,961,01! 3,246,88 3,319,42:
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Transaction costs are expensed as incurred for findanstalments classified or designated as held-for-trading
("HFT") or available-for-sale (“AFS”). For otherrfancial instruments, transaction costs are amortizadttmcome in
interest expense over the expected life of the instrunseng the effective interest method.

Unrealized gains and losses on financial assetsthdteld as available-for-sale are recorded in othrapoehensive
income until realized, at which time they will be resedl in the Consolidated Statement of Earnings. Availainlsdle
equity securities which do not have a quoted market piiiteantinue to be recorded at cost.

Financial assets and financial liabilities that are Hi@erading are measured at fair value with unrealgaids and
losses recorded in the Consolidated Statement of Earfidegsatives, including embedded derivatives that must be
separately accounted for, are recorded at fair valueeo@dnsolidated Balance Sheet. Changes in the fairsvafue
derivative instruments are recognized in the Cons@itiS§tatement of Earnings.

We have chosen to account for embedded foreign curtsroyatives in a host contract as a single instrunvbere
the contract requires payments denominated in the curtieatis commonly used in contracts to procure non-filanc
items in the economic environment in which we trahsac

Telesat uses derivative instruments to manage the exgodoreign currency risk and interest rate risk, anesdo
not use derivative instruments for speculative purposes.

Credit Risk

Financial instruments that potentially subject the Comparayconcentration of credit risk consist of cash astl ca
equivalents and short term investments. Investment sé thumds is done with high quality financial institutiemsl is
governed by the Company’s corporate investment polibigiwaims to reduce credit risk by restricting investmemts
high-grade US dollar and Canadian dollar denominated investment

Telesat may be exposed to credit risk if counterpantiés tlerivative instruments are unable to meet their
obligations. It is expected that these counterpartiedbwilible to meet their obligations as they are ingiits with strong
credit ratings. Telesat regularly monitors the credit aisd credit exposure.

Telesat has a number of diverse customers, which lingtsghcentration of credit risk. The Company has credit
evaluation, approval and monitoring processes intendeutigate potential credit risks. Anticipated bad debsésshave
been provided for in the allowance for doubtful accounts.

Currency Exposures

Telesat uses forward contracts to hedge foreign curmésicgn anticipated transactions, mainly related ¢o th
construction of satellites. At December 31, 2007, the Gmypad $196.9 million of outstanding foreign exchange contracts
which require the Company to pay Canadian dollars tovedds $198.9 million for future capital expenditures. Tdie f
value of these derivative contract liabilities wasuarealized loss of $17.5 million. The forward contraresdue between
January 1, 2008 and December 1, 2009.

The Company has also entered into a cross currenisydveap to hedge the foreign currency risk on a portids o
US dollar denominated debt. At December 31, 2007, the Confizaha cross currency basis swap of $1,224 million which
requires the Company to pay Canadian dollars to reced®1,054 million. The fair value of this derivative contraas an
unrealized loss of $262 million.

Interest Rate Risk



Telesat uses interest rate swaps to hedge the intaresisk related to debt financing which is primariyiable rate
financing. Changes in the interest rates could impact tloeiginof interest Telesat is required to pay.
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On November 30, 2007, Telesat entered into a series ahfemest rate swaps to fix interest rates on US $600 mitlial
$630 million of debt for an average term of 3.2 yearsrdge rates achieved, before any borrowing spread, wi2&o4bn
US dollar swaps and 4.35% on Canadian dollar swaps. Aniitene31, 2007, the fair value of these derivative contract
liabilities was an unrealized loss of $6.4 million.

For the period ended December 31, 2007, none of the deeifisancial instruments were designated as hedging
instruments.

Fair Value

Fair value is the amount that willing parties would at¢e exchange a financial instrument based on thenturre
market for instruments with the same risk, principal @mdaining maturity. Where possible fair values aretas the
qguoted market values on December 31, 2007, otherwise tlueidied cash flow model is used to determine fair valuatAs
December 31, 2007, cash and cash equivalents and derivativenents have been valued using quoted market values.

These estimates are affected significantly by the assomsgfor the amount and timing of estimated future cash
flows and discount rates, which all reflect varying degref risk. Potential income taxes and other expenaesvtuld be
incurred on disposition of these financial instrumenesnat reflected in the fair values. As a result, Hievialues are not
necessarily the net amounts that would be realize@sktinstruments were actually settled.

The carrying amounts for cash and cash equivalents,teh@rinvestments, trade receivables, promissorgsnot
receivable, other current liabilities, accounts pésjadnd debt due within one year approximate fair markieivdue to the
short maturity of these instruments. The fair valuthefdebt financing is equal to its carrying value, exaludinancing
charges, due to the short period of time elapsed betleaassumption of the debt and December 31, 2007

19. Stock-Based Compensation Plans
Stock Options

Prior to the acquisition of Telesat Canada, as desciribedie 1, options were granted to key employees of Telesat
Canada to purchase BCE common shares. The subscriptenspusually equal to the market value of the shanr¢belast
trading day before the grant comes into effect.ofthe outstanding options vested with the closinthefacquisition
transaction, and must be exercised within 180 days dfdahsaction or they will be forfeited.

The following tables are a summary of the status ofsb¢ke portion of the BCE stock option programs:

Number Weighted-Average
of Shares Exercise Price ($)
December 31, 2007

Outstanding, beginning of period 411,04) 34
Granted — —
Exercised — —
Expired/forfeited (4,139 30
Outstanding, end of period 406,90¢ 34

Exercisable, end of period 406,90¢ 34
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Deferred Share Units (DSUs)

DSUs were granted to executives when they choose tivedgbeir bonuses in the form of DSUs instead of cable.
value of a DSU is always equal to the value of one B@Bmon share. Dividends in the form of additional DSlés ar
credited to the participant’s account on each dividend paydaatand are equivalent in value to the dividend palBCia
common shares. DSUs are paid in cash when the holdeseshto exercise their units. All of the outstanding opti@sted
with the closing of the acquisition transaction, andtrbasexercised within 180 days of the transaction or ke
forfeited.

The table below is a summary of the status of the DSUs

Number of DSUs
December 31, 2007

Outstanding, beginning of period 6,772
Granted —
Dividends credited —
Exercised —
Outstanding, end of period 6,772

20. Employee Benefit Plans
Telesat Canada

The Company’s funding policy is to make contributionsg@@gnsion funds based on various actuarial cost methods
as permitted by pension regulatory bodies. Contributionsotedictuarial assumptions concerning future investnedmts,
salary projections and future service benefits. Péseta are represented primarily by Canadian and foegjgity securities,
fixed income instruments and short-term investments.

Skynet Satellite Corporation

The Company provides certain health care and life inserbenefits for retired employees of the legacy Skynet
companies and their dependents. Participants are eligitifeese benefits generally when they retire frotivaservice
and meet the eligibility requirements for our pengitan. These benefits are funded primarily on a pay-as-ydasjs,
with the retiree generally paying a portion of the tlestugh contributions, deductibles and coinsurance prosion
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The changes in the benefit obligations and in thevidire of assets and the funded status of the defineditqelnas
were as follows:

Telesat Canada Skynet
Pension Other Other
Benefits Benefits Benefits Total

December 31, 2007

Change in benefit obligations

Benefit obligation, October 31, 2007 159,39: 16,631 8,07¢ 184,10z
Current service cost 774 79 — 853
Interest cost 1,51¢ 146 — 1,65¢
Benefit payments (722 (70) (29) (81€)
Plan amendment (early retirement program) 5,70: — 5 5,70¢
Employee contributions 145 — 87 232
Restructuring (3,259 (562) (58) (3,879
Benefit obligation, December 31, 2007 163,54¢ 16,224 8,08¢ 187,85¢
Telesat Canada Skynet
Pension Other Other
Benefits Benefits Benefits Total
December 31, 2007

Change in fair value of plan assets

Fair value of plan assets, October 31, 2007 176,59¢ — — 176,59¢
Return on plan assets (2,59¢) — — (2,59¢)
Benefit payments (722) (70) (24) (81€)
Employee contributions 145 — 5 150
Employer contributions 35 70 19 124
Fair value of plan assets, December 31, 2007 173,45. — — 173,45,
Funded status 9,911 (16,229 (8,089) (14,407)

The fair value of the Telesat Canada plan assets towo$ithe following asset categories:

December 31, 2007

Equity securities 60%
Fixed income instruments 38%
Short-term investments 2%
Total 10Q%

Plan assets are valued as at the measurement dateeohiber 31 each year.
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The significant weighted-average assumptions adopted isunieg Telesat Canada’s pension and other benefit
obligations and Skynet’s other benefit obligations veesdollows:

Telesat Canada Skynet
Pension Other Other
Benefits Benefits Benefits

December 31, 2007

Accrued benefit obligation

Discount rate 5.5% 5.5% 6.5%

Rate of compensation increase 3.5% 3.5% 4.3%
Benefit costs for the period ended

Discount rate 5.5% 5.5% 6.5%

Expected long-term rate of return on plan assets 7.5% 7.5% 8.5%

Rate of compensation increase 3.5% 3.5% 4.3%

For the Telesat Canada plans, for measurement purpo$@$5% (drugs) / 4.5% (other) annual rate of incremse
the per capita cost of covered health care benefgdh@hlth care cost trend) was assumed for 2007. Theataugr
assumed to gradually decrease to 4.5% over 6 years anid rtizat level thereafter. For the Skynet plan, a@lar
assumptions to determine the benefit obligation forrdtkeaefits as of December 31, 2007, used a health carearuttrate
of 9.5% decreasing gradually to 4.5% by 2014. Assumed healtkeasireend rates have a significant effect on theustso
reported for the health care plans.

The net benefit expense included the following components:

Telesat Canada Skynet
Pension Other Other
Benefits Benefits Benefits Total

October 31, 2007 to December 31, 2007

Current service cost 774 79 — 853
Interest cost 1,51¢ 146 87 1,74¢
Expected return on plan assets (2,20€) — — (2,20€6)
Net benefit expense 81 225 87 393

21. Commitments and Contingent Liabilities

Off balance sheet commitments include operating leasesmitments for future capital expenditures and other
future purchases.

2008 2009 2010 2011 2012 Thereafter Total

Off balance sheet
commitments 192,40: 96,537 23,07: 14,74¢ 10,64¢ 55,02¢ 392,43:

Certain of the Company’s satellite transponders, affie@rehouses, earth stations, vehicles, and offic@rmenit
are leased under various terms. Minimum annual commigngrtter operating leases determined as at December 31, 2007
are: $32.6 million in 2008, $23.7 million in 2009, $21.5 millior2010, $13.1 million in 2011, $8.9 million in 2012, and



$27.0 million thereafter. The aggregate lease expenseddwo months ended December 31, 2007 was $4.5 million. The
expiry terms range from February 2008 to July 2016.

Telesat has non-satellite purchase commitments of CADr#dlion or US $4.5 million, with various suppliers at
December 31, 2007. The total outstanding commitments are dolli#s.

Telesat has entered into contracts for the construatiol launch of Nimiq 4 (targeted for launch in 2008), the
construction of Nimiq 5 (targeted for launch in 2009) and &elki-N (targeted for launch in 2008). The
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outstanding commitments at December 31, 2007 on these coatr@@#D $261.2 million or US $264.3 million. The total
outstanding commitments are in US dollars.

Telesat has agreements with various customers for grepaanues on several satellites which take effecinah f
acceptance of the spacecraft. Telesat is resporfisitidperating and controlling these satellites. Depasfi$273.3 million,
refundable under certain circumstances, are refléctether liabilities, both current and long-term.

In the normal course of business, Telesat has executeehagnts that provide for indemnification and guarantees to
counterparties in various transactions. These inderatidit undertakings and guarantees may require Telesat to
compensate the counterparties for costs and lossgsad@s a result of certain events including, withiouitation, loss or
damage to property, change in the interpretation of ladsegulations (including tax legislation), claims that rasge
while providing services, or as a result of litigatibat may be suffered by the counterparties.

Certain indemnification undertakings can extend for an unlkhpegiod and may not provide for any limit on the
maximum potential amount, although certain agreentmt®ntain specified maximum potential exposure representing a
cumulative amount of approximately $14.9 million. The natfireubstantially all of the indemnification undertakings
prevents the Company from making a reasonable estwh#tte maximum potential amount Telesat could be required to
pay counterparties as the agreements do not specifyisnom amount and the amounts are dependent upon the outcome of
future contingent events, the nature and likelihood of whamnot be determined at this time. Historicallye$at has not
made any significant payments under such indemnifications.

Telesat and Loral have entered into an indemnificatioeemgent whereby Loral will indemnify Telesat for any tax
liabilities for taxation years prior to 2007. Likewisegldsat will indemnify Loral for the settlement of aay receivables
for taxation years prior to 2007.

In August 2001, Boeing, the manufacturer of the Anik F1 Igatehdvised Telesat of a gradual decrease in availabl
power on-board the satellite. Telesat filed an inswatmim with its insurers on December 19, 2002, and in M2004
reached a final settlement agreement. The settlecadiatfor an initial payment in 2004 of US $136.2 million and
additional payment of US $49.1 million in 2007 if the powsel®n Anik F1 degrades as predicted by the manufactarer.
the event that the power level on Anik F1 is betientpredicted, the amount of the payment(s) will be azljusy applying
a formula which is included in the settlement documentatiad could result in either a pro-rated payment to Tebéshe
additional US $49.1 million or a pro-rated repayment of ug teaximum of US $36.1 million to be made by Telesdahé¢o t
insurers. The initial payment has been received. Dibempmber 2005, a number of insurers elected to payeudited
amount of the proceeds due in 2007. A discounted valu&$26l2 million was received from a number of insurance
underwriters in December 2005 with US $20.0 million to be pgid few insurers in 2007. Telesat submitted its finafcla
in the fourth quarter of 2007. In January, 2008, certain insaranderwriters indicated disagreement with Telesat's
determination of the available power such that the fiagment, in the insurers’ view, would be approximately
US$2.7 million. In the event Telesat is unable to restilisedisagreement, it fully intends to pursue arbitrathst
December 31, 2007, Telesat has not recorded any recefeddikd to this claim.

22. Related Party Transactions

Related parties include PSP and Loral, the common shdeekptogether with their subsidiaries and affiliates.
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The following transactions are in the normal coursepefrations and are measured at the exchange amount, svhich i
the amount of consideration established and agreed teelvglated parties. The related party transactioas &sd for the
period ended December 31, 2007 were between Telesat aiddroit subsidiaries and affiliates of Loral.

December 31, 2007

Service revenues 440
Operations and administration expenses 825
Capital expenditures — Satellites 12,31¢

The balances with related parties are as follows:

December 31, 2007

Receivables at year end 3,38¢
Payables at year end 9,68~

23. Reconciliation to US GAAP

Telesat has prepared these consolidated financiafgate according to Canadian GAAP. The following tables ar
a reconciliation of differences relating to the statehoé operations and total shareholders’ equity reportedrding to
Canadian GAAP and United States GAAP.

Reconciliation of Net Loss

December 31, 2007

Canadian GAAP — Net loss (4,05])
Gains on embedded derivatives 774
Sales type lease — operating lease for US GAAP 2,74¢
Capital lease — operating lease for US GABAP (78)
Dividends on senior preferred sha(@s 1,69E
Tax effect of above adjustmenis (976)
Uncertainty in income taxes) (2,64¢)
Impact of future tax rate reductiot) 1,251

United States GAAP — Net loss (1,28%)

Other comprehensive loss items
Change in currency translation adjustment (599)

United States GAAP — Comprehensive loss (1,884

Accumulated Other Comprehensive Loss

December 31, 2007

Cumulative translation adjustment (599)



Accumulated other comprehensive loss (599)
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Reconciliation of Total Shareholders’ Equity

December 31, 2007

Canadian GAAP 1,293,52!

Adjustments
Gains on embedded derivatives 774
Sales type lease — operating lease for US GAAP 2,74¢
Capital lease — operating lease for US GABAP (78)
Tax effect of above adjustmenis (97€)
Uncertainty in income taxes) (2,64¢)
Impact of future tax rate reductiot) 1,251

United States GAAP 1,294,59!

Description of United States GAAP adjustments
(@) Embedded Derivativi

The accounting for derivative instruments and hedgingites under Canadian GAAP is now substantially
harmonized with U.S. GAAP, with the exception of theoaitting for certain embedded derivatives. Under

U.S. GAAP an embedded foreign currency derivative in adargtact that is not a financial instrument must be
separated and recorded on the balance sheet unlessrigrecy in which payments are to be paid or received is:
i) either the functional currency of either partylte tontract or ii) the currency for price of the tetbgood or
service is routinely denominated in commercial transastaround the world (typically referring to a traded
commodity). The same applies to an embedded foreign cyrdamivative in a host contract under Canadian
GAAP except that the entity has the option as a metteccounting policy to account for the embedded foreign
currency derivative in a host contract as a singleunstnt providing certain criteria are met. One of theederia

is that the payments to be paid or received is in aracyrimat is commonly used in contracts to purchase lor sel
such non-financial items in the economic environmenmttiich the transaction takes place. This option under
Canadian GAAP results in embedded derivatives that musicbeded separately under U.S. GAAP to not have to
be separately recorded and disclosed under Canadian GAARdditienal option loosens the more stringent
U.S. GAAP requirement that the currency be one in whiclh commercial transactions are denominated around
the world to be one that is commonly used in the ecanemiironment in which the transaction takes place.

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, all derivative instrumemtgedded in contracts are recorded on the balance sheet
at fair value. The Company denominates many of its-terg international purchase contracts in U.S. dollars
resulting in embedded derivatives. This exposure to theddlir is partially offset by revenue that is also
denominated in U.S. dollars. For Canadian GAAP, the Coyipas elected to account for such contracts as single
instruments (as explained above); resulting in a U.S. GreaBnciling item. At December 31, 2007, the estimated
fair value of assets resulting from embedded derivativ52s5 million.

The impact on the statement of earnings of changeg ifaithvalue of these embedded derivatives, for the two
month period ended December 31, 2007 is reflected as afggOrBamillion in the U.S. GAAP reconciliation note.

(b) Sales-Type and Capital Leases

Under U.S. GAAP, if the beginning of a lease term faithin the last 25% of a leased asset’s total estunate
economic life; then it can only be classified as a ehfgtse if the lease transfers ownership at
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the end of the lease term or there is a bargain purdptie®. This exception does not exist under Canadian GAAP,
therefore certain leases are reported as a cait® Bnd sales-type lease respectively under Canadian GAAP,
as operating leases for U.S. GAAP.

()  Senior Preferred Shares

In accordance with U.S. GAAP, the senior preferred share classified outside of permanent equity as they are
redeemable at the option of the holder. These sergterped shares are classified as liabilities under diana
GAAP. This results in a U.S. GAAP reconciling item éfiect the different classification.

(d)  Income Taxe

The income tax adjustment reflects the impact the Or8tates GAAP adjustments described above have on
income taxes.

The tax effect of rate reduction represents the adjustimdéuture taxes resulting from the application of thetio
quarter rate reduction to the accumulated gains and lossambedded derivatives and for certain lease
transactions classified as operating leases as distabksve.

(¢)  Uncertainty in Income Taxes

In June 2006, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FAIS8ued Interpretation No. 48, Accounting for
Uncertainty in Income Taxes, an interpretation of FAS &ff@¢tive for fiscal years beginning after December 15,
2006. FIN 48 provides specific guidance on the recognitionecagnition and measurement of income tax
positions in financial statements, including the aalofi related interest and penalties recorded in intesgstnse.
An income tax position is recognized when it is more likkn not that it will be sustained upon examination
based on its technical merits, and is measured aartigst amount that is greater than 50% likely of being eshliz
upon ultimate settlement. Under Canadian GAAP, signifiddférences may arise as we recognize and measure
income tax positions, based on our best estimate @ttoeint that is more likely than not of being realized.

24.  Subsequent Events

On January 17, 2008, the Infosat board of directors pasesolation to approve the sale of the Infosat security
business. The proceeds are estimated to be $1.45 naititbmvill be received in cash. The sale was final@eé&ebruary 15,
2008 and was retroactive to February 1, 2008.

On February 13, 2008, Skynet Satellite Corporation enteredumagreement to sell the Hawley facility. The
purchase price is estimated to be $4.25 million USD atidbevpaid in two parts: $4 million USD will be receiviedcash
and $0.25 million USD will be received in service in-kind.

The lenders under the Senior Bridge Loan have a riglearasas April 28, 2008, to make a securities demand
whereby Telesat would issue high yield notes with registvatghts, but subject to an interest rate at or betmaltl %
(12.5% for the Senior Subordinated Bridge Loan) cap in exchangjee Senior Bridge Loan and the Senior Subordinated
Bridge Loan. In March 2008, Telesat was advised by its tertdeexpect to issue these high yield notes at or bilewwap
rate on April 30, 2008.
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April 24, 2008

MHR Fund Management LLC
40 West 57th Street

New York, New York 10019
Attn: Hal Goldstein

Re: Amended and Restated Securities Purchase Agreement
dated October 17, 2006, as amended and restated on Fehfuadp7

Dear Mr. Goldstein:

Reference is made to the Amended and Restated SecBuitidsase Agreement dated October 17, 2006, as amendexsiated on
February 27, 2007 (the “Securities Purchase Agreementéndhbetween Loral Space & Communications Inc. (thanf@any”) and MHR
Fund Management LLC (“MHR”"). Capitalized terms used imengthout definition shall have the meaning ascribed todrethe Securities
Purchase Agreement.

In connection with the 2008 annual meeting of stockholdettsso€ompany (the “2008 Annual Meeting”) scheduled by trer@to be held
on May 20, 2008, the Company has determined that it would itebest interest not to include, among the mattebg voted upon at the

2008 Annual Meeting, the Class B Proposal, the Non-Votingd3al and the Exchange Proposal referenced in Secti¥tharid 5.14 of the
Securities Purchase Agreement.

Accordingly, pursuant to the Securities Purchase Ageeénthe Company hereby requests, and MHR hereby agrésdoas:

(i) Notwithstanding the provisions of the SecesitPurchase Agreement to the contrary, the Compdhyot; and MHR, at the
Company'’s request, acknowledges and agrees, followingdtegt of notice from the Company in accordance wattiSns 5.02(b) and
5.14(b) of the Securities Purchase Agreement, thaldnepany is not required to include among the mattdoe twted upon at the 2008
Annual Meeting (or any adjournment or postponement theregfthe Class B Proposal, (y) the Non-Voting Sa@siProposal, or (z) the
Exchange Proposal.

(ii) If the Company requests at least ten (10)i&ss Days prior to any annual or




MHR Fund Management LLC
April 24, 2008
Page 2

special meeting of stockholders of the Company following?@@8 Annual Meeting, then in the case of (a) the Compdingtsuch request,
MHR shall vote all shares of Common Stock held gh@frecord date for such meeting in favor of a proptus&icrease the number of
authorized shares of Common Stock to sixty (60) milltbe (Share Authorization Proposal”), and (b) any sgbsat request by the
Company, MHR’s agreement to vote all shares of Com8tock held as of the record date for such meeting/or faf the Share
Authorization Proposal shall not be unreasonably withhel

Except as expressly amended by this letter agreetiner8ecurities Purchase Agreement remains in fudefand effect and nothing in this
letter agreement shall otherwise affect any othevipion of the Securities Purchase Agreement or tfggiand obligations of the parties
thereto, including, without limitation MHR’s rights undgections 5.02 and 5.14 of the Securities Purchaseefgma to request that the
Company convene a special meeting for the purpose kihgestockholder approval of (x) the Class B Proposalthg Non-Voting Securities
Proposal and (z) the Exchange Proposal.

On behalf of MHR, please confirm your agreemerdur request by signing below and returning to me an execopsdof this letter.
Sincerely,
/sl Janet T. Yeung
Janet T. Yeung

Accepted and Agreed as of
April 28, 2008

MHR Fund Management LLC

By: /s/ Hal Goldstein
Name: Hal Goldstein



LORAL SPACE & COMMUNICATIONS INC.
COMPUTATION OF EARNINGS (DEFICIENCY OF EARNINGS) TO COVER FIXED CHARGES

Successor Registrant

Predecessor Registrant

Exhibit 12.1

For the
For the Period Period
October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1, December 31, December 31,
2007(1) 2006 2005 2005(2) 2004 2003

Income (loss) from

continuing operations

before income taxes,

equity income (losses) ir

affiliates and minority

interest $ 52,84« $ 30,117 $ (5,395) $ (65570 $ (207,85) $ (368,35
Plus fixed charges:
Interest expense 11,84¢ 25,961 4,40¢ 3,982 3,904 28,22¢
Interest component of rent

expenses) 6,557 6,824 1,62E 4,94¢ 9,05¢ 10,40z
Less: capitalized interest (9,5379) (2,512) — — (957) (14.147)
Earnings available to covel

fixed charges $ 61,71  $ 60,39C $ 638 $ (56,639 $ (195846 $ (343,87)
Fixed charge#) $ (90,58¢) $ (73,767) $ (8,700) $ (8931) $ (12,969 $ (45,34%
Deficiency of earnings to

cover fixed charges $ 28,87¢ $ 13,37 $ 8,062 $ 65,57 $ 208,80¢ $ 389,21¢

(1) Does not reflect the gain on the contribution of L&lynet as a result of the Telesat Canada transaatiorthe

interest expense on FIN 48 liabilities which is recorded eomponent of the income tax provision.

(2) Does not reflect the effect of the gain on the dispharf pre-petition obligations and fresh-start adjustmenis the

interest expense and income tax benefit recognizechimection with the Plan of Reorganization.

(3) The interest component of rent expense is deemed to hexapately 25% of total rent expense.

(4) Fixed charges are as follows:

Successor Registrant

Predecessor Registrant

For the Period

For the Period

October 2, January 1,
Year Ended Year Ended 2005 to 2005 to Year Ended Year Ended
December 31, December 31, December 31, October 1, December 31, December 31,
2007 2006 2005 2005 2004 2003
Pre tax preferred dividend
®) $ 72,18 $ 4098 $ 2,667 |$ — 3 — 3 6,71¢
Interest expense 11,84¢ 25,961 4,40¢ 3,982 3,904 28,22¢
Interest component of ren
expense 6,557 6,824 1,62t 4,94¢ 9,05¢ 10,40z
Fixed charges $ 90,58¢ $ 73,767 $ 8,70C $ 8,931 $ 12,96: $ 45,34¢

(5) For 2007 and 2006, dividends on Loral Series A-1 and SeriesrBfdrifed Stock and Loral Skynet Preferred Stock



have been grossed-up using a normalized effective tarfrd®96% and 39.5%, respectively.



Exhibit 21.1

The active subsidiaries owned directly or indirectlyLibyal Space & Communications Inc. as of March 1, 2008, al
100% owned (except as noted below) consist of the following:

Loral Space & Communications Holdings Corporation Delaware
Loral Skynet Corporation Delaware
Loral Satmex LLC Delaware
Space Systems/Loral, Inc. Delaware
International Space Technology, Io. Delaware
Cosmotechy) Russian Federation
SSI/L Isle of Man Limited Isle of Man
Loral General Partner, Inc. Delaware
LGP (Bermuda) Ltd. Bermuda
Loral Holdings LLC Delaware
Mexico Satellite, LLC(2) Delaware
Loral Global Services N.V. Netherlands Antilles
Loral Global Services B.V. Netherlands
Loral Holdings Corporation Delaware
NOTES

(1) Only 51.0% owned directly or indirectly

(2) Only 77.78% owned directly or indirectly



Exhibit 23.1

CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Regjigtr&tatement Nos. 333-132795 and 333-143274 on
Form S-8 and Registration Statement No. 333-138652 on Forof 848 reports dated April 29, 2008, relating to the
consolidated financial statements and financial state schedules of Loral Space & Communications Incsabdidiaries
(the “Company”) (which report expresses an unqualified opiand contains explanatory paragraphs (1) which indicate
the Company adopted fresh-start reporting, as of Ocigl#905, and (2) relating to the Company’s adoption of new
accounting standards) and the effectiveness of the Gunsgaternal control over financial reporting, (whiaport
expresses an adverse opinion on the effectiveness of thea@y's internal control over financial reporting becaafse
material weakness) appearing in this Annual Report on ForkhdfQ oral Space & Communications Inc. for the year
ended December 31, 2007.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

New York, NY
April 29, 2008



Exhibit 23.2
CONSENT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM

We consent to the incorporation by reference in Regjigtr&tatement Nos. 333-132795 and 333-143274 on
Form S-8 and Registration Statement No. 333-138652 on Forof 848 report dated March 20, 2008, relating to the
consolidated financial statements of Telesat Holdingsdnd its subsidiaries (the “Company”) appearing in thisual
Report on Form 10-K of Loral Space & Communicatiorts for the year ended December 31, 2007.

/s/ DELOITTE & TOUCHE LLP

Independent Registered Public Accountants
Licensed Public Accountants

Toronto, Ontario

April 29, 2008



Exhibit 31.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Michael B. Targoff, certify that:

1.

5.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of L&phace & Communications Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain anyeustiatement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements rimaldght of the circumstances under which such states
were made, not misleading with respect to the perigdred by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, drett fhancial information included in this report, fai
present in all material respects the financial conalitiesults of operations and cash flows of the regists
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintaining discie
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RB&49(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13§-a6¢ 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caudedisclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that adatdormation relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known twywathers within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is beingpared;

Designed such internal control over financial reportorgzaused such internal control over finan
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to proeasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparatigifinancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disotosantrols and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveneslsetlisclosure controls and procedures, as ¢
end of the period covered by this report based on such ewealuarid

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant&smal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscaltquéthe registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affectad,reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and Wbalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluation ohatte
control over financial reporting, to the registrantslidors and the audit committee of the registrant’sdoé
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessdhéndesign or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to asely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial infoomasind

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal contrgkofinancial reporting.

/s/ MICHAEL B. TARGOFF

Michael B. Targoff
Chief Executive Officer




April 29, 2008



Exhibit 31.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 302 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

I, Harvey B. Rein, certify that:

1.

5.

| have reviewed this Annual Report on Form 10-K of L&phace & Communications Inc.;

Based on my knowledge, this report does not contain anyeustiatement of a material fact or omit to state a
material fact necessary to make the statements rimaldght of the circumstances under which such states
were made, not misleading with respect to the perigdred by this report;

Based on my knowledge, the financial statements, drett fhancial information included in this report, fai
present in all material respects the financial conalitiesults of operations and cash flows of the regists
of, and for, the periods presented in this report;

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and ¢ aesponsible for establishing and maintaining discie
controls and procedures (as defined in Exchange Act RB&49(e) and 15d-15(e)) and internal control over
financial reporting (as defined in Exchange Act Rules 13§-a6¢ 15d-15(f)) for the registrant and have:

(@)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Designed such disclosure controls and procedures, or caudedisclosure controls and procedures
to be designed under our supervision, to ensure that adatdormation relating to the registrant,
including its consolidated subsidiaries, is made known twywathers within those entities,
particularly during the period in which this report is beingpared;

Designed such internal control over financial reportorgzaused such internal control over finan
reporting to be designed under our supervision, to proeasonable assurance regarding the
reliability of financial reporting and the preparatigifinancial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles;

Evaluated the effectiveness of the registrant’s disotosantrols and procedures and presented in
this report our conclusions about the effectiveneslsetlisclosure controls and procedures, as ¢
end of the period covered by this report based on such ewealuarid

Disclosed in this report any change in the registrant&smal control over financial reporting that
occurred during the registrant’s most recent fiscaltquéthe registrant’s fourth fiscal quarter in the
case of an annual report) that has materially affectad,reasonably likely to materially affect, the
registrant’s internal control over financial reporting; and

The registrant’s other certifying officer(s) and Wbalisclosed, based on our most recent evaluation ohatte
control over financial reporting, to the registrantslidors and the audit committee of the registrant’sdoé
directors (or persons performing the equivalent functions):

(@)

(b)

All significant deficiencies and material weaknessdhéndesign or operation of internal control
over financial reporting which are reasonably likely to asely affect the registrant’s ability to
record, process, summarize and report financial infoomasind

Any fraud, whether or not material, that involvesnagement or other employees who have a
significant role in the registrant’s internal contrgkofinancial reporting.

/s/ HARVEY B. REIN

Harvey B. Rein
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer




April 29, 2008



Exhibit 32.1

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Loral Space &faunications Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for
the period ending December 31, 2007 as filed with the Sexsuaitid Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Michael B. Targoff, certify, pursuant to 183JC. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 8§ 906 of the Sarbanes-Oxley
Act of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements atisa 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presein all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ MICHAEL B. TARGOFF

Michael B. Targoff
Chief Executive Officer

April 29, 2008



Exhibit 32.2

CERTIFICATION PURSUANT TO
18 U.S.C. SECTION 1350,
AS ADOPTED PURSUANT TO
SECTION 906 OF THE SARBANES-OXLEY ACT OF 2002

In connection with the Annual Report of Loral Space &faunications Inc. (the “Company”) on Form 10-K for
the period ending December 31, 2007 as filed with the Sexsuaitid Exchange Commission on the date hereof (the
“Report”), I, Harvey B. Rein, certify, pursuant to 188C. § 1350, as adopted pursuant to 8 906 of the Sarbanes/@kley
of 2002, that:

(1) The Report fully complies with the requirements atisa 13(a) or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act
of 1934, and

(2) The information contained in the Report fairly presein all material respects, the financial condition
and results of operations of the Company.

/s/ HARVEY B. REIN

Harvey B. Rein
Senior Vice President and Chief Financial Officer

April 29, 2008



